
THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

PART TWO OF THIS DOCUMENT COMPRISES AN EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN COMPLIANCE WITH
SECTION 108 OF THE COMPANIES (GUERNSEY) LAW, 2008 (AS AMENDED) AND DETAILS OF A PROPOSED
ACQUISITION WHICH, IF IMPLEMENTED, WILL RESULT IN THE CANCELLATION OF MARIANA’S
QUOTATION ON THE AIM MARKET OF THE LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE AND DELISTING FROM THE TSXV.

Neither the Guernsey Financial Services Commission nor the States of Guernsey take any responsibility for
the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed in this document.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document or the action you should take, you are
recommended to seek your own independent personal financial advice immediately from your stockbroker,
bank manager, accountant, fund manager or other appropriate independent financial adviser duly authorised
under the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as amended), if you are resident in the UK or, if not,
from another appropriately authorised independent financial adviser.

If you sell or have sold or otherwise transferred all of your Mariana Shares, please send this document, together with all
accompanying documents, (but not any personalised accompanying documents) and any reply-paid envelope at once
to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected,
for onward transmission to the purchaser or transferee. However, such documents must not be forwarded or transmitted
in, into or from any jurisdiction where to do so would constitute a violation of the relevant laws or regulations of such
jurisdiction. If you sell or have sold or otherwise transferred part only of your holding of Mariana Shares, please retain
these documents and consult the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected. If
you have recently purchased or otherwise been transferred Mariana Shares in certificated form, notwithstanding receipt
of this document and any accompanying documents from the transferor, you should contact Computershare Investor
Services (Guernsey) Limited on the telephone numbers set out on page 4 of this document to obtain personalised Forms
of Proxy.

Recommended Combination

of

MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED
(a non-cellular company incorporated under the laws of Guernsey with registration number 44276)

with

SANDSTORM GOLD LTD
(a public company incorporated under the laws of British Columbia, Canada with registration number BC1040406)

to be effected by way of a Scheme of Arrangement
under Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended)

The New Sandstorm Shares to be received by Scheme Shareholders under the Scheme have not been, and will not
be, registered under the US Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) or under the securities laws of any state,
district or other jurisdiction of the United States and no regulatory clearances in respect of the registration of New
Sandstorm Shares have been, or will be, applied for in any such jurisdiction. It is intended that the New Sandstorm
Shares will be issued in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided
by section 3(a)(10) thereof. Under applicable US securities laws, Mariana Shareholders who are or will be “affiliates” of
Sandstorm prior to or after the Effective Date will be subject to certain transfer restrictions relating to the New Sandstorm
Shares received in connection with the Scheme.

The Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”) has conditionally approved the listing of the New Sandstorm Shares to be issued
under the Combination, subject to filing certain documents following closing of the Combination. NYSE MKT approval
will be obtained prior to the closing of the Combination.

The distribution of this document and any accompanying documents (in whole or in part) in or into jurisdictions other
than the United Kingdom and Guernsey may be restricted by the laws of those jurisdictions and therefore persons into
whose possession this document and any accompanying documents comes should inform themselves about, and
observe, any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with any such restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities
laws of any such jurisdiction. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, each of Sandstorm and Mariana disclaims
any responsibility or liability for the violation of such restrictions by any person.
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The transactions contemplated herein have not been approved or disapproved by any securities regulatory authority
nor has any securities regulatory authority passed upon the fairness or merits of the transaction or upon the adequacy
of the information contained in this document. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

Neither this document nor any of the accompanying documents are intended to, and do not, constitute or form part of
any offer or invitation to purchase, otherwise acquire, subscribe for, sell or otherwise dispose of, any securities or the
solicitation of any vote or approval pursuant to the Scheme or otherwise, in any jurisdiction in which such offer, invitation
or solicitation is unlawful.

The securities to be issued as described herein have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or the securities regulatory authority of any state of the United States, nor has the
SEC or any United States state securities regulatory authority passed upon the fairness or merits of the transaction or
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence. Any shares
issued under the Scheme will not be registered under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state or
other jurisdiction of the United States.

The contents of this document have not been reviewed by any regulatory authority in Hong Kong. You are advised to
exercise caution in relation to the Scheme. If you are in any doubt about any of the contents of this document, you
should obtain independent professional advice. This document must not be issued, circulated or distributed in Hong
Kong other than (1) to “professional investors” as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and any rules
made under the SFO, (2) to persons and in circumstances which do not result in this document being a “prospectus”
as defined in section 2(1) of the CWMO or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (“CWMO”) or an invitation to the public within the
meaning of the SFO or (3) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable
provisions of the SFO and CWMO.

Your proxy is being solicited by the management of Mariana and this document is furnished in connection
with that solicitation. This document, together with the accompanying Forms of Proxy, should be read as a
whole. Your attention is drawn to the letter from the chairman of Mariana in Part One (Letter from the Non-
Executive Chairman of Mariana) of this document, which contains the unanimous recommendation of the
Mariana Independent Directors that you vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey Court Meeting and
the Shareholder Resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting. A letter from RFC
Ambrian explaining the Scheme appears in Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document.

Notices of the Shareholder Meetings, which will be held at the offices of Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street,
London, EC2A 2HB on 16 June 2017, are set out in Parts Twelve, Thirteen and Fourteen of this document. The Guernsey
Court Meeting will start at 10.00 a.m. on that date, the Extraordinary General Meeting at 10.15 a.m. (or as soon thereafter
as the Guernsey Court Meeting has concluded) and the Annual General Meeting at 10.30 a.m. on that date (or as soon
thereafter as the Extraordinary General Meeting has concluded).

The action to be taken in respect of the Shareholder Meetings is set out in paragraph 21 of Part Two (Explanatory
Statement) of this document. A purple Form of Proxy for use in connection with the Guernsey Court Meeting, a blue
form of proxy for use in connection with the Extraordinary General Meeting and a white Form of Proxy for use in
connection with the Annual General Meeting accompany this document. You are asked to complete and return the
enclosed Forms of Proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible, but in any event so
as to be received by Mariana’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited, not later than 48 hours
before the relevant Shareholder Meeting (excluding any part of such 48 hour period falling on a weekend or a public
holiday in Guernsey).

If you hold your Mariana Shares in uncertificated form (i.e. in CREST), you may vote using the CREST proxy voting
service in accordance with the procedures set out in the CREST Manual (please also refer to the accompanying notes
to the Notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting set out at the end of this document). Proxies submitted via CREST
(under CREST participation ID R002) must be received by Mariana’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services
(Guernsey) Limited, at least 48 hours before the time appointed for the relevant Shareholder Meeting or, in the case of
any adjournment, not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned meeting.

If the purple Form of Proxy for the Guernsey Court Meeting is not lodged by the relevant time, it may be handed to
Mariana’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited, on behalf of the chairman of the Guernsey
Court Meeting before the start of the Guernsey Court Meeting. However, in the case of the Extraordinary General Meeting
or the Annual General Meeting, if the blue or white Form of Proxy (as applicable) is not lodged by the relevant time, it
will be invalid unless the Mariana Board directs otherwise.

The return of a completed Form of Proxy, submitting a proxy vote electronically or transmitting a CREST Proxy Instruction
will not prevent you from attending in person the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General Meeting or the
Annual General Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, and voting in person if you so wish and are so entitled.
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IMPORTANT NOTICES

KPMG LLP, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the FCA, is acting exclusively as
financial adviser to Sandstorm in relation to the Combination and is not acting for any other person in relation
to such Combination. KPMG LLP will not be responsible to anyone other than Sandstorm for providing the
protections afforded to its clients nor for providing advice in relation to the Combination or any other matters
referred to in this document or otherwise. Neither KPMG LLP nor any of its affiliates owes or accepts any
duty, liability or responsibility whatsoever (whether direct or indirect, whether in contract, in tort, under statute
or otherwise) to any person who is not a client of KPMG LLP in connection with the Combination, any
statement contained herein or otherwise.

RFC Ambrian Limited (“RFC Ambrian”), which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the
FCA, is acting exclusively as financial adviser to Mariana and no one else in connection with the Combination,
and will not be responsible to anyone other than Mariana for providing the protections afforded to clients of
RFC Ambrian or for providing advice in relation to the Combination or other matters referred to in this
document. Neither RFC Ambrian nor any of its affiliates owes or accepts any duty, liability or responsibility
whatsoever (whether direct or indirect, whether in contract, in tort, under statute or otherwise) to any person
who is not a client of RFC Ambrian in connection with the Combination, any statement contained herein or
otherwise.

Raymond James Ltd. (“Raymond James”) is acting exclusively as Canadian financial adviser to Mariana,
and to the Mariana Independent Directors, and no one else in connection with the Combination, and will
not be responsible to anyone other than Mariana for providing the protections afforded to clients of Raymond
James nor for providing advice in relation to the Combination or other matters referred to in this document.
Neither Raymond James nor any of its affiliates owes or accepts any duty, liability or responsibility whatsoever
(whether direct or indirect, whether in contract, in tort, under statute or otherwise) to any person who is not
a client of Raymond James in connection with the Combination, any statement contained herein or
otherwise.

The technical and scientific information relating to Mariana and its assets contained in this document has
been reviewed and approved by Eric Roth, a qualified person as defined by National Instrument 43-101 –
Standards of Disclosure of Mineral Projects (“NI 43-101”). Eric Roth is Mariana’s chief operating officer and
executive director and holds a Ph.D. in Economic Geology from the University of Western Australia, is a
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, and is a Fellow of the Society of Economic
Geologists. Eric Roth has 25 years of experience in international minerals exploration and mining project
evaluation.

See “Interests of Experts” in Part Nine (Information Concerning Sandstorm) for information on Sandstorm’s
qualified persons.

Sandstorm has made an application to the TSX and will make an application to the NYSE MKT, for the New
Sandstorm Shares to be listed for trading. The decision on such listings is at the sole discretion of the TSX
and NYSE MKT respectively. The TSX has conditionally approved the listing of the New Sandstorm Shares
to be issued under the Combination, subject to filing certain documents following closing of the Combination.
NYSE MKT approval will be obtained prior to the closing of the Combination. It is expected that such listings
will become effective and that dealings for normal settlement in the New Sandstorm Shares will commence
shortly after the Scheme becomes Effective.

The contents of this document are not to be construed as legal, business, financial or tax advice. If you are
in any doubt about the contents of this document, you should consult your own legal adviser, financial
adviser or tax adviser for legal, business, financial or tax advice.

The statements contained in this document are made as at the date of this document, unless some other
time is specified in relation to them, and service of this document shall not give rise to any implication that
there has been no change in the facts set forth in this document since such date. Nothing contained in this
document shall be deemed to be a forecast, projection or estimate of the future financial performance of
Mariana or Sandstorm, except where otherwise stated.
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No person has been authorised to make any representations on behalf of Mariana or Sandstorm concerning
the Combination or the Scheme which are inconsistent with the statements contained in this document and
any such representations, if made, may not be relied upon as having been so authorised.

NOTICE TO OVERSEAS SHAREHOLDERS

The release, publication or distribution of this document in or into jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom
or Guernsey may be restricted by law. Therefore any persons who are subject to the laws of any jurisdiction
other than the United Kingdom or Guernsey, or Mariana Shareholders who are not resident in the United
Kingdom or Guernsey, should inform themselves about, and observe, any applicable requirements. Any
failure to comply with the applicable restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities laws of any such
jurisdiction. In particular, the ability of persons who are not resident in the United Kingdom or Guernsey to
vote on their Mariana Shares with respect to the Scheme and the Guernsey Court Meeting, or to execute
and deliver Forms of Proxy appointing another to vote at the Guernsey Court Meeting on their behalf, may
be affected by the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in which they are located.

Your proxy is being solicited by management of Mariana and this document is furnished in connection with
that solicitation. This document is not intended to and does not constitute, or form part of, an offer, invitation
or the solicitation of an offer to purchase, otherwise acquire, subscribe for, sell or otherwise dispose of any
securities of Sandstorm, or the solicitation of any vote or approval in any jurisdiction, pursuant to the
Combination or otherwise, nor shall there be any sale, issuance or transfer of securities of Mariana in any
jurisdiction in contravention of applicable law. The Combination will be made solely by means of this
document, which contains the full terms and conditions of the Combination including details of how to vote
in respect of the Scheme. Any vote in respect of the Scheme or other response in relation to the Combination
should be made only on the basis of the information contained in this document.

Unless otherwise determined by Mariana or Sandstorm or required by the Code, and permitted by applicable
law and regulation, the Combination will not be made available, directly or indirectly, in, into or from a
Restricted Jurisdiction where to do so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction and no person may vote in
favour of the Combination within a Restricted Jurisdiction or any other jurisdiction if to do so would constitute
a violation of the laws of that jurisdiction.

It is the responsibility of any person into whose possession this document comes to satisfy themselves as
to their full observance of the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in connection with the Combination, the
distribution of this document and any accompanying documents, including the obtaining of any
governmental, exchange control or other consents which may be required and/or compliance with other
necessary formalities which are required to be observed, the allotment and issue of New Sandstorm Shares
following the Combination becoming Effective and the payment of any issue, transfer or other taxes due in
such jurisdiction.

If, in respect of any Overseas Shareholder, Sandstorm is advised that the allotment and issue of New
Sandstorm Shares would or might infringe the laws of any jurisdiction outside the United Kingdom or
Guernsey, or would or might require Sandstorm to obtain any governmental or other consent or effect any
registration, filing or other formality with which, in the opinion of Sandstorm, it would be unable to comply
or which it regards as unduly onerous, the Combination provides that Sandstorm may determine either: (a)
that the relevant Overseas Shareholder’s entitlement to New Sandstorm Shares pursuant to the Combination
shall be issued to such Overseas Shareholder and then sold on his behalf as soon as reasonably practicable

HELPLINE
If you have any questions about this document, the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General
Meeting or the Annual General Meeting or how to complete the Forms of Proxy, please call
Computershare Guernsey between 8.30 a.m. and 5.30 p.m. on Monday to Friday (except public holidays)
on 0370 707 4040 (from within the UK) or +44 (0) 370 707 4040 (from outside the UK or (if in North
America) Computershare Canada between 8.30 a.m. and 5.30 p.m. on Monday to Friday (except public
holidays) on 1-800-564-6253 (toll free Canada and US) or +1-514-982-7555 (outside North America) or
by email on: corporateactions@computershare.com). Please note that calls may be monitored or recorded
and that Computershare Guernsey and Computershare Canada cannot provide legal, tax or financial
advice or advice on the merits of the Scheme.
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at the best price which can be reasonably obtained at the time of sale, with the net proceeds of sale being
remitted to the relevant Overseas Shareholder; or (b) that the relevant Overseas Shareholder’s entitlement
to New Sandstorm Shares shall be issued to a nominee for such Overseas Shareholder appointed by
Sandstorm and then sold, with the net proceeds being remitted to the Overseas Shareholder concerned.
Any remittance of the net proceeds of sale referred to in this paragraph shall be at the risk of the relevant
Overseas Shareholder.

This document has been prepared for the purposes of complying with English law, Guernsey law, certain
applicable Canadian securities laws, the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSXV”) requirements, the AIM Rules, the
rules of the London Stock Exchange and the Code and the information disclosed may not be the same as
that which would have been disclosed if this document had been prepared in accordance with the laws of
jurisdictions outside of England or Guernsey. Copies of this document and all documents relating to the
Combination (in whole or in part) are not being, and must not be, directly or indirectly, mailed, transmitted
or otherwise forwarded, distributed or sent in, into or from any Restricted Jurisdiction where to do so would
violate the laws in that jurisdiction, and persons receiving such documents (including, without limitation,
agents, custodians, nominees and trustees) must not mail or otherwise forward, distribute or send it in, into
or from any Restricted Jurisdiction where to do so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction. Any person
(including, without limitation, any agents, custodian, nominee and trustee) who would, or otherwise intends
to, or who may have a contractual or legal obligation to, forward this document and/or any other documents
relating to the Combination to any jurisdiction outside the United Kingdom and Guernsey should inform
themselves of, and observe, any applicable legal or regulatory requirements of their jurisdiction. If the
Combination is implemented by way of a Takeover Offer, (unless otherwise permitted by applicable law and
regulation) the Combination may not be made, directly or indirectly, in or into any Restricted Jurisdiction
where to do so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction, by the use of mail or any means or instrumentality
(including, but not limited to, facsimile, e-mail or other electronic transmission, telex or telephone), or by any
facility of a national, state or other securities exchange of any Restricted Jurisdiction and the Combination
may not be capable of acceptance by any such use, means, instrumentality or facility. For further details in
relation to Overseas Shareholders please see paragraph 20 of Part Two of this document.

Financial information included in the relevant documentation will have been prepared in accordance with
accounting standards applicable (where relevant) in the United Kingdom and Guernsey that may not be
comparable to the financial statements of US or Canadian companies or companies whose financial
statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the US or Canada.

For details on settlement, please refer to paragraphs 3 and 16 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this
document.

NOTICES TO US HOLDERS, US OPTIONHOLDERS AND US WARRANTHOLDERS

The Combination and the securities to be issued in connection with the Combination have not
been approved or disapproved by the SEC or the securities regulatory authority of any state of
the United States, nor has the SEC or any such state securities regulatory authority passed upon
the fairness or merits of the Combination or upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence.

This document does not constitute, or form part of, any offer for, or any solicitation of any offer
for, securities, nor is it a solicitation of any vote or approval in any jurisdiction, nor will there be
any purchase or transfer of the securities referred to in this document in any jurisdiction in
contravention of applicable law or regulation.

The New Sandstorm Shares to be received by Scheme Shareholders in exchange for their Mariana Shares
pursuant to the Combination have not been, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act or the
securities laws of any state, district or other jurisdiction of the United States, and such securities are intended
to be issued in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth
in section 3(a)(10) thereof on the basis of the approval of the Guernsey Court, which has been informed of
the intention to rely upon such exemption, and similar exemptions under applicable state securities laws.
Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act exempts the issuance of securities issued in exchange for one or more
bona fide outstanding securities, from the registration requirements of the Securities Act where, among
other matters, the terms and conditions of such issuance and exchange have been approved by a court of
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competent jurisdiction that is expressly authorized by law to grant such approval, after a hearing upon the
fairness of the substantive and procedural terms and conditions of such issuance and exchange at which
all persons to whom the securities will be issued have the right to appear and receive timely and adequate
notice thereof.

The New Sandstorm Shares to be received by Scheme Shareholders upon completion of the Combination
may be resold without restriction under the Securities Act, except in respect of resales by persons who are
“affiliates” (within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act) of Sandstorm at the time of such resale
or who have been affiliates of Sandstorm within 90 days before such proposed resale or at the time of the
Combination or within 90 days of the Combination. Persons who may be deemed to be “affiliates” of an
issuer include individuals or entities that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with, the
issuer, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise, and generally include
executive officers and directors of the issuer as well as holders of more than 10 per cent. of the outstanding
shares of the issuer. New Sandstorm Shareholders who are affiliates of Sandstorm solely by virtue of their
status as an officer or director of Sandstorm may sell their New Sandstorm Shares outside the United States
in compliance with Rule 904 of Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Mariana and Sandstorm are “foreign private issuers” within the meaning of Rule 3b-4 under the Exchange
Act and the solicitations of proxies for the Shareholder Meetings is not subject to the requirements of section
14(a) of the United States Exchange Act. Accordingly, this document has been prepared in accordance with
disclosure requirements applicable under Guernsey law, the AIM Rules and the Code, and the solicitations
and transactions contemplated in this document are made in the United States for securities of a Guernsey
issuer in accordance with such laws. Mariana Shareholders, Mariana Option Holders and Mariana Warrant
Holders that are in the United States, resident in the United States or with a registered address in the United
States, and any custodian, nominee or trustee holding for such persons in the United States or with a
registered address in the United States, or acquired the Mariana Shares, Mariana Options or Mariana
Warrants in the United States should be aware that such requirements are different from those applicable
to registration statements under the Securities Act and proxy statements under the Exchange Act.

Following the Combination, Mariana Options and Mariana Warrants will remain outstanding under their terms
and any securities issuable upon exercise thereof have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act or applicable state securities laws. As a result, Mariana Options and Mariana Warrants may
not be exercised in the United States or by or on behalf of a US Optionholder or US Warrantholder as
applicable, nor may any New Sandstorm Shares issued upon such exercise be offered or resold in the
United States or to or for the account of such a United States holder, except pursuant to the terms of such
security and pursuant to a registration statement under the Securities Act or an exemption from such
registration requirements or in a transaction not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities
Act and applicable state securities laws.

The financial information on Sandstorm in this document has been extracted or derived (without material
adjustment) from Sandstorm’s annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
unaudited first quarter report and accounts for the three-month period ended 31 March 2017, which are
prepared in United States dollars. The financial information on Mariana in this document has been extracted
or derived (without material adjustment) from Mariana’s annual report and accounts for the year ended 31
December 2016, which are prepared in British Pounds Sterling. In addition, such financial statements and
other financial information included or incorporated by reference in this document have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS, which differs from US GAAP in certain material respects, and thus are not directly
comparable to financial statements prepared in accordance with US GAAP.

Information in this document or in the documents incorporated by reference herein concerning the properties
and operations of Sandstorm and of Mariana has been prepared in accordance with requirements and
standards under securities laws which differ from the requirements of United States securities laws. The
terms “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource” and “inferred mineral
resource” used in this or in the documents incorporated by reference herein are mining terms as defined in
accordance with NI 43-101 under guidelines set out in the Definition Standards for Mineral Resources and
Mineral Reserves adopted by the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum Council on 11
December 2005. While the terms “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral
resource” and “inferred mineral resource” are recognized and required by securities laws other than the
requirements of US securities laws, they are not recognized by the SEC. Disclosure of contained ounces
are or may be permitted disclosure under regulations applicable to Mariana and Sandstorm; however, the
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SEC normally only permits issuers to report resources as in place tonnage and grade without reference to
unit of production measures. As such, certain information contained in this document or in the documents
incorporated by reference herein concerning descriptions of mineralization and mineral resources under
these standards may not be comparable to similar information made public by United States companies
subject to reporting and disclosure requirements of the SEC.

US Holders (including US Optionholders and US Warrantholders) should be aware that the Combination
described in this document may have tax consequences in the United States and should consult their own
tax advisors to determine the particular United States tax consequences to them of the Combination in light
of their particular situation, as well as any tax consequences that may arise under the laws of any other
relevant foreign, state, local, or other taxing jurisdiction.

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under the United States federal and state securities laws may
be affected adversely by the fact that Sandstorm and Mariana are incorporated or organized under the laws
of a jurisdiction other than the United States, that some or all of their officers and directors are and will be
residents of countries other than the United States, that some or all of the experts named in this document
may be residents of countries other than the United States, and that all or a substantial portion of the assets
of Sandstorm, Mariana and such persons are and will be located outside the United States. As a result, it
may be difficult or impossible for US Holders (including, US Optionholders and US Warrantholders) to effect
service of process within the United States upon Sandstorm or Mariana, as applicable, their respective
officers or directors or the experts named herein, or to realize, against them, upon judgments of courts of
the United States predicated upon civil liabilities under the federal securities laws of the United States or
applicable securities laws of any state within the United States. In addition, US Holders (including, US
Optionholders and US Warrantholders) should not assume that the courts of Guernsey: (a) would enforce
judgments of United States courts obtained in actions against such persons predicated upon civil liabilities
under the federal securities laws of the United States or applicable securities laws of any state within the
United States; or (b) would enforce, in original actions, liabilities against such persons predicated upon civil
liabilities under the federal securities laws of the United States or applicable securities laws of any state
within the United States.

The Combination relates to the acquisition of shares in a Guernsey-incorporated company traded on AIM
and TSXV and is proposed to be effected by means of a scheme of arrangement between Sandstorm and
Mariana under the Companies (Guernsey) Law. A transaction effected by means of a scheme of arrangement
done in the manner described (and taking into account anticipated actions not described) is not subject to
the tender offer rules or the proxy solicitation rules under the Exchange Act or other US federal securities
laws. However, the Combination is subject to other disclosure requirements, rules and practices. If, in the
future, Sandstorm exercises the right to implement the Combination by way of a Takeover Offer, it will be
made in accordance with the procedural and filing requirements of US securities laws, to the extent
applicable.

NOTICES TO MARIANA SHAREHOLDERS IN CANADA

The transactions contemplated herein have not been approved or disapproved by any securities regulatory
authority nor has any securities regulatory authority passed upon the fairness or merits of the transaction or
upon the adequacy of the information contained in this document. Any representation to the contrary is
unlawful.

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under the Canadian securities laws may be affected adversely
by the fact that Mariana is incorporated or organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than Canada,
that some or all of Sandstorm’s and Mariana’s officers and directors are and will be residents of countries
other than Canada, that some or all of the experts named in this document may be residents of countries
other than Canada, and that all or a substantial portion of the assets of Sandstorm, Mariana and such
persons are and will be located outside Canada. As a result, it may be difficult or impossible for Canadian
holders of Mariana Shares to effect service of process within Canada upon Mariana, Sandstorm’s and
Mariana’s respective officers or directors or the experts named herein, or to realize, against them, upon
judgments of courts of Canada predicated upon liabilities under Canadian securities laws. In addition,
Canadian holders of Mariana Shares should not assume that the courts of Guernsey: (a) would enforce
judgments of Canadian courts obtained in actions against such persons predicated upon civil liabilities under
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Canadian securities laws; or (b) would enforce, in original actions, liabilities against such persons predicated
upon civil liabilities under the Canadian securities laws.

The Combination relates to the acquisition of shares in a Guernsey-incorporated company traded on AIM
and the TSXV and is proposed to be effected by means of a scheme of arrangement under the Companies
(Guernsey) Law. A transaction effected by means of a scheme of arrangement done in the manner described
(and taking into account anticipated actions not described) is not subject to the takeover bid rules under
the Canadian securities laws. However, the Combination is subject to other disclosure requirements, rules
and practices. Financial information included in the relevant documentation will have been prepared in
accordance with accounting standards applicable (where relevant) in the United Kingdom and Guernsey
that may not be comparable to the financial statements of Canadian companies or companies whose
financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Canada.

The New Sandstorm Shares to be issued pursuant to the Combination will be issued in reliance upon
exemptions from the prospectus requirements of securities legislation in each province of Canada. Subject
to certain disclosure and regulatory requirements and to customary restrictions applicable to distributions
of shares that constitute “control distributions”, New Sandstorm Shares may be resold in each province and
territory in Canada, subject in certain circumstances, to the usual conditions that no unusual effort has been
made to prepare the market or to create demand, no extraordinary commission or consideration is paid
and, if the selling shareholder is an insider or officer of Sandstorm, such shareholder has no reasonable
grounds to believe that Sandstorm is in default of securities legislation.

Holders of Mariana Shares in Canada should be aware that the Combination described in this document
may have tax consequences in Canada and should consult their own tax advisors to determine the particular
Canadian tax consequences to them of the Combination in light of their particular situation, as well as any
tax consequences that may arise under the laws of any other relevant foreign, state, local, or other taxing
jurisdiction. Further information in relation to Canadian taxation is contained in paragraph 3 of Part Five
(Taxation) of this document.

For details on settlement, please refer to paragraphs 3 and 16 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this
document.

NOTICES TO BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN CANADA AND THE US

You are a Beneficial Shareholder if your Mariana Shares are registered in the name of a nominee, like your
bank, trust company, securities broker, trustee or other institution. The majority of Mariana Shares are held
by beneficial shareholders.

If you are a Beneficial Shareholder, you must send your voting instructions to your nominee who will vote for
you. You will receive a request for voting instructions for the number of Mariana Shares held for your benefit.
Follow the instructions on the voting instruction form and send your voting instructions to your nominee. If
you are a beneficial shareholder, you will likely have an earlier deadline for the return of your
voting instructions, so be sure to send them right away to allow enough time for your nominee
to receive the information and then send it to Mariana before the proxy cut-off.

Most nominees delegate responsibility for obtaining voting instructions from their clients to Broadridge
Financial Solutions Inc. (“Broadridge”). Broadridge usually mails a scannable voting instruction form that is
to be completed and returned to them by mail or fax. You can also call a toll-free phone number or access
Broadridge’s dedicated voting website to submit your voting instructions. Broadridge tabulates the results
of all the instructions it receives and presents this information at the meeting.

If you received voting materials from a company other than Broadridge, you need to complete and return
the form following the instructions they have provided.

Mariana uses Broadridge to send proxy-related materials to non-objecting beneficial owners of Mariana
Shares. Mariana intends to pay for intermediaries to deliver proxy-related materials to objecting beneficial
owners of Mariana.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document (including information incorporated by reference in this document), oral statements made
regarding the Combination, and other information published by Sandstorm and Mariana contain statements
which are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements” or “forward-looking information”
under applicable securities laws (collectively referred to as “forward-looking statements”). Forward-looking
statements are prospective in nature and are not based on historical facts, but rather on current expectations
and projections of the management of Sandstorm and Mariana about future events, and are therefore subject
to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from the future results
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements contained in this document include statements relating to the expected
effects of the Combination on Sandstorm and Mariana, the expected timing and scope of the Combination,
production forecasts, plans with respect to the JV interest, plans with respect to the Exploration Properties,
estimates of mineral resources, statements with respect of the Hot Maden PEA anticipated benefits of the
Combination, expectations regarding listing of the New Sandstorm Shares and delisting of the Mariana
Shares, and other statements other than historical facts. Often, but not always, forward-looking statements
can be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as “plans”, “expects” or “does not expect”, “is
expected”, “is subject to”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates” or “does
not anticipate”, or “believes”, or variations of such words and phrases or statements that certain actions,
events or results “may”, “could”, “should”, “would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved. Although
Sandstorm and Mariana believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are
reasonable, Sandstorm and Mariana can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct.
By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and
depend on circumstances that will occur in the future. There are a number of factors that could cause actual
results and developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements.

These factors include, but are not limited to: the ability to consummate the Combination  the ability to obtain
requisite court and shareholder approvals and the satisfaction of other Conditions on the proposed terms
and schedule  receipt of regulatory approvals, the ability of Sandstorm and Mariana to successfully integrate
their respective operations and retain key employees  the potential impact of the announcement or
consummation of the Combination on relationships, including with employees, suppliers, customers and
competitors  and changes in general economic, business and political conditions. Other unknown or
unpredictable factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements should therefore be construed in the light of such factors.
Neither Sandstorm nor Mariana, nor any of their respective associates or directors, officers or advisers,
provides any representation, assurance or guarantee that the occurrence of the events expressed or implied
in any forward-looking statements in this document will actually occur. You are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. Other than in accordance with their legal or regulatory
obligations (including, but not limited to, the AIM Rules), neither Sandstorm nor Mariana is under any
obligation, and Sandstorm and Mariana expressly disclaim any intention or obligation, to update or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

NO PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

Other than the Sandstorm Forecast set out in Part Eight (Sandstorm Forecast) of this document, no
statement in this document is intended as a profit forecast, profit estimate or quantified financial benefits
statement and no statement in this document should be interpreted to mean that earnings per Mariana
Share or Sandstorm Share for the current or future financial years would necessarily match or exceed the
respective historical published earnings per Mariana Share or Sandstorm Share or to mean that the
Combined Group’s earnings in the first twelve months following the Combination, or in any subsequent
period, following the Combination would necessarily match, or be greater than or be less than, those of
Mariana and/or Sandstorm for the relevant preceding financial period or any other period.

With respect to statements on the Sandstorm Forecast, which is included solely for the purposes described
in Part Eight (Sandstorm Forecast), readers are cautioned that the information may not be appropriate for
other purposes.
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DEALING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Under Rule 8.3(a) of the Code, any person who is interested in 1 per cent. or more of any class of relevant
securities of an offeree company or of any securities exchange offeror (being any offeror other than an offeror
in respect of which it has been announced that its offer is, or is likely to be, solely in cash) must make an
Opening Position Disclosure following the commencement of the offer period and, if later, following the
announcement in which any securities exchange offeror is first identified. An Opening Position Disclosure
must contain details of the person’s interests and short positions in, and rights to subscribe for, any relevant
securities of each of (i) the offeree company and (ii) any securities exchange offeror(s). An Opening Position
Disclosure by a person to whom Rule 8.3(a) applies must be made by no later than 3.30 p.m. (London time)
on the 10th Business Day following the commencement of the offer period and, if appropriate, by no later
than 3.30 p.m. (London time) on the 10th Business Day following the announcement in which any securities
exchange offeror is first identified. Relevant persons who deal in the relevant securities of the offeree company
or of a securities exchange offeror before the deadline for making an Opening Position Disclosure must
instead make a Dealing Disclosure.

Under Rule 8.3(b) of the Code, any person who is or becomes interested in 1 per cent. or more of any class
of relevant securities of the offeree company or of any securities exchange offeror must make a Dealing
Disclosure if the person deals in any relevant securities of the offeree company or of any securities exchange
offeror. A Dealing Disclosure must contain details of the dealing concerned and of the person’s interests
and short positions in, and rights to subscribe for, any relevant securities of each of (i) the offeree company
and (ii) any securities exchange offeror, save to the extent that these details have previously been disclosed
under Rule 8. A Dealing Disclosure by a person to whom Rule 8.3(b) applies must be made by no later than
3.30 p.m. (London time) on the Business Day following the date of the relevant dealing.

If two or more persons act together pursuant to an agreement or understanding, whether formal or informal,
to acquire or control an interest in relevant securities of an offeree company or a securities exchange offeror,
they will be deemed to be a single person for the purpose of Rule 8.3.

Opening Position Disclosures must also be made by the offeree company and by any offeror and Dealing
Disclosures must also be made by the offeree company, by any offeror and by any persons acting in concert
with any of them (see Rules 8.1, 8.2 and 8.4).

Details of the offeree and offeror companies in respect of whose relevant securities Opening Position
Disclosures and Dealing Disclosures must be made can be found in the Disclosure Table on the Panel’s
website at www.thetakeoverpanel.org.uk, including details of the number of relevant securities in issue,
when the offer period commenced and when any offeror was first identified. You should consult the Panel’s
Market Surveillance Unit on +44 (0)20 7638 0129 if you are in any doubt as to whether you are required to
make an Opening Position Disclosure or a Dealing Disclosure.

PUBLICATION ON MARIANA’S AND SANDSTORM’S WEBSITES 
AND AVAILABILITY OF HARD COPIES

A copy of this document will be available (subject to certain restrictions relating to persons resident in
Restricted Jurisdictions) on Mariana’s website at http://www.marianaresources.com and on Sandstorm’s
website at http://www.sandstormgold.com by no later than 12 noon (London time) on the Business Day
following the date of this document. For the avoidance of doubt, save as expressly referred to in this
document, the content of these websites are not incorporated into, and do not form part of, this document.
This document will also be available on SEDAR under Mariana’s profile at www.sedar.com.

Copies of the documents listed in paragraph 17 of Part Seven (Additional Information) of this document will
also be available on Mariana’s website at http://www.marianaresources.com and on Sandstorm’s website
at http://www.sandstormgold.com by no later than 12 noon (London time) on the Business Day following
the date of this document and on SEDAR under Mariana’s profile at www.sedar.com.

Mariana Shareholders may request a copy of this document (and any information incorporated into it by
reference to another source) in hard copy form. You may also request that all future documents,
announcements and information sent to you in relation to the Combination should be in hard copy form.
Such a request may be made by contacting RFC Ambrian during business hours on +44 (0)203
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440 6800 or by submitting a request in writing to RFC Ambrian at Level 5, Condor House, 10 St
Paul’s Churchyard, London EC4M 8AL.

ROUNDING

Certain figures included in this document have been subjected to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures
shown for the same category presented in different tables may vary slightly and figures shown as totals in
certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures that precede them.

This document is dated 15 May 2017.
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TO VOTE ON THE COMBINATION

This page should be read in conjunction with the rest of this document and, in particular, the section headed
“ACTION TO BE TAKEN” set out in paragraph 21 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document,
the notices of the Shareholder Meetings at the end of this document and the accompanying Forms of Proxy.

To vote at the Shareholder Meetings using the Forms of Proxy
Whether or not you plan to attend the Shareholder Meetings, you should:

1. complete, sign and return the purple Form of Proxy for use at the Guernsey Court Meeting, or
alternatively, if you hold your Scheme Shares in CREST, appoint a proxy through the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service, so as to be received by no later than 10.00 a.m. on 14 June 2017;

2. complete, sign and return the blue Form of Proxy for use at the Extraordinary General Meeting, or
alternatively, if you hold your Mariana Shares in CREST, appoint a proxy through the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service, so as to be received by no later than 10.15 a.m. on 14 June 2017; and

3. complete, sign and return the white Form of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting, or
alternatively, if you hold your Mariana Shares in CREST, appoint a proxy through the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service, so as to be received by no later than 10.30 a.m. on 14 June 2017.

If the purple Form of Proxy for the Guernsey Court Meeting is not returned by the above time, it may be
handed to the chairman of the Guernsey Court Meeting before the start of the Guernsey Court Meeting.
However, in the case of the Extraordinary General Meeting or the Annual General Meeting, if the blue or
white Form of Proxy (as applicable) is not returned so as to be received by the time mentioned above and
in accordance with the instructions on the Form of Proxy it will be invalid unless the Mariana Board directs
otherwise.

The completion and return of Forms of Proxy or the submission of a proxy via the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service will not prevent you from attending and voting at the Guernsey Court Meeting, the
Extraordinary General Meeting and/or the Annual General Meeting, or any adjournments thereof, in person
should you wish to do so and are entitled to do so.

To vote at the Shareholder Meetings using a proxy appointment through CREST
CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a service provider(s),
should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate
action on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST
message (a “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s
specifications and must contain the information required for such instructions as described in the CREST
Manual (available via www.euroclear.com). The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the
appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instructions given to a previously appointed proxy must, in
order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by Mariana’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services
(Guernsey) Limited (participant ID R002) not later than 10.00 a.m. on 14 June 2017 in the case of the
Guernsey Court Meeting, not later than 10.15 a.m. on 14 June 2017 in the case of the Extraordinary General
Meeting, and not later than 10.30 a.m. on 14 June 2017 in the case of the Annual General Meeting (or, in
the case of an adjourned Meeting, not less than 48 hours prior to the time and date set for the adjourned
Meeting (excluding any part of such 48 hour period falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey)).
For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied
to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey)
Limited is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.

If you want to revoke your proxy after you have delivered it, you may do this by (a) attending the
Shareholder Meeting and voting in person if you were a registered Mariana Shareholder at the
record date of 14 June 2017; (b) signing a proxy bearing a later date; (c) signing a written
statement which indicates, clearly, that you want to revoke your proxy and delivering this signed
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written statement to Mariana’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited
(participant ID R002) not later than 10.00 a.m. on 14 June 2017 in the case of the Guernsey Court
Meeting, not later than 10.15 a.m. on 14 June 2017 in the case of the Extraordinary General
Meeting and not later than 10.30 a.m. on 14 June 2017 in the case of the Annual General Meeting
or (d) in any other manner permitted by law.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s), should note
that Euroclear does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal
system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is
the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST Personal
Member or sponsored member or has appointed (a) voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST
sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is
transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST
Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

Mariana may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 34 of the
Regulations.

It is important that, for the Guernsey Court Meeting, as many votes as possible are cast so that
the Guernsey Court may be satisfied that there is a fair and reasonable representation of Scheme
Shareholder opinion. You are therefore strongly urged to complete, sign and return your Forms
of Proxy or appoint a proxy electronically (as appropriate) as soon as possible.

Shareholder helpline
If you have any questions about this document, the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary
General Meeting or the Annual General Meeting or how to complete the Forms of Proxy or to
appoint a proxy electronically, please call Computershare Guernsey between 8.30 a.m. and
5.30 p.m. Monday to Friday (except public holidays) on 0370 707 4040 (from within the UK) or +44
(0)370 707 4040 (from outside the UK) or (if in North America) Computershare Canada between
8.30 a.m. and 5.30 p.m. on Monday to Friday (except public holidays) on 1-800-564-6253 (toll free
Canada and US) or +1-514-982-7555 (outside North America) or by email on:
corporateactions@computershare.com. Please note that calls may be monitored or recorded and
that Computershare Guernsey and Computershare Canada cannot provide legal, tax or financial
advice or advice on the merits of the Combination.

Notices to Beneficial Shareholders in Canada and the US
Only registered shareholders or duly appointed proxyholders are permitted to vote at the
Shareholder Meetings. Most Mariana Shareholders in Canada are “non-registered” shareholders
because the shares they own are not registered in their names but are instead registered in the
names of a brokerage firm, bank or other intermediary or in the name of a clearing agency.
Shareholders who do not hold their shares in their own name (referred to herein as “Beneficial
Shareholders”) should note that only registered shareholders may vote at the Shareholder
Meetings. If ordinary shares are listed in an account statement provided to a shareholder by a broker, then
in almost all cases those ordinary shares will not be registered in such shareholder’s name on the records
of Mariana. Such ordinary shares will more likely be registered under the name of the shareholder’s broker
or an agent of that broker. In Canada, the vast majority of such shares are registered under the name of
CDS Inc. (the registration name for CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc., which company acts as
nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms). Certain ordinary shares held in the United States are registered
in the name of Cede & Co., the nominee for the Depository Trust Company, which is the United States
equivalent of CDS. The parties generally do not know for whose benefit the Shares registered in the name
of CDS & Co. are held. Ordinary shares held by brokers (or their agents or nominees) on behalf of a broker’s
client can only be voted (for or against resolutions) at the direction of the Beneficial Shareholder. Without
specific instructions, brokers and their agents and nominees are prohibited from voting shares for the
brokers’ clients. Therefore, each Beneficial Shareholder should ensure that voting instructions are
communicated to the appropriate person well in advance of the Shareholder Meetings.
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Existing regulatory policy requires brokers and other intermediaries to seek voting instructions from Beneficial
Shareholders in advance of shareholders’ meetings. The various brokers and other intermediaries have their
own mailing procedures and provide their own return instructions to clients, which should be carefully
followed by Beneficial Shareholders in order to ensure that their ordinary shares are voted at the Shareholder
Meetings. Often the form of proxy supplied to a Beneficial Shareholder by its broker is identical to the form
of proxy provided by Mariana to the registered shareholders. However, its purpose is limited to instructing
the registered shareholder (i.e. the broker or agent of the broker) how to vote on behalf of the Beneficial
Shareholder. If you are a Beneficial Shareholder, you will likely have an earlier deadline for the return of your
voting instructions, so be sure to send them right away to allow enough time for your nominee to receive
the information and then send it to Mariana before the proxy cut-off.

The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge.
Broadridge typically prepares a machine-readable voting instruction form, mails those forms to the Beneficial
Shareholders and asks Beneficial Shareholders to return the forms to Broadridge, or otherwise communicate
voting instructions to Broadridge (by way of the internet or telephone, for example). Broadridge then tabulates
the results of all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of ordinary
shares to be represented at the Meeting. A Beneficial Shareholder who receives a Broadridge voting
instruction form cannot use that form to vote ordinary shares directly at the Shareholder
Meetings. The voting instruction form must be returned to Broadridge (or instructions respecting
the voting of ordinary shares must be communicated to Broadridge) well in advance of the
Shareholder Meetings in order to have the ordinary shares voted.

The proxy related materials are being sent to both registered shareholders and Beneficial Shareholders.
Beneficial Shareholders fall into two categories – those who object to their identity being known to the issuers
of securities which they own (“Objecting Beneficial Owners”, or “OBOs”) and those who do not object
to their identity being made known to the issuers of the securities they own (“Non-Objecting Beneficial
Owners”, or “NOBOs”). Subject to the provision of National Instrument 54-101 – Communication with
Beneficial Owners of Securities of a Reporting Issuer (“NI 54-101”) issuers may request and obtain a list of
their NOBOs from intermediaries via their transfer agents. Pursuant to NI 54-101, issuers may obtain and
use the NOBO list for distribution of proxy-related materials directly (not via Broadridge) to such NOBOs. If
you are a Beneficial Shareholder, and Mariana or its agent has sent these materials directly to you, your
name, address and information about your holdings of ordinary shares have been obtained in accordance
with applicable securities regulatory requirements from the intermediary holding the ordinary shares on your
behalf.

Mariana intends to pay for intermediaries to deliver proxy-related materials to objecting beneficial owners of
Mariana.

Canadian investors should follow their Forms of Proxy carefully on how to return their vote.
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Latest time for lodging Forms of Proxy for the:

Guernsey Court Meeting (purple form) 10.00 a.m. on 14 June 2017(1)

Extraordinary General Meeting (blue form) 10.15 a.m. on 14 June 2017(2)

Annual General Meeting (white form) 10.30 a.m. on 14 June 2017(3)

Scheme Voting Record Time for the Guernsey Court 
Meeting, the Extraordinary General Meeting and the 
Annual General Meeting 5.00 p.m. on 14 June 2017(4)

Guernsey Court Meeting 10.00 a.m. on 16 June 2017

Extraordinary General Meeting 10.15 a.m. on 16 June 2017(5)

Annual General Meeting 10.30 a.m. on 16 June 2017(6)

The following dates are indicative only and are subject to change:(7)

Guernsey Court Hearing 10.00 a.m. on 26 June 2017

Last day of dealings in Mariana Shares 23 June 2017

Dealings in Mariana Shares suspended on AIM 7.30 a.m. on 26 June 2017

Halt of trading of Mariana Shares on TSXV 26 June 2017

Scheme Record Time 5.00 p.m. on 28 June 2017

Effective Date(8) on or around 29 June 2017

Delisting of Mariana Shares from TSXV on or around 29 June 2017

Cancellation of admission of Mariana Shares to trading on AIM 7.00 a.m. on 30 June 2017

Listing of New Sandstorm Shares on TSX and NYSE Within 14 days of the Effective 
Date

Crediting of the New Sandstorm Shares in Within 14 days of the Effective 
uncertificated form to CDS accounts Date

Crediting of Sandstorm CDIs in uncertificated Within 14 days of the Effective 
form in CREST Date

Despatch of definitive share certificates for Within 14 days of the Effective 
New Sandstorm Shares in certificated form Date

Latest date for despatch of cheques and crediting of Within 14 days of the Effective 
CREST and CDS accounts for cash consideration due Date
under the Scheme

Long Stop Date(9) 31 August 2017

(1) It is requested that purple Forms of Proxy for the Guernsey Court Meeting be lodged not later than 48 hours prior to the time
appointed for the Guernsey Court Meeting (excluding any part of such 48 hour period falling on a weekend or a public holiday in
Guernsey). Purple Forms of Proxy not so lodged may be handed to Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited on
behalf of the chairman of the Guernsey Court Meeting before the start of the Guernsey Court Meeting.
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(2) Blue Forms of Proxy for the Extraordinary General Meeting must be lodged not later than 48 hours prior to the time appointed for
the Extraordinary General Meeting (excluding any part of such 48 hour period falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey).
Blue Forms of Proxy not returned so as to be received by the time mentioned above and in accordance with the instructions on
the Form of Proxy will be invalid unless the Mariana Board directs otherwise.

(3) White Forms of Proxy for the Annual General Meeting must be lodged not later than 48 hours prior to the time appointed for the
Annual General Meeting (excluding any part of such 48 hour period falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey). White
Forms of Proxy not returned so as to be received by the time mentioned above and in accordance with the instructions on the
Form of Proxy will be invalid unless the Mariana Board directs otherwise.

(4) If any of the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General Meeting or the Annual General Meeting is adjourned, the voting
record time for the relevant adjourned meeting will be 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days prior to the date of the adjourned
Meeting.

(5) Or as soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting shall have concluded.

(6) Or as soon thereafter as the Extraordinary Court Meeting shall have concluded.

(7) These dates are indicative only and will depend, among other things, on the date upon which the Guernsey Court sanctions the
Scheme.

(8) A copy of the order of the Guernsey Court which sanctions the Scheme must be filed with the Guernsey Registry within seven (7)
days of the Guernsey Court Hearing. The Scheme will become Effective at the time that the court order of the Guernsey Court is
filed with the Guernsey Registry which is expected to be on or around 29 June 2017.

(9) This is the latest date by which the Scheme may become Effective unless Mariana and Sandstorm agree, and the Panel and, if
required, the Guernsey Court, permits, a later date.

Mariana will announce any changes to these dates through a Regulatory Information Service. All references
in this document to times are to London time unless otherwise stated.

For actions to be taken by Scheme Shareholders please see paragraph 21 of Part Two
(Explanatory Statement) for details.
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PART ONE:

LETTER FROM THE NON EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN OF MARIANA

Granite House
La Grande Rue, St Martin

Guernsey
GY1 3RS

John Horsburgh (Non-Executive Chairman)
Glen Parsons (Chief Executive Officer)
Eric Roth (Executive Director, Chief Operating Officer)
John Goodwin (Non-Executive Director)
Mustafa Aksoy (Non-Executive Director)
Ron Ho (Non-Executive Director)

15 May 2017

To the holders of Mariana Shares and, for information only, to participants in the Mariana Employee Equity
Plans and holders of Mariana Warrants

Dear Shareholder

RECOMMENDED COMBINATION OF 
MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED AND SANDSTORM GOLD LTD

1. Introduction
On 26 April 2017, the board of directors of Sandstorm and the Mariana Independent Directors announced
that they had reached agreement on the terms of a recommended share and cash acquisition pursuant to
which Sandstorm, a public corporation incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia,
Canada, will acquire the entire issued, and to be issued, ordinary share capital of Mariana that Sandstorm
does not already own.

It is intended that the Combination will be implemented by way of a court-sanctioned scheme of arrangement
under Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law.

I am writing to you to set out a summary of the terms of the Combination and to explain why the Mariana
Independent Directors consider the terms of the Combination to be fair and reasonable and why the Mariana
Independent Directors unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey
Court Meeting and in favour of the Shareholder Resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting, both of
which will be held on 16 June 2017 at the offices of Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London,
EC2A 2HB. The Guernsey Court Meeting will start at 10.00 a.m. and the Extraordinary General Meeting will
start at 10.15 a.m. (or as soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting has concluded).

This letter also explains the actions you are now asked to take. Further details of the Scheme are set out in
the Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document.

2. Summary of the terms of the Combination
Under the terms of the Combination, which will be subject to the Conditions and certain further terms set
out in Part Three (Conditions and certain further terms of the Scheme and to the Combination) to this
document, Scheme Shareholders will be entitled to receive:

for each Scheme Share 0.2573 New Sandstorm Shares; and
28.75 pence in cash
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Based on the closing price of US$4.04 per Sandstorm Share and a currency exchange rate of £0.7788 per
US$, on 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the Announcement Date), the terms of the
Combination represent:

● a value of approximately 109.7 pence per Mariana Share;

● a value of approximately £166.9 million for Mariana’s entire issued and to be issued ordinary share
capital;

● a premium of approximately 84.4 per cent. to the closing price of 59.5 pence per Mariana Share on
AIM on 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the Announcement Date); and

● a premium of approximately 88.3 per cent. to the 20-day VWAP per Mariana Share of 62.84 pence on
AIM to 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the Announcement Date), based on the 20-
day VWAP per Sandstorm Share of 348.2 pence on NYSE MKT to the same date and utilising daily
close composite exchange rates.

Based on the closing price of US$3.61 per Sandstorm Share and a currency exchange rate of £0.7768 per
US$ on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), the
Combination values each Mariana Share at 100.9 pence and Mariana’s entire issued and to be issued
ordinary share capital at approximately £153.5 million. This represents a premium of 69.6 per cent. to the
closing price of 59.5 pence per Mariana Share on the last Business Day prior to the Announcement Date
and a premium of 6.2 per cent. to the closing price of 95.0 pence on 12 May 2017 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this document).

If, after the date of this document, any dividend and/or other distribution is announced, declared or paid in
respect of the Mariana Shares, Sandstorm reserves the right to reduce the Consideration by an amount up
to the amount of such dividend and/or distribution so announced, declared or paid. If Sandstorm exercises
the right to reduce the Consideration by all or part of the amount of such dividend and/or distribution that
has not been paid, Mariana Shareholders will be entitled to receive and retain that dividend and/or distribution.

The Scheme Shares will be acquired by Sandstorm, pursuant to the Combination, fully paid and free from
all liens, equities, charges, security interests, encumbrances, options, rights of pre-emption and any other
third party rights or interests of any nature and together with all the rights now or hereafter attaching thereto,
including, without limitation, voting rights and the right to receive in full all dividends and other distributions
(if any) declared, paid or made on or after the date of this document.

If successful, the Combination will result in the issue of up to 35,667,096 New Sandstorm Shares, and will
result in the Mariana Shareholders holding up to approximately 19 per cent. of Sandstorm’s issued share
capital following completion of the Combination. The New Sandstorm Shares issued to Scheme
Shareholders pursuant to the Scheme will be issued as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with
existing Sandstorm Shares, including the right to receive dividends and other distributions declared, made
or paid on Sandstorm Shares by reference to a record date falling after the Effective Date. The New
Sandstorm Shares will be issued in registered form and will trade under the same ISIN as the existing
Sandstorm Shares.

Fractions of New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued to holders of Mariana Shares. Fractional
entitlements will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares. Fractional
entitlements of pence payable to holders of Mariana Shares under the Cash Consideration Amount will be
rounded down to the nearest whole number of pence.

The TSX has conditionally approved the listing of the New Sandstorm Shares to be issued under the
Combination, subject to filing certain documents following closing of the Combination. NYSE MKT approval
will be obtained prior to the closing of the Combination. Mariana has applied to TSXV for approval to
complete the Combination.

The cash consideration payable to Scheme Shareholders pursuant to the Combination will be paid in Pounds
Sterling or Canadian Dollars, depending upon whether Scheme Shareholders are on the Guernsey Register
or the Canadian Register. The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments from pounds Sterling
into Canadian Dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its
capacity as foreign exchange service provider to Sandstorm, on the date the funds are converted (which
shall be as close as reasonably possible to the point of settlement), which rate will be based on the prevailing
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market rate on the date the funds are converted. The risk of any fluctuations in such rates, including risks
relating to the particular date and time at which funds are converted, will be solely borne by Scheme
Shareholders. Computershare Trust Company of Canada will act as principal in such currency conversion
transactions.

Uncertificated Scheme Shareholders on the Guernsey Register (that is, holding their Mariana Shares in
CREST) will receive Sandstorm CDIs in respect of their entitlement to New Sandstorm Shares. Further details
in relation to the Sandstorm CDIs are set out in paragraph 3 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) and in
relation to settlement of the Consideration generally in paragraph 16 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement).

The Scheme requires that Scheme Shareholders vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey Court
Meeting to be held at 10.00 a.m. on 16 June 2017 and that Mariana Shareholders vote in favour of the
Shareholder Resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting to be held at 10.15 a.m. on 16 June 2017
(or as soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting has concluded). The Scheme also requires the
sanction of the Guernsey Court. Further details of the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General
Meeting and the Guernsey Court process are set out in Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document.

The Combination is subject to the Conditions and certain further terms set out in Part Three (Conditions
and Certain Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination) of this document. The Scheme can only
become Effective in accordance with its terms if all the Conditions have been satisfied or, where relevant,
waived. Upon the Scheme becoming Effective, it will be binding on Mariana and all Scheme Shareholders
irrespective of whether or not they attended or voted at the Guernsey Court Meeting or the Extraordinary
General Meeting.

The Scheme is described in further detail in paragraph 12 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this
document. If you are an Overseas Shareholder, please refer to paragraph 20 of Part Two (Explanatory
Statements) of this document.

3. Background to, and reasons for, the Combination
The Boards of Mariana and Sandstorm believe that the Combination will create a leading mid-tier streaming
and royalty company, delivering significant benefits to the shareholders of the Combined Group. Sandstorm
brings a strong production base, a quality development pipeline with compelling cash flow growth potential,
a base of exploration assets that provide long-term optionality, a healthy balance sheet for continued growth
and an experienced management team. The Mariana assets will complement Sandstorm’s established
Stream and Royalty Portfolio.

Strong production base
During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, Sandstorm reported sales of 49,731 attributable gold
equivalent ounces from streams and royalties on 20 producing assets. The average cash cost per ounce of
gold was US$258 during the period resulting in cash operating margins of US$996 per ounce. Based on
Sandstorm’s existing streams and royalties, attributable gold equivalent production for 2017 is forecasted
to be between 45,000 and 55,000 attributable gold equivalent ounces from 20 producing assets, providing
diversification benefits to shareholders. During the first quarter of 2017, Sandstorm sold approximately
15,500 attributable gold equivalent ounces, a record for the company. Sandstorm’s production base is
diverse by asset as well as geography, with an estimated breakdown of forecast gold equivalent production
in 2019 by jurisdiction as follows: 46 per cent. North America, 44 per cent. South America, 10 per cent.
other. The foregoing information is based on information publicly disclosed by Sandstorm.
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High quality development pipeline
The addition of Hot Maden to the Combined Group is expected to improve the already high quality
development pipeline in Sandstorm’s Stream and Royalty Portfolio. Prior to completion of the Combination,
the Stream and Royalty Portfolio includes 20 currently producing and 23 development-stage projects. Hot
Maden would add an anchor asset to the development pipeline and, it is expected, transform the potential
future production growth for the Combined Group. Assuming completion of the Combination, the Combined
Group is expected to realise attributable gold equivalent production by year as follows(1):

Calendar Year Combined Group AuEq Equivalent Production Estimate (ounces)

2017 45,000 – 55,000
2018 56,200
2019 61,600
2020 65,200
2021 98,400
2022 135,700
2023 129,400

(1) Estimates of gold-equivalent production reflect metal price assumptions of US$1,250 per ounce of gold, US$18.00 per ounce of
silver and US$2.65 per pound of copper.

The attributable gold equivalent production of the Combined Group represents Sandstorm’s estimates of
gold equivalent production associated with the existing Stream and Royalty Portfolio plus the addition of
gold equivalent production estimated from Hot Maden. In the case of the existing Stream and Royalty
Portfolio, the figures represent estimated future production for each mine at which Sandstorm has a
commodity stream or royalty based on public disclosure, technical reports and incorporating management
estimates where appropriate. Information regarding the Hot Maden Project has been derived from the Hot
Maden PEA and incorporating management estimates. The Hot Maden PEA is preliminary in nature as it
includes inferred mineral resources that are considered too speculative geologically to have the economic
considerations applied to them that would enable them to be categorized as mineral reserves. Mineral
resources that are not mineral reserves do not have demonstrated economic viability, and as such there is
no certainty that the preliminary assessment and economics will be realised.

Sandstorm believes that the addition of Hot Maden to the Combined Group will provide the potential to
more than double attributable gold equivalent production once in full operation. It is estimated that full
production may be achieved by 2022, with a half-year of production occurring as early as 2021 during the
commissioning phase. Hot Maden is envisaged as a conventional underground mine and processing facility
producing concentrates without the use of cyanide. The Hot Maden PEA released by Mariana (effective date
of 1 March 2017) demonstrated robust estimated economics with an after-tax IRR in excess of 100 per
cent. and all-in sustaining costs below US$400 per ounce on a gold-equivalent basis (as referred to in the
Mariana press release dated 17 January 2017). The high-grade nature of the orebody and the wide intercepts
of mineralisation provide the potential for low-cost mining methods. Furthermore, the drilling conducted to
date has only covered a portion of the total project area, providing for the potential for exploration success
in the future. At present there are three drill rigs on site with a plan to complete 20,000m of exploration and
infill drilling during 2017.

At an appropriate stage post completion of the Combination, Sandstorm intends to move from the current
position of equity participation in the JV to converting the Combined Group’s interest in the JV into a gold
stream, adding significant future cash flow growth potential to the Stream and Royalty Portfolio. This will
require the Combined Group to identify a purchaser for the JV interest, with consideration of such sale being
a newly created gold stream, resulting in an effective conversion of the JV interest into a gold stream. At
present the Combined Group has not begun soliciting interest in a conversion transaction and intends to
conduct such solicitation in the future after Hot Maden has undergone several de-risking and value creating
milestones.

Sandstorm believes that converting the Hot Maden JV into a gold stream at the appropriate time would
present the best opportunity to unlock the value of Mariana’s minority incorporated JV interest for
shareholders in the Combined Group. Gold stream and royalty companies typically trade at higher valuation
multiples than mining companies, and the cash flow from Hot Maden would be expected to command a
superior valuation as part of a diversified Stream and Royalty Portfolio within the Combined Group rather
than within a junior mining company.
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The operator of Hot Maden, Lidya, is an experienced Turkish company and is part of Çalık Holding, a Turkish
conglomerate with several business lines including energy, telecommunication, finance, construction, textiles
and mining. In the half-year ended 30 June 2016, Çalık Holding reported net income of approximately
US$228 million (665 million Turkish Lira converted at the average TRY/US$ exchange rate of 2.92 TRY/US$
during the six-month period ending 30 June 2016). Lidya is currently a joint-venture partner with Alacer Gold
Corp. on the producing Çöpler mine (80 per cent. Alacer, 20 per cent. Lidya) and the development-stage
Gediktepe and Kartaltepe projects (both 50 per cent. Alacer, 50 per cent. Lidya) in Turkey.

Exploration optionality
Sandstorm’s Stream and Royalty Portfolio includes 112 exploration stage assets and, among them, 26 are
considered to be advanced-stage exploration projects. The royalties on the exploration properties provide
shareholders of the Combined Group with meaningful optionality for future mineral discoveries. The addition
of Mariana’s Exploration Properties complements the exploration optionality in the Stream and Royalty
Portfolio.

The Combined Group will not be an active exploration company and, therefore, after the Combination,
Sandstorm intends to spin-out the Exploration Properties into a separate SpinCo, with the Combined Group
retaining its royalty interests over the Exploration Properties together with equity in the SpinCo. Sandstorm
intends that the SpinCo would seek external investment, as required, to fund future exploration costs, with
a goal of allowing shareholders in the Combined Group to retain an interest in, and significant exposure to,
the Exploration Properties without the Combined Group being required to fund exploration expenses.

Financial strength and future growth
Sandstorm has a strong balance sheet with working capital of US$23.8 million and no bank debt as of 31
December 2016. In addition, Sandstorm has a portfolio of equity and debt investments in other mining
companies and a US$110 million revolving line of credit. Sandstorm’s investments and its access to the
revolving line of credit, along with the free cash flow generated from the Stream and Royalty Portfolio, is
intended to be used along with Mariana’s acquired cash balance to fund future stream and royalty
acquisitions in order to continue growing and diversifying the Combined Group’s asset base as well as
funding its share of pro rata cash calls for the development of the Hot Maden asset.

Other benefits
As a junior mining company, and as a function of the subdued investor appetite during the last few years in
the resource sector, Mariana has been unable to attract large institutional investors. Conversely, more than
50 per cent. of Sandstorm’s investor base is made up of institutional investors and Sandstorm has averaged
approximately US$10 million in daily US$ trading volume since January 2016.

With the addition of the Mariana assets to the Stream and Royalty Portfolio, the Combined Group expects
to see increased institutional investor interest, improved liquidity and the potential for a lower cost of capital.

The Combined Group expects to realise cost saving synergies with elimination of ongoing listing fees
associated with Mariana’s listing on the TSXV and admission to trading on AIM. In addition, following any
spin-out of the Exploration Properties, if the SpinCo were to be successful in raising external investment,
the Combined Group would no longer be required to fund ongoing exploration costs associated with the
Exploration Properties.

4. Background to, and reasons for, the recommendation of the Mariana Independent Directors
Mariana was first approached by Sandstorm in connection with a possible combination on or around
7 March 2017. Following discussions between Sandstorm and the Mariana Independent Directors, the
Confidentiality Agreement was signed on 28 March 2017. Sandstorm then conducted due diligence on
Mariana and various further discussions ensued. On or around 4 April 2017, Sandstorm provided first draft
documentation for the proposed Combination to Mariana. This was then considered by the Mariana
Independent Directors, together, where appropriate, with certain other Mariana Directors.

Having concluded that the proposed Combination merited more detailed discussions, including the related
cost involved, the Mariana Independent Directors proceeded to consider the appointment of appropriate
financial advisers. On 12 April 2017, Mariana appointed Raymond James to act as Canadian financial adviser
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to Mariana, and to the Mariana Independent Directors, in connection with the Combination. On 13 April
2017, Mariana appointed RFC Ambrian to act as financial adviser to Mariana in connection with the
Combination. The Mariana Independent Directors then continued to negotiate the proposed Combination
with Sandstorm, with assistance from RFC Ambrian and Raymond James, as well as Mariana’s legal
advisers, and to consider the potential for alternative offers by other parties.

Once negotiations were concluded with Sandstorm, the Announcement of the Combination was made on
26 April 2017. The Co-operation Agreement was signed on 4 May 2017 (replacing a previous co-operation
agreement dated 25 April 2017).

The Mariana Independent Directors have recommended the Combination of Sandstorm and Mariana as it
de-risks the Mariana Shareholders’ exposure to a single development/production asset, whilst allowing
exposure to a wider diverse portfolio of assets, through the stock component of the Combination. Mariana
Shareholders will still retain significant exposure to the upside potential of its current assets, which as a
result of the Combination should reduce the financing risk of development given the size and financial
strength of Sandstorm.

The Consideration under the Combination is also at a premium to the current market price of Mariana Shares,
as well as the recent historical performance.

The liquidity of Sandstorm Shares provides an opportunity to realise the value of the New Sandstorm Share
Consideration Amount and, if Mariana Shareholders so choose, to benefit from any potential upside to
Sandstorm’s market value.

5. Irrevocable undertakings
The Mariana Independent Directors have irrevocably undertaken to vote in favour of the Scheme at the
Guernsey Court Meeting and the resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting in respect
of, in aggregate, 986,050 Mariana Shares representing, in aggregate, approximately 0.75 per cent. of the
issued ordinary share capital of Mariana on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this document).

In addition to the irrevocable undertakings from the Mariana Independent Directors, Sandstorm has also
received irrevocable undertakings from each of Australian Investors Pty Ltd and AngloGold Ashanti Holdings
Plc to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey Court Meeting and the resolutions to be proposed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting in respect of, in aggregate, 9,218,089 Mariana Shares, representing
approximately 7.05 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Mariana on 12 May 2017 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document).

Sandstorm has therefore received irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey
Court Meeting and the resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting in respect of, in
aggregate, 10,204,139 Mariana Shares representing, in aggregate, approximately 7.81 per cent. of the
issued ordinary share capital of Mariana on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this document).

Further details of these irrevocable undertakings, including the circumstances in which they will cease to be
binding, are set out in Part Seven (Additional Information) of this document. If the Combination is
subsequently structured as a Takeover Offer, all the above undertakings will take effect as irrevocable
undertakings to accept such offer.

As a consequence of the Retention Arrangements, Glen Parsons and Eric Roth will not vote on the resolution
to approve the Scheme at the Guernsey Court Meeting. Glen Parsons and Eric Roth have also irrevocably
undertaken to Sandstorm to vote in favour of those resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting on which they are entitled to vote in respect of, in aggregate, 1,086,621 Mariana Shares representing
approximately 0.83 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Mariana on 12 May 2017 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document).

Neither of Ron Ho or Mustafa Aksoy has given an irrevocable undertaking to Sandstorm on the basis that:
(i) Ron Ho is an employee of Sandstorm; and (ii) Mustafa Aksoy does not hold any Mariana Shares.
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6. Directors, management and employees
Sandstorm recognizes the skills, technical ability and industry knowledge and experience of the Mariana
Board, management and employees and in particular acknowledges the valuable work that each has
performed to advance the Hot Maden Project. Accordingly, Sandstorm expects that certain members of
Mariana’s management will continue with the development of the Combined Group.

Following completion of the Combination, a thorough assessment of the available skill sets of Mariana’s
employees will be undertaken and where practical, and at management’s discretion, employees will be
incorporated into the enlarged Sandstorm team. To the extent this is not possible, this may result in
redundancies for those employees not incorporated into the Combined Group. Sandstorm confirms that,
following implementation of the Combination, the existing contractual and statutory employment rights of
all Mariana employees will be safeguarded.

On completion of the Combination, Nolan Watson will be the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Combined Group and Glen Parsons will be manager of the Exploration Properties. The Mariana Directors
have agreed in principle to resign from the Mariana Board subject to, and with effect from, the Scheme
becoming Effective on terms that they will each receive accrued fees, payment for notice periods and
expenses due under their respective appointment agreements, in each case in compensation for termination
of employment and/or loss of office. It is further anticipated that each of Glen Parsons, John Horsburgh,
and Ron Ho may remain Mariana Directors after the Effective Date during the transitional period in order to
assist with the continued operation of Mariana on terms to be agreed (in the case of Glen Parsons and, if
relevant, in addition to his Retention Arrangement).

Other than as set out elsewhere in this document, Sandstorm has no current plans to change the locations
of Mariana’s places of business or to redeploy any of Mariana’s fixed assets.

The Mariana Independent Directors welcome the statements by Sandstorm recognising the skills, ability,
knowledge and experience of Mariana management and employees and Sandstorm’s assurances that the
existing contractual and statutory employment rights of all Mariana employees will be safeguarded. The
Mariana Independent Directors note Sandstorm’s intention to carry out the assessment of available skill sets
of Mariana’s employees as described above. Until such assessment is completed, the Mariana Independent
Directors cannot be certain as to what the repercussions will be for the employees of Mariana.

7. Information on the Retention Arrangements
In order to drive value from the Combination, Sandstorm has agreed to the following retention arrangements
in respect of each of Glen Parsons and Eric Roth (the “Retention Arrangements”):

● Glen Parsons will, upon the Effective Date, receive an immediate payment of US$750,000 in return for
agreeing to remain with the Combined Group on a full-time basis for at least 12 months, plus:

❍ a bonus payment of US$375,000 to be made upon the successful completion of a sale or
spin-out transaction involving the exploration properties in Argentina; and

❍ a bonus payment of US$375,000 to be made upon the successful completion of a sale or
spin-out transaction involving the exploration properties in Côte d’Ivoire,

provided in each case that he has not resigned from the Combined Group within 12 months of the
Effective Date, or been dismissed by the Combined Group for cause, at the relevant time; and

● Eric Roth will, upon the Effective Date, receive an immediate payment of US$375,000 in return for
agreeing to remain with the Combined Group on a part-time consultancy contract for at least
12 months, plus:

❍ a bonus payment of US$187,500 to be made upon the successful completion of a sale or
spin-out transaction involving the exploration properties in Argentina; and

❍ a bonus payment of US$187,500 to be made upon the successful completion of a sale or
spin-out transaction involving the exploration properties in Côte d’Ivoire,

provided in each case that he has not resigned from the Combined Group within 12 months of the
Effective Date, or been dismissed by the Combined Group for cause, at the relevant time.
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The bonus payments for both Glen Parsons and Eric Roth will become payable immediately if at any time
within three years of the Effective Date a decision is taken by the Combined Group not to continue with the
relevant sale or spin-out transaction.

The Combination is subject to, among other things, the approval by the independent Mariana Shareholders
of the Retention Arrangements. RFC Ambrian consider the Retention Arrangements to be fair and reasonable
as far as the independent Mariana Shareholders are concerned.

Sandstorm considers the Retention Arrangements to be critical to the success of the
Combination and, therefore, if the independent Mariana Shareholders do not pass the relevant
resolution at the Extraordinary General Meeting approving those arrangements, Sandstorm may
(at its absolute discretion) seek to invoke Condition 6 in Part A of Part Three (Conditions and
Certain Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Announcement) of this document), which, with
the consent of the Panel, would result in the Combination being withdrawn.

8. Effect of the Combination on the Mariana Employee Equity Plans
Participants in the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan will be contacted separately regarding the effect of
the Combination on their rights (if any) under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan. However, in summary:

● all outstanding options under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan will be treated as fully vested
with effect from the date on which the Scheme is sanctioned by the Court, and participants in the
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan will be able to exercise their options immediately following sanction
of the Scheme by the Court;

● if participants exercise their options and hold Scheme Shares at the Scheme Record Time, they will
be treated as Scheme Shareholders and receive the Consideration under the Scheme;

● if participants do not exercise their options prior to the Scheme Record Time, on the Effective Date
they will become options over Sandstorm Shares on the basis of 0.3487 Sandstorm Shares under
option for every 1 Mariana Share previously under option.

Holders of options under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan may also exercise their options, and deal
with any resulting Mariana Shares, at any time prior to the Scheme Record Time, if they so choose. The
right to vote in respect of the Scheme will extend to any Mariana Shares which are unconditionally issued
before the Scheme Voting Record Time as a result of the valid exercise of any existing options under the
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan.

Holders of Share Bonus Awards will be contacted separately regarding the effect of the Combination on
their rights. However, in summary, all Mariana Share Bonus Awards will vest immediately after sanction of
the Scheme and holders of Mariana Share Bonus Awards will be treated as Scheme Shareholders and
receive the Consideration under the Scheme.

9. Effect of the Combination on the Mariana Warrants
Holders of Mariana Warrants will be contacted separately regarding the effect of the Combination on their
rights under the Mariana Warrant Instrument. However, in summary:

● if holders of Mariana Warrants exercise their subscription rights before the Scheme Record Time, they
will be treated as Scheme Shareholders and receive the Consideration under the Scheme;

● if holders of Mariana Warrants exercise their subscription rights after the Scheme Record Time, under
the proposed amendments to the Mariana Articles the Mariana Shares that would have been issued
to them will automatically be acquired by Sandstorm and, in return, holders of Mariana Warrants will
receive 0.3487 Sandstorm Shares for every 1 Mariana Share that they would have received prior to
the Scheme Record Time.

Holders of Mariana warrants may also exercise their Mariana Warrants, and deal with any resulting Mariana
Shares, at any time prior to the Scheme Record Time if they so choose. The right to vote in respect of the
Scheme will extend to any Mariana Shares which are unconditionally issued before the Scheme Voting
Record Time as a result of the valid exercise of any existing Mariana Warrants.
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10. Mariana’s current trading and prospects
On 20 April 2017, Mariana published its audited financial report and accounts for the year ended
31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the group earned no revenue and reported a loss of £4.58 million
with basic and diluted loss per share of 4.2 pence. This compares to a loss of £7.77 million with basic and
diluted loss per share of 10.8 pence in the prior year.

At 31 December 2016, the group had total assets of £13.56 million (31 December 2015: £9.38 million) and
shareholder capital of £12.69 million. At 31 December 2016 the group had current liabilities of £0.87 million
(31 December 2015; £0.46 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the group had negative cash flow from operations of £1.83
million and exploration expenditure of £1.22 million. At 31 December 2016 the group had a cash balance
of £5.13 million.

Mariana continues to advance its portfolio up the development curve with exploration and development
expenditure programmes for 2017 being funded by this cash balance.

11. Sandstorm’s current trading and prospects
On 21 February 2017, Sandstorm published its audited financial report and accounts for the year ended 31
December 2016. Sandstorm had total assets of US$534.9 million, including cash and cash equivalents of
US$21.4 million, investments of US$61.3 million and loans receivable of US$23.4 million, shareholders’
equity was US$527.3 million and Sandstorm had no outstanding third party debt (other than accounts
payable in the ordinary course of business) with additional available liquidity from its US$110 million revolving
credit facility.

On 8 May 2017, Sandstorm published its unaudited quarter one report and accounts for the three-month
period ended 31 March 2017. Sandstorm had total assets of US$550.3 million, including cash and cash
equivalents of US$32.0 million and investments of US$96.6 million. Shareholders’ equity was US$542.9
million and Sandstorm had no outstanding third party debt (other than accounts payable in the ordinary
course of business) with additional available liquidity from its US$110 million revolving credit facility.

Mariana Shareholders are referred to the full text of both the audited financial report and accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2016, and the unaudited quarter one report and accounts for the three month
period ended 31 March 2017, which are incorporated into this document by reference, and copies of which
can be found on Sandstorm’s website at www. sandstormgold.com.

Your attention is also drawn to the Sandstorm Forecast included in Part Eight (Sandstorm Forecast) of this
document.

12. Listings, dealings and settlement
Your attention is drawn to paragraph 15 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document in relation to
Sandstorm’s intentions with regards to the cancellation of the admission of the Mariana Shares to trading
on AIM and the delisting of the Mariana Shares from the TSXV, and the admission to trading on the TSX and
NYSE MKT of the New Sandstorm Shares.

13. Overseas Shareholders
Overseas Shareholders should refer to paragraph 20 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document,
which contains important information relevant to Overseas Shareholders.

14. Action to be taken
Please see paragraph 21 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) for details of the actions to be taken by
Scheme Shareholders and Mariana Shareholders in relation to voting at the Shareholder Meetings.
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15. Further information
Your attention is drawn to further information contained in Part Two (Explanatory Statement), Part Three
(Conditions and certain Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination), Part Four (The Scheme of
Arrangement) and Part Seven (Additional Information) of this document which provides further details
concerning the Scheme.

You are advised to read the whole of this document and not just rely on the summary information
contained in this letter.

16. Recommendation
The Mariana Independent Directors, who have been so advised by RFC Ambrian, consider the terms of the
Combination to be fair and reasonable. In providing their advice to the Mariana Independent Directors, RFC
Ambrian have taken into account the commercial assessments of the Mariana Independent Directors. RFC
Ambrian is providing independent financial advice to the Mariana Independent Directors for the purposes of
Rule 3 of the Code.

The Mariana Independent Directors have also been advised by Raymond James as to the financial terms
and certain Canadian capital market aspects of the Combination.

Accordingly, the Mariana Independent Directors have unanimously approved the Combination and
unanimously recommend that Mariana Shareholders vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey Court
Meeting and the resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting as they have irrevocably
undertaken to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings of, in aggregate, 986,050 Mariana Shares
representing approximately 0.75 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of Mariana on 12 May 2017
(being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document).

In light of their ongoing participation in the Combined Group and the related remuneration and incentivisation
arrangements referred to in paragraph 7 above, neither Glen Parsons nor Eric Roth, each of whom are
Mariana Directors, have played any part in the consideration of the Combination or the recommendation of
it by the Mariana Independent Directors.

Ron Ho, who is both a director of Mariana and Vice President, Finance of Sandstorm, has played no part in
the consideration of the Combination or the recommendation of it by the Mariana Independent Directors.

Mustafa Aksoy, who is both a director of Mariana and a board member and managing director of Lidya, has
played no part in the consideration of the Combination or the recommendation of it by the Mariana
Independent Directors.

17. Annual General Meeting
Please note that the Annual General Meeting of Mariana will be held on 16 June 2017 at 10.30 a.m. (or as
soon thereafter as the Extraordinary General Meeting has concluded) and your attention is drawn to the
notice set out in Part Fourteen (Notice of Annual General Meeting) of this document.

The ordinary business to be conducted at the Annual General Meeting will include the adoption of the audited
financial statements of Mariana for the period ended 31 December 2016, the re-election of all directors, the
approval of non-executive directors’ fees, and the re-appointment of Grant Thornton as auditor of Mariana.

In addition to the ordinary business to be conducted, Mariana Shareholders will be asked to re-approve the
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan. The Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan was last approved by Mariana
Shareholders on 22 June 2011. The TSXV requires shareholder approval of the Mariana Incentive Stock
Option Plan on a yearly basis.

The following information is intended to be a brief description of the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan
and is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, which is available
for review by any Mariana Shareholder up until the day preceding the Annual General Meeting at Mariana’s
registered office and will be available at the Annual General Meeting:
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● the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, as initially approved by Mariana Shareholders on 22 June
2011, is a rolling stock option plan, which makes a total of 10 per cent. of the issued and outstanding
shares of the Company at any time available for issuance thereunder. The purpose of the Mariana
Incentive Stock Option Plan is to provide Mariana with a share related mechanism to enable it to attract
and retain qualified directors, officers, employees, management company employees and consultants,
promote a proprietary interest in Mariana and its affiliates among its employees, management company
employees, officers, directors and consultants, and stimulate the active interest of such persons in the
development and financial success of Mariana and its affiliates The Mariana Incentive Stock Option
Plan provides that it is solely within the discretion of the Mariana Board to determine which directors,
officers, employees, management company employees and consultants should receive Mariana
Options and in what amounts. 

The Policies of the TSXV require that the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan be approved by the affirmative
vote of a majority of votes cast at the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, Mariana will request that the
Mariana Shareholders consider and if thought fit pass the ordinary resolution as set out in paragraph 10 in
Part Fourteen (Notice of Annual General Meeting).

Yours faithfully,

John Horsburgh

Non-Executive Chairman

MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED
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PART TWO:

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(In compliance with section 108 of Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law)

15 May 2017

To Mariana Shareholders and, for information only, to participants in the Mariana Employee Equity Plans
and holders of Mariana Warrants

Dear Shareholder

RECOMMENDED COMBINATION OF MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED 
AND SANDSTORM GOLD LTD

1. Introduction
On 26 April 2017, the board of directors of Sandstorm and the Mariana Independent Directors announced
that they had reached agreement on the terms of a recommended share and cash acquisition pursuant to
which Sandstorm, a public corporation incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia,
Canada, will acquire the entire issued, and to be issued, ordinary share capital of Mariana that Sandstorm
does not already own. It is intended that the Combination will be implemented by way of a court-sanctioned
scheme of arrangement under Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law.

Your attention is drawn to Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana) of this
document, which contains, among other things, the unanimous recommendation by the Mariana
Independent Directors to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey Court Meeting and to
vote in favour of the Shareholder Resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting. That letter
also states that the Mariana Independent Directors, who have been so advised by RFC Ambrian,
consider the terms of the Combination to be fair and reasonable. In providing its advice to the
Mariana Independent Directors, RFC Ambrian has taken into account the commercial
assessments of the Mariana Independent Directors. RFC Ambrian is providing independent
financial advice to the Mariana Independent Directors for the purposes of Rule 3 of the Code.

We have been authorised by the Mariana Independent Directors to write to you to explain the terms of the
Combination and the Scheme and to provide you with other relevant information.

This Explanatory Statement contains a summary of the terms of the Combination, which is to be
implemented by way of the Scheme. The terms of the Scheme are set out in full in Part Four (The Scheme
of Arrangement) of this document. Your attention is also drawn to the other parts of this document, which
are deemed to form part of this Explanatory Statement, including Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive
Chairman of Mariana), the Conditions and certain further terms set out in Part Three (Conditions and Certain
Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination) and the additional information set out in Part Seven
(Additional Information) of this document.

Details of the action to be taken by Mariana Shareholders are set out in paragraph 21 of Part Two
(Explanatory Statement) of this document.
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2. Summary of the terms of the Combination
Under the Scheme, which will be subject to the Conditions and certain further terms set out in Part Three
(Conditions and Certain Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination), Scheme Shareholders will
be entitled to receive:

for each Scheme Share 0.2573 New Sandstorm Shares; and
28.75 pence in cash

Based on the closing price of US$4.04 per Sandstorm Share and a currency exchange rate of £0.7788 per
US$, on 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the Announcement Date), the terms of the
Combination represent:

● a value of approximately 109.7 pence per Mariana Share;

● a value of approximately £166.9 million for Mariana’s entire issued and to be issued ordinary share
capital;

● a premium of approximately 84.4 per cent. to the closing price of 59.5 pence per Mariana Share on
AIM on 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the Announcement Date); and

● a premium of approximately 88.3 per cent. to the 20-day VWAP per Mariana Share of 62.84 pence on
AIM to 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the Announcement Date), based on the
20-day VWAP per Sandstorm Share of 348.2 pence on NYSE MKT to the same date and utilising daily
close composite exchange rates.

Based on the closing price of US$3.61 per Sandstorm Share and a currency exchange rate of £0.7768 per
US$ on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), the
Combination values each Mariana Share at 100.9 pence and Mariana’s entire issued and to be issued
ordinary share capital at approximately £153.5 million. This represents a premium of 69.6 per cent. to the
closing price of 59.5 pence per Mariana Share on the last Business Day prior to the Announcement Date
and a premium of 6.2 per cent. to the closing price of 95.0 pence on 12 May 2017 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this document).

If, after the date of this document, any dividend and/or other distribution is announced, declared or paid in
respect of the Mariana Shares, Sandstorm reserves the right to reduce the Consideration by an amount up
to the amount of such dividend and/or distribution so announced, declared or paid. If Sandstorm exercises
the right to reduce the Consideration by all or part of the amount of such dividend and/or distribution that
has not been paid, Mariana Shareholders will be entitled to receive and retain that dividend and/or
distribution.

The Scheme Shares will be acquired by Sandstorm, pursuant to the Combination, fully paid and free from
all liens, equities, charges, security interests, encumbrances, options, rights of pre-emption and any other
third party rights or interests of any nature and together with all the rights now or hereafter attaching thereto,
including the right to receive in full all dividends and other distributions (if any) declared, paid or made on or
after the Announcement Date.

The cash consideration payable to Scheme Shareholders pursuant to the Combination will be paid in pounds
Sterling or Canadian Dollars, depending upon whether Scheme Shareholders are on the Guernsey Register
or the Canadian Register. The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments from Pounds Sterling
into Canadian Dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its
capacity as foreign exchange service provider to Sandstorm, on the date the funds are converted (which
shall be as close as possible to the point of settlement), which rate will be based on the prevailing market
rate on the date the funds are converted. The risk of any fluctuations in such rates, including risks relating
to the particular date and time at which funds are converted, will be solely borne by Scheme Shareholders.
Computershare Trust Company of Canada will act as principal in such currency conversion transactions.

Uncertificated Scheme Shareholders on the Guernsey Register (that is, holding their Mariana Shares in
CREST) will receive Sandstorm CDIs in respect of their entitlement to New Sandstorm Shares. Further details
in relation to the Sandstorm CDIs are set out in paragraph 3 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) and in
relation to settlement of the Consideration generally in paragraph 16 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement).
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If successful, the Combination will result in the issue of up to 35,667,096 New Sandstorm Shares,
representing up to approximately 19 per cent. of the issued share capital of Sandstorm following completion
of the Combination. The New Sandstorm Shares issued to Scheme Shareholders pursuant to the Scheme
will be issued credited as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with existing Sandstorm Shares,
including the right to receive dividends and other distributions declared, made or paid on Sandstorm Shares
by reference to a record date falling after the Effective Date. The New Sandstorm Shares will be issued in
registered form and will trade under the same ISIN as the existing Sandstorm Shares.

Fractions of New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued to holders of Mariana Shares. Fractional
entitlements will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares. Fractional
entitlements of pence payable to holders of Mariana Shares under the Cash Consideration Amount will be
rounded down to the nearest whole number of pence.

The Scheme requires that Scheme Shareholders vote in favour of the Scheme at the Guernsey Court
Meeting to be held at 10.00 a.m. on 16 June 2017 and that Mariana Shareholders vote in favour of the
Shareholder Resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting to be held at 10.15 a.m. on 16 June 2017
(or as soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting has concluded). The Scheme also requires the
sanction of the Guernsey Court. Further details of the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General
Meeting and the Guernsey Court process are set out in paragraph 12 of this Part Two (Explanatory
Statement) of this document.

The Combination will be subject to the Conditions, which are summarised in paragraph 14 of this Part Two
(Explanatory Statement) and set out in full on Part Three (Conditions and Certain Further Terms of the
Scheme and to the Combination) of this document. The Scheme can only become Effective in accordance
with its terms if all the Conditions have been satisfied or, where relevant, waived.

Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the Conditions, it is expected that the Scheme will become Effective
on or around 29 June 2017, and dealings in the New Sandstorm Shares on TSX and NYSE will commence
within 14 days of the Effective Date. Upon the Scheme becoming Effective, it will be binding on all Scheme
Shareholders irrespective of whether or not they attended or voted, at either of the Shareholder Meetings
(and, if they attended and voted, whether or not they voted in favour).

The Scheme is described in further detail in paragraph 12 of this Part Two (Explanatory Statement).

For details on settlement, please refer to paragraphs 3 and 16 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement).

Sandstorm reserves the right to implement the Combination by way of a Takeover Offer, subject to the
Panel’s consent. In such event, such Takeover Offer will be implemented by Sandstorm on the same terms
and conditions (subject to appropriate amendments, including (without limitation) an acceptance condition
set at 90 per cent. (or such other percentage (being more than 50 per cent.) as Sandstorm may decide
(subject to the Panel’s consent) of the shares to which such Takeover Offer relates) so far as applicable, as
those which would apply to the Scheme.

3. New Sandstorm Shares
Rights attaching to New Sandstorm Shares
The New Sandstorm Shares issued to Scheme Shareholders pursuant to the Scheme will be issued credited
as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with existing Sandstorm Shares, including the right to
receive dividends and other distributions declared, made or paid on Sandstorm Shares by reference to a
record date falling after the Effective Date.

Holders of Sandstorm Shares are entitled to receive notice of any meetings of shareholders of Sandstorm,
and to attend and to cast one vote per Sandstorm Share at all such meetings. Holders of Sandstorm Shares
do not have cumulative voting rights with respect to the election of directors and, accordingly, holders of a
majority of the Sandstorm Shares entitled to vote in any election of directors may elect all directors standing
for election.

Upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Sandstorm, holders of Sandstorm Shares are entitled, are
entitled to receive on a pro rata basis the net assets of Sandstorm after payment of debts and other liabilities,
in each case subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to any other series or
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class of shares ranking senior in priority to or on a pro rata basis with the holders of Sandstorm Shares with
respect to dividends or liquidation. The Sandstorm Shares do not carry any pre-emptive, subscription,
redemption or conversion rights, nor do they contain any sinking or purchase fund provisions.

Fractions of New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued to holders of Mariana Shares. Fractional
entitlements will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares.

Quotation on TSX and NYSE
Sandstorm Shares are listed on the TSX and NYSE MKT. An application has been made to the TSX, and
will be made to the NYSE MKT, for the New Sandstorm Shares to be listed for trading. The decision on
such listings is at the sole discretion of the TSX and NYSE MKT respectively. TSX has conditionally approved
the listing of the New Sandstorm Shares to be issued under the Combination, subject to filing certain
documents following closing of the Combination. NYSE MKT approval will be obtained prior to the closing
of the Combination. It is expected that such listings will become effective and that dealings for normal
settlement in the New Sandstorm Shares will commence shortly after the Scheme becomes Effective.

Non-applicability of the Code
The Code does not apply to Sandstorm and it will not be subject to takeover regulation in the UK. For your
reference, the following paragraphs describe certain aspects of securities and takeover legislation in Canada
that may be relevant to the New Sandstorm Shares:

The take-over bid regime in Canada is set out in National Instrument 62-104 Take-Over Bids and Issuer
Bids (“NI 62-104”). A take-over bid is an offer to acquire voting or equity securities made to persons in a
Canadian jurisdiction where the securities subject to the bid plus those securities beneficially owned by the
bidder and its affiliates and joint actors constitute 20 per cent. or more of the outstanding securities of a
class of securities.

Under the Canadian take-over bid rules, it is permissible for a potential acquiring entity to acquire up to
10 per cent. of the target company’s outstanding shares in the market prior to commencing a bid without
public disclosure. Once the acquiring entity exceeds this threshold, it must comply with the early warning
requirements, including public disclosure. The formal take-over bid rules are engaged at when the acquiring
entity, together with any affiliates or joint actors, exceeds 20 per cent. of the outstanding shares. 

There are certain restrictions on acquisitions before a take-over bid and the rules integrate securities
purchases made in the 90-day period preceding the take-over bid by requiring an acquiring entity to offer
to purchase the same percentage of securities and offer the same amount and form of consideration (or
the cash equivalent thereof) as was offered in any pre-bid purchases that were made in a transaction not
available on identical terms to all holders, other than normal course purchases on a published market (which
purchases have prescribed rules that need to be closely followed).

Under the regime, all non-exempt take-over bids will be subject to the following requirements:

● a mandatory minimum tender requirement of more than 50% of the outstanding securities of the class
that are subject to the bid, excluding those beneficially owned, or over which control or direction is
exercised, by the bidder and its joint actors.

● following the satisfaction of the minimum tender requirement and the satisfaction or waiver of all other
terms and conditions, bids must be extended for at least an additional 10-day period.

● bids are required to remain open for a minimum of 105 days, subject to two exceptions. First, a target’s
board of directors may issue a “deposit period news release” in respect of a proposed or commenced
take-over bid providing for an initial bid period that is shorter than 105 days but not less than 35 days.
If so, any other outstanding or subsequent bids are also entitled to the shorter minimum deposit period
counted from the date that other bid is made. Second, if target issues a news release that it has entered
into an “alternative transaction”, which is defined under NI 62-104, then any other outstanding or
subsequent bids are entitled to a minimum 35-day deposit period counted from the date that other
bid was or is made.

In Canada, bids must be made to all holders of a class, but may be for less than all securities, and all holders
must be offered identical consideration, or identical choice of consideration.
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A take-over bid can be commenced by either mailing or advertisement. A take-over bid circular is sent to
all securityholders, and provides certain prescribed information, including the terms and conditions of the
offer, the background of the offer, the acquiring entity’s plans for the target, any agreements with the target,
any transactions in the target’s securities and details regarding financing arrangements. Where the acquiring
entity intends to pay any part of the purchase price with its own securities, the take-over bid circular must
contain prospectus-level disclosure regarding the Purchaser’s business, including financing statements and
technical disclosure on mineral properties.  In response to the take-over bid circular, the target prepares a
directors’ circular containing the directors’ recommendation to shareholders, background, reasons and
other prescribed information.

Acquisition transactions may also be structured as a statutory plan of arrangement pursuant to applicable
corporate law requirements, which follow a similar process to schemes in the United Kingdom. A plan of
arrangement is a court-approved statutory process that involves an interim and final court hearing and a
shareholder vote that results in an arrangement between a company and its shareholders that becomes
binding on all shareholders by operation of law.

The foregoing summary description of certain aspects of corporate and securities law in Canada is a very
limited and generalised summary description of only certain general aspects of the legislation that may be
applicable in Canada concerning acquisitions, is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the
applicable securities law and corporate law statutes and should not in any circumstances be construed as
legal advice. If you have any questions in respect of this summary description, you should consult your own
Canadian legal advisers.

Sandstorm CDIs
Unlike Mariana Shares, because the New Sandstorm Shares are Canadian securities, they are not capable
of being registered, transferred or settled directly through CREST. A Scheme Shareholder who holds Scheme
Shares through CREST (directly or through a broker or other nominee with a CREST account) will therefore
not be issued with New Sandstorm Shares directly but will be issued with Sandstorm CDIs through the
existing unsponsored CDI programme administered through CREST in respect of Sandstorm Shares. Each
Sandstorm CDI will represent one New Sandstorm Share. The Sandstorm CDIs reflect the economic rights
attached to the New Sandstorm Shares. However, while the holders of Sandstorm CDIs will have an interest
in the underlying New Sandstorm Shares, they will not be the registered holders of the New Sandstorm
Shares.

The Sandstorm CDIs to which such Scheme Shareholders will be entitled under the Scheme will be delivered,
held and settled in CREST and linked to the underlying New Sandstorm Shares by means of the CREST
International Settlement Links Service, and CREST’s established link with DTC, the US settlement and
clearance system. This link operates via the services of CREST International Nominees Limited, which is a
participant in DTC.

Under the CREST International Settlement Links Services, CREST Depository Limited, a subsidiary of
Euroclear, will issue dematerialised depository interests representing entitlements to the New Sandstorm
Shares called CREST Depository Interests or CDIs, which may be held, transferred and settled exclusively
through CREST.

The terms on which CDIs are issued and held in CREST are set out in the CREST Manual (and, in particular,
the deed poll set out in the CREST International Manual) and the CREST Terms and Conditions issued by
Euroclear.

The registered holder of the New Sandstorm Shares represented by Sandstorm CDIs will be Cede &Co, a
nominee of DTC. The custodian of those New Sandstorm Shares will be CREST International Nominees
Limited, who will hold them through book entry interests within the DTC system as nominee for CREST
Depository Limited. CREST Depository Limited will hold those book entry interests representing the New
Sandstorm Shares on trust (as bare trustee under English law) for the holders of Scheme Shares in
uncertificated form to whom it will issue Sandstorm CDIs through CREST.

On settlement, Sandstorm will instruct CTCNA, as co-transfer agent, to effect the credit of the New
Sandstorm Shares to Cede & Co and the subsequent credit of book entry interests through DTC to the
securities deposit account of CREST International Nominees Limited, as nominee for CREST Depository
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Limited in DTC. CREST Depository Limited will then issue the Sandstorm CDIs through CREST to the
Receiving Agent for delivery to the securities deposit account in CREST in which each relevant Scheme
Shareholder previously held Scheme Shares. A custody fee, as determined by CREST from time to time, is
charged at the user level (i.e., to the holder of Sandstorm CDIs) for the use of Sandstorm CDIs.

The existing Sandstorm CDI programme is unsponsored and Sandstorm is not currently party to
arrangements with Euroclear enabling it (or its voting agent) to: (a) send out notices of shareholder meetings
and proxy forms to its CDI holders; or (b) produce a definitive list of CDI holders as at the record date for the
meeting.

In addition, Cede & Co and Euroclear have omnibus proxy arrangements pursuant to which CREST
International Nominees Limited (the custodian of the New Sandstorm Shares underlying the Sandstorm
CDIs) will be able to grant each Sandstorm CDI holder the right to vote in respect of such holder’s underlying
New Sandstorm Shares.

Holders of Sandstorm CDIs will need to contact Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited to request the right to vote
in respect of their holding in New Sandstorm Shares.

Holders of Sandstorm CDIs through CREST will be able to cancel their Sandstorm CDIs by settling a cross-
border delivery transaction in respect of the underlying New Sandstorm Shares through CREST to a DTC
participant, in accordance with the rules and practices of CREST and DTC. Additionally, if so required, a
subsequent delivery to a CDS participant account can be initiated from DTC.

Please refer to paragraph 16 (Settlement) of this Part Two for further details regarding settlement of the New
Sandstorm Shares and Sandstorm CDIs.

4. Irrevocable Undertakings
Information relating to the irrevocable undertakings received by Sandstorm is set out in paragraph 5 of Part
One (Letter from the Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana) of this document.

5. Information relating to Mariana
Introduction
Mariana is a non-cellular company incorporated under the laws of Guernsey with its registered office in
Guernsey. Mariana is not regulated by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission. The Mariana Shares
are currently admitted to trading on AIM (symbol: MARL) and the TSXV (symbol: MARL). Mariana has a
market capitalisation of approximately £124.2 million based upon the closing price of 95.0 pence per Mariana
Share on AIM on 12 May 2017, (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of this document).

As at 31 December 2016, Mariana had total assets of £13.6 million, cash and cash equivalents of £5.2 million
and shareholders’ equity of £12.7 million.

Mariana is an exploration and development company with an extensive portfolio of gold, silver, and copper
projects in Turkey, South America and Côte d’Ivoire. Mariana’s most advanced asset is the Hot Maden gold-
copper project in northeast Turkey, which is a joint venture with Turkish partner Lidya Madencilik (30 per
cent. Mariana and 70 per cent. Lidya). The JV holds one operating licence and three exploration licences
comprising a total land area of 73.9 square kilometres (“km²”). On 17 January 2017, Mariana released the
results of the Hot Maden PEA which demonstrated positive potential economics (after-tax net present value
“NPV”) and internal rate of return (“IRR”) of US$1.37 billion and 153 per cent., respectively) based on a
development scenario incorporating a 1.0 million tonnes per annum (“Mtpa”) underground mining operation
and processing facility for the production of two concentrates (a copper-gold concentrate and a gold-pyrite
concentrate).

The Hot Maden PEA was based on the June 2016 mineral resource estimate completed by RPM, which
calculated resources (100 per cent. basis) by category of:

● Indicated (Main Zone): 7.1 million tonnes (“Mt”) grading 12.2 grams per tonne (“g/t”) gold and 2.3 per
cent. copper for contained metal of 2.79 million ounces (“Moz”) of gold and 166 kilotonnes (“kt”) of
copper (3.43 Moz of AuEq).
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● Inferred (Main Zone): 0.7 Mt grading 2.7 g/t gold and 0.9 per cent. copper for contained metal of 0.06
Moz of gold and 7 kt of copper (0.09 Moz of AuEq).

● Inferred (Southern Zone): 1.4Mt grading 7.2 g/t gold and 0.7 per cent. copper for contained metal of
0.31 Moz of gold and 10 kt of copper (0.35 Moz AuEq).

Elsewhere in Turkey, Mariana holds a 100 per cent. interest in the Ergama gold-copper project.

On 7 October 2016, Mariana announced the signing of a binding term sheet to acquire an indirect 80 per
cent. interest in Côte d’Ivoire-focused private exploration company Awalé. Through the transaction Mariana
will gain an immediate foothold in an established exploration portfolio with known gold mineralisation and
artisanal gold workings, and which comprises i) three granted contiguous licences (1,191 km²) in the
Bondoukou area, and ii) 4 licences under application (1,593 km²) in both the Bondoukou and Abengourou
areas. The Boundoukou concessions lie along the southwestern extension of the Birimian Bole-Nangodi
greenstone belt in adjacent Ghana, host to a number of high grade orogenic gold deposits including Namdini
(owned by Cardinal Resources) and Youga (owned by MNG/Endeavor).

In southern Argentina, Mariana’s core gold-silver projects are Las Calandrias (100 per cent.), Sierra Blanca
(100 per cent.), Los Cisnes (100 per cent.), and Bozal (100 per cent.). These projects are part of a 1,000+
km² land package in the Deseado Massif epithermal gold-silver district in mining-friendly Santa Cruz Province.

In Suriname, Mariana has a direct holding of 10.2 per cent. of the Nassau Gold project. The Nassau gold
project is a 280 km² exploration concession located approximately 125 kilometres (“km”) SE of the capital
Paramaribo and immediately adjacent to Newmont Mining’s 4.2Moz gold Merian project.

Mariana is focusing on acquiring new opportunities which complement its current portfolio.

Hot Maden Selected Drill Results
A total of 119 drill holes have been completed and reported on the Hot Maden project, a selection of drill
results is presented below demonstrating the high-grade nature of the orebody and the large widths of
intercepts:

Copper 
From Gold (“Au”) (“Cu”) Grade

Hole # metres (“m”) To (m) Intercept (m) Grade (g/t) (per cent.)

HTD-04 25.0 128.0 103.0 9.0 2.17
HTD-05 150.0 163.0 13.0 88.0 2.46
HTD-15 216.0 333.3 117.3 13.9 2.04
HTD-18 292.0 400.2 108.2 3.0 1.35
HTD-34 55.0 126.0 71.0 32.7 1.90
HTD-35 46.8 110.4 63.6 14.5 3.40
HTD-60 167.0 250.3 83.3 15.9 1.57
HTD-62 36.5 132.0 95.5 32.1 3.30
HTD-65 330.5 417.0 86.5 3.4 1.44
HTD-71 210.0 279.6 69.6 62.7 2.68
HTD-72 180.5 215.0 34.5 19.4 1.31
HTD-77 96.0 186.0 90.0 22.6 4.39
HTD-78 294.0 373.0 79.0 14.3 1.59
HTD-85 209.4 270.0 60.6 82.2 1.44
HTD-88 326.0 400.0 74.0 3.0 1.57
HTD-88 422.0 451.0 29.0 0.3 1.31

Hot Maden Preliminary Economic Assessment
Note that the Hot Maden PEA is preliminary in nature as it includes inferred mineral resources that are
considered too speculative geologically to have the economic considerations applied to them that would
enable them to be categorized as mineral reserves. Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not
have demonstrated economic viability, and as such there is no certainty that the preliminary assessment
and economics will be realised.

35

245087 Mariana pp029-pp053  16/05/2017  15:18  Page 35



Summary of the Hot Maden PEA (100 per cent. Project Basis)
● Conceptual development for Hot Maden assumes an all underground mining operation from a decline

and utilizing mechanized transverse and longitudinal long hole open stoping with engineered fill mining
methods. Mining and processing rates of 0.8 Mtpa, 1.0 Mtpa, and 1.2 Mtpa were considered, with
the base case mining scenario being established at 1.0 Mtpa;

● total metal contained in ore processed of 2.67 Moz of gold and 142 kt of copper over a total project
life of 9 years for the base case mining scenario;

● metallurgical test work, through flotation and concentration, completed to date on the high grade Main
Zone mineralisation has indicated high recoveries of both gold and copper. A variable processing
recovery, dependent on grade, has been applied in the PEA resulting in a project weighted average
recovery of 88 per cent. of gold and 90 per cent. of copper;

● total metal recovered to concentrates of 2.37 Moz of gold and 126 kt of copper;

● post-tax NPV for the base case mining scenario (1.0 Mtpa) of US$1.37 billion excluding
pre-development exploration costs (8 per cent. discount rate);

● post-tax IRR for the base case mining scenario of 153 per cent. excluding acquisition costs; and

● total capex (initial + sustaining) of US$261 million.

PEA Parameters
Key parameters utilized in the Hot Maden PEA are indicated in the table below:

Hot Maden PEA Base Case

Mining Method Underground
Underground Minable Ore 7.4Mt grading 11.25 g/t gold and 1.92 per cent. copper
Annual Throughput Base case established at 1.0 Mtpa
Project Life of Mine 9 years
Metal Prices US$1,250 per ounce gold and US$2.75 per pound copper
Average Recoveries 88 per cent. of gold and 90 per cent. of copper
Contained Metal 2.67 Moz of gold and 142 kt of copper
Recovered to Concentrates 2.37 Moz of gold and 126 kt of copper
Payable Metal 2.03 Moz of gold and 117 kt of copper
Upfront Capex US$169 million
LOM Project Capex US$261 million
Mining Operating Costs US$31.05 per tonne processed
Processing Operating Costs US$15.13 per tonne processed
G+A Operating Costs US$10.18 per tonne processed
Total Cash Costs US$303 per ounce gold-equivalent
All-in Sustaining Costs US$338 per ounce gold-equivalent
Royalties 2.60 per cent. State Royalties, 2.00 per cent. NSR to Sandstorm
Corporate Tax Rate 20.0 per cent.

Geology and Mineral Resources
The high grade gold-copper mineralisation at Hot Maden occurs within a N-NE-trending fault zone and is
sub-vertical in nature. At least two styles of gold-copper mineralisation are evident within the Main Zone: i)
the predominant, multiphase quartz-sulphide (pyrite-chalcopyrite) +/- hematite/jasperoid breccia bodies,
and ii) semi-massive to massive sulphides (pyrite-chalcopyrite). Host rocks are dominantly andesites and
andesitic breccias. Overall, the highest-grade gold mineralisation (typically >15 g/t Au but locally >100 g/t
Au) at Hot Maden lies along the eastern margin of the Main Zone. Drilling is ongoing but the current
dimensions of the Main Zone are a strike extent of 300m from north to south, a true width of between 40m
and 70m, and a vertical extension from near surface to >300m depth. Stratabound Zn(-Pb) (sphalerite-
galena) mineralisation also flanks the Main Zone to the east and locally to the west. In the new Southern
Vein Field discovery, host rocks are dominantly dacitic breccias and gold-copper mineralisation is associated
with quartz-sulphide-bearing veins and vein breccias.

Initial exploration drilling has commenced in the old Russian mining area, south of the Southern Vein Field.
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The Hot Maden PEA was based on the June 2016 mineral resource estimate prepared by RPM, which used
52 diamond drill holes for a total of 14,862 m (3,748 m within wireframes) and included contributions from
both the Main Zone and a new Southern Discovery, comprising (on a 100 per cent. basis):

Hot Maden Mineral Resource Estimate – Main Gold-Copper Zone (2g/t AuEq Cut-Off)

Indicated Mineral Resource
Cu Zn

Tonnes Au (per (per AuEq Au Cu AuEq
Domain (kt) (g/t) cent.) cent.) (g/t) (koz) (kt) (koz)

Main Zone LG 463 1.1 1.1 0.3 2.4 17 5 36
Main Zone HG 4,501 3.9 1.9 0.2 6.3 570 87 908
Main Zone UHG 2,086 32.7 3.5 0.1 36.9 2,195 73 2,476
Mixed Gold-Zinc Zone 17 7.5 3.1 3.6 11.2 4 1 6
Peripheral Lodes 60 2.1 0.4 0.4 2.5 4 – 5

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

Total 7,127 12.2 2.3 0.2 15.0 2,790 166 3,431
–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

Inferred Mineral Resource
Cu Zn

Tonnes Au (per (per AuEq Au Cu AuEq
Domain (kt) (g/t) cent.) cent.) (g/t) (koz) (kt) (koz)

Main Zone LG 395 1.7 0.9 0.03 2.8 21 4 35
Main Zone HG 31 3.9 1.6 0.1 5.8 4 – 6
Main Zone UHG 6 39.1 2.1 0.01 41.6 7 – 8
Mixed Gold-Zinc Zone 4 1.7 0.4 2.4 2.2 – – –
Peripheral Lodes 282 3.2 0.9 0.1 4.3 29 2 38

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

Total 718 2.7 0.9 0.1 3.8 62 7 88
–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

Hot Maden Mineral Resource Estimate – Southern Gold-Copper Zone (2g/t AuEq Cut-Off)

Inferred Mineral Resource
Cu Zn

Tonnes Au (per (per AuEq Au Cu AuEq
Domain (kt) (g/t) cent.) cent.) (g/t) (koz) (kt) (koz)

South Zone LG 396 2.8 0.7 – 3.6 35 3 46
South Zone HG 583 5.3 0.7 – 6.1 98 4 114
South Zone UHG 224 22.2 1.0 – 23.4 160 2 169
Mixed Gold-Zinc Zone 44 9.0 1.0 3.2 10.2 13 – 15
Peripheral Lodes 104 1.9 0.3 – 2.2 6 – 7

–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

Total 1,352 7.2 0.7 0.1 8.1 313 10 351
–––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––––––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– –––––––– ––––––––

In the above mineral resource tables AuEq was calculated using a 100 day moving average of
US$1,215/ounce for Au and US$2.13/pound for Cu as of 29 May 2016. No adjustment had been made for
metallurgical recovery or net smelter return (“Net Smelter Return”/“NSR”) as these were uncertain at the
time. Based on grades and contained metal for Au and Cu, it was assumed that both commodities have
reasonable potential to be economically extractable. The formula used for Au equivalent grade was: AuEq
g/t = Au + [(Cu per cent. x 22.0462 x 2.13)/(1215/31.1035)] and was not adjusted for assumed metallurgical
recovery. Au equivalent ounces were calculated by multiplying Mineral Resource tonnage by Au equivalent
grade and converting for ounces. The formula used for Au equivalent ounces was: AuEq Oz = [Tonnage x
AuEq grade (g/t)]/31.1035.

The technical report entitled “Hot Maden Gold Copper Project – Resource Update” and issued on
7 September 2016, was prepared in accordance with NI 43-101 and discloses a Mineral Resource Estimate
which was prepared in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Joint Ore Reserves Committee (“JORC”)
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2012 Code of Practice (“JORC Code”). The Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy (“CIM”) accepts
the JORC code as a Foreign Code, which meets the requirements of NI 43-101. There are no material
differences between the definitions of Measured, Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources under the CIM
Definition Standards and the equivalent definitions in the JORC Code.

Project Economics Summary
After-Tax Payback Project

Mining Scenario Throughput Total Capex NPV8 per cent. After-Tax IRR (incl. dev.) Life

Conservative 0.8 Mtpa US$ 251M US$ 1.28B 130 per cent. 2.2 11
Base Case 1.0 Mtpa US$ 261M US$ 1.37B 153 per cent. 2.1 9

Bondoukou Project, Côte d’Ivoire
Mariana’s acquisition of an 80 per cent. interest in Awalé SARL in October 2016 established a presence in
Côte d’Ivoire in a region which hosts one of the largest known prospective underexplored greenstone belts
in West Africa. The exploration portfolio targets the eastern border of the country and comprises:

● three granted contiguous licences covering 1,191km2 in the Boundoukou area, and

● four licences under application covering 1,593km2 in both the Bondoukou and Abengourou area.

Mariana’s initial focus will be on the Bondoukou Est concession, where high grade gold mineralization (up
to 36 g/t Au from initial surface sampling) occurs within a sheeted quartz vein complex that is located at the
contact between a zoned granitoid intrusion and the host meta-volcanic and meta-sedimentary rocks.
Artisanal miners are currently active at Bondoukou Est and are undertaking shallow mining (generally up to
30m depth) from higher grade quartz veins that lie within a broadly NW-SE-trending mineralized corridor
interpreted to have a strike extent of 18 km. Subsequent field activities will focus on other artisanal workings
within the remainder of the Bondoukou Est concession, as well as workings in the Bondoukou Nord and
Nord Est concessions.

Ergama Project, Turkey
The 100 per cent. owned Ergama project licence in Balikesir province, western Turkey, covers an area of
21.6 km², and is located 90km SE of Teck-Pilot Gold’s Halilaga gold-copper project in the highly mineralised
Biga Peninsula, and 230 km WNW of Eldorado Gold’s Kisladag gold mine (2016 production of 211,000 oz
gold).

On 29 November 2016, Mariana commenced the drilling of an initial diamond drill program being undertaken
by drill contractor Ortadoğu Drilling. As at 14 February 2017, three drill holes (ERD-01 to ERD-03, for a total
of 1,522m) had been completed, with assays having now been received for the first two holes. Targets to
be tested in this initial drill program include the northern margins of two porphyry gold-copper targets (the
Main Porphyry Target and Porphyry Target B), in addition to a high grade, vein/fault-hosted epithermal gold-
silver target.
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Intercepts from ERD-01 and ERD-02 include:

From To Intercept Au Cu
Drill Hole (m) (m) (m) (g/t) (per cent.) Comments

ERD-01 43.8 109.8 66.0 0.22 <0.1 Phyllic
117.8 205.8 88.0 0.19 <0.1 altered
215.8 237.8 22.0 0.25 <0.1 andesite/
279.8 285.8 6.0 0.20 <0.1 diorite
317.8 329.8 12.0 0.20 <0.1 porphyry
373.8 383.8 10.0 0.21 <0.1

ERD-02 57.0 198.0 141.0 0.23 <0.1 Phyllic 
226.0 244.0 18.0 0.18 <0.1 altered
274.0 330.0 56.0 0.22 <0.1 andesite/
340.0 378.0 38.0 0.15 <0.1 diorite
470.0 626.4 156.4 0.25 <0.1 porphyry

Including 570.0 626.4 56.4 0.33 0.12

The drilling completed to date at Ergama appears to confirm a conceptual model of a porphyry-style gold-
copper system underlying, and slightly offset from, an essentially barren quartz-alunite (+/-clay) “lithocap”.
Drill holes ERD-01 and ERD-02 are the first holes to test this model and, whilst initial results have been
positive, both the observed hydrothermal alteration assemblages and general increase in gold-copper grades
towards the south are suggesting that the key potassic zone (and likely the most metal-rich part of the
system) is located to the south of current drilling. Permitting of drill holes in this area is currently in progress,
with drilling expected to be undertaken as soon as the permits are granted.

Argentina Assets
The Las Calandrias project is currently Mariana’s most advanced exploration asset in Argentina. Initial
exploration in 2008 led to the Calandria Sur discovery in 2009. The Calandria Sur deposit represents the
first bulk tonnage epithermal (rhyolite dome hosted) gold-silver discovery in the Deseado Massif. High grade
epithermal gold-silver mineralization has also been delineated in the Calandria Norte vein/breccia system.
In 2011, Mariana reported the following maiden global mineral resource estimate for the Las Calandrias
project:

● indicated: 11.8 Mt grading 1.0 g/t gold and 17.4 g/t silver for contained metal of 381,000 oz of gold
and 6.6 Moz of silver.

● inferred: 0.9 Mt grading 0.9 g/t gold and 5.2 g/t silver for contained metal of 25,900 oz of gold and
144,000 oz of silver.

This maiden mineral resource consisted of contributions from both the bulk tonnage/disseminated Calandria
Sur deposit and the high grade Calandria Norte vein/breccia system (162,000 t grading 9.35 g/t gold).
Ongoing field activities are focused on deep sensing geophysics and the evaluation of 4 high grade gold-
silver vein/breccia systems located in the vicinity of the Calandria Norte vein (the La Morena, El Nido Norte,
Las Calandrias Feeders, and Refugio target areas).

The Sierra Blanca project is located in the western portion of the Deseado Massif. Mariana has been focused
on the identification and delineation of high grade gold-silver shoots within the 22 km strike extent of the
poorly explored, intermediate sulphidation epithermal vein system. Exploration to date has identified bonanza
grade silver in the oxidized/supergene enriched central portion of the Chala vein, with assays from channel
sampling attaining up to 7,600 g/t Ag and 25.7 g/t Au. An internal resource has been achieved with
expansion potential.

The Los Cisnes prospect was generated from Mariana’s regional greenfield exploration in 2012 which was
focused on rhyolite dome potential in the eastern Deseado Massif. The project is located approximately 120
km SSE of Las Calandrias and 75 km SW of Yamana’s Cerro Moro project. The El Brio target is a 700m
long vein/breccia zone up to 3m in width, with 9 surface samples returning grades between 31 and 3,849
g/t silver. The El Solar target is a Calandrias-style rhyolite dome hosted system with bulk tonnage potential,
with float samples returning 0.5 – 3.4 g/t gold.
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6. Information relating to Sandstorm
Introduction
Sandstorm is a public corporation incorporated under the laws of the province of British Columbia, Canada
with its headquarters in Vancouver, British Columbia. The Sandstorm Shares are currently listed on the TSX
(symbol: SSL) and the NYSE MKT (symbol: SAND). Sandstorm has two series of publicly traded warrants
that are listed for trading on the TSX (symbols: SSL.WT.B and SSL.WT). Sandstorm has a basic market
capitalization of approximately US$548.7 million based upon the closing price of US$3.61 for a Sandstorm
Share on the NYSE MKT on 12 May 2017 (the last practicable date prior to the publication of this document).

As at 31 December 2016, Sandstorm had total assets of US$534.9 million, including cash and cash
equivalents of US$21.4 million, investments of US$61.3 million and loans receivable of US$23.4 million,
shareholders’ equity of US$527.3 million and Sandstorm had no outstanding third party debt (other than
accounts payable in the ordinary course of business) with additional available liquidity from its US$110 million
revolving credit facility.

Sandstorm provides financing to mining companies through stream and royalty agreements. Stream and
royalty finance involves Sandstorm making an upfront payment to a mining partner that is in need of capital
to build their mine, refinance their obligations, complete an acquisition or for various other reasons. In
exchange for that upfront payment, Sandstorm receives the right to purchase a percentage of the gold
produced from the mine (in the case of a stream) or a portion of the revenue generated from the mine (in the
case of a royalty). Since 2009, Sandstorm has compiled a portfolio of 155 streams and royalties, of which
20 of the underlying mines are currently producing. Sandstorm plans to continue growing the company
through accretive acquisitions of gold streams and royalties.

Financial Highlights
Highlights for the year ending 31 December 2016:

● attributable gold equivalent ounces sold of 49,731 ounces (financial year 2015 – 45,146 ounces);

● revenue of US$62.4 million (financial year 2015 – US$52.7 million);

● average cash cost per attributable gold equivalent ounce of US$258 resulting in cash operating margins
of US$996 per ounce (financial year 2015 – US$300 per ounce and US$867 per ounce respectively);

● operating cash flow of US$39.0 million (financial year 2015 – US$30.8 million);

● net income of US$25.3 million; and

● the acquisition of the Teck Royalty Package for consideration of US$16.8 million, of which US$1.4
million was paid in cash and US$15.4 million in Sandstorm Shares. The transaction provides asset
diversification, immediate cash flow and significant cash flow growth potential.

Sandstorm’s attributable gold equivalent ounces sold during the 5-year period ending 31 December 2016
is shown below:

AuEq Equivalent 
Calendar Year Production (Ounces)

2012 33,514
2013 42,709
2014 44,821
2015 45,146
2016 49,731
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The following table summarizes the ounces of gold sold and the respective revenue received by Sandstorm
from each of its producing gold interests for the year ended 31 December 2016:

Sales & Royalty
AuEq Equivalent Revenue

Property Ounces Sold (US$000s)

Bachelor Lake Mine 7,358 9,183
Black Fox Mine 4,500 5,617
Chapada Mine 4,839 6,075
Diavik Mine 4,669 5,856
Karma 3,334 4,272
Ming Mine 1,586 2,025
Santa Elena 9,419 11,772
Yamana Silver Stream 2,323 2,926
Other 11,703 14,645

––––––––– –––––––––

Total 49,731 62,371
––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

During the year ending 31 December 2016, Sandstorm reported record attributable gold equivalent
production during the fourth quarter and twelve months of 2016, translating to significant growth in revenue.
Revenue for the full 2016 year was up 18 per cent. when compared to 2015 and revenue during the fourth
quarter increased by 67 per cent. when compared to Q4, 2015. The marked increase in Q4 was a result of
a 13 per cent. rise in the average realized selling price of gold and a 48 per cent. increase in attributable
gold equivalent ounces sold. Contributions from the Yamana silver stream, Chapada copper stream, Teck
Royalty Package and Karma gold stream were the main drivers of the growth in gold equivalent ounces, all
of which were not part of the asset mix in 2015. Precious metal streams and royalties (including diamonds)
accounted for 82 per cent. of Sandstorm’s revenue during the year, with the other 18 per cent. coming
primarily from base metal projects. During the first quarter of 2017 (three-month period ending 31 March
2017) Sandstorm sold approximately 15,500 attributable gold equivalent ounces, which is a quarterly record
high for Sandstorm.

Track Record of Growth
Over the past two years (from April 2015), Sandstorm has completed acquisitions of 103 new streams and
royalties as described below:

Closing Transaction Value
Period Counterparty (US$ millions) Assets Acquired
April 2015 Gold Royalties Inc. 4.8 13 royalties
June 2015 Pacific Ridge Exploration Ltd. 0.5 3 royalties
October 2015 Yamana Gold Inc. 152 2 streams and 1 royalty
October 2015 Alexandria Minerals Corp. 1 2 royalties
January 2016 Teck Resources Ltd. 17 52 royalties
February 2016 Alto Parana Royalty nil 1 royalty
April 2016 Erdene Resource Development Corp. 1.2 2 royalties
September 2016 Norilsk Nickel 3.5 5 royalties
January 2017 Condor Resources Inc. 0.4 8 royalties
January 2017 Kivalliq Energy Corp. 0.7 1 royalty
March 2017 Pembrook Copper Corp. 0.4 10 royalties
March 2017 Tower Resources Ltd. 0.4 3 royalties

2017 Outlook
Based on Sandstorm’s existing gold streams and royalties, attributable gold equivalent production for 2017
is forecast to be between 45,000 and 55,000 attributable gold equivalent ounces. Please see “Forward-
Looking Statements” for assumptions and risks.

The Sandstorm Forecast in Part Eight (Sandstorm Forecast) of this document sets out Sandstorm’s operating
cash flow after tax (and before corporate overhead) forecasts to 2021.
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Further information on Sandstorm is included in Part Six (Financial Information) and Part Nine (Information
concerning Sandstorm and the Combined Group) of this Document.

7. Intentions with regard to the Mariana business, employees and pension scheme
Information regarding the intentions of Sandstorm for the business, management and employees of Mariana
and the views of the Mariana Independent Directors on these are set out in paragraph 6 of Part One (Letter
from the Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana) of this document.

8. Financing of the Combination and cash confirmation
The cash consideration payable under the terms of the Combination will be funded from existing cash
resources available to Sandstorm including funds which have been drawn down under Sandstorm’s existing
US$110 million revolving credit facility.

KPMG is satisfied that sufficient resources are available to Sandstorm to satisfy in full the cash consideration
payable to Scheme Shareholders under the terms of the Combination.

9. The Mariana Directors and the effect of the Scheme on their interests
Details of the interests of Mariana Directors are set out in paragraph 3 of Part Seven (Additional Information)
of this document.

Particulars of the letters of appointment of the Mariana Directors are set out in paragraph 5 of Part Seven
(Additional Information) of this document. No amendments to such letters of appointment have been agreed
in connection with the Combination.

The Mariana Shares held by the Mariana Directors will be subject to the Scheme. Information on the Mariana
Shares held by the Mariana Directors is set out in paragraph 3 of Part Seven (Additional Information on
Mariana and Sandstorm) of this document.

For the purposes of section 108(2)(b) of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, the effect of the Scheme on the
interests of the Mariana Directors (whether as directors, members, creditors or otherwise) does not differ
from its effect on the like interest of any other Scheme Shareholder. As a consequence of the Retention
Arrangements, Glen Parsons and Eric Roth will not vote on the resolution to approve the Scheme at the
Guernsey Court Meeting.

Details of the impact of the Combination on the outstanding Mariana Options are set out in paragraph 18
of this Part Two (Explanatory Statement) and the outstanding Mariana Warrants are set out in paragraph 19
of this Part Two (Explanatory Statement). Save as set out in this document, the effect of the Scheme on the
interests of the Mariana Directors does not differ from its effect on the like interests of any other persons.

10. Offer-related arrangements
Co-operation Agreement
Mariana and Sandstorm have entered into a co-operation agreement dated 4 May 2017 (the “Co-operation
Agreement”), pursuant to which Mariana and Sandstorm have agreed to provide each other with such
information and assistance as is reasonably necessary to procure the obtaining of the regulatory conditions
to the Combination as soon as practicable.

The Co-operation Agreement contains provisions in relation to the Mariana Employee Equity Plans. Further
details of the Co-operation Agreement are set out in paragraph 8 of Part Seven (Additional Information) of
this document.

Confidentiality Agreement
On 28 March 2017, Sandstorm and Mariana entered into a confidentiality agreement in relation to the
Combination, pursuant to which, amongst other things, Sandstorm undertook, subject to certain exceptions,
to keep information relating to Mariana confidential and not to disclose it to third parties. Further details of
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the Confidentiality Agreement are set out in paragraph 8 of Part Seven (Additional Information) of this
document.

11. Debentures
No debentures have been issued in respect of Mariana and there are therefore no trustees of any deed
securing the issuance of any debentures in respect of Mariana and no explanation is required to be given
for the purposes of section 108(3) of the Companies (Guernsey) Law.

12. Structure of the Combination
The Scheme
It is intended that the Combination will be implemented by way of a court-sanctioned scheme of arrangement
under Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law (although Sandstorm reserves the right to elect to
implement the Combination by way of a Takeover Offer, subject to Panel consent).

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide for Sandstorm to become the holder of the entire issued and to
be issued ordinary share capital of Mariana.

This is to be achieved by the transfer of the Scheme Shares held by the Scheme Shareholders to Sandstorm
(or its nominee(s)) in consideration for which the Scheme Shareholders will receive (i) 0.2573 New Sandstorm
Shares; and (ii) 28.75 pence in cash for each Scheme Share held at the Scheme Record Time.

The Scheme is subject to the Conditions and further terms set out in Part Three (Conditions and Certain
Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination) of this document, including sanction of the Scheme
by the Guernsey Court.

The procedure involves an application by Mariana to the Guernsey Court to call the Guernsey Court Meeting
to approve the Scheme and upon approval at the Guernsey Court Meeting an application to the Guernsey
Court to sanction the Scheme and thereby transfer all of the Scheme Shares to Sandstorm, in consideration
for which Scheme Shareholders who are on the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme Record
Time will receive (i) 0.2573 New Sandstorm Shares; and (ii) 28.75 pence in cash for each Scheme Share.

In order for the Scheme to become Effective:

● the Scheme must be approved at the Guernsey Court Meeting by a majority in number of the Scheme
Shareholders present and voting (and entitled to vote), either in person or by proxy, representing at
least 75 per cent. in value of the Scheme Shares held by such Scheme Shareholders present and
voting either in person or by proxy;

● the Special Resolution must be approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting by Mariana
Shareholders representing at least 75 per cent. of the votes cast, either in person or by proxy;

● the Ordinary Resolution must be approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting by Mariana
Shareholder representing a simple majority of the votes cast, either in person or by proxy; and

● the Scheme must be sanctioned by the Guernsey Court.

The Scheme will lapse if:

● the Scheme is not duly approved by Scheme Shareholders at the Guernsey Court Meeting on or before
8 July 2017, being the 22nd day after the expected date of the Guernsey Court Meeting (or such later
date, if any, as Sandstorm and Mariana may agree and the Guernsey Court may allow); or

● the Shareholder Resolutions have not been duly passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting on or
before 8 July 2017, being the 22nd day after the expected date of the Extraordinary General Meeting
(or such later date, if any, as Sandstorm and Mariana may agree and the Guernsey Court may allow);
or

● the Scheme has not been sanctioned (with or without modification acceptable to Sandstorm and
Mariana), by the Guernsey Court on or before 18 July 2017, being the 22nd day after the expected
date of the Guernsey Court Hearing (or such later date, if any, as Sandstorm and Mariana may agree
and the Guernsey Court may allow); or
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● the Scheme does not become Effective by the Long Stop Date.

Furthermore, the Scheme can only become Effective if all the Conditions to the Combination have been
satisfied or, where relevant, waived.

The Scheme is currently expected to become Effective by the end of June 2017.

Upon the Scheme becoming Effective:

(a) the Scheme will be binding on all Scheme Shareholders irrespective of whether or not they attended
or voted, at either of the Shareholder Meetings (and, if they attended and voted, whether or not they
voted in favour);

(b) Mariana will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sandstorm; and

(c) share certificates in respect of Scheme Shares will cease to be valid and entitlements to Mariana Shares
held within the CREST system will be cancelled.

The Scheme is governed by Guernsey law.

The Shareholder Meetings
The Scheme will require the approval of Scheme Shareholders at the Guernsey Court Meeting and the
Mariana Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting, both of which will be held at the offices of
Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HB on 16 June 2017. The Guernsey Court
Meeting will start at 10.00 a.m. on that date and the Extraordinary General Meeting at 10.15 a.m., or as
soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting has concluded.

Notices of the Guernsey Court Meeting and the Extraordinary General Meeting are set out in Parts Twelve
and Thirteen of this document respectively.

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Shareholder Meetings and the number of votes which may be cast at
them will be determined by reference to the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme Voting Record
Time. Sandstorm and its Concert Parties will not vote at the Guernsey Court Meeting in respect of the
Mariana Shares which they hold. Sandstorm and its Concert Parties shall, however, exercise the voting
rights attaching to such Mariana Shares at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

If the Scheme becomes Effective, it will be binding on all Scheme Shareholders, irrespective of
whether or not they attended or voted at the Guernsey Court Meeting or the Extraordinary General
Meeting.

Guernsey Court Meeting
The Guernsey Court Meeting is being held at 10.00 a.m. on 16 June 2017 at the direction of the Guernsey
Court to seek the approval of Scheme Shareholders for the Scheme. At the Guernsey Court Meeting, voting
will be by way of a poll and each Scheme Shareholder present (in person (including by corporate
representative) or by proxy) will be entitled to one vote for each Scheme Share held at the Scheme Voting
Record Time. To become Effective, the Scheme must be approved at the Guernsey Court Meeting by a
majority in number of the Scheme Shareholders present and voting (and entitled to vote), either in person
or by proxy, representing at least 75 per cent. in value of the Scheme Shares held by such Scheme
Shareholders present and voting, either in person or by proxy.

At the Guernsey Court Meeting, it is particularly important that as many votes as possible are
cast so that the Guernsey Court may be satisfied that there is a fair and reasonable representation
of Scheme Shareholders’ opinion. You are therefore strongly urged to complete, sign and return
your purple Form of Proxy or appoint a proxy electronically as soon as possible.

You will find the Notice of the Guernsey Court Meeting in Part Twelve (Notice of Guernsey Court Meeting) of
this document.
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Extraordinary General Meeting
The Extraordinary General Meeting has been convened for the same date as the Guernsey Court Meeting
at the offices of Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HB, and will be held on
16 June 2017 at 10.15 a.m., or as soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting has concluded to consider
and, if thought fit, pass the Shareholder Resolutions to approve:

● the Retention Arrangements;

● the authorisation of the Mariana Independent Directors to take all actions as they may consider
necessary or appropriate to give effect to the Scheme; and

● certain amendments to the Mariana Articles as described below.

The Special Resolution will require votes in favour representing at least 75 per cent. of the votes cast at the
Extraordinary General Meeting in person (including by corporate representative) or by proxy. The vote of the
Mariana Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting will be held by way of a poll. Each holder of
Mariana Shares who was entered on the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme Voting Record Time
and is present in person or by proxy will be entitled to one vote for each Mariana Share so held.

You will find the Notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting in Part Thirteen (Notice of Extraordinary General
Meeting) of this document.

Amendments to Mariana Articles
It is proposed that the Mariana Articles be amended to:

(a) ensure that any Mariana Shares issued between the time the Mariana Articles are amended and the
Scheme Record Time (other than to Sandstorm) will be issued subject to the Scheme and the holder
of such shares will be bound by the terms of the Scheme; and

(b) ensure that any Mariana Shares issued to any person other than Sandstorm or its nominee(s) at or
after the Scheme Record Time will not be subject to the Scheme but will be automatically acquired by
Sandstorm or its nominee(s) in return for Sandstorm Shares based on a fixed ratio of 0.3487 Sandstorm
Shares for every one (1) Mariana Share. This amendment will avoid any person (other than a member
of the Sandstorm Group) holding any Mariana Shares after completion of the Combination. Part (B) of
the special resolution set out in Part Thirteen (Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting) of this document
proposes such amendments.

The proposed amendments to the Sandstorm Articles referred to above are set out Part Thirteen (Notice of
Extraordinary General Meeting).

Sanction of the Scheme by the Guernsey Court
The Scheme also requires that the Scheme is sanctioned by the Guernsey Court. The Guernsey Court
Hearing to sanction the Scheme is expected to be held on 26 June 2017.

The Guernsey Court is authorised to and will conduct a hearing at which the substantive and procedural
fairness of the terms and conditions of the Scheme will be considered. Mariana Shareholders are entitled to
appear and be heard at this hearing, provided that they satisfy the applicable conditions set forth by the
Guernsey Court. The sanction of the Guernsey Court will, if granted after consideration of the substantive
and procedural fairness of the Combination to the Mariana Shareholders, constitute a basis for the exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to section 3(a)(10) with respect to the New
Sandstorm Shares to be received by Mariana Shareholders in exchange for their Scheme Shares pursuant
to the Combination.

A copy of the order of the Guernsey Court which sanctions the Scheme must be filed with the Guernsey
Registry within seven (7) days of the Guernsey Court Hearing. The Scheme will become Effective at the time
that the court order of the Guernsey Court is filed with the Guernsey Registry.

If the Scheme becomes Effective, it will be binding on all Scheme Shareholders irrespective of whether or
not they attended or voted at either of the Shareholder Meetings (and, if they attended and voted, whether
or not they voted in favour). If the Scheme is not implemented by the Long Stop Date (or such later date (if
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any) as Mariana and Sandstorm may, with the consent of the Panel, agree and the Guernsey Court may
allow), the Scheme will not be implemented and the Combination will not proceed.

Modifications to the Scheme
The Scheme contains a provision for Sandstorm and Mariana jointly to consent on behalf of all persons
concerned to any modification of, or addition to, the Scheme or to any condition approved or imposed by
the Guernsey Court. The Guernsey Court would be unlikely to approve any modification of, or addition to,
or impose a condition to the Scheme which might be material to the interests of the Scheme Shareholders,
unless Scheme Shareholders were informed of such modification, addition or condition and given the
opportunity to vote on that basis. It would be a matter for the Guernsey Court to decide, in its discretion,
whether or not a further meeting of Scheme Shareholders should be held in these circumstances.

13. Alternative means of implementing the Combination
Sandstorm reserves the right, subject to the prior consent of the Panel, to elect to implement the
Combination by way of a Takeover Offer. In such an event, a Takeover Offer will be implemented by
Sandstorm on substantially the same terms (subject to appropriate amendments, including (without limitation)
an acceptance condition set at 90 per cent. (or such other percentage (being more than 50 per cent.) as
Sandstorm may decide (subject to the Panel’s consent) of the shares to which such Takeover Offer relates)
so far as applicable, as those which would apply to the Scheme.

If the Combination is effected by way of a Takeover Offer and such Takeover Offer becomes or is declared
unconditional in all respects and sufficient acceptances are received in respect of such Offer, Sandstorm
intends to: (i) procure that Mariana makes an application to the London Stock Exchange and the TSXV to
cancel the trading of the Mariana Shares on AIM and delisting from the TSXV, respectively  and (ii) exercise
its rights (to the extent such rights are available) to apply the provisions of Part XVIII of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law to acquire compulsorily the remaining Mariana Shares in respect of which such Offer has
not been accepted.

14. Conditions to the Combination
The Combination is subject to the Conditions and further terms set out in Part Three (Conditions and Certain
Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination) of this document. In particular, the Combination is
subject to the following conditions:

(a) approval being granted for the New Sandstorm Shares to be listed and posted for trading on the TSX
and the NYSE MKT;

(b) the Government of the Republic of Côte d’Ivoire, acting through its relevant department or agency,
either confirming, on terms reasonably satisfactory to Sandstorm, that no regulatory consents are
required for the indirect change of control of Awalé SARL and/or Srika Gold or, if any such consents
are required, the Government of the Republic of Côte d’Ivoire, acting through its relevant department
or agency, giving the relevant consents on terms reasonably satisfactory to Sandstorm; and

(c) the passing of the Shareholder Resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

15. Cancellation of trading
Prior to the Scheme becoming Effective, applications will be made to the London Stock Exchange for the
cancellation of the trading in Mariana Shares on AIM immediately following the Effective Date, without seeking
the separate approval of the Mariana Shareholders under Rule 41 of the AIM Rules.

Prior to the Scheme becoming Effective, Sandstorm intends to procure the making of an application to the
TSXV by Mariana for the delisting of the Mariana Shares. Following the Effective Date, the Mariana Shares
will be delisted from the TSXV (anticipated to be effective on the Business Day following the Effective Date).

On the basis of the indicative timetable set out on page 16 of this document, the last day of dealings in, and
registrations of transfers of, Mariana Shares is expected to be at 7.00 a.m. (London time) on 23 June 2017,
following which the Mariana Shares will be temporarily suspended from trading on AIM and TSXV. No
transfers of Mariana Shares will be registered after that time and date.
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Following the AIM Cancellation and TSXV delisting of the Mariana Shares, Mariana Shares will not be quoted
on any publicly traded market in the United Kingdom or elsewhere. Mariana will also make an application to
certain securities commissions to cease to be a reporting issuer in Canada.

Sandstorm expects to make an application on behalf of Mariana to certain securities commissions to cease
Mariana from being a reporting issuer in Canada.

On the Effective Date, Mariana will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sandstorm and:

● share certificates in respect of Scheme Shares held in certificated form on both the Guernsey Register
and the Canadian Register will be cancelled and share certificates for such Scheme Shares will cease
to be valid and should be destroyed (and not be returned to the receiving agent or exchange agent);
and

● each holding of Scheme Shares credited to any stock account in CREST or CDS will be disabled and
all Scheme Shares will be removed from CREST and CDS in due course.

16. Settlement
Subject to the Scheme becoming Effective, settlement of the consideration to which any Scheme
Shareholder is entitled thereunder will be effected within 14 days of the Effective Date in the manner set out
below.

Save with the consent of the Panel, settlement of the consideration to which any Scheme Shareholder is
entitled under the Scheme will be implemented in full in accordance with the terms set out in the Scheme
and this Part Two (Explanatory Statement) without regard to any lien, right of set-off, counterclaim or other
analogous right to which Sandstorm may otherwise be, or claim to be, entitled against any Scheme
Shareholder.

All documents and remittances sent in accordance with this paragraph 16 will be sent at the risk of the
person(s) entitled thereto.

16.1 Settlement of cash consideration
Fractional cash entitlements will be rounded down to the nearest whole penny (if paid in Pounds
Sterling) or cents (if paid in Canadian Dollars).

(A) Scheme Shares held in certificated form

Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in certificated
form:

● on the Guernsey Register (that is, not in CREST), settlement of the cash consideration to
which such Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Pounds Sterling by cheque
drawn on a branch of a UK clearing bank; or

● on the Canadian Register (that is, not in CDS), settlement of the cash consideration to which
such Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Canadian Dollars by cheque drawn
on a branch of a Canadian clearing bank.

The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments from Pounds Sterling into Canadian
dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its capacity
as foreign exchange service provider to Sandstorm, on the date the funds are converted (which
shall be as close as reasonably possible to the point of settlement), which rate will be based on
the prevailing market rate on the date the funds are converted. The risk of any fluctuations in
such rates, including risks relating to the particular date and time at which funds are converted,
will be solely borne by Scheme Shareholders. Computershare Trust Company of Canada will act
as principal in such currency conversion transactions.

Payments made by cheque will be payable to the holders of Scheme Shares concerned. Cheques
will be despatched not later than the fourteenth day following the Effective Date to the person
entitled thereto at the address as appearing in the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme
Record Time or in accordance with any special standing instructions regarding communications
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(or, in the case of joint holders, to the address of that joint holder whose name stands first in the
register in respect of such joint holding).

Cheques will be despatched by first class post, if the registered address is located in the same
country as that in which despatch is occurring, or by international standard (formerly airmail) post,
if the registered address is not in the same country. None of Mariana, Sandstorm or any of their
respective agents shall be responsible for any loss or delay in the transmission of cheques sent
in this way, and such cheques shall be sent at the risk of the person entitled thereto.

(B) Scheme Shares held in uncertificated form

Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in
uncertificated form:

● on the Guernsey Register (that is, in CREST), settlement of the cash consideration to which
such Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Pounds Sterling by Sandstorm
procuring the creation of an assured payment obligation in favour of the appropriate CREST
account through which the relevant Mariana Shareholder holds such uncertificated Scheme
Shares in respect of the Cash Consideration due to him;

● on the Canadian Register (that is, in CDS), settlement of the cash consideration to which
such Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Canadian dollars by electronic
transfer through CDS. 

The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments from pounds Sterling into Canadian
Dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its capacity
as foreign exchange service provider to Sandstorm, on the date the funds are converted (which
shall be as close as reasonably possible to the point of settlement), which rate will be based on
the prevailing market rate on the date the funds are converted. The risk of any fluctuations in
such rates, including risks relating to the particular date and time at which funds are converted,
will be solely borne by Scheme Shareholders. Computershare Trust Company of Canada will act
as principal in such currency conversion transactions.

Sandstorm reserves the right to pay all or any part of the cash consideration referred to above to
all or any Mariana Shareholder(s) who holds Scheme Shares in uncertificated form at the Scheme
Record Time in the manner referred to in paragraph (A) above if, for any reason, it wishes to do
so.

16.2 Settlement of New Sandstorm Share consideration
Fractional entitlements to New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued pursuant to the
Combination to Scheme Shareholders but entitlements of Scheme Shareholders will instead by
rounded down to the nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares.

All mandates, where possible, relating to the payment of dividends and other instructions (or deemed
instructions, including communication preference) given (or deemed given) to Mariana by Mariana
Shareholders in force at the Effective Time relating to holdings of Mariana Shares will, where possible,
unless and until amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date to be effective mandates
or instructions in respect of the corresponding New Sandstorm Shares.

(A) Scheme Shares held in certificated form

Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in certificated
form:

● on the Guernsey Register (that is, not in CREST), Sandstorm will procure that New
Sandstorm Shares are issued to such Scheme Shareholder in certificated form; or

● on the Canadian Register (that is, not in CDS), Sandstorm will procure that New Sandstorm
Shares are issued to such Scheme Shareholder in certificated form.

Definitive certificates for the New Sandstorm Shares will be despatched not later than the
fourteenth day following the Effective Date to the person entitled thereto at the address as
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appearing in the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme Record Time or in accordance
with any special standing instructions regarding communications (or, in the case of joint holders,
to the address of that joint holder whose name stands first in the register in respect of such joint
holding).

Definitive certificates for the New Sandstorm Shares will be despatched by first class post, if the
registered address is located in the same country as that in which despatch is occurring, or by
international standard (formerly airmail) post, if the registered address is not in the same country.
None of Mariana, Sandstorm or any of their respective agents shall be responsible for any loss
or delay in the transmission of new definitive share certificates sent in this way, and such new
definitive share certificates shall be sent at the risk of the person entitled thereto.

Temporary documents of title will not be issued pending the despatch by post of the new definitive
share certificates. Transfers of New Sandstorm Shares will not be possible prior to the issue of
the new definitive share certifiates.

(B) Scheme Shares held in uncertificated form

Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in
uncertificated form:

● on the Guernsey Register (that is, in CREST), Sandstorm will procure that the appropriate
CREST stock account is credited with Sandstorm CDIs in respect of such Scheme
Shareholder’s entitlement to New Sandstorm Shares; or

● on the Canadian Register (that is, in CDS), Sandstorm will procure that Computershare
Canada credits the appropriate CDS account with the New Sandstorm Shares to which
such Scheme Shareholder is entitled under the Scheme.

If any Scheme Shareholder holding Sandstorm CDIs subsequently wishes to settle a trade made
in the underlying New Sandstorm Shares on the TSX or NYSE MKT, they will need to cancel their
Sandstorm CDIs by notifying CREST to transfer the underlying New Sandstorm Shares to a CDS
(for trading on TSX) or DTC (for trading on the NYSE)  participant account. A holder of Sandstorm
CDIs may settle ‘‘off market’’ trades in Sandstorm CDIs between CREST participant accounts in
the CREST system.

17. Taxation
Your attention is drawn to Part Five (Taxation) of this document which contains a summary of certain UK,
Guernsey and Canadian tax consequences of the implementation of the Combination.

Mariana Shareholders who are in any doubt about their taxation position, or who are subject to
taxation in a jurisdiction outside the UK, Guernsey or Canada are advised to consult an
appropriate independent professional tax adviser immediately.

18. Effect of the Combination on the Mariana Employee Equity Plans
Please see paragraph 8 of Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana) for details of the
effect of the Combination on the Mariana Employee Equity Plans.
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19. Effect of the Combination on the Mariana Warrants
Please see paragraph 9 of Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana) for details of the
effect of the Combination on the Mariana Warrants.

20. Overseas Shareholders
This document has been prepared for the purposes of complying with English law, Guernsey law, certain
applicable Canadian securities laws, the AIM Rules and the Code and the information disclosed may not be
the same as that which would have been disclosed if this document had been prepared in accordance with
the laws and regulations of any other jurisdiction.

It is the responsibility of any person into whose possession this document comes to satisfy themselves as
to the full observance of the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in connection with the Combination including
the obtaining of any governmental, exchange control or other consents which may be required and/or
compliance with other necessary formalities which are required to be observed and the payment of any
issue, transfer or other taxes or levies in such jurisdiction.

Persons receiving this document and all documents relating to the Combination (including custodians,
nominees and trustees) must not post or otherwise distribute or send them in, into or from a Restricted
Jurisdiction where to do so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction.

This document does not constitute an offer to sell or issue or the solicitation of an offer to buy or subscribe
for shares in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is unlawful.

Overseas holders of Mariana Shares should also refer to the section of this document entitled “IMPORTANT
NOTICES” beginning on page 3 of this document.

Without limitation to the statements above, overseas Mariana Shareholders should consult their own legal
and tax advisers with respect to the legal and tax consequences of the Scheme in their particular
circumstances.

If, in respect of any Overseas Shareholder, Sandstorm is advised that the issue of New Sandstorm Shares
or Sandstorm CDIs would or might infringe the laws of any jurisdiction outside the United Kingdom and
Guernsey, or would or might require Sandstorm to obtain any governmental or other consent or effect any
registration, filing or other formality with which, in the opinion of Sandstorm, it would be unable to comply
or which it regards as unduly onerous, then Sandstorm may in its sole discretion either: (a) determine that
no New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall be issued to such Overseas Shareholder, but that
instead those New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall be issued to a nominee appointed by
Sandstorm, as trustee for such Overseas Shareholder, on terms that they shall be sold on behalf of such
Overseas Shareholder as soon as reasonably practicable following the Effective Date, with the net proceeds
of sale (after deduction of all expenses and commissions, including any amount in respect of value added
tax payable thereon) being remitted to the Overseas Shareholder concerned (by sending a cheque in Pounds
Sterling) as soon as reasonably practicable after the sale at the risk of such Overseas Shareholder; or (b)
determine that such New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall be sold on behalf of such Overseas
Shareholder, in which event the New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall be issued to such Overseas
Shareholder and Sandstorm shall appoint a person to procure that those shares be sold as soon as
reasonably practicable following the Effective Date, with the net proceeds of sale (after deduction of all
expenses and commissions, including any amount in respect of value added tax payable thereon) being
remitted to the Overseas Shareholder concerned (by sending a cheque in Pounds Sterling) as soon as
reasonably practicable after the sale at the risk of such Overseas Shareholder.

Canadian Securities Law Matters
The distribution of the New Sandstorm Shares pursuant to the Scheme will constitute a distribution of
securities that is exempt from the prospectus requirements of Canadian securities legislation and is exempt
from or otherwise is not subject to the registration requirements under applicable securities legislation. The
New Sandstorm Shares received pursuant to the Scheme will not be legended and may be resold through
registered dealers in each of the provinces of Canada provided that (i) the trade is not a “control distribution”
as defined in National Instrument 45-102 “Resale of Securities” of the Canadian Securities Administrators,
(ii) no unusual effort is made to prepare the market or to create a demand for Sandstorm Shares, (iii) no
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extraordinary commission or consideration is paid to a person in respect of such sale, and (iv) if the selling
security holder is an insider or officer of Sandstorm, as the case may be, the selling security holder has no
reasonable grounds to believe that Sandstorm, as the case may be, is in default of applicable Canadian
securities laws.

United States Securities Law Matters
The following discussion is only a general overview of certain requirements of U.S. federal Securities Laws
that may be applicable to the holders of Sandstorm Shares in connection with the Combination. The
discussion is based in part on non-binding interpretations and no-action letters provided by the staff of the
SEC, which do not have the force of law. All holders of such securities are urged to obtain legal advice to
ensure that the resale of such securities complies with applicable U.S. federal and state Securities Laws. All
holders of Sandstorm Shares who are in the U.S. are urged to consult with their own counsel with respect
to the Scheme and to ensure that any subsequent resale or exercise, as applicable, of securities issued or
distributed to them under the Scheme complies with U.S. Securities Laws.

Exemption from U.S. Registration

The New Sandstorm Shares to be received by Scheme Shareholders in exchange for their Mariana Shares
pursuant to the Combination have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any
applicable securities laws of any state of the United States, and such securities will be issued in reliance
upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Section 3(a)(10)
thereof on the basis of the approval of the Court, which has been informed of the intention to rely on such
exemption. Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act exempts the issuance of securities issued in exchange for
one or more bona fide outstanding securities, from the registration requirements of the Securities Act where,
among other matters, the terms and conditions of such issuance and exchange have been approved by a
court of competent jurisdiction that is expressly authorized by law to grant such approval, after a hearing
upon the fairness of the substantive and procedural terms and conditions of such issuance and exchange
at which all persons to whom the securities will be issued have the right to appear and receive timely and
adequate notice thereof. The Guernsey Court is authorised to and will conduct a hearing at which the
substantive and procedural fairness of the terms and conditions of the Scheme will be considered. All
Sandstorm Shareholders are entitled to appear and be heard at this hearing, provided that they satisfy the
applicable conditions set forth by the Guernsey Court. The sanction of the Guernsey Court will, if granted
after consideration of the substantive and procedural fairness of the Combination to the Sandstorm
Shareholders, constitute a basis for the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
pursuant to Section 3(a)(10) with respect to the New Sandstorm Shares to be received by Scheme
Shareholders in exchange for their Mariana Shares pursuant to the Combination.

Resales of New Sandstorm Shares in the United States after the Scheme becomes Effective

The New Sandstorm Shares to be received by Scheme Shareholders upon completion of the Combination
may be resold without restriction under the Securities Act, except in respect of resales by persons who are
“affiliates” (within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act) of Sandstorm at the time of such resale,
within 90 days before such proposed resale, at the time of the Combination or within 90 days of the
Combination. Persons who may be deemed to be affiliates of an issuer generally include individuals or entities
that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with, the issuer, whether through the ownership
of voting securities, by contract or otherwise, and generally include executive officers and directors of the
issuer as well as holder of more than 10 per cent. of the outstanding shares of the issuer. Any resale of such
New Sandstorm Shares by such an affiliate (or former affiliate) may be subject to the registration requirements
of the Securities Act, absent an exemption therefrom. Scheme Shareholders who are affiliates of Sandstorm
solely by virtue of their status as an officer or director of Mariana may sell their Mariana Shares outside the
United States in compliance with Rule 904 of Regulation S under the Securities Act.

In general, under Rule 144 under the Securities Act, a person who is an affiliate of Sandstorm at the time of
the Combination or within 90 days of the Combination or at the time of the resale or within 90 days before
the proposed resale in question may be entitled to sell in the United States, during any three-month period,
the New Sandstorm Shares that such person received in connection with the Combination, provided that
the number of such shares sold does not exceed the greater of one percent of the then outstanding
securities of such class or, if such securities are listed on a United States securities exchange, the average
weekly trading volume of such securities during the four-week period preceding the date of sale, subject to
specified restrictions on manner of sale, notice requirements, aggregation rules and the availability of current
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public information about Sandstorm. Persons who became affiliates of Sandstorm after the Combination
will continue to be subject to the sale restrictions described in this paragraph with regard to their affiliated
issuer’s securities for so long as they continue to be affiliates of Sandstorm and for 90 days after the
termination of such affiliation and will be required to file a Form 144 with the SEC if such seller intends to sell
during any three-month period more than 5,000 shares or securities with a value in excess of $50,000.
Because Sandstorm is a former “shell company” as defined by the SEC, in order for shareholders of
Sandstorm to utilize Rule 144, Sandstorm must, at the time of the resale pursuant to Rule 144, be subject
to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, and have filed all reports and other
materials required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as applicable, during the preceding
12 months.

A person who is an affiliate of Sandstorm or who was an affiliate of Sandstorm within 90 days prior to the
contemplated resale transaction, may be able, under the Securities Act, to resell the New Sandstorm Shares
issued to them pursuant to the Combination in an “offshore transaction” in accordance with Rule 904 of
Regulation S, provided that: (a) he or she is an affiliate of Sandstorm at the time of the resale transaction
solely by virtue of having a position as an officer or director of Sandstorm; (b) no “directed selling efforts” as
defined in Regulation S are made in the United States by the seller, an affiliate of the seller or any person
acting on their behalf; and (c) the conditions imposed by Regulation S under the Securities Act for “offshore
transactions” are satisfied. An “offshore transaction” includes a transaction executed using the facilities of
the TSX or TSXV, provided the offer of the securities is not made to a person in the United States, and
neither the seller nor any person acting on the seller’s behalf knows the transaction has been prearranged
with a buyer in the United States. In addition, in the case of an offer or sale of securities by an officer or
director of Sandstorm who is an affiliate of Sandstorm solely by virtue of holding such position, no selling
concession, fee or other remuneration may be paid in connection with the offer or sale other than the usual
and customary broker’s commission that would be received by a person executing such transaction as
agent.

21. Action to be taken
Actions to be taken by Mariana Shareholders
The Scheme will require the approval of the Scheme Shareholders at the Guernsey Court Meeting to be
held at the offices of Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HB at 10.00 a.m. on
16 June 2017. The approval required at the Guernsey Court Meeting is that those voting to approve the
Scheme must:

(A) represent a majority in number of those Scheme Shareholders; and

(B) represent at least 75 per cent. in value of the Scheme Shares held by those Scheme Shareholders,
present and voting in person or by proxy.

The Scheme requires the sanction of the Guernsey Court which will follow a hearing at which all Scheme
Shareholders may be present and be heard in person or through representation to support or oppose the
sanctioning of the Scheme.

Implementation of the Scheme will also require approval of the Shareholder Resolutions at the Extraordinary
General Meeting to be held on 16 June 2017 at 10.15 a.m., or as soon as practicable thereafter as the
Guernsey Court Meeting has been concluded. If the Scheme becomes Effective it will be binding on
all holders of Scheme Shares irrespective of whether or not they attended or voted at the
Guernsey Court Meeting or the Extraordinary General Meeting.
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22. Further information
The terms of the Scheme are set out in full in Part Four (The Scheme of Arrangement) of this document.
Your attention is also drawn to the further information contained (or incorporated by reference) in this
document which forms part of this Explanatory Statement and, in particular, Part Six (Financial Information)
of this document. Documents published and available for inspection are listed in paragraph 17 of Part Seven
(Additional Information) of this document. Please note that the information contained in the Explanatory
Statement is in summary form only and reading the Explanatory Statement is not a substitute for reading
the remainder of this document.

Yours faithfully,

for and on behalf of RFC Ambrian Limited

Stephen Allen
Executive Director
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PART THREE:

CONDITIONS AND CERTAIN FURTHER TERMS OF THE SCHEME
AND TO THE COMBINATION

A. Conditions of the Combination
The Combination will be conditional upon the Scheme becoming unconditional and becoming Effective,
subject to the provisions of the Code, by no later than the Long Stop Date or such later date (if any) as
Sandstorm and Mariana may, with the consent of the Panel, agree and (if required) the Guernsey Court may
allow.

Scheme Approval
1. The Scheme will be conditional upon:

(a) approval of the Scheme by a majority in number representing at least 75 per cent. in value of the
Scheme Shareholders (or the relevant class or classes thereof, if applicable) present and voting,
either in person or by proxy, at the Guernsey Court Meeting and at any separate class meeting
which may be required by the Guernsey Court or at any adjournment of any such meeting not
later than the 22nd day after the date for which the Guernsey Court Meeting is originally convened
(or such later date, if any, as Sandstorm and Mariana may agree and the Guernsey Court may
allow).

(b) all resolutions necessary to approve and implement the Scheme and to approve certain related
matters being duly passed by the requisite majority or majorities at the Extraordinary General
Meeting or at any adjournment of that meeting not later than the 22nd day after the date for which
the Extraordinary General Meeting is originally convened (or such later date, if any, as Sandstorm
and Mariana may agree and the Guernsey Court may allow); and

(c) the sanction of the Scheme with or without modification (but subject to any such modification
being acceptable to Sandstorm and Mariana) by the Guernsey Court, and the Guernsey Court
Hearing to sanction the Scheme being held on or before the 22nd day after the expected date of
the Guernsey Court Hearing as set out in this document (or such later date as Sandstorm and
Mariana may agree and the Guernsey Court may allow).

In addition, Sandstorm and Mariana have agreed that, subject as stated in Section B below, the Combination
will be conditional upon the following matters and, accordingly, the necessary actions to make the Scheme
Effective will not be taken unless such conditions (as amended, if appropriate) have been satisfied or, where
relevant, waived.

Regulatory clearances
2. The Government of the Republic of Côte d’Ivoire, acting through its relevant department or agency,

either confirming, on terms reasonably satisfactory to Sandstorm, that no regulatory consents are
required for the indirect change of control of Awalé Resources SARL and/or Srika Gold or, if any such
consents are required, the Government of the Republic of Côte d’Ivoire, acting through its relevant
department or agency, giving the relevant consents on terms reasonably satisfactory to Sandstorm.

Listing of New Sandstorm Shares
3. Conditional approval or approval being granted for the New Sandstorm Shares to be listed and posted

for trading on the TSX and the NYSE MKT.

General third party clearances
4. Excluding any filings required for the purposes of the confirmation or consent referred to in paragraph 2

(to which only paragraph 2 shall apply), all necessary filings or applications, including stock exchange
applications, having been made, all necessary waiting and other time periods (including any extensions
of such waiting and other time periods) under any applicable legislation or regulation of any relevant
jurisdiction having expired, lapsed or been terminated (as appropriate) and all statutory or regulatory
obligations in any relevant jurisdiction deemed required having been complied with, in each case in
connection with the Combination or the acquisition by any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group of
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any shares or other securities in, or control of, any member of the Wider Mariana Group, where the
direct consequence of a failure to make such a notification or filing or to wait for the expiry, lapse, or
termination of any such waiting or time period would be unlawful in any relevant jurisdiction or which
is material in the context of the Wider Sandstorm Group or the Wider Mariana Group, in each case,
taken as a whole, or would be material in the context of the Combination.

5. All Authorisations, including stock exchange approvals, which are necessary or are reasonably
considered necessary by Sandstorm in any relevant jurisdiction for or in respect of the Scheme or
Combination or the acquisition or proposed acquisition of any shares or other securities in, or control
or management of, Mariana or any other member of the Wider Mariana Group by any member of the
Wider Sandstorm Group or the carrying on by any member of the Wider Mariana Group of its business
having been obtained, in terms and in a form reasonably satisfactory to Sandstorm, from all appropriate
Third Parties or from any persons or bodies with whom any member of the Wider Mariana Group has
entered into contractual arrangements, in each case where the absence of such Authorisation would
or might reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Mariana Group taken as a
whole and all such Authorisations remaining in full force and effect and there being no notice or
intimation of any intention to revoke, suspend, restrict, modify or not to renew any of the same.

6. Any resolution or resolutions of the independent Mariana Shareholders required to approve and
implement the Retention Arrangements being duly passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting in
accordance with Rule 16 of the Code.

7. Excluding in relation to the confirmation or consent referred to in paragraph 2 (to which only paragraph
2 shall apply), no Third Party having intervened (as defined below) and there not continuing to be
outstanding any statute, regulation or order of any Third Party, in each case which would or might
reasonably be expected to:

(a) make the Scheme or the Combination or, in each case, its implementation or the acquisition or
proposed acquisition by Sandstorm or any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group of any shares
or other securities in, or control or management of, Mariana or any member of the Wider Mariana
Group void, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, or otherwise directly or indirectly materially
restrain, prevent, prohibit, restrict or materially delay the same or impose additional conditions or
obligations with respect to the Scheme or the Combination or such acquisition, or otherwise
materially impede, challenge or interfere with the Scheme or Combination or such acquisition,
or require amendment to the terms of the Scheme or Combination or the acquisition or proposed
acquisition of any Mariana Shares or the acquisition of control or management of Mariana or the
Wider Mariana Group by Sandstorm or any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group;

(b) materially limit or delay, or impose any material limitations on, the ability of any member of the
Wider Sandstorm Group or any member of the Wider Mariana Group to acquire or to hold or to
exercise effectively, directly or indirectly, all or any rights of ownership in respect of shares or other
securities in, or to exercise voting or management control over, any member of the Wider Mariana
Group or any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group;

(c) require, prevent or materially delay the divestiture or materially alter the terms envisaged for any
proposed divestiture by any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group of any shares or other
securities in Mariana or of all or any portion of their respective businesses, assets or properties
or materially limit the ability of any of them to conduct any of their respective businesses or to
own or control any of their respective assets or properties or any part thereof;

(d) require any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group or of the Wider Mariana Group to acquire, or
to offer to acquire, any shares or other securities (or the equivalent) in any member of either group
owned by any third party;

(e) materially limit the ability of any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group or of the Wider Mariana
Group to conduct or integrate or co ordinate its business, or any part of it, with the businesses
or any part of the businesses of any other member of the Wider Sandstorm Group or of the Wider
Mariana Group; or

(f) otherwise materially adversely affect any or all of the business, assets, profits, financial or trading
position of any member of the Wider Mariana Group or of the Wider Sandstorm Group.
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Certain matters arising as a result of any arrangement, agreement, etc.
8. Except as Disclosed, there being no provision of any arrangement, agreement, licence, permit,

franchise or other instrument to which any member of the Wider Mariana Group is a party, or by or to
which any such member or any of its assets is or are or may be bound, entitled or subject or any
circumstance, which, in each case as a consequence of the Scheme or Combination or the acquisition
or proposed acquisition of any shares or other securities in, or control of, Mariana or any other member
of the Wider Mariana Group by any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group or otherwise, would be
expected to result in (in any case to an extent which would reasonably be expected to be material in
the context of the Mariana Group taken as a whole):

(a) any monies borrowed by or any other indebtedness or liabilities (actual or contingent) of, or any
grant available to, any member of the Wider Mariana Group being or becoming repayable or
capable of being declared repayable immediately or prior to its stated maturity date or repayment
date or the ability of any member of the Wider Mariana Group to borrow monies or incur any
indebtedness being withdrawn or inhibited or becoming capable of being withdrawn or inhibited;

(b) the creation or enforcement of any mortgage, charge or other security interest over the whole or
any part of the business, property, assets or interests of any member of the Wider Mariana Group
or any such mortgage, charge or other security interest (wherever created, arising or having arisen)
becoming enforceable;

(c) any such arrangement, agreement, licence, permit, franchise or instrument, or the rights, liabilities,
obligations or interests of any member of the Wider Mariana Group thereunder, being,
or becoming capable of being, terminated or adversely modified or affected or any adverse action
being taken or any obligation or liability arising thereunder;

(d) any asset or interest of any member of the Wider Mariana Group being or falling to be disposed
of or charged or ceasing to be available to any member of the Wider Mariana Group or any right
arising under which any such asset or interest could be required to be disposed of or could cease
to be available to any member of the Wider Mariana Group otherwise than in the ordinary course
of business;

(e) the creation of any liabilities (actual or contingent) by any member of the Wider Mariana Group
other than in the ordinary course of business;

(f) the rights, liabilities, obligations or interests of any member of the Wider Mariana Group under
any such arrangement, agreement, licence, permit, franchise or other instrument or the interests
or business of any such member in or with any other person, firm, company or body (or any
arrangement or arrangements relating to any such interests or business) being terminated or
adversely modified or affected; or

(g) the financial or trading position or the value of any member of the Wider Mariana Group being
prejudiced or adversely affected,

and no event having occurred which, under any provision of any such arrangement, agreement, licence,
permit or other instrument, would or would reasonably be expected to result in any of the events or
circumstances which are referred to in paragraphs (a) to (g) of this Condition 8 in any case to an extent
which would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the Mariana Group taken
as a whole.

Certain events occurring since 31 December 2016
9. Except as Disclosed, no member of the Wider Mariana Group having, since 31 December 2016:

(a) issued or agreed to issue, or authorised the issue of, additional shares of any class, or securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or rights, warrants or options to subscribe for
or acquire, any such shares or convertible securities or transferred or sold any shares out of
treasury, other than as between Mariana and wholly-owned subsidiaries of Mariana or any shares
issued or shares transferred from treasury upon the exercise of any Mariana Warrants or of any
Mariana Options;

(b) purchased or redeemed or repaid any of its own shares or other securities or reduced or made
any other change to any part of its share capital;

56

245087 Mariana pp054-pp061  16/05/2017  15:20  Page 56



(c) recommended, declared, paid or made any dividend or other distribution whether payable in cash
or otherwise or made any bonus issue (other than to Mariana or a wholly owned subsidiary of
Mariana);

(d) save for intra-Mariana Group transactions, made or authorised any change in its loan capital;

(e) save for intra-Mariana Group transactions, entered into, implemented or authorised the entry into,
any joint venture, asset or profit sharing arrangement, partnership or merged with, demerged or
acquired any body corporate, partnership or business or acquired or disposed of or transferred,
mortgaged, charged or created any security interest over any assets or any right, title or interest
in any assets (including shares in any undertaking and trade investments) or authorised the same
(in each case to an extent which would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the
context of the Mariana Group taken as a whole);

(f) issued or authorised the issue of, or made any change in or to, any debentures or (save for
intra-Mariana Group transactions) incurred or increased any indebtedness or liability (actual or
contingent) which in any case would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context
of the Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(g) entered into, varied, or authorised any material agreement, transaction, arrangement or
commitment (whether in respect of capital expenditure or otherwise) which:

(A) is of a long term, onerous or unusual nature or magnitude or which is reasonably likely to
involve an obligation of such nature or magnitude; or

(B) is likely to restrict the business of any member of the Wider Mariana Group; or

(C) is other than in the ordinary course of business,

(ii) and which would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the
Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(h) undertaken:

(i) a conversion or transfer under Part V of the Companies (Guernsey) Law;

(ii) an amalgamation under Part VI of the Companies (Guernsey) Law;

(iii) a migration under Part VII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law; or

(iv) an arrangement or reconstruction (other than the Scheme) under Part VIII of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law;

(i) taken any corporate action or had any legal proceedings instituted or threatened against it or
petition presented or order made for its winding-up (voluntarily or otherwise), dissolution or
reorganisation or for the appointment of a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, trustee
or similar officer of all or any material part of its assets and revenues or any analogous proceedings
in any jurisdiction or appointed any analogous person in any jurisdiction which in any case would
or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the Mariana Group taken as a
whole;

(j) been unable, or admitted in writing that it is unable, to pay its debts or having stopped or
suspended (or threatened to stop or suspend) payment of its debts generally or ceased or
threatened to cease carrying on all or a substantial part of its business;

(k) waived or compromised any claim otherwise than in the ordinary course of business which would
or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the Mariana Group taken as a
whole;

(l) made any alteration to its memorandum or articles of incorporation (in each case, other than in
connection with the Scheme);

(m) entered into, terminated or varied the terms of or made any offer (which remains open for
acceptance) to enter into or vary the terms of, any contract, agreement, commitment, transaction
or arrangement with any person employed by any member of the Wider Mariana Group, including
entering into any such arrangement which would result in any liability of any member of the Wider
Mariana Group to make any severance, termination, bonus or other payments to any of its
directors or other officers, which would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the
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context of the Combination or which would or might reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Wider Mariana Group;

(n) proposed, agreed to provide or modified the terms of any share option scheme, incentive scheme
or other benefit relating to the employment or termination of employment of any person employed
by the Wider Mariana Group; or

(o) other than with the consent of Sandstorm, no action having been taken or proposed by any member
of the Wider Mariana Group, or having been approved by Mariana Shareholders or consented to
by the Panel, which falls or would fall within or under Rule 21.1 of the Code or which otherwise
is or would be materially inconsistent with the implementation by Sandstorm of the Combination
on the basis contemplated as at the date of this document.

No adverse change, litigation or regulatory enquiry
10. Except as Disclosed, since 31 December 2016:

(a) there having been no adverse change or deterioration in the business, assets, financial or trading
positions or profit or prospects of any member of the Wider Mariana Group which in any case would
or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(b) no contingent or other liability of any member of the Wider Mariana Group having arisen or
become apparent or increased which in any case would or might reasonably be expected to be
material in the context of the Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(c) no litigation, arbitration proceedings, prosecution or other legal or regulatory proceedings to which
any member of the Wider Mariana Group is or may become a party (whether as plaintiff, defendant
or otherwise) and no investigation by any Third Party against or in respect of any member of the
Wider Mariana Group having been threatened, announced, implemented or instituted by or
against or remaining outstanding against or in respect of any member of the Wider Mariana Group
which in any such case might reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(d) no steps having been taken which are likely to result in the withdrawal, cancellation, termination
or modification of any licence held by any member of the Wider Mariana Group which is necessary
for the proper carrying on of its business and the withdrawal, cancellation, termination or
modification of which might reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Wider Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(e) (other than as a result of the Combination) no enquiry or investigation by, or complaint or reference
to, any Third Party having been threatened, announced, implemented, instituted by or against or
remaining outstanding against or in respect of any member of the Wider Mariana Group which in
any case would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the Mariana
Group taken as a whole; and

(f) no member of the Wider Mariana Group having conducted its business in breach of any applicable
laws and regulations which in any case would or might reasonably be expected to be material in
the context of the Mariana Group taken as a whole.

No discovery of certain matters
11. Except as Disclosed, Sandstorm not having discovered:

(a) that any financial or business or other information concerning the Wider Mariana Group disclosed
at any time by or on behalf of any member of the Wider Mariana Group, whether publicly, to any
member of the Wider Sandstorm Group or to any of their advisers or otherwise, is misleading or
contains any misrepresentation of fact or omits to state a fact necessary to make any information
contained therein not misleading to an extent which might reasonably be expected to be material
in the context of the Mariana Group taken as a whole;

(b) that any member of the Wider Mariana Group is subject to any liability (actual or contingent) which
would or might reasonably be expected to be material in the context of the Mariana Group taken
as a whole;

(c) any past or present member of the Wider Mariana Group has not complied in all material respects
with all applicable legislation, regulations or other requirements of any jurisdiction or any
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Authorisations relating to the use, treatment, storage, carriage, disposal, discharge, spillage,
release, leak or emission of any waste or hazardous substance or any substance likely to impair
the environment (including property) or harm human health or otherwise relating to environmental
matters or the health and safety of any person, or that there has otherwise been any such use,
treatment, handling, storage, transport, release, disposal, discharge, spillage, leak or emission
(whether or not this constituted a non compliance by any person with any legislation or regulations
and wherever the same may have taken place), which non-compliance would be likely to give
rise to any material liability including any penalty for non-compliance (whether actual or contingent)
or cost on the part of any member of the Wider Mariana Group;

(d) there is or is likely to be any material liability (actual or contingent) to make good, repair, reinstate
or clean up any property now or previously owned, occupied or made use of by any past or
present member of the Wider Mariana Group under any environmental legislation, regulation,
notice, circular or order of any government, governmental, quasi-governmental, state or local
government, supranational, statutory or other regulatory body, agency, court, association or any
other person or body in any jurisdiction;

(e) circumstances exist which would be reasonably likely to lead to any Third Party instituting, or
whereby any member of the Wider Sandstorm Group or any present or past member of the Wider
Mariana Group would be likely to be required to institute, an environmental audit or take any other
steps which would in any such case be reasonably likely to result in any liability (whether actual
or contingent) to improve, modify existing or install new plant, machinery or equipment or carry
out changes in the processes currently carried out or make good, remediate, repair, re-instate or
clean up any land or other asset currently or previously owned, occupied or made use of by any
past or present member of the Wider Mariana Group or by any person for which a member of
the Wider Mariana Group is or has been responsible or in which any such member may have or
previously have had or be deemed to have had any interest which is material in the context of the
Wider Mariana Group taken as a whole; or

(f) circumstances exist whereby a person would be likely to have any claim in respect of any product
or process of manufacture or materials used therein currently or previously manufactured sold or
carried out by any past or present member of the Wider Mariana Group which claim would be
likely, materially and adversely, to affect any member of the Wider Mariana Group to an extent
which is material in the context of the Wider Mariana Group taken as a whole.

Anti-corruption, sanctions and criminal property
12. Except as Disclosed, Sandstorm not having discovered that:

(a) any:

(A) past or present member, director, officer or employee of the Wider Mariana Group; or

(B) person that performs or has performed services on behalf of the Wider Mariana Group,

has at any time engaged in an activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence
under the UK Bribery Act 2010, the US Foreign Practices Act of 1977, The Corruption of Foreign
Public Officials Act (Canada) 1998, the Prevention of Corruption (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2003
of or any other applicable anti-corruption legislation, including paid or agree to pay any bribe
including any “inducement fee”, given or agreed to give any similar gift or benefit or paid or agreed
to pay a concealed bank account or fund to or for the account of, any customer, supplier,
governmental official or employee, representative of a political party, or other person for the
purpose of obtaining or retaining business;

(b) any asset of any member of the Wider Mariana Group constitutes criminal property as defined
by section 340(3) of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (but disregarding paragraph (b) of that
definition);

(c) any past or present member, director, officer or employee of the Wider Mariana Group, or any
other person for whom any such person may be liable or responsible, has engaged in any
business or made any investments in, or made any payments or assets available to or received
any funds or asset from:

(A) any government, entity, or individual with which US or Canadian or European Union persons
(or persons operating in those territories) are prohibited from engaging in activities, doing
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business or from receiving or making available funds or economic resources, by US,
Canadian or European Union laws or regulations, including the economic sanctions
administered by the United States Office of Foreign Assets Control or HM Treasury &
Customs; or

(B) any government, entity or individual targeted by any of the economic sanctions of the United
Nations, United States or the European Union or any of its member states; or

(d) a member of the Mariana Group has engaged in a transaction which would cause the Sandstorm
Group to be in breach of any law or regulation on completion of the Combination, including the
economic sanctions administered by the United States Office of Foreign Assets Control or HM
Treasury & Customs, or any government, entity or individual targeted by any of the economic
sanctions of the United Nations, United States or the European Union or any of its member states.

13. For the purpose of these Conditions:

(a) Authorisations means authorisations, orders, grants, recognitions, determinations, certificates,
confirmations, consents, licences, clearances, provisions and approvals;

(b) Third Party means any central bank, government, government department or governmental,
quasi-governmental, supranational, statutory, regulatory, environmental or investigative body,
authority (including any national or supranational anti-trust or merger control authority), court,
trade agency, stock exchange, association, institution or professional or environmental body or
any other person or body whatsoever in any relevant jurisdiction, including, for the avoidance of
doubt, the Panel; and

(c) a Third Party shall be regarded as having “intervened” if it has given notice to take, institute,
implement or threaten any action, proceeding, suit, investigation, enquiry or reference or made,
proposed or enacted any statute, regulation, decision or order or taken any measures or other
steps or required any action to be taken or information to be provided or otherwise having done
anything and “intervene” shall be construed accordingly.

B. Certain further terms of the Scheme and the Combination
1. Conditions 2 to 11 (inclusive) must be fulfilled, be determined by Sandstorm to be or remain satisfied

or (if capable of waiver) be waived by 11.59 p.m. on the date immediately preceding the date of the
Scheme Court Hearing, failing which the Scheme will lapse.

2. Notwithstanding the paragraph above and subject to the requirements of the Panel, Sandstorm
reserves the right in its sole discretion to waive all or any of Conditions 2 to 11 inclusive, in whole or in
part and to proceed with the Scheme Court Hearing prior to the fulfilment, satisfaction or waiver of
any of the Conditions 2 to 11 inclusive.

3. Sandstorm shall be under no obligation to waive (if capable of waiver), to determine to be or remain
satisfied or to treat as fulfilled any of Conditions 2 to 11 (inclusive) by a date earlier than the latest date
specified above for the fulfilment of that condition, notwithstanding that the other Conditions may at
such earlier date have been waived or fulfilled and that there are, at such earlier date, no circumstances
indicating that any Condition may not be capable of fulfilment.

4. Fractions of New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued to holders of Mariana Shares. Fractional
entitlements will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares. Fractional
entitlements of pence payable to holders of Mariana Shares under the Cash Consideration Amount
will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of pence.

5. Sandstorm reserves the right to elect to implement the Combination by way of a takeover offer in
compliance with the Code (which shall be an offer for the purposes of section 337 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law), subject to the Panel’s consent. In such event, such Offer will be implemented by
Sandstorm or a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sandstorm on the same terms and conditions (subject to
appropriate amendments, including (without limitation) an acceptance condition set at 90 per cent.
(or such other percentage (being more than 50 per cent.) as Sandstorm may decide (subject to the
Panel’s consent) of the shares to which such Offer relates) so far as applicable, as those which would
apply to the Scheme.
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6. If the Panel requires Sandstorm to make an offer for Mariana Shares under the provisions of Rule 9 of
the Code, Sandstorm may make such alterations to the Conditions as are necessary to comply with
the provisions of that Rule.

7. The Combination will be subject, inter alia, to the Conditions and certain further terms which are set
out in this Part Three (Conditions and Certain Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination)
and such further terms as may be required to comply with the provisions of the AIM Rules for
Companies and the provisions of the Code.

8. Mariana Shares will be acquired by Sandstorm fully paid and free from all liens, equitable interests,
charges, encumbrances and other third party rights of any nature whatsoever and together with all
rights attaching to them, including the right to receive and retain all dividends and distributions (if any)
declared, made or payable after the Announcement Date. If after the Announcement Date and prior to
the Effective Date, any dividend and/or other distribution and/or other return of value is declared, made
or paid or becomes payable in respect of Mariana Shares, Sandstorm reserves the right (without
prejudice to any right Sandstorm may have with the consent of the Panel, to invoke Condition 7(c) in
Part A of this Part Three (Conditions and Certain Further Terms of the Scheme and to the Combination)
of this document) to reduce the amount of Consideration payable for such Mariana Shares under the
terms of the Combination by an amount equivalent to such dividend, other distribution or return of
value.

9. The Scheme will be governed by the laws of the Island of Guernsey and be subject to the jurisdiction
of the Courts of Guernsey and to the conditions and further terms set out in the Announcement and
in this document. The Combination will be subject to the applicable requirements of the London Stock
Exchange, the PRA, the Guernsey Financial Services Commission, FSMA, the Code, the TSXV, the
TSX, applicable Canadian securities law and US federal securities law (except to the extent that
exemptive relief has been granted by the SEC).

10. Any persons who are subject to the laws of any jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom should
inform themselves about and observe any applicable requirements. Further information in relation to
Overseas Shareholders is contained in paragraph 20 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this
document.

11. Under Rule 13.5(a) of the Code, Sandstorm may not invoke a Condition so as to cause the Combination
not to proceed, to lapse or to be withdrawn unless the circumstances which give rise to the right to
invoke the Condition are of material significance to Sandstorm in the context of the Combination.
The Conditions contained in paragraph 1 above and, if applicable, any acceptance condition if the
Combination is implemented by means of an Offer, are not subject to this provision of the Code.

12. Each of the Conditions shall be regarded as a separate Condition and shall not be limited by reference
to any other Condition.

61

245087 Mariana pp054-pp061  16/05/2017  15:20  Page 61



PART FOUR:

THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

IN THE ROYAL COURT OF GUERNSEY

(ORDINARY DIVISION)

IN THE MATTER OF MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED

and

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES (GUERNSEY) LAW, 2008 (AS AMENDED)

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

(under Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended))

between

MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED

AND

THE HOLDERS OF THE SCHEME SHARES

(as hereinafter defined)

PRELIMINARY

Definitions
In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions bear the following
meanings:

“£”, “Pounds”, “Sterling”, “GBP” the lawful currency of the UK;
“pence” or “p”

“Business Day” a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday, public or bank holiday) on
which banks are generally open for business in London and
Guernsey;

“Canadian Register” the sub-register of members of Mariana held by Computershare
Canada in Canada as branch registrar and transfer agent;

“C$” or “Canadian Dollars” or the lawful currency of Canada;
“CAD”

“CDS” Canadian Depository for Securities;

“certificated form” or a share or other security which is not in uncertificated form (that is, 
“in certificated form” not in CREST or CDS);

“Code” the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers;

“Companies (Guernsey) Law” the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended);

“Computershare Canada” Computershare Investor Services Inc.;

“Computershare Guernsey” Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited;
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“Concert Parties” those persons who would be considered to be “acting in concert”
with Sandstorm for the purposes of the Code;

“CREST” the system for the paperless settlement of trades in securities and
the holding of uncertificated securities operated by Euroclear in
accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001
(SI 2001/3755) (as amended), which system is recognised pursuant
to the Regulations;

“Effective” the time that the order of the Guernsey Court is filed with the
Guernsey Registry;

“Effective Date” the date on which this Scheme becomes Effective in accordance
with its terms;

“Encumbrances” liens, equities, charges, security interests, encumbrances, options,
rights of pre-emption and any other third party rights and interests
of any nature;

“Euroclear” Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited;

“Excluded Shares” any Mariana Shares beneficially owned by Sandstorm or any
member of the Sandstorm Group;

“Extraordinary General Meeting” the extraordinary general meeting of Mariana convened in
connection with the Scheme;

“Guernsey” the Island of Guernsey;

“Guernsey Court” the Royal Court of Guernsey;

“Guernsey Court Hearing” the hearing by the Guernsey Court to sanction the Scheme under
Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law whereby the Guernsey
Court will consider the procedural and substantive fairness of the
terms and conditions of the Scheme at which Mariana Shareholders
have the right to appear;

“Guernsey Court Meeting” the meeting of the Scheme Shareholders convened by order of the
Guernsey Court pursuant to section 107 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the
Scheme with or without modification (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof);

“Guernsey Register” the sub-register of members of Mariana held by Computershare
Guernsey in Jersey;

“Guernsey Registry” the body authorised by the States of Guernsey to maintain various
registers as required under Guernsey legislation and operating under
the name Guernsey Registry;

“holder” a registered holder and includes any person entitled by transmission;

“Mariana” Mariana, a non-cellular company limited by shares incorporated in
Guernsey with registered number 44276 with its registered office at
Granite House, La Grande Rue, St Martin, Guernsey GY1 3RS;

“Mariana Registrars” Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited;

“Mariana Shareholders” holders of Mariana Shares;
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“Mariana Shares” ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the capital of Mariana;

“New Sandstorm Shares” the Sandstorm Shares which are to be issued pursuant to the
Scheme;

“Panel” the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers;

“Regulations” the Uncertificated Securities (Guernsey) Regulations, 2009 (GSI
2009/48);

“Relevant Holder” a holder of Scheme Shares at the Scheme Record Time;

“Sandstorm” Sandstorm Gold Ltd, a public company incorporated under the laws
of British Columbia, Canada;

“Sandstorm CDIs” Sandstorm Gold Ltd CREST Depository Interests;

“Sandstorm Group” Sandstorm, its parent undertakings and its and such parent
undertakings’ subsidiary undertakings;

“Shareholder Meetings” the Guernsey Court Meeting and the Extraordinary General Meeting,
and “Shareholder Meeting” means any of them;

“Scheme” this scheme of arrangement under Part VIII of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law in its present form or with or subject to any
modification, addition or condition which Mariana and Sandstorm
each agree and which is approved or imposed by the Guernsey Court;

“Scheme Document” this document dated 15 May 2017 to be sent by Mariana to Mariana
Shareholders and others containing, among other things, this
Scheme, an explanatory statement in compliance with Part VIII of
the Companies (Guernsey) Law, and the notices of the Shareholder
Meetings;

“Scheme Record Time” 5.00 p.m. on the second Business Day following the Guernsey Court
Hearing;

“Scheme Shareholders” the holders of Scheme Shares;

“Scheme Shares” all Mariana Shares which are:

(i) in issue at the date of the Scheme Document;

(ii) issued after the date of the Scheme Document but before the
Scheme Voting Record Time; and

(iii) issued at or after the Scheme Voting Record Time but before
the Scheme Record Time in respect of which the original or
any subsequent holders thereof are, or shall have agreed in
writing to be, bound by the Scheme,

in each case other than the Excluded Shares and any Mariana
Shares held as treasury shares;

“Scheme Voting Record Time” 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days before the date of the
Guernsey Court Meeting or, if the Guernsey Court Meeting is
adjourned, 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days before the day
of such adjourned meeting;
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“uncertificated form” or a share or other security recorded on the relevant register as being 
“in uncertificated form” held in uncertificated form in either (i) CREST, and title to which, by

virtue of the Regulations, may be transferred by means of CREST
or (ii) CDS.

References to clauses, sub-clauses and paragraphs are to clauses, sub-clauses and paragraphs of this
Scheme.

The issued share capital of Mariana as at the close of business on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable
date prior to the date of this Scheme) was 130,718,029 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence (excluding 190,250
ordinary shares held in treasury).

As at 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the date of this Scheme), Sandstorm and its
Concert Parties owned 9,889,906 Mariana Shares.

Sandstorm has agreed to appear by Counsel at the Guernsey Court Hearing and to undertake to the
Guernsey Court to be bound by the provisions of this Scheme and to execute and do or procure to be
executed and done all such documents, acts and things as may be necessary or desirable to be executed
or done by it or on its behalf for the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme.

1. Transfer of Scheme Shares
On the Effective Date Sandstorm shall acquire all the Scheme Shares fully paid up and free from all
Encumbrances and together with all rights attaching to them at the Effective Date or thereafter, including
voting rights and entitlement to all dividends and other distributions declared, paid or made by Mariana by
reference to a record date on or after the Effective Date.

For such purposes, the Scheme Shares shall be transferred to Sandstorm (and/or its nominee(s)) and to
give effect to such transfer any person may be appointed by Sandstorm as agent and will be authorised as
such agent on behalf of the relevant holder of Scheme Shares to execute and deliver as transferor a form
of transfer or other instrument or instruction of transfer or procure the transfer by means of CREST or CDS,
as the case may be, of such Scheme Shares and every form, instrument or instruction of transfer so
executed shall be effective as if it had been executed by the holder or holders of the Scheme Shares thereby
transferred.

2. Consideration for the transfer of the Scheme Shares
In consideration for the transfer of the Scheme Shares to Sandstorm as provided in clause 1 of this Scheme,
Sandstorm shall, subject as hereinafter provided, procure that each Scheme Shareholder whose name
appears in the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme Record Time will receive the following
consideration:

for each Scheme Share 0.2573 New Sandstorm Shares; and
28.75 pence in cash

Fractional entitlements to New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued pursuant to the Combination
to Scheme Shareholders but entitlements of Scheme Shareholders will instead be rounded down to the
nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares. Fractional entitlements of pence payable to holders of
Mariana Shares under the Cash Consideration Amount will be rounded down to the nearest whole number
of pence.

The New Sandstorm Shares to be issued and delivered pursuant to this clause 2 shall be fully paid, shall
rank pari passu in all respects with Sandstorm Shares in issue on the Effective Date and shall be entitled to
dividends and other distributions (if any) declared or paid by Sandstorm by reference to a record date on or
after the Effective Date but not otherwise. The New Sandstorm Shares shall be issued free from all liens,
equities, charges, encumbrances and other interests whatsoever.

The provisions of this clause 2 will be subject to any prohibitions or conditions imposed by law or regulation.
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3. Overseas Shareholders
Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, if, in respect of any Scheme Shareholder with a registered
address in a jurisdiction outside the UK, or whom Sandstorm or Mariana reasonably believe to be a citizen,
national or resident of a jurisdiction outside the UK, Sandstorm or Mariana is advised that the allotment
and/or issue of New Sandstorm Shares would or may infringe the laws of such jurisdiction or would or may
require Sandstorm or Mariana to comply with any governmental or other consent or any registration, filing
or formality with which Sandstorm or Mariana, in their opinion, is unable to comply or ensure compliance
with or which Sandstorm or Mariana regards as unduly onerous, Sandstorm may, in its sole discretion,
either:

● determine that the relevant New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall be sold, in which event
the New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall be issued for the account of such Scheme
Shareholder and Sandstorm shall appoint a person to be authorised on behalf of such Scheme
Shareholder to procure that any New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs in respect of which
Sandstorm or Mariana have made such determination shall, as soon as practicable following the
Effective Date, be sold; or

● determine that such New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs shall not be issued for the account
of such Scheme Shareholder but shall instead be issued to a nominee for such Scheme Shareholder
appointed by Sandstorm on terms that the nominee shall, as soon as practicable following the Effective
Date, sell the New Sandstorm Shares or Sandstorm CDIs so issued.

Any sale pursuant to the above shall be carried out at the best price which can reasonably be obtained at
the time of sale and the net proceeds of such sale (after the deduction of all expenses and commissions
incurred in connection with such sale, including any value added tax payable on the proceeds of sale) shall
be paid to such Scheme Shareholder by sending a cheque or creating an assured payment obligation in
accordance with the provisions of this document.

To give effect to any sale as described above, the person appointed by Sandstorm shall be authorised as
attorney and agent on behalf of the Scheme Shareholder concerned, and the nominee appointed by
Sandstorm shall be authorised, to execute and deliver as transferor a form of transfer or other instrument
or instruction of transfer and to give such instructions and to do all other things which he may consider
necessary or expedient in connection with such sale. In the absence of bad faith or wilful default, neither
Sandstorm nor Mariana or their respective directors, officers, advisers or agents or the person or nominee
so appointed shall have any liability for any loss or damage arising as a result of the timing or terms of such
sale.

4. Cancellation of share certificates and CREST and CDS entitlements
With effect from and including the Effective Date:

(A) all certificates representing Scheme Shares shall cease to have effect as documents of title to the
Scheme Shares comprised therein and every holder of Scheme Shares shall be bound at the request
of Sandstorm to deliver up their share certificate(s) to Sandstorm (or to any person appointed by
Sandstorm to receive the same), or, as it may direct, to destroy the same;

(B) each holding of Scheme Shares credited to any stock account in CREST or CDS will be disabled and
all Scheme Shares will be removed from CREST and CDS in due course; and

(C) appropriate entries shall be made in the register of members of Mariana on the Effective Date to reflect
the transfer pursuant to Clause 1.

5. Settlement
As soon as practicable (and in any event not later than 14 days) after the Effective Date, Sandstorm shall
issue such New Sandstorm Shares as are required to be issued by it, and shall pay such cash consideration
as is required to be paid by it, to give effect to this Scheme to the persons respectively entitled thereto, such
consideration to be settled as set out in this clause 5 but subject to clause 3 of this Scheme.

Settlement of the consideration shall be effected as follows:
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Cash consideration
(A) Fractional cash entitlements will be rounded down to the nearest whole penny (if paid in Pounds

Sterling) or cents (if paid in Canadian Dollars).

Scheme Shares held in certificated form

(B) Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in certificated form:

(i) on the Guernsey Register (that is, not in CREST), settlement of the cash consideration to which
such Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Pounds Sterling by cheque drawn on a
branch of a UK clearing bank; or

(ii) on the Canadian Register (that is, not in CDS), settlement of the cash consideration to which
such Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Canadian Dollars by cheque drawn on a
branch of a Canadian clearing bank. The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments
from Pounds Sterling into Canadian Dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust
Company of Canada, in its capacity as foreign exchange service provider to Sandstorm, on the
date the funds are converted (which shall be as close as reasonably possible to the point of
settlement), which rate will be based on the prevailing market rate on the date the funds are
converted. The risk of any fluctuations in such rates, including risks relating to the particular date
and time at which funds are converted, will be solely borne by Scheme Shareholders.
Computershare Trust Company of Canada will act as principal in such currency conversion
transactions.

(C) Payments made by cheque will be payable to the holders of Scheme Shares concerned. Cheques will
be despatched not later than the fourteenth day following the Effective Date to the person entitled
thereto at the address as appearing in the register of members of Mariana at the Scheme Record Time
or in accordance with any special standing instructions regarding communications (or, in the case of
joint holders, to the address of that joint holder whose name stands first in the register in respect of
such joint holding).

(D) Cheques will be despatched by first class post, if the registered address is located in the same country
as that in which despatch is occurring, or by international standard (formerly airmail) post, if the
registered address is not in the same country. None of Mariana, Sandstorm or any of their respective
agents shall be responsible for any loss or delay in the transmission of cheques sent in this way, and
such cheques shall be sent at the risk of the person entitled thereto.

Scheme Shares held in uncertificated form

(F) Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in uncertificated
form:

(i) on the Guernsey Register (that is, in CREST), settlement of the cash consideration to which such
Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Pounds Sterling by Sandstorm procuring the
creation of an assured payment obligation in favour of the appropriate CREST account through
which the relevant Mariana Shareholder holds such uncertificated Scheme Shares in respect of
the Cash Consideration due to him;

(ii) on the Canadian Register (that is, in CDS), settlement of the cash consideration to which such
Scheme Shareholder is entitled will be effected in Canadian Dollars by electronic transfer through
CDS. The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments from Pounds Sterling into
Canadian Dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its
capacity as foreign exchange service provider to Sandstorm, on the date the funds are converted
(which shall be as close as reasonably possible to the point of settlement), which rate will be
based on the prevailing market rate on the date the funds are converted. The risk of any
fluctuations in such rates, including risks relating to the particular date and time at which funds
are converted, will be solely borne by Scheme Shareholders. Computershare Trust Company of
Canada will act as principal in such currency conversion transactions.

(G) Sandstorm reserves the right to pay all or any part of the cash consideration referred to above to all or
any Mariana Shareholder(s) who holds Scheme Shares in uncertificated form at the Scheme Record
Time in the manner referred to in paragraph 5(B) above if, for any reason, it wishes to do so.
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New Sandstorm Share consideration
(H) Fractional entitlements to New Sandstorm Shares will not be allotted or issued pursuant to the

Combination to Scheme Shareholders but entitlements of Scheme Shareholders will instead by
rounded down to the nearest whole number of New Sandstorm Shares.

(I) All mandates, where possible, relating to the payment of dividends and other instructions (or deemed
instructions, including communication preference) given (or deemed given) to Mariana by Mariana
Shareholders in force at the Effective Time relating to holdings of Mariana Shares will, where possible,
unless and until amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date to be effective mandates
or instructions in respect of the corresponding New Sandstorm Shares.

Scheme Shares held in certificated form

(J) Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in certificated form:

(i) on the Guernsey Register (that is, not in CREST), Sandstorm will procure that New Sandstorm
Shares are issued to such Scheme Shareholder in certificated form; or

(ii) on the Canadian Register (that is, not in CDS), Sandstorm will procure that New Sandstorm
Shares are issued to such Scheme Shareholder in certificated form.

(K) Definitive certificates for the New Sandstorm Shares will be despatched not later than the fourteenth
day following the Effective Date to the person entitled thereto at the address as appearing in the register
of members of Mariana at the Scheme Record Time or in accordance with any special standing
instructions regarding communications (or, in the case of joint holders, to the address of that joint
holder whose name stands first in the register in respect of such joint holding).

(L) Definitive certificates for the New Sandstorm Shares will be despatched by first class post, if the
registered address is located in the same country as that in which despatch is occurring, or by
international standard (formerly airmail) post, if the registered address is not in the same country. None
of Mariana, Sandstorm or any of their respective agents shall be responsible for any loss or delay in
the transmission of new definitive share certificates sent in this way, and such new definitive share
certificates shall be sent at the risk of the person entitled thereto.

(M) Temporary documents of title will not be issued pending the despatch by post of the new definitive
share certificates. Transfers of New Sandstorm Shares will not be possible prior to the issue of the
new definitive share certificates.

Scheme Shares held in uncertificated form

(N) Where, at the Scheme Record Time, a Scheme Shareholder holds Scheme Shares in uncertificated
form:

(i) on the Guernsey Register (that is, in CREST), Sandstorm will procure that the appropriate CREST
stock account will be credited with Sandstorm CDIs in respect of such Scheme Shareholder’s
entitlement to New Sandstorm Shares; or

(ii) on the Canadian Register (that is, in CDS), Sandstorm will procure that Computershare Canada
credits the appropriate CDS account with the New Sandstorm Shares to which such Scheme
Shareholder is entitled under the Scheme.

If any Scheme Shareholder holding Sandstorm CDIs subsequently wishes to settle a trade made in the
underlying New Sandstorm Shares on the TSX or NYSE MKT, they will need to cancel their Sandstorm CDIs
by notifying CREST to transfer the underlying New Sandstorm Shares to a CDS (for trading on TSX) or DTC
(for trading on the NYSE MKT) participant account. A holder of Sandstorm CDIs may settle ‘‘off market’’
trades in Sandstorm CDIs between CREST participant accounts in the CREST system.

This clause 5 shall take effect subject to any prohibition or condition imposed by law.
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6. Dividend mandates
Each mandate relating to the payment of dividends on any Scheme Shares and other instructions given to
Mariana by Scheme Shareholders in force at the Scheme Record Time shall, as from the Effective Date,
cease to be valid.

7. Operation of the Scheme
This Scheme shall become Effective at the time that the order of the Guernsey Court is filed with the
Guernsey Registry.

Unless this Scheme has become Effective on or before 5.00 p.m. (London time) on 31 August 2017, or
such later date, if any, as Mariana and Sandstorm may agree and the Guernsey Court and the Panel may
allow, this Scheme shall never become effective.

8. Modification
Mariana and Sandstorm may jointly consent on behalf of all persons concerned to any modification of or
addition to this Scheme or to any condition which the Guernsey Court may approve or impose. Any such
modification or addition may require the consent of the Panel.

9. Governing law
This Scheme is governed by Guernsey law and is subject to the jurisdiction of the Guernsey courts. The
rules of the Code will apply to this Scheme on the basis provided in the Code.

Dated: 15 May 2017
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PART FIVE:

TAXATION

1. United Kingdom taxation
The comments set out below summarise certain limited aspects of the UK tax treatment of Mariana
Shareholders under the Scheme. They do not constitute tax advice and do not purport to be a complete
analysis of all UK tax considerations relating to the Scheme. They are based on current UK law and HM
Revenue and Customs (“HMRC”) published practice, both of which are subject to change, possibly with
retroactive effect.

The comments are intended as a general guide and apply only to Mariana Shareholders who are resident
and, in the case of individuals, domiciled for tax purposes in (and only in) the UK at the relevant times, who
hold Mariana Shares and, to the extent that they acquire New Sandstorm Shares pursuant to the Scheme,
New Sandstorm Shares as an investment (other than in an individual savings account) and who are the
absolute beneficial owners of their Mariana Shares. These comments do not deal with certain types of
shareholders, such as charities, persons holding or acquiring shares in the course of trade or as part of
“carried interest”, persons who have or could be treated for tax purposes as having acquired their Mariana
Shares by reason of their employment, collective investment schemes, pension schemes and insurance
companies.

Mariana Shareholders who are in any doubt about their tax position, or who are resident, domiciled or
otherwise subject to tax in a jurisdiction outside the UK, are advised to consult an appropriate independent
professional tax adviser.

Chargeable gains
(i) Mariana Shareholders receiving cash under the Scheme

The transfer of Mariana Shares under the Scheme in return for cash should be treated as a part disposal
of the Mariana Shareholder’s Mariana Shares for UK tax purposes and, therefore, may depending on
the Mariana Shareholder’s particular circumstances (including the availability of exemptions, reliefs
and/or allowable losses), give rise to a liability to UK tax on chargeable gains or, alternatively, an
allowable capital loss. The proportion of the shareholder’s base cost attributable to that part disposal
should be equal to the proportion that the cash received bears to the aggregate value of the cash and
New Sandstorm Shares received under the Scheme.

Individual Mariana Shareholders

Subject to available exemptions, reliefs and/or allowances, gains arising on a part disposal of Mariana
Shares by an individual Mariana Shareholder should be taxed at the rate of 10 per cent. except to the
extent that the gain, when it is added to the Mariana Shareholder’s other taxable income and gains in
the relevant tax year, exceeds the upper limit of the income tax basic rate band (£33,500 for the
2017/18 tax year), in which case it will be taxed at the rate of 20 per cent.

The capital gains tax annual exemption (£11,300 for 2017/18) may be available to individual Mariana
Shareholders to offset against chargeable gains realised on the part disposal of their Mariana Shares.

Corporate Mariana Shareholders

For Mariana Shareholders within the charge to UK corporation tax, indexation allowance should be
available in respect of the full period of ownership of the Mariana Shares to reduce any chargeable
gain arising (but not to create or increase any allowable loss) on the transfer of their Mariana Shares
under the Scheme in return for cash.

(ii) Mariana Shareholders receiving New Sandstorm Shares under the Scheme
The transfer of Mariana Shares under the Scheme in return for New Sandstorm Shares should generally
be treated as a reorganisation for UK tax purposes and, therefore, to the extent that a Mariana
Shareholder exchanges their Mariana Shares for New Sandstorm Shares, such Mariana Shareholders
should not be treated as disposing of their Mariana Shares or of acquiring the New Sandstorm Shares
as a result of the Scheme. Instead, the New Sandstorm Shares should be treated as the same asset
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and as having been acquired at the same time and for the same consideration as the relevant
proportion of such a Mariana’s Shareholders Mariana Shares.

Mariana Shareholders who, alone or together with connected persons, hold more than 5 per cent. of
Mariana Shares will be eligible for the treatment set out in the above paragraph only if the transfer
under the Scheme is effected for bona fide commercial reasons and is not part of a scheme or
arrangement of which the main purpose, or one of the main purposes, is avoidance of liability to capital
gains tax or corporation tax. Scheme Shareholders should be advised that no clearance has been
sought from HMRC under section 138 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 for confirmation
that HMRC is satisfied that the transfer under the Scheme will be effected for bona fide commercial
reasons and will not form part of any such scheme or arrangement.

Tax consequences in respect of New Sandstorm Shares
(i) Direct taxation of dividends paid to individual holders of New Sandstorm Shares

An individual holder of New Sandstorm Shares who receives a dividend from Sandstorm shall not pay
any UK income tax to the extent that the dividend, when aggregated with any other dividends received
from any source in the same tax year, does not exceed the current dividend allowance of £5,000. Note
that the UK Government announced its intention in the Spring Budget for the dividend allowance to
be reduced to £2,000 from April 2018. That change has yet to be enacted.

To the extent that the dividend is not covered by the dividend allowance (taking account of any other
dividends received by the individual shareholder in the same tax year, excluding any dividends paid
within an individual savings account and certain pension arrangements), it would be subject to UK
income tax at 7.5 per cent. (to the extent within the basic rate band), 32.5 per cent. (to the extent
within the higher rate band) and/or 38.1 per cent. (to the extent within the additional rate band), in
each case when treated as the top slice of that shareholder’s income for the relevant tax year. Dividends
falling within the allowance will still count towards the basic or higher rate bands for this purpose and
may, therefore, affect the rate of tax payable on dividends received in excess of the dividend allowance.

(ii) Direct taxation of dividends paid to corporate holders of New Sandstorm Shares
UK resident corporate shareholders should not be liable to UK corporation tax on the receipt of a
dividend from Sandstorm provided that, in the case of a corporate that is not a small company, the
dividend falls within an exempt class and certain conditions are met. The exemptions are not
comprehensive and are also subject to anti-avoidance rules. Corporate shareholders who are in any
doubt about their position should seek appropriate advice.

(iii) Future disposal of New Sandstorm Shares
A subsequent disposal of New Sandstorm Shares may, depending on individual circumstances
(including the availability of exemptions, reliefs and allowable losses), give rise to a liability to UK tax.

UK stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT”)
No UK stamp duty or SDRT should generally be payable by Mariana Shareholders as a result of the Scheme.

Credit for Canadian withholding tax on dividend
Subject to certain limitations, credit for Canadian withholding tax on dividends paid on the New Sandstorm
Shares should generally be available under UK tax law against income or corporation tax to which the holder
of the New Sandstorm Shares is liable in respect of such dividend.

2. Guernsey taxation
General
The following paragraphs, which are intended as a general guide only, and do not constitute tax advice, are
based on current Guernsey tax legislation. They summarise certain limited aspects of the anticipated
Guernsey tax treatment of the Combination and they relate only to the position of Scheme Shareholders
who are the absolute beneficial owners of their Scheme Shares, who hold their Scheme Shares as an
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investment and who are resident in Guernsey for taxation purposes. They do not apply to certain classes of
Scheme Shareholders, such as dealers in securities, insurance companies, collective investment schemes
and Scheme Shareholders who have, or are deemed to have, acquired their Scheme Shares by reason of,
or in connection with, an office or employment. If you are in any doubt as to your taxation position or if you
are subject to tax in any jurisdiction other than Guernsey, you should consult an appropriate professional
adviser immediately.

Guernsey currently does not levy taxes upon capital inheritances, capital gains gifts, capital transfers, wealth,
sales or turnover (unless the varying of investments and turning of such investments to account is a business
or part of a business), nor are there any estate duties, save for registration fees and an ad valorem duty for
a Guernsey grant of representation where the deceased dies leaving assets in Guernsey which require
presentation of such a grant.

Guernsey resident shareholders
(i) Tax on Capital Gains

The exchange of Scheme Shares for receipt of New Sandstorm Shares will be considered a capital
transaction in Guernsey. As Guernsey does not levy capital gains tax, there will be no tax on this
exchange. In addition, to the extent that a Scheme Shareholder receives cash under the Scheme this
will be considered as part of the disposal of Scheme Shares and will also not be taxable in Guernsey.
Similarly, any disposal of New Sandstorm shares will also not be subject to tax in Guernsey.

(ii) Tax on Income
Shareholders who are resident in Guernsey may be subject to Guernsey income tax on any dividends
paid by Sandstorm in relation to the New Sandstorm Shares.

(iii) Stamp Duty
No stamp duty is chargeable in Guernsey on the issue, transfer or repurchase of shares in a Guernsey
company and therefore no stamp duty will be payable in Guernsey by Scheme Shareholders as a result
of approving the Scheme.

Non-Guernsey resident shareholders
Scheme Shareholders resident outside Guernsey will not be subject to any tax in Guernsey in respect of or
in connection with the implementation of the Scheme.

Anti-Avoidance
Guernsey has a wide-ranging anti-avoidance provision. This provision targets transactions where the effect
of the transaction or series of transactions is the avoidance, reduction or deferral of a tax liability. At his
discretion, the Director of Income Tax in Guernsey will make such adjustments to the tax liability to counteract
the effects of the avoidance, reduction or deferral of the tax liability.

The Base Erosion and Profit Shifting project could affect the Company’s tax treatment.
The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development is undertaking a project on Base Erosion
and Profit Sharing (“BEPS”). BEPS aims to achieve a multinational framework on corporate taxation. The
outcome of the on-going global BEPS project could affect the tax treatment of the Wider Sandstorm Group
following completion of the Scheme.

3. Canadian taxation
The following is, as of the date hereof, a general summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax
considerations under the Income Tax Act (Canada) (the ‘‘Tax Act’’) and the regulations thereunder (the ‘‘Tax
Act Regulations’’) generally applicable to a Mariana Shareholder who transfers Scheme Shares to
Sandstorm pursuant to the Scheme and who, at all relevant times, for the purposes of the Tax Act, deals at
arm’s length with Mariana and Sandstorm, is not affiliated with Mariana or Sandstorm, and holds Scheme
Shares and New Sandstorm Shares as capital property (each, a ‘‘Holder’’), all within the meaning of the
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Tax Act. Scheme Shares and New Sandstorm Shares will generally be considered to be capital property to
a Holder unless the Holder holds or uses those shares or is deemed to hold or use those shares in the
course of carrying on a business of trading or dealing in securities or has acquired them or deemed to have
acquired them in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure in the nature of trade.

This summary does not apply to a Holder: (a) that is a “financial institution” for purposes of the mark to
market rules contained in the Tax Act; (b) an interest in which is or would constitute a “tax shelter investment”
as defined in the Tax Act; (c) that is a “specified financial institution” as defined in the Tax Act; (d) that is a
corporation resident in Canada (for the purpose of the Tax Act) or a corporation that does not deal at arm’s
length for purposes of the Tax Act with a corporation resident in Canada, and that is or becomes as part of
a transaction or event or series of transactions or events that includes the acquisition of the New Sandstorm
Shares, controlled by a non-resident corporation for the purposes of the foreign affiliate dumping rules in
Section 212.3 of the Tax Act; (e) that reports its “Canadian tax results” in a currency other than Canadian
currency, all as defined in the Tax Act; (f) that is exempt from tax under the Tax Act; or (g) that has entered
into, or will enter into, a “synthetic disposition Scheme” or a “derivative forward agreement” with respect to
the New Sandstorm Shares, as those terms are defined in the Tax Act. Such Holders should consult their
own tax advisors.

This summary is based upon the current provisions of the Tax Act and the Tax Act Regulations in force as
of the date hereof, and specific proposals to amend the Tax Act and the Tax Act Regulations (the “Tax
Proposals”) which have been announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the
date hereof and counsel’s understanding of the current published administrative policies and assessing
practices of the Canada Revenue Agency (the “CRA”). This summary assumes that the Tax Proposals will
be enacted in the form proposed and does not take into account or anticipate any other changes in law,
whether by way of judicial, legislative or governmental decision or action, nor does it take into account
provincial, territorial or foreign income tax legislation or considerations, which may differ from the Canadian
federal income tax considerations discussed herein. No assurances can be given that the Tax Proposals
will be enacted as proposed or at all, or that legislative, judicial or administrative changes will not modify or
change the statements expressed herein.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax considerations
applicable in respect of the Scheme. This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended
to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or income tax advice to any particular Holder. Holders
should consult their own income tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences applicable
to them based on their own particular circumstances.

Amounts Determined in Canadian Dollars
For purposes of the Tax Act, all amounts must be expressed in Canadian dollars, including cost, adjusted
cost base, proceeds of disposition and dividends, and amounts denominated in another currency must be
converted to Canadian dollars using the single daily exchange rate published by the Bank of Canada on the
particular date the particular amount arose or such other rate of exchange as may be accepted by the CRA.
Holders may therefore realize additional income or gain by virtue of changes in foreign exchange rates, and
are advised to consult with their own tax advisors in this regard. Currency tax issues are not discussed
further in this summary.

Holders Resident in Canada
The following portion of this summary is generally applicable to a Holder who, for the purposes of the Tax
Act, is resident or deemed to be resident in Canada at all relevant times (each, a “Resident Holder”). Certain
Resident Holders whose New Sandstorm Shares might not otherwise qualify as capital property may be
entitled to make an irrevocable election pursuant to subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act to have the New
Sandstorm Shares and every other “Canadian security” (as defined by the Tax Act) owned by such Resident
Holder in the taxation year of the election and in all subsequent taxation years, deemed to be capital property.
Resident Holders should consult their own tax advisors for advice as to whether an election under subsection
39(4) of the Tax Act is available or advisable in their particular circumstances.

Disposition of Scheme Shares pursuant to the Scheme
A Resident Holder whose Scheme Shares are transferred to Sandstorm in consideration for New Sandstorm
Shares and cash pursuant to the Scheme will be considered to have disposed of the Scheme Shares for
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proceeds of disposition equal to the value of the consideration received, being the amount of cash paid
plus the fair market value of the New Sandstorm Shares at the time of the transfer. As a result, such Resident
Holder will realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to the amount by which such proceeds of disposition
exceed (or are less than) the aggregate of the Resident Holder’s adjusted cost base of the Scheme Shares
immediately before the transfer and any reasonable expenses incurred for the purpose of making the
disposition. The tax treatment of capital gains and capital losses is discussed in greater detail below under
the subheading “Taxation of Capital Gains and Losses”.

In these circumstances, the cost to a Resident Holder of the New Sandstorm Shares acquired on the transfer
of Scheme Shares pursuant to the Scheme will be equal to the fair market value of the New Sandstorm
Shares at the time of the transfer. The adjusted cost base of the New Sandstorm Shares to a Resident
Holder at any time will be determined by averaging the cost of such shares with the adjusted cost base to
the Resident Holder of all other Sandstorm Shares, if any, owned by the Holder as capital property at such
time.

Resident Holders may be able to defer all or part of the capital gain otherwise realized on a transfer of
Scheme Shares to Sandstorm pursuant to the Scheme by making a joint election in prescribed form and
within the prescribed time with Sandstorm pursuant to section 85 of the Tax Act and corresponding
provisions of applicable provincial legislation (a “Section 85 Election”). If Sandstorm agrees to make a
Section 85 Election with Resident Holders, Sandstorm will make information regarding the Section 85
Election available on Sandstorm’s website at http://www.sandstormgold.com after the Effective Date.
Resident Holders who wish to make a Section 85 Election with Sandstorm should consult their own tax
advisors regarding the consequences of making a Section 85 Election.

Disposition of New Sandstorm Shares
In general, a Resident Holder who disposes of, or is deemed to have disposed of, a New Sandstorm Share
(other than to Sandstorm, unless purchased by Sandstorm in the open market in the manner in which shares
are normally purchased by any member of the public in the open market) will realize a capital gain (or incur
a capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition in respect of the New Sandstorm
Share exceed (or are exceeded by) the aggregate of the adjusted cost base to the Resident Holder of such
New Sandstorm Share immediately before the disposition or deemed disposition and any reasonable
expenses incurred for the purpose of making the disposition. The tax treatment of capital gains and capital
losses is discussed in greater detail below under the subheading “Taxation of Capital Gains and Losses”.

Taxation of Capital Gains and Losses
Generally, one half of any capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”) realized by a Resident Holder must be included
in the Resident Holder’s income for the taxation year in which the disposition occurs. Subject to and in
accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act, one half of any capital loss incurred by a Resident Holder (an
“allowable capital loss”) must generally be deducted from taxable capital gains realized by the Resident
Holder in the taxation year in which the disposition occurs. Allowable capital losses in excess of taxable
capital gains for the taxation year of disposition generally may be carried back and deducted in the three
preceding taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any subsequent year against taxable capital
gains realized in such years, in the circumstances and to the extent provided in the Tax Act.

A capital loss realized on the disposition of a New Sandstorm Share by a Resident Holder that is a
corporation may in certain circumstances be reduced by the amount of dividends which have been
previously received or deemed to have been received by the Resident Holder on the New Sandstorm Share.
Similar rules may apply where a corporation is, directly or indirectly through a trust or partnership, a member
of a partnership or a beneficiary of a trust that owns New Sandstorm Shares. A Resident Holder to which
these rules may be relevant is urged to consult its own tax advisor.

Capital gains realized by an individual (including certain trusts) may result in the individual paying minimum
tax under the Tax Act.

A Resident Holder that is a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as defined in the Tax Act) may be
liable to pay an additional refundable tax of 10-2/3 per cent. on its “aggregate investment income” (as defined
in the Tax Act) for the year, which is defined to include an amount in respect of taxable capital gains.
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Taxation of Dividends Received by Resident Holders
In the case of a Resident Holder who is an individual (including certain trusts), dividends (including deemed
dividends) received on the New Sandstorm Shares will be included in the Resident Holder’s income and be
subject to the gross up and dividend tax credit rules applicable to taxable dividends received by an individual
from taxable Canadian corporations, including the enhanced gross up and dividend tax credit for “eligible
dividends” properly designated as such by Sandstorm. Taxable dividends received by such Resident Holder
may give rise to minimum tax under the Tax Act.

In the case of a Resident Holder that is a corporation, such dividends (including deemed dividends) received
on the New Sandstorm Shares will be included in the Resident Holder’s income and will normally be
deductible in computing such Resident Holder’s taxable income. In certain circumstances, section 55(2) of
the Tax Act will treat a taxable dividend received by a Resident Holder that is a corporation as proceeds of
disposition or a capital gain. Resident Holders that are corporations should consult their own tax advisors
having regard to their own circumstances.

A Resident Holder that is a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as defined in the Tax Act) may be
liable to pay an additional refundable tax of 10-2/3 per cent. on its “aggregate investment income” (as defined
in the Tax Act) for the year, which is defined to include an amount in respect of dividends.

A Resident Holder that is a “private corporation” or “subject corporation” (as such terms are defined in the
Tax Act) may be liable to pay a 38-1/3 per cent. refundable tax under Part IV of the Tax Act on dividends
received or deemed to be received on the New Sandstorm Shares to the extent that such dividends are
deductible in computing the Resident Holder’s taxable income for the year.

Holders Not Resident in Canada
The following portion of this summary is generally applicable to a Holder who, for purposes of the Tax Act
and at all relevant times, is neither resident nor deemed to be resident in Canada and does not use or hold,
and will not be deemed to use or hold, Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares in a business carried on
in Canada (each, a “Non-Resident Holder”).

Special considerations, which are not discussed in this summary, may apply to a Non-Resident Holder that
is an insurer that carries on an insurance business in Canada and elsewhere or an authorized foreign bank
(as defined in the Tax Act). Such Non-Resident Holders should consult their own advisors.

Disposition of Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares
A Non-Resident Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act on any capital gain realized by such
Non-Resident Holder on a disposition of Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares unless the Scheme
Shares or New Sandstorm Shares, as the case may be, constitute “taxable Canadian property” (as defined
in the Tax Act) of the Non-Resident Holder at the time of the disposition and are not “treaty-protected
property” (as defined in the Tax Act) of the Non-Resident Holder at the time of the disposition.

Generally, as long as the Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares are listed on a designated stock
exchange (which currently includes the TSX and the TSXV) at the time of the disposition, the Scheme Shares
or New Sandstorm Shares, as the case may be, will not then constitute taxable Canadian property of a
Non-Resident Holder, unless at any time during the 60-month period immediately preceding the disposition
of such shares the following two conditions are met concurrently: (a) the Non-Resident Holder, persons with
which the Non-Resident Holder does not deal at arm’s length, partnerships whose members include, either
directly or indirectly through one or more partnerships, the Non-Resident Holder or persons which do not
deal at arm’s length with the Non-Resident Holder, or any combination of them, owned 25 per cent. or more
of the issued shares of any class or series of shares of the capital stock of Mariana or Sandstorm, as the
case may be, and (b) more than 50 per cent. of the fair market value of the Scheme Shares or New
Sandstorm Shares, as the case may be, was derived directly or indirectly, from one or any combination of
real or immovable property situated in Canada, “Canadian resource properties”, “timber resource properties”
(each as defined in the Tax Act), and options in respect of or interests in, or for civil law rights in, any such
property (whether or not such property exists).

If Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares are taxable Canadian property of a Non-Resident Holder and
are not treaty-protected property of the Non-Resident Holder at the time of their disposition, the
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consequences above under “Holders Residents in Canada — Taxation of Capital Gains and Losses” will
generally apply.

Non-Resident Holders whose Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares are taxable Canadian
property should consult their own advisors.

Taxation of Dividends
Subject to an applicable international tax treaty or convention, a dividend paid or credited, or deemed to be
paid or credited, to a Non-Resident Holder on the New Sandstorm Shares will generally be subject to
Canadian withholding tax under the Tax Act at a rate of 25 per cent. of the gross amount of the dividend.
Such rate is generally reduced under the Canada-United Kingdom Tax Convention to 15 per cent. if the
beneficial owner of such dividend is a resident of the United Kingdom for purposes of that Convention. The
rate of withholding tax is further reduced to 5 per cent. if the beneficial owner of such dividend is a resident
of the United Kingdom that is a company which controls, directly or indirectly, at least 10 per cent. of the
voting power in Sandstorm.

Eligibility for Investment
Based on the current provisions of the Tax Act and the Tax Act Regulations, the New Sandstorm Shares, if
issued pursuant to the Scheme on the date hereof and listed on a “designated stock exchange” as defined
in the Tax Act (which includes the TSX), would at that time be a “qualified investment” under the Tax Act and
the Tax Act Regulations for a trust governed by a “registered retirement savings plan” (“RRSP”), “registered
retirement income fund” (“RRIF”), “tax free savings account” (“TFSA”), “registered education savings plan”
(“RESP”), “deferred profit sharing plan”, or “registered disability savings plan” (“RDSP”) (as those terms are
defined in the Tax Act).

Notwithstanding that a New Sandstorm Share may be a qualified investment for a TFSA, RRSP or RRIF (a
“Registered Plan”), if the New Sandstorm Share is a “prohibited investment” within the meaning of the Tax
Act for a Registered Plan, the holder or annuitant of the Registered Plan, as the case may be, will be subject
to penalty taxes as set out in the Tax Act. The New Sandstorm Shares will generally be a “prohibited
investment” for a Registered Plan if the holder or annuitant, as the case may be, does not deal at arm’s
length with Sandstorm for the purposes of the Tax Act or has a “significant interest” (as defined in the Tax
Act) in Sandstorm, unless the New Sandstorm Shares are “excluded property” within the meaning of the
Tax Act, for the Registered Plan.

Under the Tax Proposals, the rules relating to prohibited investments will also apply in respect of RESPs
and RDSPs such that the subscriber of an RESP and the holder of an RDSP will be subject to penalty taxes
if a New Sandstorm Share is a prohibited investment for the RESP or RDSP, as the case may be.

Holders and annuitants of Registered Plans should consult their own tax advisors with respect to whether
New Sandstorm Shares would be prohibited investments having regard to their particular circumstances.
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PART SIX:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. Mariana financial information
The financial information set out below is extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements for
Mariana and its subsidiary undertakings for the years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 (together, the “Accounts”). The Accounts are incorporated by reference into, and form
part of, this document in accordance with Rule 24.15 of the Code.

Information incorporated by reference Page number

Annual report and accounts for Mariana for the year ended 31 December 2016
http://media.wix.com/ugd/24ee23_a1a5dbc1e15d40e489e711da2bad29f9.pdf
Consolidated statement of comprehensive loss Page 19
Consolidated statements of financial position Page 20
Consolidated statement of changes in equity Page 21
Consolidated statements of cash flows Page 23
Notes to consolidated financial statements Pages 24 to 64

Annual report and accounts for Mariana for the year ended 31 December 2015
http://media.wix.com/ugd/dcdadf_9097dd9d7ac74433b72cbb199d2765cc.pdf
Consolidated statement of profit or loss Page 17
Statements of financial position Page 18
Consolidated statement of changes in equity Page 19
Statements of cash flows Page 21
Notes to consolidated financial statements Page 22 to 59

Annual report and accounts for Mariana for the year ended 31 December 2014
http://media.wix.com/ugd/dcdadf_ea804941f8c04c5996e4a30cb8ef98bc.pdf
Consolidated statement of profit or loss Page 16
Statements of financial position Page 17
Consolidated statement of changes in equity Page 18
Statements of cash flows Page 20
Notes to consolidated financial statements Pages 21 to 52

No preliminary statement of annual results, half yearly financial reports or interim financial information has
been published by Mariana since the date of its last published audited accounts.

A Scheme Shareholder may request a copy of such information in hard copy form (hard copies will not be
provided unless requested). Hard copies may be requested by contacting RFC Ambrian during business
hours on + 44(0) 20 3440 6800 or by submitting a request in writing to RFC Ambrian of Level 5, Condor
House, 10 St Paul’s Churchyard, London, EC4M. Please note that calls may be monitored or recorded and
RFC Ambrian cannot provide legal, tax or financial advice or advice on the merits of the Scheme.

2. Sandstorm financial information
The following sets out financial information in respect of Sandstorm as required by Rule 24.3 of the Code.
All documents set out below (or parts thereof) are incorporated by reference into, and form part of, this
document in accordance with Rule 24.15 of the Code. They are available in “read only” format for printing,
reviewing, and downloading on Sandstorm’s website at http://www.sandstormgold.com.
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Information incorporated by reference Reference

Sandstorm’s audited consolidated accounts http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
are set out on pages 53 to 85 (both inclusive) financials/2016/SSL-Annual-2016.pdf
of the annual report and accounts for Sandstorm
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Sandstorm’s audited consolidated accounts http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
are set out on pages 61 to 98 (both inclusive) financials/2015/SSL-Annual-2015.pdf
of the annual report and accounts for Sandstorm
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Sandstorm’s unaudited consolidated accounts http://www.sandstormgold.com/staging/
are set out on pages 36 to 56 (both inclusive) sandstormgold.com/_resources/financials/2017/
of the first quarter report and accounts for SSL-Q1-2017.pdf
Sandstorm for the three month period ended
31 March 2017

Other than as set out above, no preliminary statement of annual results, half yearly financial reports or interim
financial information has been published by Sandstorm since the date of its last published audited accounts
to 31 December 2016.

A Scheme Shareholder may request a copy of such information in hard copy form (hard copies will not be
provided unless requested). Hard copies may be requested by contacting Computershare Investor Services
PLC, Corporate Actions Projects, Bristol, BS99 6AH, or by telephone on 0370 702 0003 from within the
UK or on +44 (0)370 702 0003 if calling from outside the UK. Lines are open 8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. (London
time) Monday to Friday. Calls may be recorded and randomly monitored for security and training purposes.
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PART SEVEN:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Responsibility
1.1 The Mariana Directors, whose names are set out in paragraph 2.1 below, accept responsibility for the

information contained in this document other than the information for which responsibility is taken by
others pursuant to paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 below. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the
Mariana Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information
contained in this document for which they accept responsibility is in accordance with the facts and
does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

1.2 The Mariana Independent Directors accept responsibility for the information contained in paragraphs 4
and 16 of Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana) of this document. To the best
of the knowledge and belief of the Mariana Independent Directors (who have taken all reasonable care
to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this document for which they accept
responsibility is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of
such information.

1.3 The Sandstorm Directors, whose names are set out in paragraph 2.2 below, accept responsibility for
the information contained in this document relating to Sandstorm, the Sandstorm Directors and
persons connected with them. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Sandstorm Directors
(who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this
document for which they accept responsibility is in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything likely to affect the import of such information.

2. Directors
2.1 As at the date of this document, the Mariana Directors and their respective positions are:

Name Position

John Horsburgh Non-Executive Chairman
Glen Parsons Chief Executive Officer
Eric Roth Executive Director, Chief Operating Officer
John Goodwin Non-Executive Director
Mustafa Aksoy Non-Executive Director
Ron Ho Non-Executive Director

The registered office of Mariana, and the business address of each of the Mariana Directors, is Granite
House, La Grande Rue, St Martin Guernsey GY1 3RS.

2.2 As at the date of this document, the Sandstorm Directors and their respective positions are:

Name Position

Nolan Watson President & Chief Executive Officer
David Awram Director, Senior Executive VP
David E. De Witt Director, Chairman
Andrew T. Swarthout Director
John P. A. Budreski Director
Mary L. Little Director

The registered office of Sandstorm, and the business address of each of the Sandstorm Directors,
is Suite 1400, 400 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3A6, Canada.
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3. Disclosure of interests and dealings in shares
3.1 For the purposes of this paragraph 3 and paragraphs 4 to 7:

(A) “acting in concert” has the meaning given to it in the Code;

(B) “arrangement” includes indemnity or option arrangements, and any agreement or
understanding, formal or informal, of whatever nature, relating to securities which may be an
inducement to deal or refrain from dealing;

(C) “dealing” has the meaning given to it in the Code;

(D) “derivative” has the meaning given to it in the Code;

(E) “disclosure period” means the period beginning on 26 April 2016 (being the date 12 months
prior to the commencement of the offer period) and ending on 12 May 2017 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this document);

(F) “interest” or “interests” in securities have the meaning given to it in the Code;

(G) “offer period” means the period commencing on 26 April 2017 and ending on 12 May 2017
(being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document);

(H) “relevant Mariana securities” mean relevant securities (such term having the meaning given
to it in the Code in relation to an offeree) of Mariana including equity share capital of Mariana
(or derivatives referenced thereto) and securities convertible into, rights to subscribe for and
options (including traded options) in respect thereof;

(I) “relevant Sandstorm securities” mean relevant securities (such term having the meaning given
to it in the Code in relation to an offeror) of Sandstorm including equity share capital in Sandstorm
(or derivatives referenced thereto) and securities convertible into, rights to subscribe for and
options (including traded options) in respect thereof; and

(J) “relevant securities” means relevant Mariana securities and relevant Sandstorm securities
together.

3.2 As at 12 May 2017 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), Sandstorm,
the Sandstorm Directors, their immediate families, related trusts and any other person acting in concert
with Sandstorm, held the following interests in, or rights to subscribe in respect of, relevant Mariana
securities:

Number of Number of Mariana
Name Mariana Shares options/warrants

Sandstorm 8,980,243 4,490,122 warrants
Dana Watson (close relative of Nolan Watson) 516,400 666,250 warrants
Stuart Watson (close relative of Nolan Watson) 95,178 47,589 warrants
Mary L. Little 500 NIL
David E. De Witt 150,500 239,850 warrants
Marianne De Witt (close relative of David E. De Witt) 147,085 236,043 warrants
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The following dealings in relevant Mariana securities by Sandstorm and persons with whom Sandstorm,
the Sandstorm Directors, their immediate families, related trusts and any other person acting in concert
with Sandstorm, has an arrangement have taken place during the disclosure period:

Number of Price per
Transaction Mariana Mariana

Name Type Shares Date Share

Dana Watson Purchased under a +13,325,000 3 May 2016 1.82 UK pence
(close relative of Nolan Watson) private placement (pre-consolidation) (pre-consolidation)
Dana Watson Transferred to a -525,000 7 June 2016 N/A
(close relative of Nolan Watson) registered charity (pre-consolidation) (pre-consolidation)

as a charitable gift
Dana Watson Sale -180,000 5 July 2016 C$0.844
(close relative of Nolan Watson)
Dana Watson Sale -270,000 7 July 2016 C$1.075
(close relative of Nolan Watson)
Dana Watson Sale –50,000 21 July 2016 C$0.978
(close relative of Nolan Watson)
Dana Watson Transferred to a -95,000 23 December N/A
(close relative of Nolan Watson) registered charity 2016

as a charitable gift
Dana Watson Sale -58,600 13 February C$1.327
(close relative of Nolan Watson) 2017
Dana Watson Sale -110,000 17 February C$1.218
(close relative of Nolan Watson) 2017
Stuart Watson Purchased under a +951,785 3 May 2016 1.82 UK pence
(close relative of Nolan Watson) private placement (pre-consolidation) (pre-consolidation)
David E. De Witt Purchased under a +4,797,000 3 May 2016 1.82 UK pence

private placement (pre-consolidation) (pre-consolidation)
David E. De Witt Sale -4,500 15 August C$0.98/

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -66,700 17 August C$0.98279

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -5,000 19 August C$0.98

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -5,000 23 August C$0.98

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -23,000 30 August C$0.93

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -100,000 20 September C$0.9693

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -24,600 5 October C$1.02244

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -4,500 6 October C$1.02

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -20,900 7 October C$1.02

2016
David E. De Witt Sale -75,000 8 February C$1.3062

2017
Marianne De Witt Purchased under a +4,720, 850 3 May 2016 1.82 UK pence
(close relative of David E. De Witt) private placement (pre-consolidation) (pre-consolidation)
Marianne De Witt Sale -100,000 20 September C$0.9693
(close relative of David E. De Witt) 2016
Marianne De Witt Sale -100,000 4 October C$1.03803
(close relative of David E. De Witt) 2016
Marianne De Witt Sale -26,000 13 October C$1.0025
(close relative of David E. De Witt) 2016
Marianne De Witt Sale -24,000 14 October C$0.99021
(close relative of David E. De Witt) 2016
Marianne De Witt Sale -75,000 8 February C$1.3062
(close relative of David E. De Witt) 2017

Note: Mariana Shares were consolidated on the basis of one (1) Mariana Share of 0.1 pence each for every pre-existing ten (10)
ordinary shares of 0.01 pence each in the capital of Mariana by resolution dated 30 June 2016.
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Dana Watson has undertaken to donate to charity an amount equivalent to the difference in the value of her
Mariana Shares and Mariana Warrants before and after the Announcement, to be calculated by reference
to the closing prices per Mariana Share on AIM on 25 April 2017 (being the last Business Day before the
Announcement Date) and on the Announcement Date.

3.3 As at the close of business on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of
this document) the Sandstorm Directors, their immediate families, related trusts and (so far as the
Sandstorm Directors are aware having made due and careful enquiry) other connected persons held
the following interests in, or rights to subscribe in respect of, relevant Sandstorm securities:

Number of Number of
Per cent. of options warrants

Number of issued share (in respect of (in respect of
Sandstorm capital of Sandstorm Sandstorm

Name of Director Shares Sandstorm Shares) Shares)

Nolan Watson 926,973 0.61 per cent. 1,245,000 NIL
Stock Options
plus 333,250

Restricted
Share Rights

David Awram 517,440 0.34 per cent. 1,182,474 NIL
Stock Options
plus 268,250

Restricted
Share Rights

Walter Awram 800 0.0005 per cent. NIL NIL
(close relative of David Awram)

Peter Awram 35,292 0.02 per cent. NIL NIL
(close relative of David Awram)

Bianca Awram 39 0.00003 per cent. NIL NIL
(close relative of David Awram)

Thomas Awram 25,000 0.02 per cent. NIL NIL
(close relative of David Awram)

David E. De Witt 718,722 0.47 per cent. 235,000 NIL
Stock Options

plus 86,000
Restricted

Share Rights

Samuel De Witt 31,632 0.02 per cent. NIL NIL
(close relative of David E. De Witt)

Andrew T. Swarthout 24,100 0.02 per cent. 235,000 NIL
Stock Options

plus 86,000
Restricted

Share Rights

John P. A. Budreski 15,667 0.01 per cent. 175,000 NIL
Stock Options

plus 70,333
Restricted

Share Rights

Mary L. Little 156,667 0.10 per cent. 78,333 NIL
Stock Options

plus 86,000
Restricted

Share Rights
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3.4 The following dealings in relevant Sandstorm securities by the Sandstorm Directors (including members
of their immediate families, close relatives and related trusts) have taken place during the disclosure
period:

Number of Price per
Transaction Sandstorm Sandstorm

Name Type Shares Date Share

Nolan Watson Exercise of Stock Options and +230,000 17 May 2016 C$2.93
acquisition of underlying shares

Nolan Watson Sale of shares acquired on -230,000 17 May 2016 C$5.63
exercise of Stock Options

Nolan Watson Exercise of Stock Options and +160,000 6 September C$6.35
acquisition of underlying shares 2016

Nolan Watson Sale of shares acquired on -160,000 6 September C$8.14
exercise of Stock Options 2016

Nolan Watson Grant of Stock Options to acquire 400,000 12 December C$4.96
Sandstorm Shares 2016 exercise

price

Nolan Watson Award of Restricted Share Rights 95,000 12 December N/A
to acquire Sandstorm Shares 2016

David Awram Sale of shares acquired on -50,000 12 September C$8.35
exercise of Stock Options 2016

David Awram Grant of Stock Options to acquire 300,000 12 December C$4.96
Sandstorm Shares 2016 exercise

price

David Awram Award of Restricted Share Rights 80,000 12 December N/A
to acquire Sandstorm Shares 2016

David Awram Exercise of Stock Options and +50,000 13 September C$6.35
acquisition of underlying shares 2016

David E. De Witt Award of Restricted Share Rights 39,000 12 December N/A
to acquire Sandstorm Shares 2016

John P.A. Budreski Exercise of Stock Options and +60,000 15 June 2016 C$2.93
acquisition of underlying shares

John P.A. Budreski Sale of shares acquired on -60,000 17 June 2016 C$5.83
exercise of Stock Options

John P.A. Budreski Exercise of Stock Options and +120,000 8 September C$6.35
acquisition of underlying shares 2016

John P.A. Budreski Sale of shares acquired on -120,000 14 September C$8.45
exercise of Stock Options 2016

John P.A. Budreski Acquisition of shares upon +15,667 9 December N/A
vesting of 15,667 Restricted 2016

Share Rights

John P.A. Budreski Award of Restricted Share Rights 39,000 12 December N/A
to acquire Sandstorm Shares 2016

Andrew T. Swarthout Award of Restricted Share Rights 39,000 12 December N/A
to acquire Sandstorm Shares 2016

Mary L. Little Award of Restricted Share Rights 39,000 12 December N/A
to acquire Sandstorm Shares 2016

Mary L. Little Exercise of Stock Options and +156,667 20 December C$2.93
acquisition of underlying Shares 2016

83

245087 Mariana pp077-pp098  16/05/2017  15:21  Page 83



3.5 The following repurchases of relevant Sandstrom securities have taken place during the disclosure
period:

Number of Price
Sandstorm Paid per

Shares Sandstorm
Transaction type Repurchased Share (C$) Trade Date

Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 7.9336 9 September 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 20,000 7.7156 15 September 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 4.5741 15 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 4.5830 16 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 4.4825 19 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 4.4680 20 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 250,711 4.5737 21 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 4.5748 22 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 49,211 4.6597 23 December 2016
Normal Course Issuer Bid Repurchase 4,811 4.8012 28 December 2016

–––––––––––

Total 619,999
––––––––––––––––––––––

3.6 As at 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document),
the Mariana Directors, their immediate families, related trusts and (so far as the Mariana Directors are
aware having made due and careful enquiry) other connected persons held the following interests in,
or rights to subscribe in respect of, relevant Mariana securities:

Awards
received

Number of Number of under
Per cent. of options warrants Mariana

Number of Issued Share (in respect (in respect of Share Bonus
Name of Director Mariana Shares Capital of Shares) Shares) Award

John Horsburgh 893,050 0.68 per cent. 705,500 – –
Glen Parsons 437,250 0.33 per cent. 2,580,000 – 495,000
Eric Roth 649,371 0.50 per cent. 1,650,000 – 405,000
John Goodwin 93,000 0.07 per cent. 275,000 – –
Mustafa Aksoy – 0.00 per cent. 25,000 – –
Ron Ho 327,000 0.25 per cent. 25,000 163,500 –
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3.6 The following dealings in relevant Mariana securities by the Mariana Directors (including members of
their immediate families, close relatives and related trusts) have taken place during the disclosure period:

Number of
Name Transaction Type Mariana Shares Date Price

Eric Roth Sale of Mariana Shares 2,800,000 3 June 2016 Average price
(pre-consolidation) of 3.5 pence

(pre-consolidation)
John Horsburgh Grant of options 90,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Horsburgh Grant of options 50,000 10 June 2016 45 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Horsburgh Grant of options 35,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
Glen Parsons Grant of options 250,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
Glen Parsons Grant of options 150,000 10 June 2016 45 pence

over Mariana Shares
Glen Parsons Grant of options 100,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Grant of options 200,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Grant of options 150,000 10 June 2016 45 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Grant of options 100,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Goodwin Grant of options 90,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Goodwin Grant of options 50,000 10 June 2016 45 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Goodwin Grant of options 35,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Exercise of options 38,040 16 January 2017 43.4 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Exercise of warrants 133,140 16 January 2017 43.4 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Entry into agreement 405,000 1 February 2017 n/a

to receive Mariana Shares
as part of bonus award

Glen Parsons Entry into agreement 495,000 1 February 2017 n/a
to receive Mariana Shares

as part of bonus award
Eric Roth Grant of options 1,080,000 1 February 2017 100 pence

over Mariana Shares exercise price
Glen Parsons Grant of options 1,320,000 1 February 2017 100 pence

over Mariana Shares exercise price
Eric Roth Exercise of options 25,000 24 February 2017 20 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Exercise of options 140,000 24 February 2017 30 pence

over Mariana Shares
Eric Roth Exercise of options 250,000 24 February 2017 42.5 pence

over Mariana Shares
Glen Parsons Exercise of warrants 100,000 27 April 2017 30 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Horsburgh Exercise of warrants 50,000 27 April 2017 30 pence

over Mariana Shares
John Goodwin Exercise of warrants 31,000 27 April 2017 30 pence

over Mariana Shares

Note: Mariana Shares were consolidated on the basis of one (1) Mariana Share of 0.1 pence each for every pre-existing ten (10)
ordinary shares of 0.01 pence each in the capital of Mariana by resolution dated 30 June 2016.
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4. Interests and Dealings – General
4.1 Save as disclosed in paragraph 3 above, as at 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to

the publication of this document):

(A) none of:

● Sandstorm;

● the Sandstorm Directors;

● any person acting in concert with Sandstorm;

● any person who is a party to an arrangement with Sandstorm, or any person acting in concert
with Sandstorm, of the kind referred to in Note 11 on the definition of acting in concert in
the Code.

had any interest in or right to subscribe for any relevant securities or any short position in any
relevant securities nor has any such person dealt in any relevant securities during the disclosure
period;

(B) neither Sandstorm, nor any person acting in concert with Sandstorm, has borrowed or lent any
Sandstorm relevant securities or Mariana relevant securities (in each case including any financial
collateral arrangements of the kind referred to in Note 4 on Rule 4.6), save in each case for any
borrowed shares which have been either on-lent or sold; and

(C) Save as set out elsewhere in this document, Sandstorm has not redeemed, purchased or
exercised any option over any Sandstorm Shares or any securities convertible into rights to
subscribe for or options in respect of or derivatives referenced to Sandstorm Shares. 

4.2 Save as disclosed in paragraph 3 above, as at 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of this document):

(A) none of:

● Mariana;

● the Mariana Directors;

● any person acting in concert with Mariana;

● any person who is a party to an arrangement with Mariana, or any person acting in concert
with Mariana, of the kind referred to in Note 11 on the definition of acting in concert in the
Code,

had any interest in or right to subscribe for any relevant securities or any short position in any
relevant securities nor has any such person dealt in any relevant securities during the disclosure
period;

(B) neither Mariana, nor any person acting in concert with Mariana, has borrowed or lent any
Sandstorm relevant securities or Mariana relevant securities (in each case including any financial
collateral arrangements of the kind referred to in Note 4 on Rule 4.6), save in each case for any
borrowed shares which have been either on-lent or sold; and

(C) Mariana has not redeemed, purchased or exercised any option over any Mariana Shares or any
securities convertible into rights to subscribe for or options in respect of or derivatives referenced
to Mariana Shares.

4.3 Save as disclosed in this document, no persons have given any irrevocable or other commitment to
vote in favour of the Scheme or the Shareholder Resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary
General Meeting.

4.4 Save as disclosed herein, none of (i) Sandstorm or any person acting in concert with Sandstorm;
or (ii) Mariana or any person acting in concert with Mariana has any arrangement in relation to relevant
securities.

4.5 Save as disclosed in this document, no agreement, arrangement or understanding (including any
compensation arrangement) exists between Sandstorm, or any person acting in concert with them
and any of the Mariana Directors or the recent directors, shareholders or recent shareholders of Mariana
having any connection with or dependence upon or which is conditional upon the Combination.
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4.6 Save as disclosed in this document, there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding whereby
the beneficial ownership of any Mariana Shares to be acquired by Sandstorm pursuant to the Scheme
will be transferred to any other person.

4.7 No relevant securities of Mariana have been redeemed or purchased by Mariana during the disclosure
period.

5. Directors’ appointment letters and emoluments
5.1 Directors appointment

The particulars of the appointment letters between Mariana and the Mariana Directors are set out
below. Save as otherwise disclosed, no such contract has been entered into or amended during the
six months preceding publication of this document:

Unexpired
Date of term of Notice period Notice period Annual Fee

Director appointment directorship (from Mariana) (from individual) (US$)

John Horsburgh 31 January 2016 Term runs until the 6 months/ 6 months/ 54,996
AGM when it may payment in lieu payment in lieu

be extended.

Glen Parsons 5 March 2010 Term runs until the 12 months/ 12 months/ 250,000
AGM when it may payment in lieu payment in lieu

be extended.

Eric Roth 16 January 2015 Term runs until the 12 months/ 12 months/ 240,000
AGM when it may payment in lieu payment in lieu

be extended.

John Goodwin 1 March 2015 Term runs until the 6 months/ 6 months/ 38,400
AGM when it may payment in lieu payment in lieu (plus 9,000

be extended. for audit
committee

chairman
services)

Mustafa Aksoy 5 July 2016 Term runs until the Automatic Reasonable 38,400
AGM when it may termination if notice

be extended. not re-elected
at annual

general meeting.

Ron Ho 5 July 2016 Term runs until the Automatic Reasonable 38,400
AGM when it may termination if notice (plus 6,000

be extended. not re-elected for audit
at annual committee

general meeting. member
services)

The appointment letters for each of the Mariana Directors contain confidentiality restrictions which
survive after termination of the appointment letters.
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5.2 Directors emoluments
Set out below is a summary of total remuneration and benefits paid for the audited year ending
31 December 2016.

2016 Short-term benefits
Super- Share

Salaries annuation based Other Total
& fees contributions payments benefits 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-Executive Directors
J. Horsburgh 54 3 51 – 108
J. Goodwin 30 – 51 – 81
R. Ho 14 – 7 – 21
M. Aksoy 14 – 7 – 21
Executive Directors
G. Parsons 175 11 145 8 339
E. Roth 141 – 145 – 286

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

428 14 406 8 856
–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

5.3 Consulting Agreement between Mariana and John Horsburgh
(a) On 5 February 2013, Mariana entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting

Agreement”) with John Horsburgh (the “Consultant”), under which the Consultant agreed to
provide services to Mariana as determined by the CEO or directors of Mariana. In consideration
for these services, the Consultant is to be paid US$1,250 per eight hour work day.

(b) The Consultant is engaged as an independent contractor, and not as an agent, employee,
director, joint venture or partner of Mariana, and the Consultant is prohibited from representing
himself as such.

(c) The Consulting Agreement may be terminated by either Mariana or the Consultant without notice
by reason of a material breach, or otherwise on 180 days’ notice or compensation in lieu.

(d) The Consulting Agreement is governed by the laws of New South Wales, and any proceeding
arising out of the Consulting Agreement shall be brought exclusively in the courts of New South
Wales.

6. Market quotations
6.1 The following table shows the closing middle market price per Mariana Share for the first dealing day

of each of the six months from 1 December 2016 to 2 May 2017 inclusive, for 25 April 2017 (being the
last Business Day prior to the commencement of the Offer Period) and for 12 May 2017 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document as derived from the Daily Official List):

Mariana Share
Date price (pence)

1 December 2016 69.25
3 January 2017 70.0
1 February 2017 81.5
1 March 2017 71.0
3 April 2017 69.5
2 May 2017 90.5
25 April 2017 59.5
12 May 2017 95.0
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6.2 The following table shows the Closing Prices for Sandstorm Shares: (a) on the NYSE MKT, as sourced
from Proquote, and (b) on the TSX, as sourced from Proquote, and for the first dealing day of each of
the six months from 1 December 2016 to 1 May 2017 inclusive, for 25 April 2017 (being the last
Business Day prior to the commencement of the Offer Period) and for 12 May 2017 (being the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this document):

NYSE TSX
Sandstorm Sandstorm
Share price Share price

Date (US$) (C$)

1 December 2016 3.74 4.97
3 January 2017 4.16 5.60
1 February 2017 4.50 5.89
1 March 2017 4.30 5.73
3 April 2017 4.42 5.93
1 May 2017 3.44 4.69
25 April 2017 4.04 5.44
12 May 2017 3.61 4.95

6.3 At the close of business on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this document):

(i) the following Mariana Shares were in issue and the following Mariana Options and Mariana
Warrants were outstanding:

Security type Number

Mariana Shares 130,718,029
(Excluding 190,250

ordinary shares)
in treasury

Mariana Options 7,495,000
Mariana Warrants 13,157,997
Mariana Share Bonus Awards 900,000

(ii) the following Sandstorm Shares were in issue and the following Stock Options, Restricted Share
Rights and warrants over Sandstorm were outstanding:

Security type Number

Sandstorm Shares 151,994,269
Sandstorm Stock Options 6,211,847
Sandstorm Restricted Share Rights 1,905,164
Sandstorm Warrants 28,046,400

7. Mariana Employee Equity Plans and Mariana Warrants
7.1 The following subsisting arrangements are in place under which rights to acquire Mariana Shares have

been granted:

(i) the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan;

(ii) the Mariana Share Bonus Awards; and

(iii) the Mariana Warrants.

7.2 The effect of the Combination on the Mariana Employee Equity Plans and the Mariana Warrants is set
out in paragraphs 8 and 9 (respectively) of Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive Chairman of
Mariana) of this document.
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7.3 Pursuant to the Mariana Share Bonus Awards, Glen Parsons and Eric Roth were awarded Mariana
Shares as follows and on the following terms:

Number of
Mariana

Name Tranche Issue Date Shares Vesting Condition

Glen Parsons 1 1 September 2017 165,000 Remaining in the employment
of Mariana 31 August 2017

2 2 April 2018 165,000 Remaining in the employment
of Mariana 31 March 2018

3 1 November 2018 165,000 Remaining in the employment
of Mariana 31 October 2018

Eric Roth 1 1 September 2017 135,000 Remaining in the employment
of Mariana 31 August 2017

2 2 April 2018 135,000 Remaining in the employment
of Mariana 31 March 2018

3 1 November 2018 135,000 Remaining in the employment
of Mariana 31 October 2018

––––––––––––

Total: 900,000
––––––––––––––––––––––––

7.4 Each of Mariana and Sandstorm acknowledge and agree that the intention behind the Mariana Share
Bonus Awards was that all Mariana Shares subject thereto would be delivered to the holder of the
relevant award in the event of a change of control of Mariana. The effect of the Combination on the
Mariana Share Bonus Awards is set out in paragraph 8 of Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive
Chairman of Mariana).

8. Material contracts
8.1 Combination-related agreements

Co-operation Agreement

Mariana and Sandstorm have entered into the Co-operation Agreement dated 4 May 2017, pursuant
to which Mariana and Sandstorm have agreed to provide each other with such information and
assistance as is reasonably necessary to procure the obtaining of the regulatory conditions to the
Combination as soon as practicable.

The Co-operation Agreement contains provisions in relation to the Mariana Employee Equity Plans.

Confidentiality Agreement

On 28 March 2017, Sandstorm and Mariana entered into a confidentiality agreement in relation to the
Combination, pursuant to which, amongst other things, Sandstorm undertook, subject to certain
exceptions, to keep information relating to Mariana confidential and not to disclose it to third parties.

8.2 Sandstorm material contracts
The following material contracts have been entered into by Sandstorm otherwise than in the ordinary
course of business since 26 April 2015 (the date two years prior to the commencement of the Offer
Period):

Termination Agreement

A termination agreement was entered into on 7 May 2015 between Luna Gold Corp. (“Luna Gold”),
Mineração Aurizona S.A., Sandstorm, Sandstorm Gold (Canada) Ltd., and Sandstorm Gold Bank
Limited (the “Termination Agreement”). The Termination Agreement was entered into to cancel a
gold stream agreement previously entered into on 15 May 2009, and in connection with several other
transactions undertaken to restructure the obligations of Luna Gold and Mineração Aurizona S.A.,
in order to facilitate the completion of a financing by Luna Gold.
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Sandstorm Gold (Canada) Ltd. and Sandstorm Gold Bank Limited received two newly created royalty
interests coincident with the closing of the Termination Agreement as well as a US$30 million convertible
debenture, collectively, as compensation for losses arising from the Termination Agreement. The closing
of the Termination Agreement was conditional upon the successful completion of a financing of a
minimum of C$20 million. On 30 June 2015, Luna Gold announced successful completion of a
C$30 million financing and the Termination Agreement closed at such time.

8.3 Mariana material contracts
The following material contracts have been entered into by members of the Mariana Group otherwise
than in the ordinary course of business since 26 April 2015 (the date two years prior to the
commencement of the Offer Period):

(i) Placing Agreement with Brandon Hill – October 2015

(a) On 21 October 2015 Mariana entered into a Placing Agreement with Brandon Hill Capital
Limited (“Brandon Hill”) under which Brandon Hill agreed to procure placees for the Placing
Shares and attaching Placing Warrants (as defined below).

(b) The Placing Agreement provided for up 39,415,000 new ordinary shares to be allotted and
issued by Mariana (the “Placing Shares”) together with one attaching Placing Warrant for
every 2 Placing Shares subscribed.

(c) The Placing Warrants allow for up to 44,125,000 warrants to subscribe for ordinary shares
at £0.03 per Ordinary Share at any time from the admission of the Placing Shares until
5.00 p.m. on the date falling 18 months after admission. All such warrants have been
exercised.

(d) To the extent that placees were not obtained to subscribe for the all or any of the Placing
Shares and attaching Placing Warrants, Brandon Hill was not obliged to subscribe for any
Placing Shares and attaching Placing Warrants.

(e) The Placing Shares (and any ordinary shares resulting from any exercise of Placing Warrants)
shall, when fully paid or credited as fully paid, rank pari passu in all respects with existing
ordinary shares.

(f) In consideration for the services of Brandon Hill in connection with the admission and the
Placing Mariana paid a commission of £39,415 to Brandon Hill, being 5 per cent. of the
aggregate value at the Placing Price of £0.02 per ordinary share of the Placing Shares
procured by Brandon Hill, and Mariana also issued warrants to subscribe for 1,970,750
ordinary shares to Brandon Hill.

(g) The Placing Agreement was governed by the laws of England.

(ii) Share transfer and Share Subscription Agreement between Mariana Turkey Limited
(“Mariana Turkey”), Lidya Madencilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Lidya”) and AMG Mineral
Maencilik A.Ş. (“AMG”) – December 2015

(a) On 15 December 2015, Mariana, Lidya and AMG entered into an agreement to terminate
an option agreement (entered into by Lidya and AMG on 24 June 2014, and as amended
on 11 September 2015 and 29 October 2015) (the “Option Agreement”).

(b) As consideration for terminating the Option Agreement, Lidya was allotted and issued
10,864,000 shares in AMG. In consideration for Two Million, Seven Hundred and Six
Thousand Turkish Liras (TL 2,706,000), Mariana Turkey was allotted and issued 2,706,000
shares in AMG. This resulted in Lidya holding a seventy percent (70 per cent.) interest in the
capital of AMG and Mariana Turkey holding a thirty percent (30 per cent.) interest in the
capital of AMG.

(c) Upon completion, the board of AMG was to consist of 4 directors (the “Directors”),
comprising three (3) nominees from Lidya and one (1) nominee from Mariana Turkey.

(d) Under the agreement, Lidya was named manager of the Hot Maden mines licensed to AMG.
As manager, Lidya is obliged to carry out all exploration, development, mining, construction
milling, processing, treatment operations and related operations conducted at the Hot
Maden mines in accordance with the budgets and manner agreed by the Directors.
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(e) The agreement commenced on the effective date, being 15 December 2015, and is
terminable by written agreement of the parties or upon completion of the winding-up
procedure contained in Article 17 therein (Article 17 provides for the orderly dissolution of
AMG should it encounter any insolvency proceedings).

(iii) Share Purchase Agreement between Mariana, Derk Hartman and Karl Arkueson, Awalé
Resources Limited and Awalé Resources S.a r.l. (the “Parties”) – January 2016

(a) On 13 January 2016 the Parties entered into a share purchase agreement (the “Awalé
SPA”), under which Mariana agreed to purchase eighty percent (80 per cent.) of the shares
in Awalé Resources Limited (“Awalé”) (the “Awalé Shares”).

(b) In consideration for the Awalé Shares, Mariana agreed to issue 723,511 ordinary shares of
£0.01 each in the capital of Mariana pro rata to Awalé’s shareholders.

(c) The closing date of the sale was agreed to be 31 January 2016, or any other date as agreed
to by the Parties.

(d) The Awalé SPA commenced on 13 January 2016 and terminates with the mutual written
agreement of the Parties.

(iv) Non-brokered Private Placing – April 2016

(a) On 26 April 2016 Mariana announced a non-brokered private placing. A Subscription
Agreement gave subscribers the right to subscribe for and purchase ordinary shares of
Mariana (the “Ordinary Shares”) at a price of 1.82 pence per Ordinary Share. Mariana
offered a total of 330,000,000 Ordinary Shares during the placing (the “Offering”).

(b) In addition, for every two Ordinary Shares subscribed, subscribers received a full warrant
(“Warrant”) to subscribe for an Ordinary Share (the “Warrant Shares”) at an exercise price
of 2.5 pence for a period of 24 months up until 6 May 2018.

(c) On 4 May 2016, Mariana announced the closing of the Offering, which raised £6 million.
This included a committed participation of £5 million by Sandstorm Limited, giving
Sandstorm Limited a 7.56 per cent. interest in the share capital of Mariana.

(v) Letter Agreement regarding the acquisition of Aforo (Ivory Coast) Holdings Pty Ltd. by
Mariana – February 2017

(a) On 25 February 2017, it was agreed that Mariana would acquire (the “Aforo Acquisition”)
all of the issued shares of Aforo (Ivory Coast) Holdings Pty Ltd. (“Aforo Pty.”) from Aforo
Resources Ltd. (“Aforo Resources”). Following the Aforo Acquisition, Mariana would hold
ninety percent (90 per cent.) of one mineral exploration licence and applications for two
further mineral exploration licences (the “Aforo Licences”), via a ninety percent (90 per
cent.) owned subsidiary, Africa New Geological Technoloiges Côte d’Ivoire Sarl (“Agnet”).

(b) In consideration for the Aforo Acquisition, Mariana agreed to pay to Aforo Resources
US$225,000 to be satisfied by: (i) a non-refundable cash payment of US$25,000 within five
days following the execution of the letter agreement and (ii) a cash payment of US$55,000
and the number of shares of Mariana equivalent to US$145,000 on the closing of the
acquisition (the “Aforo Closing Date”).

(c) The Aforo Closing Date is the second business day after the satisfaction or waiver of all
conditions, including receipt of regulatory and ministerial approvals. The agreement can be
terminated by mutual written consent; by either party after non-remedy of breach by the
other party within 10 days of receipt of written notice; by either party if a condition for that
party’s benefit has not been satisfied or waived by 28 March 2017; or by Mariana if it is
unsatisfied with the results of its due diligence.

9. Sandstorm Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of the Sandstorm Directors will not be affected by the Combination.

10. Irrevocable undertakings
The following holders of Mariana Shares have given irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme
at the Guernsey Court Meeting and the resolutions to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting
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which are necessary to implement the Combination and any related transactions (and to vote against any
resolutions which may result in the Combination not being implemented) in relation to the following Mariana
Shares, respectively:

Directors
Percentage

of issued
Number of share capital

Name Mariana Shares of Mariana

John Goodwin 93,000 0.07
John Horsburgh 893,050 0.68
Glen Parsons 437,250 0.33
Eric Roth 649,371 0.50

The undertakings referred to above will remain binding if a higher competing offer for Mariana is made. The
undertakings will cease to be binding if: (i) the Panel consents to Sandstorm not proceeding with the Combination
or (ii) the Scheme does not become Effective by 31 August 2017 (other than in circumstances where Sandstorm
has elected to proceed by way of Takeover Offer and such offer has not lapsed or been withdrawn).

As a consequence of the Retention Arrangements, Glen Parsons and Eric Roth will not vote on the resolution
to approve the Scheme at the Guernsey Court Meeting.

Other shareholders
Percentage

of issued
Number of share capital

Name Mariana Shares of Mariana

AngloGold Ashanti Holdings PLC 4,898,295 3.75
Australian Investors Pty Ltd 4,319,794 3.30

The undertakings referred to above will remain binding if a higher competing offer for Mariana is made. The
undertakings will cease to be binding if: (i) the Panel consents to Sandstorm not proceeding with the
Combination or (ii) the Scheme does not become Effective by 31 August 2017 (other than in circumstances
where Sandstorm has elected to proceed by way of Takeover Offer and such offer has not lapsed or been
withdrawn); or (iii) an offer is announced by a third party on terms which represent in the reasonable opinion
of KPMG LLP (in the case of Australian Investors Pty Ltd) or RFC Ambrian Limited (in the case of AngloGold
Ashanti Holdings PLC) an improvement of ten per cent. or more on the value of the consideration offered
under the Combination.

11. Offer-related fees and expenses
11.1 Sandstorm fees and expenses

The aggregate fees and expenses expected to be incurred by Sandstorm in connection with the
Combination (excluding any applicable VAT) are expected to be:(1)

Category Amount

Financing arrangements £80,000
Financial and corporate broking advice £300,000
Legal advice £1,000,000
Accounting advice £80,000
Other professional services £30,000
Other costs and expenses £80,000

––––––––––––

Total £1,570,000
––––––––––––––––––––––––

(1) An element of these costs is based on time spent and hourly rates. The figures included are based on time charged up to
the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, together with an estimate of time to completion of the
Combination.
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11.2 Mariana fees and expenses
The aggregate fees and expenses expected to be incurred by Mariana in connection with the
Combination (excluding any applicable VAT) are expected to be:

Category Amount

Financial and corporate broking advice £1,100,000
Legal advice £700,000(1)

Other costs and expenses £40,000
––––––––––––

Total £1,840,000
––––––––––––––––––––––––

(1) An element of these costs is based on time spent and hourly rates. The figures included are based on time charged up to
the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, together with an estimate of time to completion of the
Combination.

12. Effect of full acceptance of the Combination
As a result of, and following, full acceptance of the Combination, the Sandstorm Group expects to
consolidate Mariana’s earnings, assets and liabilities. Therefore, with effect from the Effective Date, the
earnings, assets and liabilities of the Combined Group will comprise the consolidated earnings, assets and
liabilities of Mariana and Sandstorm, as adjusted by the issue of the New Sandstorm Shares and the payment
of the cash consideration under the terms of the Combination.

13. Ratings
There are no ratings or outlooks publicly accorded to Mariana.

There are no ratings or outlooks publicly accorded to Sandstorm.

14. Persons acting in concert
14.1 In addition to other members of the Sandstorm Group and the Sandstorm Directors (including their

close family members and related trusts), the persons who, for the purposes of the Code, are acting
in concert with Sandstorm are:

Relationship with
Name Type Registered Office Sandstorm

KPMG Financial services – 15 Canada Square, Financial adviser
limited liability partnership London, E14 5GL

14.2 In addition to the Mariana Directors, the persons who, for the purposes of the Code, are acting in
concert with Mariana are:

Relationship with
Name Type Registered Office Mariana

RFC Ambrian Financial Services – Level 5, Condor House, Financial Adviser
private limited company 10 St Paul’s Churchyard,

London EC4M 8AL
Raymond James Professional Services – 5300-40 King Street West, Canadian

private limited company Scotia Plaza, P.O. Box 415, Financial Adviser
Toronto, Ontario,
Canada M5H 3Y2

15. No significant change
15.1 Save to the extent disclosed in this document, there has been no significant change in the financial or

trading position of Mariana since 31 December 2016, being the date to which the latest published
audited financial statements of Mariana were drawn up.
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15.2 Save to the extent disclosed in this document, there has been no significant change in the financial or
trading position of Sandstorm since 31 December 2016, being the date to which the latest published
audited financial statements of Sandstorm were drawn up.

16. Consent
16.1 Each of RFC Ambrian and Raymond James has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the

issue of this document with the inclusion of references to its report (in the case of RFC Ambrian Limited)
and its name in the form and context in which they are included.

16.2 KPMG has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this document with the inclusion
of references to its name in the form and context in which they appear.

17. Documents published on a website
Copies of the following documents will be made available for viewing on Mariana’s website at
http://www.marianaresources.com and on Sandstorm’s website at http://www.sandstormgold.com, up to
and including the end of the Offer Period, and are available on SEDAR under Mariana’s profile at
www.sedar.com:

● this document and the Forms of Proxy;

● the constitutional documents of Sandstorm;

● Mariana’s Articles;

● Mariana’s Articles, as proposed to be amended by the Special Resolution;

● the Confidentiality Agreement;

● the Co-operation Agreement;

● the irrevocable undertakings referred to in paragraph 10 above;

● the letters sent to holders of Mariana Warrants and participants in the Mariana Employee Equity Plans
pursuant to Rule 15 of the Code;

● KPMG’s written consent referred to at paragraph 16 above; and

● the written consents of RFC Ambrian and Raymond James referred to at paragraph 16 above.

Neither the contents of Sandstorm’s website, nor those of Mariana’s website, nor those of any other website
accessible from hyperlinks on either Sandstorm’s or Mariana’s website, are incorporated into or form part
of this document.

18. Sources of information and bases of calculation
In this document, unless otherwise stated, or the context otherwise requires, the following base and sources
have been used:

18.1 Unless otherwise stated:

(a) the financial information on Sandstorm has been extracted or derived (without material adjustment)
from Sandstorm’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
unaudited consolidated accounts for the three-month period ending 31 March 2017;

(b) the financial information on Mariana has been extracted or derived (without material adjustment)
from Mariana’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016.

18.2 As at the close of business on 25 April 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the Announcement
Date), Mariana had in issue 128,209,580 Mariana Shares. As at the close of business on 12 May 2017
(being the latest date practicable prior to the publication of this document), Mariana had in issue
130,718,029 Mariana Shares (excluding 190,250 ordinary shares held in treasury). The ISIN Number
for Mariana Shares is GG00BD3GC324.
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18.3 As at the close of business on 25 April 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the
Announcement Date), and on 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the publication
of this document), Sandstorm had in issue 151,994,269 Sandstorm Shares. The ISIN Number for
Sandstorm Shares is CA80013R2063.

18.4 As at the close of business on 25 April 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the
Announcement Date), and on 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the publication
of this document), Sandstorm had in issue and admitted to trading on TSX 5,002,500 common share
purchase warrants with an exercise price of US$14.00 per common share that expire on 7 September
2017. The ISIN of the warrants is CA80013R1313.

18.5 As at the close of business on 25 April 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the
Announcement Date), and on 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the publication
of this document), Sandstorm had in issue and admitted to trading on TSX 5,043,900 common share
purchase warrants with an exercise price of US$4.00 per common share that expire on 3 November
2020. The ISIN of the warrants is CA80013R1644.

18.6 The fully diluted share capital of Mariana as at 25 April 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to
the Announcement Date), (being 152,091,026 Mariana Shares) was calculated on the basis of:

(a) the number of Mariana Shares referred to in paragraph 18.2 above, which excludes 190,250
Mariana Shares held as treasury shares on 25 April 2017; and

(b) any further Mariana Shares which may be issued:

(i) on the exercise of options with an exercise price lower than 109.7 pence granted under the
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, amounting to 7,717,500 Mariana Shares (which
excludes the exercise of options with an exercise price greater than 109.7 pence granted
under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, amounting to 180,000 Mariana Shares) as at
25 April 2017; and

(ii) on the exercise of Mariana Warrants, amounting to 15,263,946 Mariana Shares as at 25 April
2017; and

(iii) on the vesting of share bonus awards under the Mariana Share Bonus Awards, amounting
to 900,000 Mariana Shares as at 25 April 2017.

18.7 The fully diluted share capital of Mariana as at 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the
publication of this document), being 152,091,026 Mariana Shares, was calculated on the basis of:

(a) the number of Mariana Shares referred to in paragraph 18.2 above, which excludes 190,250
Mariana Shares held as treasury shares on 12 May 2017; and

(b) any further Mariana Shares which may be issued:

(i) on the exercise of options with an exercise price lower than 100.9 pence granted under the
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, amounting to 7,315,000 Mariana Shares (which
excludes the exercise of options with an exercise price greater than 100.9 pence granted
under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, amounting to 180,000 Mariana Shares) as
at 12 May 2017; and

(ii) on the exercise of Mariana Warrants, amounting to 13,157,997 Mariana Shares as at 12 May
2017; and

(iii) on the vesting of share bonus awards under the Mariana Share Bonus Awards, amounting
to 900,000 Mariana Shares as at 12 May 2017.

18.8 The maximum issued share capital of the Combined Group (being 187,661,365) has been calculated on
the basis of:

(a) a total number of 151,994,269 Sandstorm Shares in issue on 12 May 2017 (being the latest date
practicable prior to the publication of this document); and

(b) a maximum total number of 35,667,096 New Sandstorm Shares being required to be issued to
Mariana Shareholders (excluding Sandstorm) to satisfy the New Sandstorm Share Consideration
Amount payable under the terms of the Combination, calculated on the basis of the entire issued
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and to be issued share capital of Mariana referred to in paragraph 18.7 less any Mariana Shares
held by Sandstorm or in respect of which Sandstorm is interested by virtue of its holding of
Mariana Warrants.

18.9 The value of the consideration to be paid by Sandstorm under the terms of the Combination to Mariana
Shareholders (excluding Sandstorm) is £139.9 million (or US$180.1 million) has been calculated on
the basis of:

(a) the fully diluted ordinary share capital of Mariana referred to in paragraph 18.7 less any Mariana
Shares held by Sandstorm or in respect of which Sandstorm is interested by virtue of its holding
of Mariana Warrants, representing a net total of 138,620,661 Mariana Shares to be purchased
by Sandstorm;

(b) total cash consideration (being £39.9 million or US$51.3 million) calculated by reference to the
consideration cash component of 28.75 pence per Mariana Share; and

(c) total share consideration (being £100.0 million or US$128.8 million) calculated by reference to
the consideration share component of 0.2573 New Sandstorm Shares per Mariana Share, based
on the closing price of US$3.61 per Sandstorm Share on NYSE MKT and a currency exchange
rate of £0.7768 per US$, on 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the publication
of this document).

18.10 As at 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the date of this document), there were
7,315,000 options outstanding under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan with an exercise price
lower than 100.9 pence. If all of these options were exercised, the aggregate cash consideration
received from option holders upon exercise would amount to £4,675,525.

18.11 As at 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the date of this document), there were
8,667,875 Mariana Warrants outstanding that were not held by Sandstorm, with an exercise price of
25 pence. If all of these warrants were exercised, the aggregate cash consideration paid by holders of
Mariana Warrants (excluding Sandstorm) would amount to £3,289,499.

18.12 The market prices of the Mariana Shares are the closing middle market quotations as derived from the
Daily Official List.

18.13 The market prices of the Sandstorm Shares, unless otherwise stated, represent mid-market closing
prices on the relevant date(s) on the NYSE MKT as derived from Proquote.

18.14 VWAP figures are sourced from Bloomberg and, where relevant, are translated from US$ to £ using
the London close composite rate each day prior to averaging.

18.15 Certain figures included in this document have been subject to rounding adjustments.

18.16 Unless otherwise stated, where amounts referred to in this document have been translated from US$ to £,
an exchange rate of 0.7788 has been used as at 25 April 2017, and an exchange rate of 0.7768 has
been used as at 12 May 2017 (being the latest date practicable prior to the publication of this
document) as sourced from Bloomberg on 25 April 2017 and 12 May 2017 respectively.

18.17 Under the heading “Strong production base” in paragraph 3 of Part One (Letter from the Non-Executive
Chairman of Mariana), and throughout this document, Sandstorm has included certain performance
measures that do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS including average cash cost
per ounce of gold and cash operating margin. Average cash cost per ounce of gold is calculated by
dividing the total cost of sales, less depletion, by the ounces sold. In the precious metals mining
industry, Sandstorm believes that this is a common performance measure but does not have any
standardized meaning. Sandstorm believes that, in addition to conventional measures prepared in
accordance with IFRS, certain investors use this information to evaluate Sandstorm’s performance and
ability to generate cash flow. Cash operating margin is calculated by subtracting the average cash cost
per ounce of gold from the average realized selling price per ounce of gold. Sandstorm presents cash
operating margin as it believes that certain investors use this information to evaluate Sandstorm’s
performance in comparison to other companies in the precious metals mining industry who present
results on a similar basis. Sandstorm’s royalty income is converted to an attributable gold equivalent
ounce basis by dividing the royalty income for that period by the average realized gold price per ounce
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from Sandstorm’s gold streams for the same respective period. These attributable gold equivalent
ounces when combined with the gold ounces sold from Sandstorm gold streams equal total
attributable gold equivalent ounces sold. The presentation of these non-IFRS measures is intended to
provide additional information and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures
of performance prepared in accordance with IFRS. Other companies may calculate these non-IFRS
measures differently. Please refer to Sandstorm management’s discussion and analysis for the year
ended 31 December 2016, available at www.sedar.com, for a reconciliation of non-IFRS measures.

18.18 Information regarding the Hot Maden Project has been derived from the Hot Maden PEA. The Hot
Maden PEA is preliminary in nature as it includes inferred mineral resources that are considered too
speculative geologically to have the economic considerations applied to them that would enable them
to be categorized as mineral reserves. Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not have
demonstrated economic viability, and as such there is no certainty that the preliminary assessment
and economics will be realized. Eric Roth, a qualified person under NI 43-101, has reviewed the Hot
Maden PEA on behalf of Sandstorm. To the best of Sandstorm’s knowledge, information and belief,
there is no new material scientific or technical information that would make disclosure of the mineral
resource or Hot Maden PEA inaccurate or misleading.

18.19 Under the headings “Introduction” and “Geology and Mineral Resources” in Section 8 (“Information
relating to Mariana”), gold equivalence (AuEq) was calculated using a 100 day moving average of
US$1,215/ounce for gold and US$2.13/pound for copper as of 29 May 2016. No adjustment has
been made for metallurgical recovery or net smelter return as these remain uncertain at this time. Based
on grades and contained metal for gold and copper, it is assumed that both commodities have
reasonable potential to be economically extractable. The formula used for Au equivalent grade is:
AuEq g/t = Au + [(Cu per cent. x 22.0462 x 2.13)/(1215/31.1035)] and is not adjusted for assumed
metallurgical recovery. Au equivalent ounces are calculated by multiplying Mineral Resource tonnage
by Au equivalent grade and converting for ounces. The formula used for Au equivalent ounces is: AuEq
Oz = [Tonnage x AuEq grade (g/t)]/31.1035.

18.20 All percentages have been rounded to one decimal place (or two decimal places where the context
requires).
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PART EIGHT:

SANDSTORM FORECAST

The following information on Sandstorm’s operating cash flow after tax (and before corporate overhead),
which is included in the Sandstorm investor presentation is considered to be a profit forecast for the purposes
of Rule 28 of the Takeover Code. The Panel has agreed that the Sandstorm Forecast should be treated as
an ordinary course profit forecast, pursuant to Note 2(a) on Rule 28.1.

Calendar Year Operating Cash Flow After-Tax
(US$ millions)

2017 50
2018 47
2019 58
2020 65
2021 65

Basis of preparation and assumptions
The Sandstorm Forecast is a repetition of forecast for the periods set out above and included in the
Sandstorm investor presentation. The Sandstorm investor presentation, and hence the Sandstorm Forecast,
was prepared as at or around 1 April 2017 with production figures estimated at or around 1 January 2017.

It reflects the Sandstorm estimates of expected future cash flows and cash costs associated with
Sandstorm’s commodity streams and royalties. Expected future cash flows reflect the estimated future
production for each mine at which Sandstorm has a commodity stream or royalty based on public disclosure,
technical reports and incorporating management estimates where appropriate.

Expected future cash flows reflect metal price assumptions of US$1,200 per ounce of gold, US$17.00 per
ounce of silver and US$2.50 per pound of copper. It is also assumed that tax rates will remain materially
unchanged from prevailing rates.

Estimated future cash costs are at a fixed price per commodity unit or at variable price based on spot which
is consistent with the underlying terms of the commodity stream or royalty.

The Sandstorm Forecast does not include any general and administrative costs associated with Sandstorm
which would otherwise be included in operating cash flows under IFRS.

Directors’ confirmation
The cash flow amounts presented above do not have any standardised meaning prescribed by IFRS. The
Sandstorm Directors have considered the Sandstorm Forecast and confirm that it remains valid as at the
date of this document, that it has been properly compiled on the basis of the assumptions set out above,
and that the basis of the assessment is consistent with Sandstorm’s prior forecasts.
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PART NINE:

INFORMATION CONCERNING SANDSTORM AND THE COMBINED GROUP

Section A – Information concerning Sandstorm prior to the Combination

1. General
Sandstorm is a non-operating gold streaming company which generates its revenue primarily from the sale
of gold and other metals. Sandstorm is listed on the TSX (symbol: SSL) and the NYSE MKT (symbol: SAND).

Sandstorm currently has a portfolio of 155 Gold Streams and net smelter return (“NSR”) and other royalty
agreements, of which 21 of the underlying mines are producing.

Sandstorm is a growth-focused company that seeks to acquire gold and other metals purchase agreements
(“Gold Streams”) and royalties from companies which have advanced stage development projects or
operating mines. In return for making upfront payments to acquire a Gold Stream, Sandstorm receives the
right to purchase, at a fixed price per unit or at variable prices passed on spot, a percentage of a mine’s
production for the operating life of the asset. Sandstorm is focused on acquiring Gold Streams and royalties
on mines with low production costs, significant exploration potential and strong management teams.

A royalty is a payment to a royalty holder by a property owner or an operator of a property and is typically
based on a percentage of the minerals or other products produced or the revenues or profits generated
from the property. Royalties are not typically working interests in a property and, depending on the nature
of a royalty interest and the laws applicable to it and the project, the royalty holder is generally not responsible
for, and has no obligation to contribute additional funds for any purpose, including, but not limited to,
operating or capital costs or environmental or reclamation liabilities. An NSR royalty is generally based on
the value of production or net proceeds received by an operator from a smelter or refinery. These proceeds
are usually subject to deductions or charges for transportation, insurance, smelting and refining costs as
set out in the specific royalty agreement. For gold royalties, the deductions are generally minimal. NSR’s
generally provide cash flow which is free of any operating or capital costs and environmental liabilities. A
smaller percentage NSR in a project can effectively equate to the economic value of a larger percentage
profit or working interest in the same project.

Gold Streams and royalties are an alternative to other more conventional forms of financing, including equity,
convertible securities and debt financings which can be used to finance mineral projects. Sandstorm
competes directly with these other sources of capital to provide financing. Sandstorm plans to grow and
diversify its production profile through the acquisition of additional Gold Streams and royalties. There is no
assurance, however, that any potential acquisitions will be successfully completed.

Sandstorm’s principal product is gold that it has agreed to purchase in the future pursuant to its Gold Stream
agreements. There is a worldwide gold market into which Sandstorm can sell the gold purchased under the
gold purchase agreements and, as a result, Sandstorm will not be dependent on a particular purchaser with
regard to the sale of the gold that it expects to acquire pursuant to its gold purchase agreements. Sandstorm
also expects to purchase silver and copper and to receive payments pursuant to its NSR and other royalty
agreements.

The documents incorporated by reference to this document, including the annual information form of
Sandstorm dated 29 March 2017 for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Sandstorm Annual
Information Form”), contain further details regarding the business of Sandstorm. See paragraph 2 of this
Section A of Part Nine of this document.

2. Sandstorm Documents Incorporated by Reference
Information has been incorporated by reference in this document from documents filed with the various
securities commissions or similar regulatory authorities in Canada which have also been filed with, or
furnished to, the SEC. Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference may be obtained on
request without charge from the Corporate Secretary of Sandstorm at Suite 1400, 400 Burrard Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3A6, telephone (604) 628-1107, and are also available electronically under
Sandstorm’s profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. Sandstorm documents filed with, or furnished to, the
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SEC are available through the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering and Retrieval System (“EDGAR”) at
www.sec.gov. The filings of Sandstorm through SEDAR and through EDGAR are not incorporated by
reference in this document except as specifically set out herein.

The following documents filed by Sandstorm on SEDAR with the securities commissions or similar authorities
in each of the provinces of Canada, except the Province of Québec, and in the Northwest Territories are
specifically incorporated by reference in, and form an integral part of, this document:

Document Hyperlink

the Sandstorm Annual Information Form http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
transaction/Annual-Information-Form-
Sandstorm.pdf

the audited consolidated annual financial http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
statements of Sandstorm as at, and for the financials/2016/SSL-Annual-2016.pdf (pages 53 
years ended 31 December 2016 to 85 inclusive)

the audited consolidated annual financial http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
statements of Sandstorm as at, and for the financials/2015/SSL-Annual-2015.pdf (pages 63 
years ended 31 December 2015 to 98 inclusive)

management’s discussion and analysis for http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
the year ended 31 December 2016 financials/2016/SSL-Annual-2016.pdf (pages 8 to

52 inclusive)

the management information circular of http://sandstormgold.com/_resources/
Sandstorm dated 10 April 2017 prepared in agm/Management-Information-Circular.pdf
connection with the annual and special meeting 
of shareholders of Sandstorm to be held on 
2 June 2017

the material change report of Sandstorm http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/
dated 5 May 2017 transaction/Material-Change-Report-

Sandstorm.pdf

3. Recent Developments
Save for the proposed Combination, there have not been any recent developments of Sandstorm since
31 December 2016, the date of Sandstorm’s latest Annual Report and Accounts.

4. Consolidated Capitalisation
There has not been any material change to Sandstorm’s share and loan capital since 31 March 2017, the
date of Sandstorm’s most recently filed financial statements, other than subsequent to 31 March 2017,
when Sandstorm completed a drawdown of funds under its revolving credit facility to partially satisfy the
cash requirements for the offer. As at the date of this document, Sandstorm has drawn approximately US$10
million under its revolving credit facility.

5. Description of Share Capital
Sandstorm is authorised to issue an unlimited number of Sandstorm Shares. As of 12 May 2017 (being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), there were 151,994,269 Sandstorm Shares
issued and outstanding. In addition, as of the date of this document, there were 6,211,847 Sandstorm
Shares issuable on the exercise of stock options and 1,905,164 Sandstorm Shares issuable on the vesting
of restricted share units. Please refer to paragraph 3 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) for further
information on Sandstorm Shares.

Holders of Sandstorm Shares are entitled to receive notice of any meetings of shareholders of Sandstorm,
to attend and to cast one vote per Sandstorm Share at all such meetings. Holders of Sandstorm Shares do
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not have cumulative voting rights with respect to the election of directors and, accordingly, holders of a
majority of the Sandstorm Shares entitled to vote in any election of directors may elect all directors standing
for election. Holders of Sandstorm Shares are entitled to receive on a pro rata basis such dividends, if any,
as and when declared by the Sandstorm’s board of directors at its discretion from funds legally available for
the payment of dividends and upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Sandstorm are entitled to
receive on a pro rata basis the net assets of Sandstorm after payment of debts and other liabilities, in each
case subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to any other series or class of
shares ranking senior in priority to or on a pro rata basis with the holders of Sandstorm Shares with respect
to dividends or liquidation. The Sandstorm Shares do not carry any pre-emptive, subscription, redemption
or conversion rights, nor do they contain any sinking or purchase fund provisions.

6. Price Range and Trading Volumes of the Sandstorm Shares
The Sandstorm Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the symbol “SSL” and on the
NYSE MKT under the symbol “SAND”. The following table includes information relating to the trading of the
Sandstorm Shares on the TSX for the months indicated as derived from TMX Historical Market Data Online.

High Low
Month (C$) (C$) Volume

March 2016 4.68 3.76 7,143,100
April 2016 5.45 4.06 8,803,247
May 2016 5.83 4.51 15,257,354
June 2016 6.41 4.53 10,095,087
July 2016 7.53 5.85 8,945,042
August 2016 8.73 6.83 13,193,111
September 2016 8.55 6.43 23,925,145
October 2016 6.74 5.73 9,463,499
November 2016 6.87 4.85 10,552,744
December 2016 5.71 4.29 8,546,834
January 2017 6.08 5.25 6,448,128
February 2017 6.81 5.37 5,846,017
March 2017 6.09 5.28 6,407,741
April 2017 6.14 4.43 11,131,824
1-12 May 2017 4.98 4.37 6,723,911

The following table includes information relating to the trading of the Sandstorm Shares on the NYSE MKT
for the months indicated as derived from Stockwatch.

High Low
Month (US$) (US$) Volume

March 2016 3.49 2.80 27,585,233
April 2016 4.36 3.10 24,827,143
May 2016 4.52 3.47 26,550,066
June 2016 4.92 3.47 31,743,690
July 2016 5.78 4.47 32,420,435
August 2016 6.75 5.20 42,395,295
September 2016 6.64 4.85 75,096,502
October 2016 5.14 4.33 32,768,573
November 2016 5.14 3.60 41,089,614
December 2016 4.26 3.20 38,708,836
January 2017 4.66 3.90 29,778,519
February 2017 5.18 4.08 33,553,997
March 2017 4.58 3.94 41,179,381
April 2017 4.61 3.25 46,608,589
1-12 May 2017 3.64 3.18 26,375,844
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7. Prior Sales of Sandstorm Shares
For the 12-month period prior to the date of this document, Sandstorm issued or granted Sandstorm Shares
and securities convertible into Sandstorm Shares as listed in the table below. Other than the issuances listed
in the table below, Sandstorm has not issued any Sandstorm Shares or securities convertible into Sandstorm
Shares within the 12 months preceding the date of this document.

Price per Number of
Month of Issuance Security Security Securities

April 2016 Common Shares (5) C$4.66 321,888
April 2016 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 33,334
May 2016 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 230,000
June 2016 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 83,334
July 2016 Common Shares (6) US$4.45 12,921,400
July 2016 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 123,100
July 2016 Common Shares (2) C$6.35 30,000
August 2016 Common Shares (2) C$6.35 139,000
August 2016 Common Shares (2) C$6.30 66,000
September 2016 Common Shares (2) C$6.35 520,000
September 2016 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 134,967
September 2016 Common Shares (5) US$3.33 1,051,051
November 2016 Common Shares (3) N/A 5,833
November 2016 Common Shares (7) C$13.797 4,111
December 2016 Common Shares (3) N/A 72,866
December 2016 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 156,667
December 2016 Stock Options C$4.96(8) 1,336,000
December 2016 Restricted Share Rights C$4.96(4) 598,000
February 2017 Common Shares (2) C$2.93 23,333
March 2017 Common Shares (3) N/A 39,654
April 2017 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Issued upon exercise of previously granted stock options.
(2) Issued upon exercise of previously issued stock options.
(3) Issued upon vesting of previously issued restricted share rights.
(4) Deemed value per Restricted Share Right on date of award.
(5) Issued for assets at the deemed price per Common Share indicated.
(6) Issued pursuant to a prospectus public offering.
(7) Issued upon exercise of previously issued warrants.
(8) Exercise price of Stock Options.

During the 12-month period prior to the date of this document, 550,788 Sandstorm Shares on 30 December
2016 and 69,211 Sandstorm Shares on 30 September 2016 were returned to treasury, each in accordance
with the normal course issuer bid. In addition, 1,273,065 Sandstorm Shares that were previously issued in
connection with property acquisitions were returned to treasury on 25 May 2016.

8. Interests of Experts
Ramon Mendoza Reyes, P. Eng., Vice President Technical Services for First Majestic Silver Corp., a qualified
person under NI 43-101, has reviewed and approved the scientific and technical disclosure relating to the
Santa Elena mine contained in the Annual Information Form.

William Wulftange, P. Geo., Senior Vice President of Exploration of Yamana Gold Inc., a qualified person
under NI 43-101, has reviewed and approved the scientific and technical disclosure relating to the Chapada
mine contained in the Sandstorm Annual Information Form.

Keith Laskowski, MSc., Vice President Technical Services for Sandstorm, a qualified person under NI 43-
101, has reviewed and approved all scientific and technical disclosure contained in the documents
incorporated by reference herein, not otherwise covered by any other named expert in the Interest of Experts
section therein, including the scientific and technical disclosure relating to the Diavik mine contained in the
Sandstorm Annual Information Form.
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Each of the aforementioned firms or persons, other than Keith Laskowski, MSc., Vice President Technical
Services for Sandstorm, are independent of Sandstorm and none of them hold any of the outstanding
securities of Sandstorm or of any associate or affiliate of Sandstorm at the time of preparation of the
respective reports and/or at the time of the preparation of the technical information contained in this
document or incorporated by reference herein and did not receive any direct or indirect interest in any
securities of Sandstorm or of any associate or affiliate of Sandstorm.

None of the aforementioned persons, other than Keith Laskowski, MSc. Vice President Technical Services
for Sandstorm, are currently expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a director, officer or employee
of Sandstorm or of any associate or affiliate of Sandstorm.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are the independent auditors for Sandstorm. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
have advised Sandstorm that they are independent with respect to Sandstorm within the meaning of the
Code of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia and the rules
and standards of the PCAOB and the securities laws and regulations administered by the SEC.
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Section B – Information concerning the Combined Group

All capitalised terms within this Section B are as defined and used in the Hot Maden PEA.

1. General
On completion of the Combination, Sandstorm will directly own all of the outstanding Mariana Shares.

After completion of the Combination, the business and operations of Mariana will be managed and operated
as a subsidiary of Sandstorm. Sandstorm expects that the business and operations of Sandstorm and
Mariana will be consolidated and the principal executive office of the Combined Company will be located at
Sandstorm’s current head office, being Suite 1400, 400 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3A.

Description of the Business
In addition to as described above and in the Annual Information Form, Hot Maden in northeast Turkey will
be a material project to Sandstorm. Please refer to paragraph 5 of this Section B of Part Nine.

2. Directors and Executive Officers of the Combined Company
Following completion of the Combination, the directors and officers of Sandstorm are expected to remain
the current directors and offices of Sandstorm. In addition, Glen Parsons will continue to manage the
Exploration Properties and Eric Roth will continue as consultant.

3. Description of Share Capital
The authorized share capital of Sandstorm following completion of the Combination will continue to be as
described above under the heading “Information Concerning Sandstorm” and the rights and restrictions of
the Sandstorm Shares will remain unchanged. The issued share capital of Sandstorm will change as a result
of the consummation of the Combination, to reflect the issuance of the Sandstorm Shares contemplated in
the Combination.

The following table sets forth the number of currently outstanding Sandstorm Shares and the maximum
number expected to be outstanding upon completion of the Combination, based on certain assumptions.

Pro Forma Sandstorm Shares Outstanding and Ownership
Percentage

of Sandstorm
Shares Upon

Number of Completion
Sandstorm of the

Shares Combination
Sandstorm Shares Currently Outstanding
Existing Sandstorm Shareholders (1) 151,994,269 81%
Maximum New Sandstorm Shares to be issued under 
the Combination
Scheme Shareholders (2) 35,667,096 19%

––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

TOTAL: 187,661,365 100%
––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

(1) Please refer to section 18.3 of Part Seven (Additional Information).
(2) Please refer to sections 18.7 and 18.8 of Part Seven (Additional Information).

4. Auditors, Transfer Agent and Registrar
The auditors of Sandstorm following completion of the Combination will continue to be
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the transfer agent and registrar for the Sandstorm Shares in Canada will
continue to be Computershare Investor Services Inc. at its principal offices in Vancouver, British Columbia
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and Toronto, Ontario. The co-transfer agent and registrar for the Sandstorm Shares in the United States of
America is Computershare Trust Company, N.A. in Golden, Colorado.

5. Mineral Properties
The following disclosure regarding Hot Maden is derived from the amended NI 43-101 technical report
entitled “Amended National Instrument 43-101 Technical Report Preliminary Economic Assessment, Hot
Maden Gold Copper Project, Artvin Province, Turkey” prepared for Mariana with an effective date of 1 March
2017 by Joe McDiarmid, Principal Mining Engineer at RungePincockMinarco Limited (“RPM”), Stewart
Coates, Principal Geologic Consultant, Country Manager Mongolia, RPM, Dr Andrew James Newell,
Executive Processing Consultant, RPM and Thomas Henricksen, Consultant Geologist (the “Hot Maden
PEA”). Eric Roth, a qualified person, has reviewed and approved the disclosure related to the Hot Maden
PEA.

The Hot Maden PEA is available under Mariana’s profile on the SEDAR website (www.sedar.com). Eric Roth,
a qualified person for the purposes of NI 43-101, has reviewed and approved the scientific and technical
information contained herein related to the Hot Maden PEA and has reviewed the Hot Maden PEA on behalf
of Sandstorm. To the best of Sandstorm’s knowledge, information and belief, there is no new material
scientific or technical information that would make disclosure of the mineral resource or Hot Maden PEA
inaccurate or misleading.

It is to be noted that the Hot Maden PEA is preliminary in nature as it includes inferred mineral resources
that are considered too speculative geologically to have the economic considerations applied to them that
would enable them to be categorized as mineral reserves. Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves
do not have demonstrated economic viability, and as such there is no certainty that the preliminary
assessment and economics will be realized.

5.1 Hot Maden PEA
RPM was engaged by Mariana to prepare the Hot Maden PEA for Hot Maden in June 2016 for the purpose
of filing on SEDAR in accordance with the requirements of NI 43-101 and Mariana’s reporting obligations as
a reporting issuer in Canada.

The Hot Maden PEA has been prepared in accordance with NI 43-101 and discloses a mineral resource
estimate which was prepared in accordance with the guidelines set out in the JORC Code. CIM accepts
the JORC Code as a Foreign Code, which meets the requirements of NI 43-101. There are no material
differences between the definitions of Measured, Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources under the CIM
Definition Standards and the JORC Code.

5.2 Project Description, Location and Access
Hot Maden is located approximately 20 km southeast of Artvin and 130 km northeast of Erzurum in north
eastern Turkey, near the border with Georgia. The UTM Project centre coordinates are: (a) Northing
4542200m, and (b) Easting 740600m (ED 50 UTM Zone 37N). The general location of Hot Maden is shown
in Figure 5-1 below.

Hot Maden is accessible from Artvin city (20 km in a straight line, one hour by road) or from Erzurum city
(130 km or 2.5 hours by road via Yusufeli).

The site is well positioned to access infrastructure. Yukarimaden village lies within the property and has
power, water, and sewage. Two high tension power lines (154 kV and 380 kV) stretches across hilltops
above the Hot Maden project area.

Two concentrate handling facilities and ports are situated on the Black Sea coast near the project, the closest
of which is Hopa, approximately 120 km by road from Yukarimaden. Hopa was built to handle copper
concentrate from the nearby Murgul mine. The second is Cayeli, approximately 200 km from Hot Maden.
Hot Maden has multiple options for smelting including the Turkish copper smelter at Samsun, Swedish
smelters at Boliden and other European options.
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Figure 5-1: Hot Maden Project – Asset location plan

Hot Maden is located within Turkish Operating Licence 20050853 and Exploration Licences 201200321,
201201059 and 201201058 comprising a total land area of 7,394.25 hectares. The licences are owned by
Artmin Madencilik, formerly AMG Mineral Madencilik AS (“AMG”), the joint venture company (“JV”) that was
formed in January, 2016, upon the signing of the joint venture and shareholder agreement between Mariana
and private Turkish company Lidya Madencilik (“Lidya”). Lidya and Mariana hold 70 per cent. and 30 per
cent. interests, respectively, in AMG. The terms under which Lidya acquired its 70 per cent. interest in Hot
Maden are given in Table 5-2.
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Table 5-2: Venture Commitments by Mariana and Lidya in the JV

The licences were originally acquired by AMG, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aegean Metals Group Inc.
(“Aegean”). Aegean acquired a 100 per cent. interest in Teck’s three concessions (201200321, 201201058,
201201059) at Hot Maden Project in return for 1.55 million Aegean shares and a minimum US$300,000 of
exploration expenditures over three years (by August 2015), and had acquired the Hot North concession
through a government auction. Teck had retained a two per cent. Net Smelter Return on the concessions,
but this right was subsequently on-sold to Sandstorm in January 2016. In January 2015, Mariana acquired
all of the issued and outstanding shares of Aegean. Aegean shares were halted from trading on the TSXV
effective on the same day.

Timeline Expenditures / 

Work 

Commitment  

Cash Payments to AMG  Shareholding

per cent.

Earned by

LIDYA 

Upon signing of LOI   

By the end of year 1 

US$500,000 

(Firm Minimum 

Commitment by 

Lidya) 

US$0 

(If Lidya Abandons the Option) 

20 per cent. 

E
a

rn
-i

n
 P

e
ri

o
d

 

Upon the end of decision 

period (60-day) 
 

US$150,000 

(First Cash Payment – If Lidya 

Continues with the Option) 

0 per cent. 

By the end of year 2 

US$500,000 

(Second 

Investment) 

US$75,000 

(Second Cash Payment – If Lidya 

Continues with the Option) 

12.5 per 

cent. 

By the end of year 3 

US$500,000 

(Third Investment) 

US$75,000 

(Third Cash Payment – If Lidya 

Continues with the Option 

12.5 per 

cent. 

By the end of year 4 

US$1,000,000 

(Fourth 

Investment) 

US$200,000 

(Fourth Cash Payment – If Lidya 

Continues with the Option) 

25 per cent. 

Total US$2,500,000 US$500,000 70 per cent. 

O
p

ti
o

n
 P

e
ri

o
d

US$0 US$0 0 per cent.
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RPM is not aware of any other issues or liabilities (including surface rights or access) which could impact
the future mining operations, though certain other licenses will be required. RPM is not aware of any
environmental liabilities, other than forest permits.

Details on the Hot Maden licenses, Hot Maden operating license fees and Hot Maden minimum expenditures
are shown in Table 5-3, Table 5-4 and Table 5-5 respectively below:

Table 5-3: Hot Maden Project – License Details

Table 5-4: Hot Maden Operating License Fees 2016

Table 5-5: Hot Maden Minimum Expenditures until 2019

5.3 History
The Hot Maden deposit is located in an important copper mining district. Mining at Hot Maden may pre-date
the rise of the Ottoman Empire in 14th century and the keeping of historical records. The presence of slag
overburden in holes HTD-04 and HTD-05 suggests pre-Russian mining at Hot Maden. The tailings from
Russian processing facilities are in the southern part of the project area. In 1886 the Hot Maden property
was in the territory of Russia and the operation of Hot Maden mines was given to Mr. Simonides by the
Russian government. Hot mines, which are mostly in the southern part of the current concessions, were
exploited by this group from 1888 to 1904. A memorandum referring to this region by Mr. Robin reports
that some 500 to 700 tonnes of copper per year were produced during this period. The mining method was
underground narrow vein mining and reportedly have used an eight per cent. copper cut-off grade. These
figures cannot be corroborated and cannot be relied upon. The mining operation was closed sometime
between 1904 and 1911.

Payments (2016) 
Operation Licence 

(20050853) (Turkish Lira) 

 29,562.00 TLLicence Value

Forestry Land Permit Fee  

(52 Drilling Locations) 

41,236.65 TL 

Forestry Land  Permit Fee + Afforestration Fee + Deposit Cost  

(30 drilling locations) 
110,360.68 TL 

Licence Number Grant Date Area (Ha) Owner Status Due Date 
20050853 02/04/2013 1603.55 AMG Mineral Madencilik Operation 04/02/2023 

201200321 03/29/2012 1908.15 AMG Mineral Madencilik Exploration 29/03/2019 

201201058 09/07/2012 1891.15 AMG Mineral Madencilik Exploration 09/07/2019 

201201059 09/07/2012 1991.40 AMG Mineral Madencilik Exploration 09/07/2019 

Exploration Licence Number     Licence Value (2016) 

Minimum Exploration Expenditure Requirements 

until 2019 (Turkish Lira) 

(ACCORDING TO MINING LAW ARTICLE 13) 

 250,000.00 TL

250,000.00 TL

250,000.00 TL

4,224.00 TL 201200321

201201058

201201059

 LT 00.000,057 LT 000.276,21 LATOT

4,224.00 TL

4,224.00 TL
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In 1913, the mine was acquired by the Russian Hot Company. Exploration, including drilling was carried out
by the Russian Hot Company, however the results are not available. The Russian Hot Company started
construction of a new metallurgical plant and access road following the exploration campaign. The Russian
Hot Company’s activities ended in 1923 when the Russians were expelled and the region returned to Turkey.
Current residents of the local villages near Hot Maden recount stories that the Russians began but did not
finish a tunnel in the direction of Mariana’s Hot Maden discovery hole area.

The mine site was acquired by the Turkish Government, Mineral Research & Exploration General Directorate
(“MTA”) in 1942. During 1942 to 1943, limited geophysical field measurements, re-opening of the
underground workings and sampling were carried by MTA. The analysis from 109 samples taken from mostly
narrow-vein occurrences returned an average grade of 2.57 per cent. Copper. These values are of historic
interest only. Following this work, new development was proposed however it was not immediately carried
out. The following is a chronology of events since 1943:

● 1946 – Final report by MTA on the geology of the Hot Maden property; additional geophysics and
drilling recommended in the area of the old Russian mining in the southern part of the 8+ km long
anomaly;

● 1966 – Hot Artvin Pb-Zn-Cu Mineralization report by MTA Dr.R.Ovalıoğlu;

● 1970 – Geology Around Belizor Meydan (Hot) Districts report by MTA Mehmet Doyuran;

● 1974 – drilling by ETI Bank in the south area of the Hot Maden prospect in the area of the rhyolite
breccia (results not known); on basis of IP and Turam geophysics, drilling was proposed in the northern
part of Hot Maden, where Lidya drilled in 2014;

● 1976 – Geological Report of Pyritic Cu-Zn-Pb Mineralization report by MTA Satir and Ereren. IP and
Turam geophysical work;

● 1991 – Anglo-Tur (Anglo American) at Hot Maden reported by Richard Sillitoe; recommending the area
eventually drilled by Lidya;

● 1992 – Anglo-Tur drills six holes at Hot; results of drilling not known;

● (circa) 2006 – Teck acquires concessions (Cominco reportedly held the property several times since
the 1990’s) through government auction covering the old Hot Maden mine area which included the
area drilled by Lydia in 2014;

● 3 December 2010 – AMG makes first visits to Turkey properties on invitation from Teck;

● 7 July 2011 – Turkish government (MIGEM) announces plans to auction 1252 mining licenses
commencing 9 January 2012 and finishing 24 May 2015;

● October to December 2011 – auction properties ranked by AMG personnel ahead of upcoming
auction;

● 4 January 2012 – AMG lists three properties for bidding: Hot North, Ulutas, and Halilaga East. The first
auction for these three properties is Hot North on 31 January 2012;

● Mid-January 2012 – AMG personnel including Thomas Henricksen, visit all three properties and take
surface samples. Initial samples taken at Hot Maden returned maximum values of 4 g/t Au in road
cuts. No detailed sampling was carried out. The mineralization at Hot Maden appeared extensive with
the best Au-Cu-Zn values at the lowest elevation in the centre of an 8+ km long, 300m wide, north-
trending gossan-altered zone. The host rocks were noted to be isoclinally folded volcanic and
volcaniclastic rocks of Jurassic to Cretaceous age, within a broad shear zone;

● 26 January 2012 – AMG personnel agree on a high bid (US$241,000) for Hot North in the upcoming
auction (31 January 2012) in order to avoid a second round of bidding, which may have been required
according to the rules at that time of the government auctions for mining properties;

● 31 January 2012 – AMG wins the auction on the first round with their US$241,000 bid for the Hot
North property, formerly held by Anatolia Minerals, but dropped in about 2008; AMG outbid El Dorado
Gold (Tuprag) and Teck, as well as several private Turkish companies;

● 6 May 2012 – AMG signs a confidentiality agreement with Teck for their Hot Maden property data (old
Russian Mine area) immediately south of Hot North. There is very little data, comprising several
anomalous gold assay results, received from Teck after many years of holding the property;
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● 15 May 2012 – AMG changes its name to Aegean Metals Incorporated (“Aegean”), based on its
exploration activities in Turkey;

● November 2012 – Aegean IPO’s with the Ergama prospect in western Turkey as it qualifying property;
Eric Roth joins Aegean;

● 2012 – Permitting problems for drilling properties began to cause delays in Turkey;

● 27 March 2013 – Aegean announces that it has appointed Eric Roth as president and CEO of the
Company;

● 24 June 2013 – Anglo “closes door” on giving Aegean Metals their drilling results data from their 1991-
1992 exploration for “legal reasons” – no further explanation given;

● 2 May 2013 – Aegean officially brings Firuz Alizade and his private Turkish company Lidya and his
public company Alacer (formerly Anatolia Minerals) into a discussion of possible partners for Hot;

● 27 May 2013 – Consultant Nick Callan completes a geologic study of Hot Maden, the first complete
collection of hard data on the Hot property by Aegean;

● 27 March 2014 – Letter of Intent signed between Lidya and Aegean, after Lidya conducts a private
field exam of Hot Maden;

● 2 July 2014 – Aegean enters into agreement with Turkish partner Lidya, allowing Lidya to earn up to
70 per cent. off the Hot Maden property, including both the Hot North auction property and the Hot
Maden property acquired from Teck; Lidya immediately begins to permit drill holes on the private lands,
avoiding the problems of permitting on the forest lands;

● 18 September 2014 – Due to lack of funding for Aegean, Aegean and AIM-listed Mariana announce
merger;

● December 2014 – Lidya carries out drilling of the first seven holes at Hot Maden, entirely within the
Hot Maden concession originally held by Teck and acquired by Aegean;

● 5 February 2015 – Mariana reports the first results of seven-hole drill program – adjacent holes HTD-
04 and HTD-05 exhibit locally strong massive sulphide mineralization with the first results coming from
hole HTD-04 containing 103m @ 9 g/t gold and 2.2 per cent. copper, including 33.4 m of 18.3 g/t
gold and 3.3 per cent. copper;

● 12 February 2015 – Mariana reports all results from the first seven holes, including hole five containing
82 m at 20.4 g/t Au and 1.9 per cent. Cu including a bonanza 13m at 88 g/t Au and 2.5 per cent. Cu.
Holes four and five indicated a mineralised body in the steeply dipping Au-Cu volcanogenic zone,
averaging 75 m in width, exceeding 100m in strike length, open north and south, and down dip, with
upper zones of multi-percent zinc;

● 25 February 2015 – Mariana announces a 10,000m Phase II drill program to be carried out by partner
Lidya at Hot, Turkey, during 2015, based on the impressive results of the Phase I drilling program;

● 25 March 2015 – Mariana and Lidya have their first joint field trip to Hot Maden, which included Eric
Roth and author (consultant), after announcement of the drilling discovery holes in early February 2015;

● 24 and 25 June 2015 – Stewart Coates (QP) of RPM visits the Hot Maden project with Eric Roth and
Lidya exploration personnel;

● 18 August 2015 – Mariana release the maiden Mineral Resource Estimate, undertaken by RPM in
accordance with the JORC reporting code, 2012 Edition;

● 10 November 2015 – Mariana NI 43-101 Hot Maden Gold Copper Project NI43-101 filed on SEDAR;

● 26 January 2016 – Mariana announces Execution of Hot Maden JV with Lidya at 30 per cent. Mariana
and 70 per cent. Lidya, the board makeup of three directors from Lidya and one from Mariana, 20,000m
or drilling and Hot Maden PEA;

● 25 July 2016 – Mariana releases an updated Mineral Resource Estimate, undertaken by RPM in
accordance with JORC reporting code, 2012 Edition; and

● 17 January 2017 – Mariana releases results of the Hot Maden PEA.

111

245087 Mariana pp099-pp143  16/05/2017  15:21  Page 111



5.4 Geological Setting, Mineralization and Deposit Types
(A) Regional Geology

Turkey is located in the Alpine Orogenic Belt between the Eurasian Plate in the North, and Arabian and
African Plates in the South. Four main east-west trending tectonic belts cross the country from north
to south. These are the Pontides, Anatolides, Taurides and Border Folds, all of which are the result of
ongoing continental collision, subduction and sedimentation during the Mesozoic era. Hot Maden is
situated within the Eastern Pontides tectonic belt, which coincides with the 500 km long, and 50 to 75
km wide mountain chain extending along the south-eastern Black Sea coastline. Geologically, the
Eastern Pontides formed as part of an island-arc system, generated by the subduction of the floor of
the Tethyan Ocean and associated with the Alpine Orogeny, during the Jurassic and Neogene periods.

The Hot Maden Project lies on the eastern margin of an extensive domain of Cretaceous age arc-
related volcanic stratigraphy reportedly of similar age to the volcanic domain extensively exposed further
north in the Artvin district and northwest towards the Black Sea coast; which hosts several
volcanogenic massive sulphide type (Cayeli, Cerattepe) deposits. Several small inliers of Tertiary (early
to middle Eocene) age volcanic units are mapped in the more eastern volcanic domain in the Ardanuc
and Ardala sectors and the true extent of these Tertiary inliers may well be under-represented in the
poor quality regional mapping. A feature of interest is the sharp linear north to north-northeast striking
west boundary of the domain, which may reflect an important orogen-oblique (and possibly deep-
rooted basement) structure.

(B) Local Geology

Mineralisation is hosted within a broadly north-south striking volcanic-sedimentary sequence of mafic
to locally dacitic composition, suspected to be of early to middle Cretaceous age. Lithologies mapped
in the eastern part of the project area principally include: (i) massive feldspar porphyritic and locally
amygdaloidal units (likely comprising sub-volcanic intrusions or thick flows) of inferred andesitic
composition, (ii) occasional columnar jointed sills of more mafic composition, and (iii) locally quite
voluminous coarse monomictic andesite porphyry clast breccias.

Forming a prominent swath in the central part of the sector is a series of well-stratified locally fine
fragmental quartz-bearing volcanic sediments (epiclastics) and variably reworked tuffs, some
components of which are weakly calcareous. Litho-types include volcanic siltstones, sandstones and
fine to coarse-grained immature crystal-rich pebble-cobble clast-bearing volcanic tuff-wackes. Thin
blue-grey limestone horizons are locally present. This bedded sequence persists into the north-eastern
part of the project area, giving way up-dip to an assemblage of well-stratified purple-grey and greenish
hued andesitic volcanic units forming the western edge of a more extensive, possibly younger domain
to the east of the sector, and which could be of a more sub-aerial nature.

The south-eastern part of the project area is underlain by a series of thick-bedded to massive feldspar
porphyritic units and coarse breccias of andesitic composition. Their precise age relationship with the
more conspicuously bedded sub-aerial andesitic domain exposed to the northeast of the sector is
unclear. They could be related or alternatively comprise a distinct litho-stratigraphic unit.

Forming a prominent feature in the southern part of the mapped area is a locally coarse quartz-phyric
to commonly more aphanitic, in-part spherulitic and strongly flow-banded felsic dome of dacitic to
rhyodacitic composition with locally very well developed auto-breccia facies. Where unaltered, the felsic
dome presents a greenish chloritic nature. Precise age relations with adjacent volcanic stratigraphy
are poorly constrained, though the dome likely intrudes the bedded dacitic volcaniclastics and more
massive andesitic litho-types to the west. Contacts with the massive to thick bedded andesite to the
southeast could also be in-part intrusive, suggesting that if this andesitic domain is younger than the
well-bedded volcanic sedimentary sequence to the west, then the dome may be younger still.

Cutting the felsic flow-dome are a series of north to northwest striking fine-grained to coarsely feldspar
and hornblende porphyritic andesite dykes, and more interestingly, sparse feldspar-quartz porphyry
dykes. Both are overprinted by mineralisation, with the feldspar-quartz porphyry dykes providing some
evidence for a related underlying porphyritic intrusion. However, more obvious discordant coarse-
grained or porphyritic intrusive phases, either as dykes or stocks, are uncommon in the area.
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Locally preserved in areas of strong pyritization are small, crudely horizontally bedded remnants of
ferricrete, locally “perched” at elevations well above present valley bottoms, attesting perhaps to rapid
Neogene uplift and erosion in the region.

(C) Mineralization

Gold-copper mineralisation is broadly associated within a sub-vertical, north-northeast trending fault
zone (the “Hot Maden Fault Zone”/“HMFZ”), with mineralisation occurring in andesitic breccias and
dacitic tuffaceous sediments as quartz-sulphide (pyrite-chalcopyrite) +/- hematite/jasperoid breccias
and locally massive sulphides (pyrite-chalcopyrite). The highest grade Au-Cu mineralisation appears
to lie along the eastern margin of the Au-Cu mineralised zone. Stratabound-style Zn-Pb (sphalerite-
galena) mineralisation flanks the Au-Cu zone to the east and locally to the west. Hydrothermal alteration
adjacent to the Au-Cu zone is dominated by argillic and phyllic assemblages.

The Hot Maden Fault Zone at surface is a broadly north-northeast striking corridor of gossanous and
locally argillic/phyllic hydrothermal alteration that strikes through the property for seven plus kilometres
with a width of up to 300m. Locally it has intense pyrite/chalcopyrite with a significant component of
supergene clay alteration.

In the south zone, quartz-sulphide vein type mineralisation and breccias containing sulphides; locally
reaching massive to semi-massive proportions and often coarse-grained, including pyrite, sphalerite,
chalcopyrite and galena with associated gangue of coarse crystalline to comb quartz, minor calcite,
possibly Fe carbonate, chlorite, barite and minor pink rhodochrosite. Early deposition of fine-grained
pyrite is evident, perhaps followed by coarse sphalerite; locally with quartz, coarse pyrite and galena.
Post-dating some massive sphalerite deposition are at least two generations of comb quartz-pyrite-
chalcopyrite veins which both follow and locally crosscut the early stage vein structures. This
paragenetic stage may correspond with Cu mineralized veins in the central part of the property. Here
quartz-pyrite-chalcopyrite veining locally overprints the margin of the adjacent clay-sericite-pyrite altered
felsic flow dome.

In the central zone, quartz-sulphide vein mineralisation styles are very similar to the south zone, though
differ by the presence of sphalerite and galena in veins proximal to the main fault.

The Central/North zone comprises the current focus for drilling and hosts the discovery drillhole HTD-
04. Drillholes have intersected stratabound Au-Cu, both in silicified and brecciated andesite and
massive “bedded” sulphides, “overlain” by zinc mineralization in volcaniclastic rocks. Extremely high
grades of gold, along with accompanying copper and zinc, characterise the mineralisation in this area.
Jasper is frequently present in association with breccia and ultra-high grade zones, although the
correlation is not rigorous.

(D) Deposit Types

The Hot Maden project area is prospective for a number of deposit types. The Hot Maden properties
are located in the Eastern Pontides metallogenic province, a tectonic belt comprising part of a volcanic
island-arc system. The province is of Jurassic through Miocene age and hosts a great number of base
metal deposits. The province extends over an area of more than 500 km E-W and 50 km-75 km N-S
and consists of a 2,000m to 3,000m thick sequence of volcanic rocks with minor intercalations and
lenses of marine sediments which are divided into three stratigraphic cycles. The ratio of economically
important base metal deposits changes along the general strike of the province from east (Cu>>Pn+Zn)
to west (Pb+Zn>>Cu).

At 40 km to the northwest of Hot Maden, the Murgul Cu-(Pb-Zn) mine is one of Turkey’s largest copper
producers. Genetically, Murgul is assigned to a sub-volcanic-hydrothermal formation related to island-
arc volcanism. It has been interpreted as a transitional type tending to porphyry copper deposit style
(Murgul type). By comparison, the deposits of the Lahanos and Madenköy 170 km west of Hot Maden,
in the western part of the metallogenic province are assigned to the Kuroko-type. Closer to the project,
several deposits have also been documented to be of volcanogenic massive sulphide type (“VMS”)
including Cayeli, an operating mine and Cerattepe, a potentially viable operation. Just 25km to the
north of Hot Maden lies the Ardala-Salinbas prospect which is an intrusion related system with the
mineralization hosted in limestones that stratigraphically overlie the Hot Maden volcano-sedimentary
package.
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Because of these nearby deposit styles, Mariana’s initial exploration focus was on the VMS type.
Consultant geologist Nick Callan was engaged by Mariana to validate of the concept of the VMS type
target at Hot Maden, or, to modify the exploration models given evidence to the contrary. After mapping
the project area, Nick Callan concluded that much of the textural and mineralogical evidence together
with suggested late timing of mineralization indicated that the Hot Maden prospect is more likely to be
an epigenetic polymetallic vein type, perhaps with intermediate-sulphidation epithermal (or sub-
epithermal) affinities. Many observed features are more readily explained in this context, rather than in
a VMS typesetting and many alteration features normally associated with the VMS deposits are not
apparent from the current mapping. Subsequent drilling at the project and the discovery of bonanza
Au grades has broadly reinforced Nick Callan’s early interpretation.

The current view in relation to the genetic model for Hot Maden favours a sub-volcanic hydrothermal
model with the bulk of the breccia style mineralization formed between the epithermal and porphyry
levels, similar to the high-sulphidation epithermal type although lacking significant concentrations of
enargite and silver. However, the presence of minor volumes of semi-massive to massive sulphide
(pyrite-chalcopyrite) mineralization, especially in the northern portion of the Hot Maden deposit (for
example HTD-04 78.2m – 113.2m, HTD-34 57m – 64m), could suggest the existence of an earlier
massive sulphide system that pre-dated the formation of the epigenetic breccias.

5.5 Exploration
A summary of the historical activity, including methodologies and results, for the exploration work carried
out by Mariana and Aegean on the Hot Maden project from mid-2012 is outlined below.

5.6 Geological Mapping
Consultant geologist Nick Callan was engaged by Aegean in April and May 2013 to undertake the following:

● to complete detailed mapping, at an appropriate scale, of the central portion of the Hot Maden
alteration/mineralization zone;

● validation of the concept of a VMS type target at Hot Maden, or modification of exploration models
given evidence to the contrary; and

● to provide insight into the geometry of mineralization with a view to optimising geophysical surveys
envisaged to form part of the near-future exploration strategy.

Nick Callan completed 4 km2 of 1:2500 scale geological mapping, covering the south and central parts of
the N-S trending mineralized and hydrothermally altered zone coring the property. Mapping was conducted
on a well geo-referenced Quickbird™ image and compiled in a Mapinfo GIS database. Thumbnail maps
and were supplied to Aegean as Mapinfo workspaces.

Exposure in the steep and deeply incised map area is typically on the order of 80 per cent. to locally 100
per cent., though access for mapping throughout much of the project area is hampered by virtue of the
steep cliff forming exposures, or in strongly hydrothermally altered areas by treacherously steep, indurated
gyp-crete.

Results of this work are discussed in previous section “Geological Setting, Mineralization and Deposit Types”.
Mapping of the properties is ongoing with further detailed geologic mapping currently being carried out by
Lidya geologists.

5.7 Geochemistry
Mariana and Lidya have carried out a series of geochemical surveys including rock and soil surveys which
are detailed below.

(A) Rock Geochemistry

The original surface rock sampling of the road cuts by Aegean was carried out in 2012. This was on
two road sections some 400m apart and on strike within the central part of the property. The early
rock sampling demonstrated that elevated Au-Zn-Cu was in some way associated with the HMFZ with
90m of 1.74 g/t Au at the south road cut and 128 m of 1.34 g/t Au (including a 5 m 14 g/t Au sample)
at the north road cut. Earlier interpretations were that these geochemical anomalies may have been
the result of cross-faulting to the HMFZ. The recent drill results seem to indicate otherwise, and that
the mineralization is related to stratigraphy and the HMFZ.
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The mapping work undertaken by Nick Callan in 2013 included the collection of 20 rock-chip samples
for multi-element ICP geochemical analysis. These samples encompassed the full spectrum of
mineralization styles noted during the mapping. Some 19 samples were also collected for Portable
Infrared Mineral Analysis (“PIMA”) to corroborate hydrothermal alteration mapping.

Nick Callan concluded that the early massive pyrite is barren. Highest Au grades (<54 g/t) are
associated with the comb quartz-chalcopyrite-pyrite paragenetic stage in the Central Zone as SW
striking narrow veins. High Au (5, 8 and 18 g/t) values occur in polymetallic sph-gal-cpy-py-qz veins in
the South zone. These may reflect the overprint of the comb qtz-cpy-py paragenetic stage on an early
Zn rich stage. Disseminated replaced sulphides in the “Cemetery” area do not have significant Au or
Cu but do have very weak Ag, high Mn, Pb and Zn. This appears to be a separate stage that did not
get overprinted by the Cu-Au stage.

(B) Soil Geochemistry

During 2014, Lidya geologists collected a total of 218 soil samples from the central zone. Sample
distances are around 50m. The soil results returned up to 5,560 ppb Au, 4,738 parts per million (“ppm”)
Cu, and 11,500 ppm Pb, and 10,500 ppm Zn.

Geochemical contour plans are plotted for Au, Cu, Pb, Zn and Mo elements. The elevated gold in soil
anomaly extends for 900m in a north-northeast direction. Topographically, this is the lowest point on
a >7 km iron oxide/gossan PhotoSat satellite image colour anomaly.

(C) Geophysical Surveys

In 2015, Enerson Engineering and Geophysical Explorations Company carried out a gravity survey for
POL METAL MADENC L K San. ve Tic. A.Ş (“Polimetal”, the technical group supporting Lidya) on
the operation license area. The purpose of the study was to delineate the border of buried mineralized
rocks thought to have higher density than surrounding barren country rock. In this survey, gravity
observations were made by using Scintrex CG-5 Autograv. The field survey started on 3 March 2015
and was completed on 13 March 2015. Gravity observations were conducted at 267 stations. Stations
were spaced 20m apart along eight profiles. The maps were plotted in accordance with ED1950 UTM
Datum Zone 37 except where stated otherwise.

The anomalies do not appear to correlate well with the semi-massive to massive sulphides intersected
in the area of 4542200N, 740600E.

5.8 Drilling
(A) Drilling Prior to 2014

Drilling at Hot Maden prior to the 2014-2015 Mariana/Lidya program is poorly documented. Local
villagers report that the Russians carried out drilling, along with tunnelling, more than 100 years ago,
but there is no documentation for this early drilling. The now defunct Etibank A.S. (“Etibank”), a state
entity, carried out drilling of three to five holes in the late 1970’s in the area of the old Russian copper
mine. No results are available for the Etibank holes, although old MTA maps and villagers recall the
general location of these holes. Also in the late 1970’s, the MTA mining branch of the Turkish
government proposed several holes based IP/TURAM geophysics but these were not drilled. One of
the planned holes was on the same site where the Lidya/Mariana eventually drilled its discovery holes
in December 2014.

Anglo-Turk, a subsidiary of Anglo American, carried out a six-hole drilling program in 1991-92. The
official locations, drilling directions, and results were not provided to Aegean/Mariana. According to
the villagers and visually confirmed by Thomas Henricksen, Anglo-Turk drilled three drillholes close to
the gold zone and possibly testing the gold zone. Two of the holes were located on the north side of
the Hot Maden stream and one is near an old copper workings in the south zone of the Hot Maden
concession. Anglo-Turk’s wide spaced drill program at Hot Maden was designed primarily to test for
the presence of porphyry copper-style mineralization (David Cass, Former Project Manager, Personal
Communication).

(B) Lidya/Mariana Drilling 2014/2016

Mariana/Lidya’s planning for the 2014 drill campaign was almost completely based on soil geochemistry
anomalies and trends that were delineated several months prior.
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All drilling on the Hot Maden project was carried out by independent drilling contractor, Geoteknik
Drilling company. The Phase I drill program was executed with a new track mounted wireline Hanjin
D&B 16D rig and a custom Turkish manufactured rig. The Turkish rig experienced reliability issues and
was swapped out in June 2015, during the Phase II drill program, for another Hanjin D&B 16D rig. All
holes were core drilled using HQ and PQ sizes. To date drilling comprises two phases. Phase I started
in December 2014, with 7 holes totalling 1,647 m. Following the success of Phase I, Phase II began
in February 2015 and is planned to continue through to development. The effective date of the Mineral
Resource estimate by RPM is 22 June 2016 and includes results for all drilling up to HTD-062. Phase
II of the drilling program (HTD-008 to HTD-062 totalling 16,980.2 m) were down hole surveyed at 40m
intervals using a Devico survey tool. Holes drilled in Phase I (HTD-001 to HTD-007) were not down
hole surveyed. RPM observes that there is little dip movement and minor amounts of azimuth
movement in the surveyed holes. On this basis RPM included the Phase I drillholes HTD-001 to HTD-
007 in the resource estimation.

Drilling at the deposit extends to a vertical depth of approximately 430m. Drill hole spacing over the
deposit is approximately 50m by 50m. In Phase I, drill hole collars were marked out using handheld
GPS. In Phase II a differential GPS is being used. During drilling, core was placed in core boxes and a
marker showing the depth in the hole was placed in the core box at the end of each drill run. All drill
cores were photographed and quick logged by Lidya geologists prior to sampling. Standard sampling
protocol involved the halving of all drill core using a core saw and sampling over either 1 m intervals (in
clearly mineralised sections) or 2 m intervals (elsewhere). Half of the core was placed in a sealed sample
bag and dispatched to SGS Laboratory for analysis and the other half remains on site in core boxes.

Drill core is collected, logged, photographed and sampled at the property by Lidya geologists. The
orientation of the mineralization is now relatively well understood and the relationship of azimuth and
dip of drill holes to the true thickness of mineralisation is known. Core recoveries are between
90-100 per cent. throughout the mineralised zones. No relationship exists between sample discovery
and grade. Approximately 60 per cent. of current drilling is angled -60° to the west, with the remaining
holes angled -60° to the east. Mineralization is generally sub-vertical.

The drilling programs were designed and carried out under the direction of Mariana and Lidya’s senior
technical staff. In the field, the drilling program was under the supervision of Lidya geologists who were
responsible for communicating and confirming the program’s technical details with the drilling
contractor as well as logging and sampling the drill core.

A summary of the drilling data within the Hot Maden Mineral Resource area is shown in Table 5-6.

Table 5-6: Summary of Drilling at Hot Maden used in Mineral Resource

5.9 Sampling, Analysis, and Data Verification
(A) Primary Sample Protocols

Soil and rock chip samples are collected in numbered plastic sample bags. The samples are
subsequently placed in larger bags and shipped for assay. No sample preparation is carried out at the
project site. Soil samples are sent for analysis as collected. All rock, soil, and core samples are
dispatched to SGS Laboratory for analysis, the other half of the core remaining on site in core boxes.
Reference laboratory check assaying was performed to determine whether assay values were
consistent between laboratories. A total of 116 samples were assayed at both the SGS Laboratory
and the ALS Laboratory in Izmir, western Turkey.

Hole Type 

Number M Number M M 

DD 71 18,492 52 14,862 3,748 

Total 71 18,492 52 14,862 3,748 

In Mineral ResourceIn Project

Drill holes Drill holes Intersection
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Prior to processing, drill core is photographed and measured for core loss, then logged geologically
and marked for sampling. Detailed logging of all drill holes is currently being undertaken on site at
Yukarimaden. Mariana/Lidya’s sampling protocol for drill core consists of routine collection of samples
at nominal 1 m lengths, terminated at lithological or alteration contacts, within mineralisation and 2 m
outside mineralisation, over the entire length of the drill hole. Drill core samples are obtained by sawing
the core in half using one of two core saws in a building at Yukarimaden. To ensure representative
sampling, half core samples are always taken from the same side of the core and the full length of
each hole sampled.

Drill core recovery is excellent. Core recoveries were measured and recorded in the database and
recovery is generally between 90 to 100 per cent. in fresh rock and did not impact the accuracy and
reliability of the assay results. All drill-core was sawn in half using a rock saw and it is RPM’s opinion
that the samples assayed are representative and that it is unlikely there has been sampling bias. Results
were sent to the Lidya office then compiled into a spreadsheet.

Since the commencement of drilling Lidya has implemented a consistent quality assurance and quality
control (“QA/QC”) system utilising standards, blanks and duplicate samples. The program included
the submission of one standard every 20th sample, the submission of two blanks in every assay batch
and field duplicates taken every 40th sample. All standards and blanks were obtained and certified by
Geostats Pty Ltd. Duplicates were split to quarter core with a core saw. Raw data for standards and
duplicates were not provided to RPM.

(B) Sampling Handling Protocols and Security

Normal security measures are taken throughout the sampling and shipping processes. Half core is
placed in a numbered sample bag and the other half stored in the core box for reference. Collected
samples are stored in an area of the camp at Yukarimaden that is separate from the rest of the camp
facilities to minimise unnecessary traffic in the vicinity of the sample processing area by personnel not
directly involved in that work. After the samples are placed in plastic bags and secured by ties, they
are placed in sequence inside a shelter constructed for that purpose. When sufficient samples are
generated, they are placed in larger sacks that are labelled with the sample sequence they contain
and the sacks are then securely closed. All rock, soil, and core samples are dispatched to SGS
Laboratory for analysis and delivered to the assay company’s sample preparation lab. The samples
are prepped and analysed in Ankara. At the present time, the retained split core is stored on site at
Yukarimaden.

For the 2014-2016 drilling, standards were inserted at a rate of approximately 1:20, blanks were
inserted at a rate of two blanks for every assay batch and field duplicates were taken at a rate of
approximately 1:40.

Monitoring of standards, blanks and laboratory duplicates was undertaken by Lidya and Mariana
geologists. All blank values returned values <0.1g/t Au. A small number of standards marginally fell
outside the certified control limits, with the remaining standards in the batch passing. The majority of
duplicate samples returned values within 10 per cent. of the original assay. A slight bias of higher
grades has been observed for the ALS Laboratory, and further monitoring is recommended by RPM.

Overall, QAQC results were satisfactory and confirmed that the data was suitable for use in the mineral
resource estimation.

(C) Assay Laboratory Sample Preparation and Analysis Protocols

After the sample has been prepared by the laboratory, rock, soil and drill core samples, are analysed
for gold using a 30 gram (“g”) or 50 g Fire Assay with AAS finish, in addition to a 32 element ICP-AES
analysis of aqua regia digests. Samples in which ICP analyses returned greater than the maximum
detection limit for the elements Ag (10 ppm), Cu (10,000 ppm), Fe (15 per cent.), Pb (10,000 ppm),
and Zn (10,000 ppm) were re-analysed using the AAS analytical technique.

Standards and blanks were inserted into the analytical sequence at the rate of one standard for every
20 samples, two blanks in every batch, and one duplicate every 40 samples.

Core samples were submitted to a contract laboratory for crushing and pulverising to produce a 50 g
charge for Fire Assay for Au, in addition to a 33 element four acid digestion with ICP-AES analysis.
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(D) Sample and Assaying Methods
RPM believes that the sampling and assaying methods and approach were reasonable for this style of
mineralisation. The samples are representative and there appears to be no sample biases introduced
during sampling. Both SGS and ALS laboratories are independent from Mariana/Lidya and any
relationship is commercial in nature. Both laboratories are accredited/certified to ISO 9001.

(E) Quality Control Data
Commercial standards were used during the 2014-2016 drill programs and were obtained and certified
by Geostats Pty Ltd. The 2014-2016 drilling used eight certified standards (seven Au standards and
GBMS911-1, a base metal standard) and were inserted at a rate of approximately 1:20.

Three certified blanks were used, AuBlank62, AuBlank66 and AuBlank70 (all 2ppb Au). Blanks were
inserted at a rate of two blanks in every assay batch. All blanks returned values below 0.1 g/t Au.

Check sampling was performed to determine whether the laboratory sampling preparation procedure
was producing assay subsamples that were representative of the original sample. Laboratory duplicates
were taken at a rate of approximately 1:40. A total of 204 laboratory pulp checks were analysed during
the 2014-2016 drilling.

Laboratory Duplicates
No duplicates were taken from the diamond core. RPM has no concerns over omitted field duplicates
for diamond core. As core is cut in half, it is assumed that there is little margin for error in the sampling
process.

The results indicate that the duplicate check samples show a moderate amount of scatter, but have
negligible bias relative to the original assays. This indicates that the laboratory sample preparation
procedures are of a high standard with good assay repeatability. The scatter shown is interpreted to
be due to the nuggety nature of the high grade gold.

Cross Laboratory Checks
Cross laboratory check assaying was performed to determine whether assay values were consistent
between laboratories. A total of 116 samples were assayed at both the SGS Laboratory in Ankara,
Turkey and the ALS Laboratory in Izmir, western Turkey.

QA/QC Conclusion
Lidya and Mariana have carried out a program of QAQC for drilling since 2014 at the Hot Maden
project. Certified Reference Material standards were inserted at regular intervals and results have
accurately reflected the original assays and expected values. Certified blanks have all reported below
0.1g/t Au. A slight bias of higher grades has been observed for the ALS Laboratory checks, and further
monitoring is recommended by RPM. Recognized laboratories have been used for analysis of samples.

RPM recommends more frequent use of the base metal standard (GBMS911-1) to closely monitor the
base metal assays.

Overall, the QAQC data does not indicate any bias and supports the assay data used in the Mineral
Resource estimate.

(F) Data Verification
RPM conducted a review of the geological digital data supplied by Mariana for the Hot Maden project
to ensure no material issues could be found and that there was no cause to consider that the data
was not accurate. RPM’s review included a site visit undertaken from 24 to 25 June 2015, and a
desktop analysis.

Mariana supplied RPM with Excel spreadsheets with collar, survey, general lithology, RQD and sampling
data. Primary data was collected into an Excel spread sheet and then imported into an Access
database. In addition, PDF files of original assay certificates from the SGS Laboratory were supplied
along with cross sections of the drilling plotted with assay grades and interpretations. RPM checked
all grades and orientation of drilling against the original assay certificates and cross sections. During
this review RPM noted only minor inconsistencies in the provided data which were subsequently
corrected in the digital database. Hard copy logs were not supplied to RPM.
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RPM reviewed all QAQC procedures carried out by Mariana including a review of logging, sampling
and sample preparation procedures; reviewed all technical data including geophysical and geochemical
data; carried out an analysis of the analytical QAQC results; and compared data sets with observations
made in the field. RPM is satisfied that QAQC procedures carried out by Mariana conform to generally
accepted industry standards and that the data used in this report has been verified by these procedures
and is reliable.

Significant intersections were visually field verified by company geologists and by Stewart Coates of
RPM during the 2015 site visit. The upper (mineralised) part of HTD-017 was re-drilled as recoveries
in the first attempt were below requirements. The re-drill produced similar results. No other twin holes
were drilled; however infill drilling by Lidya and Mariana has confirmed mineralisation thickness and
tenor.

Minerological research during metallurgical test work by Turkish group Hacettepe Mineral Technologies
(“HMT”) documented gold visible in drill core. RPM note that this work isolates gold that can only occur
if it is free in the rock mass. The geologic logging correlates specific rock types and alteration to gold
tenor.

The qualified person found no inconsistencies in the data or lack of continuity in twin or infill holes and
found no cause to doubt the data. The reviewed drilling database formed the underlying data for the
independent NI 43-101 Statement of Mineral Resources completed by RPM.

5.10 Mineral Processing and Metallurgical Testing
A relatively comprehensive testwork program is being conducted by the HMT in Ankara, Turkey. Some of
the required testwork (and analyses (mineralogy, diagnostic leaching and assaying) has been outsourced.

The current testwork program is based on drill core samples and examining conventional mineral processing
methods excluding cyanide leaching. Consequently, the program has focused on developing a flowsheet
employing flotation and gravity concentration as the separation methods for the selected mineralisation
types tested. Sufficient testwork results have been provided to RPM to support Hot Maden PEA.

(A) Mineralization Types

Two deposits have been discovered, the main zone and the newly found south zone which has similar
grade characteristics.

Based on Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources, three main mineralisation types have been
identified for the main zone, namely Low Grade (“LG”), High Grade (“HG”) and Ultra High Grade
(“UHG”), based on gold content. The resource grades of the these mineralisation types are LG (1.38
g/t Au,1.01 per cent. Cu and 0.18 per cent. Zn), HG (3.90 g/t Au,1.90 per cent. Cu and 0.20 per cent.
Zn) and UHG (32.72 g/t Au, 3.50 per cent. Cu and 0.10 per cent. Zn) and constitute 11 per cent.,
58 per cent. and 27 per cent. of the main zone deposit.

A mixed gold-zinc zone (6.40 g/t Au, 2.59 per cent. Cu and 3.37 per cent. Zn) and a peripheral zone
(3.11 g/t Au, 0.81 per cent. Cu and 0.15 per cent. Zn) have been identified and represent relatively
small proportions of the known resources (namely 0.3 per cent. and 4.4 per cent.).

(B) Metallurgical Testing

Metallurgical testwork has defined the flowsheet and metallurgical response for LOM grade
mineralisation. Testwork is on-going to fine tune the flowsheet and process conditions for UHG
mineralisation.

The response of the LG mineralisation has not been tested but is expected to be similar to that of LOM
mineralisation, however this needs to be confirmed with testwork.

Feed grade-recovery relationships need to be established while the metallurgical response of yearly
samples based on the mine schedule should be confirmed.

The flowsheet produces two concentrates, namely a gold rich copper concentrate and gold bearing
pyrite concentrate.
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Based on a feed grade of 9.59 g/t Au and 2.07 per cent. Cu, 92.7 per cent. of the copper and 68.3
per cent. of the gold was recovered to the copper concentrate. The concentrate had a mass recovery
of 7.98 per cent. and assayed 24.4 per cent. copper and 83.3 g/t Au.

The pyrite concentrate, with a mass recovery of 31.92 per cent., assayed 6.6 g/t Au and 42.2 per
cent. S, with a gold recovery of 20.4 per cent.

A better understanding of the gold losses to the final tailings needs to be developed for all mineralisation
types to understand the potential for improved gold recoveries. In addition, studies should be also
conducted to understand and control the recovery of zinc to the copper concentrate.

Comminution studies have been undertaken on a range of lithological composites, including the
material likely to be mined over the LOM period. The massive pyrite sample was soft (Bond Ball Mill
Work Index of 11kWh/t) and not overly abrasive (0.220). More comminution testwork is required on
samples based on the LOM mine schedule.

Settling studies have been conducted on the two concentrates and final tailings. Filtration rates and
the cake moisture content need to be determined for the two concentrates while paste thickener
studies need to be conducted for the flotation tailings. The Transportable Moisture Limit needs to be
established for the copper concentrate.

The main processing risk is that either a different flowsheet or processing conditions may be required
to handle the lower grade mineralisation, which represents 67 per cent. of the resource inventory.

The ability to sell the gold bearing pyrite concentrate needs to be further investigated and if
unsuccessful, then the development of a suitable flowsheet to recover the contained gold is indicated
if economic.

An opportunity for the project is the production of copper and zinc concentrates from the periphery
copper-zinc mineralisation.

5.11 Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estimates
(A) Mineable Quantity

The estimation of the mineable quantities for the Hot Maden deposit is based upon the following
considerations:

● mineral Resource block model dated June 2016 estimating tonnage, copper, gold, zinc and lead;

● mining method selection;

● cut-off grade calculations;

● geotechnical and hydrogeological information;

● stope and development designs;

● estimates for mining recovery and dilution;

● other modifying factors;

● the mineable quantities are based on the June 2016 RPM Resource update block model
(hotmaden_ok_20160713.mdl) and includes indicated and inferred resources from the block
model;

● a desktop geotechnical review has been completed by the Pitt & Sherry group on 23rd September
2016. The following comments have been made:

● basic core competency (RQD data) was available for all holes but the small quantity of oriented
drill holes precluded any significant geotechnical data being available at this stage. and as such
various geotechnical parameters have been derived either by:

❍ empirical analysis using variable rock mass engineering classifications (covering poor to
good ground conditions);

❍ common industry rules-of-thumb;

120

245087 Mariana pp099-pp143  16/05/2017  15:21  Page 120



● it is considered that the report provides enough data to allow for scoping level engineering design
assessment by the client (or their representative); and

● a key risk moving forward (for the Client) is the requirement for improved geotechnical data
collection and assessment.”

The marginal cut-off-grade (“COG”) for the Hot Maden deposit has been calculated using a Net Smelter
Return (“NSR”) value. NSR is calculated by subtracting the smelter treatment costs, refining charges
and transport costs from the concentrate revenue, and hence represents the net revenue of the product
at the “mine gate”.

Once the NSR is calculated, a range of cut-off grade values are applied to the stope optimisation
process (assuming the same mining method and production rates). High-level mine schedules are
completed for each COG assuming top-down, level by level extraction sequence. The stope
optimisation results are then evaluated in a financial model to generate a discounted cash flow and
post-tax NPV for each of the COG values. The information is then graphed as shown in Figure 5-6
and the preferred COG scenario selected according to the Project requirements.

Figure 5-6: Post Tax NPV by NSR Cut-Off Chart

The maximum NPV value shown in the chart aligns with the US$100 NSR cut-off for the 1.2 million
tonnes per annum (“Mtpa”) production scenario. However a conservative US$100 NSR cut-off at a
1Mtpa production scenario was selected as the preferred scenario for further mine planning.

Based on operational experience, the mining loss factor was estimated at 10 per cent. and has been
applied globally to the mined material. The unplanned mining dilution was estimated at 10 per cent.
and is also applied globally to the mined material. This figure is to account for over break and wall
slough and has been estimated based on operational experience. Unplanned dilution needs to be
reviewed as part of future geotechnical studies.

Planned mining dilution is material with a block value less that the NSR cut-off that is contained within
the practical stope designs. Practical mining parameters (such as minimum mining width and wall
angle) are applied to the design stope shapes during the optimisation process and as a result include
some waste rock where the stope shape cannot follow the deposit boundary. Planned dilution for Hot
Maden is estimated at 15 per cent. at zero grade.

The Hot Maden PEA has estimated the mineable quantities based on the US$100 NSR cut-off scenario
and modifying factors described above, refer to Table 5-8, Table 5-9 and Table 5-10.
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Table 5-8: PEA Mineable Quantities as at March 2017 – Total

Table 5-9: PEA Mineable Quantities as at March 2017 – Main Lode

Table 5-10: PEA Mineable Quantities as at March 2017 – Southern Lode

Notes:

Metal prices used in this estimate: US$1,250/Oz Au and US$2.75/lb Cu.
Inclusive of inferred material
Cut-off-grade for PEA, US$100 NSR
Undefined material represents planned dilution.
Rounding of figures may result in apparent discrepancies in some totals.

Note that the PEA is preliminary in nature as it includes Inferred Mineral Resources that are considered
too speculative geologically to have the economic considerations applied to them that would enable
them to be categorized as mineral reserves. Mineral Resources that are not mineral reserves do not
have demonstrated economic viability, and as such there is no certainty that the preliminary assessment
and economics will be realised.

5.12 Mining Operations
Open pit mining has been excluded from this study as recommended by the owners due to social,
environmental and mining regulatory considerations. Future studies are recommended to investigate open
pit mining opportunities. Mining method identification and selection for the Hot Maden deposit is controlled
by extrinsic and intrinsic constraints specific to this deposit and region.

Indicated 6.3 M 12.0 2.2 14.6 2.43 M 136 k 2.96 M 

Inferred 0.9 M 8.5 0.7 9.4 0.23 M 6 k 0.26 M 

Planned 0.2 M 0.0 0.0 0.0 – – –
Dilution 

Resource 

Classification 

ROM 

Tonnes 

(Mt) Au 

(g/t) 

Cu  

(per cent.)

AuEq 

(g/t) 

Au 

Ounces 

Cu 

Tonnes 

AuEq 

ounces 

Grade Contained Metal

Indicated 6.3 M 12.0 2.2 14.6 2.43 M 136 k 2.96 M 

Inferred 0.1 M 4.9 1.0 6.1 0.02 M 1 k 0.02 M 

Planned 0.1 M 0.0 0.0 0.0 – – –
Dilution 

Resource 

Classification 

ROM 

Tonnes 

(Mt) Au 

(g/t) 

Cu  

(per cent.)

AuEq 

(g/t) 

Au 

Ounces 

Cu 

Tonnes 

AuEq 

ounces 

Grade Contained Metal

Indicated – 0.0 0.0 0.0 – – –

Inferred 0.7 M 9.2 0.7 10.0 0.22 M 5 k 0.24 M

Planned 0.1 M 0.0 0.0 0.0 – – –
Dilution 

Resource 

Classification 

ROM 

Tonnes 

(Mt) Au 

(g/t) 

Cu  

(per cent.)

AuEq 

(g/t) 

Au 

Ounces 

Cu 

Tonnes 

AuEq 

ounces 

Grade Contained Metal
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It is RPM’s opinion that the following mining methods could be successfully implemented at the Hot Maden
project (i) longitudinal Cut-and-fill (CAF) – Conventional Drill and Blast; (ii) Drift and Fill (DAF) – Conventional
Drill and Blast; (iii) Room-and-pillar (RAP) – Conventional Drill and Blast; (iv) Long Hole Open Stoping
(“LHOS”) – with engineered fill; (v) LHOS – with pillars. These methods are suited to the geometry of the
orebody, are cost effective and can provide reasonable production rates.

The Hot Maden stope layout is divided into two main areas: Main and South. The Main area consists of the
wider portion of the deposit and as a result is modelled in a transverse LHOS layout. Stopes less than 20m
long and/or wide have been re-oriented to longitudinal layout for this area.

The South area of the Hot Maden deposit is thinner and has been modelled in a longitudinal LHOS layout.
This has been carried out so as to reduce the amount of capital development required to access the deposit.

The primary ventilation circuit was designed as a conventional negative pressure system. Primary fans will
be located on the surface and will be connected to a series of rises and drives, allowing exhaust air to be
drawn from the mining areas as required. The exhaust fans will pull fresh air into the mine though the decline,
and other intake rises.

A life-of-mine mine schedule has been completed for the US$100 NSR COG scenario assuming top-down,
development. It was assumed development of each level is carried out one year prior to production stoping.
No stockpiling has been assumed in the schedule.

Figure 5-11 shows the mined ROM tonnes along with grade profile for Au and Cu for the life of the mine
production schedule.

Figure 5-11: Underground Schedule 1.0Mtpa – Tonnes and Grade

5.13 Processing and Recovery Operations
Based on the metallurgical response of the LOM composite, HMT has proposed a conventional flowsheet
based on SAG-Ball milling comminution circuit followed by a two stage flotation circuit where a bulk sulphide
concentrate is recovered and processed to produce two separate concentrates.

In detail, mineralised material from the mine would be delivered to stockpiles allowing blending to occur.
Material would be recovered from the stockpiles by a Front End Loader and delivered to the primary jaw
crusher via a grizzly where oversize material would be removed. The discharge from the primary crusher
would be transferred to the crushed material stockpile for recovery to feed the SAG mill. The SAG mill
discharge would be screened to remove coarse particles for crushing by a pebble crusher and returned to
the SAG mill feed while the screen undersize would be classified in a nest of hydrocyclones. The
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hydrocyclone undersize would gravitate to a ball mill in closed circuit with the hydrocyclones. A portion of
the ball mill discharge would feed a gravity concentrator with the tailings reporting to the hydrocyclone feed.
It is likely that the gravity concentrate would be smelted to produce gold doré. The hydrocylone overflow
would be conditioned with reagents and floated in the bulk sulphide rougher, producing a concentrate for
further processing and a final tailings which be thickened in a paste thickener and dispatched to the pastefill
plant for underground use. Any excess tailings would be stored in the Tailings Storage Facility. The bulk
sulphide rougher concentrate would be reground to 80 per cent. passing 30 microns in lime, conditioned
with collector and floated in the copper rougher/scavenger flotation circuit where the copper rich concentrate
would be upgraded in three stages of cleaning to produce the final copper concentrate. The final copper
concentrate would be thickened and filtered and stockpiled, ready for shipment to market. The copper
rougher/scavenger tailings are the pyrite concentrate which is also thickened and filtered for dispatch to
market.

5.14 Infrastructure
5.14.1 Surface Infrastructure

5.14.1.1 Site Access and Service Infrastructure

It is likely that power would be sourced from either Ardanuç (32 km away from project site) via a new 34.5
KV power line or will be stepped down from 154 kV power line at the site location. Although two 154kV and
380kV overhead high tension power lines (154 kV & 380 kV) cross the property, the cost of stepping down
the voltage from these overhead power lines would likely be more expensive than either building a new
power line or upgrading the existing low tension power line that services the local villages. The project power
requirements are estimated to be 11.9MW. The source of water has not been confirmed and two options
appear to exist: a clean water storage pond at the upstream of the mineralisation body or local boreholes.
The quality and sustainability of either the clean water pond or boreholes are not known.

Artmin have conducted a study of the options for road access to the Project site and have been evaluating
options that requires the construction of tunnels and upgrading some parts of the current access road. A
more cost-effective option is being investigated.

5.14.1.2 Site Infrastructure

GR Engineering Services (GRES) are undertaking a site infrastructure study which includes the following:

● Mine and plant workshops;

● Warehouses and storage yard;

● Tailings storage facility (TSF);

● Reagent stores;

● Assay lab;

● Pastefill plant;

● Contractor facility area;

● Administration building and offices;

● Car parks;

● Ventilation shaft/fans;

● Industrial waste water treatment plant;

● Sewage water treatment facilities;

● Water diversion infrastructure;

● Nursery;

● Helicopter pad;

● Relocated burial site;

● Sub-station and;

● Worker and management accommodation.
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5.14.2 Underground Infrastructure

The mining operations will require significant services and facilities. The underground mine services include:

● Ventilation;

● Electrical power;

● Compressed air;

● Raw water supply; and

● Dewatering.

Underground facilities include:

● Explosives storage magazine;

● Service bay/Refuelling;

● Vehicle Wash-down;

● Underground offices and Lunchroom;

● Second means of egress, including refuge chambers;

● Mine communication system, and

● Mine roads.

A brief description is provided of the key infrastructure and the services required.

Electrical Power
Power to the underground mine will be provided via a feeder from the surface substation to the decline.
From here power will be distributed to the surface fans and fed to the underground sub-stations where
it will be stepped down for underground use.

During the initial development phase, the electrical supply will be powered from a sub-station located
at the mine portal. As the mine develops the high voltage lines will then be suspended down a series
of bore holes and vent rises.

Compressed Air
Compressed air is required for production drilling, pneumatic tools, charging operations, shotcreting
and miscellaneous service crew requirements. Compressed air will be produced via skid mounted
compressors and fed to the mine via the decline.

Raw Water Supply
Raw water supply will be reticulated via the decline and other infrastructure development (including
vent rises, service holes etc.).

Dewatering
For the purposes of this Study a single central system located at the base of the mine was assumed.
It is expected that this system would be staged down as the mine progresses and the pumps relocated
to the new sumps. Lateral drains from dirty water sumps on the levels would transfer to the main
central settling sump. Smaller submersible pumps may be required on the edges to move the slurry
to a central sump to drain down to the main dirty water sump.

The dewatering system indicated above does not allow for any additional drainage development that
might be required, should major aquifers present more water. Should additional development be
required costs will increase accordingly.

Service Bay/Refuelling
An underground service bay suitable for housing heavy mining equipment will be required to facilitate
the maintenance of mobile mining equipment underground. Major servicing of heavy mining equipment
will be carried out on the surface.
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Underground refuelling will occur at the service bay.

Vehicle wash-down
A vehicle wash-down concrete pad will be required. Suitable drainage for this site will be required to
maintain the area free of pooling water. The wash-down pad will be located adjacent to the heavy
equipment workshop.

Underground offices and Lunchroom
Allowance has been made for an underground office/lunch room for underground personnel. This will
be located close to the underground service bays to ensure close communication between
maintenance and operation personnel.

Explosive storage magazine
A secured explosive magazine compound will be required. Primary explosives and blasting agents will
be sourced from a licenced producer and brought to site by road, it will then be stored at the explosives
magazine until required.

Second means of egress and Refuge chambers
Second means of egress for the mine will be via ventilation raises utilising modular escape-way ladders.
Self-contained and moveable refuge chambers will be located in areas where a second means of
egress cannot be provided.

Mine communication system
Allowance has been made for a VHF leaky feeder system. All mobile equipment will be equipped with
radio sets.

Mine roads
No assessment has been made of the surface road requirements until the portal and location of other
surface facilities is considered in more detail.

Capital Costs
Capital and Operating Costs
Preliminary capital and operating costs have been estimated by RPM from the proposed mine plan to a
level of accuracy of +35%. This approach is commensurate with a PEA.

The total capital costs are set out in Table 5-12.

Table 5-12: Total Project Capital Costs

Mine Capital Costs

Total mining capital expenditure for a 1.0 Mtpa operation is estimated to be USD122 million comprising
USD43.9 million initial capital and USD78.1 million sustaining capital. The mining capital cost breakdown is
shown in Table 5-13. The basis for the cost estimate is contractor mining with the contractor providing all
mobile fleet (and minor fixed plant) and the owner providing all major fixed plant.

Capital Costs 
Initial 

(USDM) 

Sustaining 

(USDM) 

Total 

(USDM) 

Mining & Infrastructure 43.9 78.1 122.0 

Processing & Infrastructure 

On-site 79.9 0.8   80.7 

 Off-site   45.3   13.1     58.4 

 2.162 1.29 1.961 latoT
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Table 5-13: Mining and Infrastructure Capital Costs

Processing and Infrastructure

The total processing and infrastructure capital costs for a 1.0 Mtpa operation are estimated at USD140 million
comprising USD126 million initial capital and USD14 million sustaining capital. The capital cost estimate
breakdown for both processing and infrastructure is presented in Table 5-14.

Conventional methodology has been used to estimate the capital based on in-house data and factoring.
The estimate is on based on the proposed HMT flowsheet and LOM feed grade. The estimate also assumes
the use of Western equipment, construction methods and project management, 

Infrastructure costs for the road to site as well as the water treatment were obtained from the study being
undertaken by GRES and reported by AMC.

Table 5-14: Processing and Infrastructure Capital Cost Estimate

Mining & Infrastructure Capital Costs 
Initial 

(USDM) 

Sustaining 

(USDM) 

Total 

(USDM) 

Development and Access 14.0 61.2 75.2 

Infrastructure 16.0 1.0 18.0 

Services 3.7 1.3 6.3 

Other 2.0 – 2.0 

Contingency @ 20% 7.1 12.7 19.8 

Sustaining Capital @ 2.5% 1.1 1.9 3.0 

Total 43.9 78.1 122.0 

Processing & Infrastructure Capital Cost 
Initial 

(USDM) 

Sustaining 

(USDM) 

Total 

(USDM) 

On-site     

Buildings 21 0 21 

Earthworks and Civils 7.4 0 7.4 

Mobile Plant 1.6 0 1.6 

Plant Equipment 0 0 0 

Process Equipment 12 13.1 25.1 

Water treatment plant 13.8 0 13.8 

General 2.9 0 2.9 

Vendor Representative 0.1 0 0.1 

EPCM (12%) 6.7 0 6.7 

Contingency (20%) 13 0 13 

Owner's Costs 2.5 0.8 3.3 

Sub-total 81 13.9 94.9 

Off-site 

Road to site 28 – 28 

Road (water pipeline access) 1.1 – 1.1 

Power 5.9 – 5.9 

Water 2.6 – 2.6 

Contingency (20%) 7.5 – 7.5 

Sub-total 45.1 0 45.1 

Processing & Infrastructure Total 126.1 13.9 140.0 
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Operating Costs
The total project operating costs have been estimated, a summary of these is shown in below in Table 5-15.

Table 5-15: Total Project Operating Cost

Mining Operating Costs

The basis for the cost estimate is contractor mining and owner estimates for management of the operation.
Owner estimates for management of the operation are included in Table 5-15.

The total mine operating costs are estimated at USD31.10/t Mill Feed. This includes a 15 per cent.
contingency.

Process and Admin Operating Costs

A conventional methodology has been used to assemble the operating costs, and where possible, based
on estimated quantities and current unit costs. A manning schedule was prepared based on typical local
salaries and likely on-costs, while transport costs and insurance has been included in the unit consumable
pricing. The total processing power requirement was estimated to be 35kWh/t (HMT estimated the
comminution specific power requirement to be 20.2 kWh/t) and unit power cost was based on
USD0.06/kWh.

The operating costs for Water Treatment, Corporate Support and Finance and Community and Other are
based on AMC estimates.

Based on a 1.0 Mtpa operation treating LOM feed grade employing the flowsheet proposed by HMT, a
processing and administration operating cost of USD25.31/t Mill Feed has been estimated. This includes a
15 per cent. contingency.

Taxes and Royalties
Applicable royalties for the Hot Maden project are shown in Table 5-16 below:

Table 5-16: Applicable Royalties

A flat tax rate of 20 per cent. has been applied to the economic analysis; no depreciation schedule has
been developed.

5.15 Statement of Mineral Resources
The Mineral Resource estimate for the Hot Maden project is classified as Indicated and Inferred Mineral
Resource categories as at 22 June 2016. The Mineral Resource has been completed by RPM in accordance
with the recommended guidelines of the JORC Code (2012 edition).

The classification is based on data quality, sample spacing, and lode continuity. The Mineral Resource is
reported at a cut-off grade of 2 g/t AuEq. The high grade nature of the mineralisation and the substantial
thickness and size of the deposit suggests that the Project has potential for eventual economic extraction
using open pit and/or underground mining techniques. Cut-off grade parameters were selected based on

Item 
Operating Cost 

(USD/t ROM Mill Feed) 

Mining Costs  31.05 

Processing Costs  15.13 

Administration  10.18 

Sales Cost  29.57 

Royalty 19.88 

Total  105.81 

Government Royalty  (NSR) 2.6% 

Sandstorm Royalty  (NSR) 2.0% 
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an RPM internal cut-off calculator, which estimated a break-even cut-off grade of 2.1 g/t AuEq, assuming
a gold price of US$1,215 per ounce.

The Hot Maden Mineral Resource is separated into the Main deposit and the South deposit at 4,541,955 mN.
The Hot Maden Mineral Resource Estimate, as at June 2016, is summarised in Table 5-17 and Table 5-18.

Table 5-17: Hot Maden Main Deposit June 2016 Mineral Resource Estimate (2 g/t AuEq Cut-off)

Notes:

1. The Statement of Estimates of Mineral Resources has been compiled under the supervision of Stewart Coates who is a part-time
employee of RPM and a Member of the Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of the Province of British
Columbia. Stewart Coates has sufficient experience that is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under
consideration and to the activity that he has undertaken to qualify as a Competent Person as defined under the JORC Code
which is accepted as a Foreign Code by CIM and NI 43-101.There are no material differences between the definitions of Measured,
Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources under the CIM Definition Standards and the equivalent definitions in the JORC Code.
The Resource would report the same quantities to the same classifications under both the CIM Definition Standards and the
JORC Code.

2. All Mineral Resources figures reported in the table above represent estimates based on drilling completed up to 22 June 2016.
Mineral Resource estimates are not precise calculations, being dependent on the interpretation of limited information on the
location, shape and continuity of the occurrence and on the available sampling results. The totals contained in the above table
have been rounded to reflect the relative uncertainty of the estimate. Rounding may cause some computational discrepancies.

3. *AuEq calculated using a 100 day moving average of US$1,215/ounce for Au and US$2.13/pound for Cu as of 29 May 2016. No
adjustment has been made for metallurgical recovery or Net Smelter Return as these remain uncertain at this time. Based on
grades and contained metal for Au and Cu, it is assumed that both commodities have reasonable potential to be economically
extractable.
a. The formula used for AuEq grade is: AuEq g/t = Au + [(Cu per cent. x 22.0462 x 2.13)/(1215/31.1035)] and assumes 100

per cent. metallurgical recovery.

Tonnes 

t 

Au 

g/t 

Cu 

 per 

cent. 

Zn 

 per 

cent. 

AuEqa 

g/t 

Au 

Ounces

Cu 

Tonnes

AuEqb 

Ounces

Main Zone LG 463,000 1.1 1.1 0.3 2.4 17k 5k 36k 

Main Zone HG 4,501,000 3.9 1.9 0.2 6.3 570k 87k 908k 

Main Zone UHG 2,086,000 32.7 3.5 0.1 36.9 2,195k 73k 2,476k 

Mixed Gold-Zinc 17,000 7.5 3.1 3.6 11.2 4k 1k 6k
Zone 

Peripheral Lodes 60,000 2.1 0.4 0.4 2.5 4k  5k 

Total 7,127,000 12.2 2.3 0.2 15.0 2,790k 166k 3,431k

Domain Indicated Mineral Resource

Tonnes 

t 

Au 

g/t 

Cu 

 per 

cent. 

Zn 

 per 

cent. 

AuEqa 

g/t 

Au 

Ounces

Cu 

Tonnes

AuEqb 

Ounces

Main Zone LG 395,000 1.7 0.9 0.03 2.8 21k 4k 35k 

Main Zone HG 31,000 3.9 1.6 0.1 5.8 4k  6k 

Main Zone UHG 6,000 39.1 2.1 0.01 41.6 7k  8k

Mixed Gold-Zinc 4,000 1.7 0.4 2.4 2.2 
Zone 

Peripheral Lodes 282,000 3.2 0.9 0.1 4.3 29k 2k 38k

Total 718,000 2.7 0.9 0.1 3.8 62k 7k 88k

Domain Inferred Mineral Resource
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b. AuEq ounces are calculated by multiplying Mineral Resource tonnage by Au equivalent grade and converting for ounces.
The formula used for AuEq ounces is: AuEq Oz = [Tonnage x AuEq grade (g/t)]/31.1035.

4. Mineral Resource grades are estimated in accordance with the JORC Code.
5. Mineral Resources are reported on a dry in-situ basis.
6. LG = low grade, HG = high grade and UHG = ultra-high grade.
7. Reported at a 2g/t AuEq cut-off. Cut-off parameters were selected based on an RPM internal cut-off calculator, which indicated

that a break-even cut-off grade of 2.1g/t Au Equivalent, assuming a gold price of US$1,215 per ounce, a mining cost of US$55
per tonne and a processing cost of US$25 per tonne.

8. Mineral Resources referred to above, have not been subject to detailed economic analysis and therefore, have not been
demonstrated to have actual economic viability.

Table 5-18: Hot Maden South Deposit June 2016 Inferred Mineral Resource Estimate 
(2g/t AuEq Cut-off)

Notes:

1. The Statement of Estimates of Mineral Resources has been compiled under the supervision of Stewart Coates who is a part-time
employee of RPM and a Member of the Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of the Province of British
Columbia. Stewart Coates has sufficient experience that is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under
consideration and to the activity that he has undertaken to qualify as a Competent Person as defined under the JORC Code
which is accepted as a Foreign Code by CIM and NI 43-101.There are no material differences between the definitions of Measured,
Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources under the CIM Definition Standards and the equivalent definitions in the JORC Code.
The Resource would report the same quantities to the same classifications under both the CIM Definition Standards and the
JORC Code.

2. All Mineral Resources figures reported in the table above represent estimates based on drilling completed up to 22 June 2016.
Mineral Resource estimates are not precise calculations, being dependent on the interpretation of limited information on the
location, shape and continuity of the occurrence and on the available sampling results. The totals contained in the above table
have been rounded to reflect the relative uncertainty of the estimate. Rounding may cause some computational discrepancies.

3. *AuEq calculated using a 100 day moving average of US$1,215/ounce for Au and US$2.13/pound for Cu as of 29 May 2016. No
adjustment has been made for metallurgical recovery or net smelter return as these remain uncertain at this time. Based on grades
and contained metal for Au and Cu, it is assumed that both commodities have reasonable potential to be economically extractable.
a. The formula used for AuEq grade is: AuEq g/t = Au + [(Cu per cent. x 22.0462 x 2.13)/(1215/31.1035)] and assumes 100

per cent. metallurgical recovery.
b. AuEq ounces are calculated by multiplying Mineral Resource tonnage by Au equivalent grade and converting for ounces.

The formula used for Au equivalent ounces is: AuEq Oz = [Tonnage x AuEq grade (g/t)]/31.1035.
4. Mineral Resource grades are estimated in accordance with the JORC Code.
5. Mineral Resources are reported on a dry in-situ basis.
6. LG = low grade, HG = high grade and UHG = ultra-high grade.
7. Reported at a 2g/t AuEq cut-off. Cut-off parameters were selected based on an RPM internal cut-off calculator, which indicated

that a break-even cut-off grade of 2.1g/t Au Equivalent, assuming a gold price of US$1,215 per ounce, a mining cost of US$55
per tonne and a processing cost of US$25 per tonne.

8. Mineral Resources referred to above, have not been subject to detailed economic analysis and therefore, have not been
demonstrated to have actual economic viability.

To assist in reporting the Mineral Resources in a transparent manner, Mariana requested that RPM report a
gold equivalent value for the block model. AuEq was calculated using a 100 day moving average of
US$1,215/ounce for gold and US$2.13/pound for copper as of 29 May 2016. No adjustment has been
made for metallurgical recovery or net smelter return as these remain uncertain at this time. Based on grades

Tonnes 

t 

Au 

g/t 

Cu 

 per 

cent. 

Zn 

 per 

cent. 

AuEqa 

g/t 

Au 

Ounces

Cu 

Tonnes

AuEqb 

Ounces

South Zone LG 396,000 2.8 0.7 0.0 3.6 35k 3k 46k

South Zone HG 583,000 5.3 0.7 0.0 6.1 98k 4k 114k

South Zone UHG 224,000 22.2 1.0 0.0 23.4 160k 2k 169k

Mixed Gold-Zinc 44,000 9.0 1.0 3.2 10.2 13k  15k
Zone 

Peripheral Lodes 104,000 1.9 0.3 0.0 2.2 6k  7k

Total 1,352,000 7.2 0.7 0.1 8.1 313k 10k 351k

Domain Inferred Mineral Resource
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and contained metal for gold and copper, it is assumed that both commodities have reasonable potential
to be economically extractable.

The formula used for AuEq grade is: AuEq g/t = Au + [(Cu per cent. x 22.0462 x 2.13)/(1215/31.1035)] and
is not adjusted for assumed metallurgical recovery.

AuEq ounces are calculated by multiplying Mineral Resource tonnage by AuEq grade and converting for
ounces. The formula used for AuEq ounces is: AuEq Oz = [Tonnage x AuEq grade (g/t)]/31.1035.

No allowances have been made for recovery losses that may occur should mining eventually result. Mariana
requested that RPM estimate a Mineral Resource for Zn.

5.16 Exploration, Development and Production – Recommendations
The recommendations provided are based on observations made during the site visit and subsequent
geological, mining and metallurgical reviews and Mineral Resource estimate detailed in paragraph 5.11 of
section B of this Part Nine.

● Approximately 20 per cent. of the Hot Maden Project has been classified as Inferred Mineral Resource,
of this material, approximately 12 per cent. reports within the stope optimisation shapes. RPM
recommends infill drilling to increase confidence and upgrade the existing Inferred Mineral Resource
and associated Mineable Quantities, focussing on the highest grade portions.

● Further monitoring of the slight bias observed in high grade assays at the ALS Laboratory is
recommended. RPM recommends more frequent use of the base metal standards to closely monitor
the base metal assays.

● RPM recommends that Lidya and Mariana continue recording density measurements, ensuring that
the density measurement intervals correspond directly with geological logging and sampling intervals.
It is recommended that density measurements are obtained from all 1 m intervals through the
mineralised zone in order to continue compiling a significant density dataset.

● At the Main deposit, extensional drilling along strike to the north of HTD-052 on section 4,542,250mN
is recommended.

● At the Main deposit, it appears as though the highest grade zones are closed off by drilling. However,
RPM recommends employing a specialist structural geologist in order to understand the potential for
faulted blocks of mineralisation that may be offset from the known zones.

● At the South deposit, extensional drilling down-dip on sections 4,541,860mN and 4,541,900mN, along
strike to the north of 4,541,900mN, and along strike to the south of 4,541,860mN is recommended.
Detailed structural analysis of the core by an experienced structural geological consultant is
recommended to enhance understanding of geological controls and mineralisation geometries.

● RPM estimates that the contribution by Mariana towards drilling and associated works for the
2016/2017 year is estimated to cost approximately US$2.64 million and is summarised in Table 5-19.
This planned program is partially executed at the date of this Resource.
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Table 5-19: Preliminary Total Budget from 1 July 2016- 31 December 2017 (Partially Completed)

● Further work on Hot Maden should proceed to a Pre-feasibility level of study which would include, but
not be limited to:

❍ resource drilling, interpretation and modelling;

❍ hydrological studies;

❍ geotechnical studies including detailed review of available data and numerical modelling of mining
layouts and extraction sequences;

❍ mining studies taking into account the updated resource estimate, geotechnical assessments,
initial hydrological investigations and rationalised cost parameters;

❍ metallurgical testwork and studies;

❍ review of G&A assumptions;

❍ review of concentrate freight, smelting and refining assumptions; and

❍ environmental studies including testwork related to acid forming potential of sulphide waste and
a review of TSF capacity requirements in relation to back fill requirements.

This work would be conducted by various Mining and Technical Consultants at an overall estimated cost of
US$5 million.

 

Activity 2016 Qtr3 2016 Qtr4 2017 

 

Exploration & Development* 1,175,000 1,425,000 4,500,000 

Capex – Fixed Assets 141,000 1,000 750,000

Opex 300,000 355,000 1,050,000

Project Engineering & Development** 546,000 600,000 2,500,000

Grand Total (JV) 2,162,000 2,381,000 8,800,000

Mariana Share 30 per cent. 648,600 714,300 2,640,000

*includes drilling 5,000m 5,000m 20,000m

**Environmental Baseline and Pre-Feasibility Studies 

Amount US$
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Section C – Risk Factors

In addition to all of the other information set out in this document, Mariana Shareholders should carefully
consider the following Risk Factors and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.
Mariana Shareholders should consult a legal adviser, an independent financial adviser duly authorised under
the FSMA, or a tax adviser for legal, financial or tax advice.

1. Risks relating to Sandstorm
An investment in Sandstorm Shares is subject to certain risks. The board of directors of Sandstorm believes
that the factors set out under the heading ‘RISK FACTORS’ on pages 20 to 31 of the Sandstorm Annual
Information Form (available at http://www.sandstormgold.com/_resources/transaction/Annual-Information-
Form-Sandstorm.pdf) (which are incorporated by reference into this document) (the “Risk Factors”) represent
the current material risks inherent in holding the New Sandstorm Shares; however, the business, financial
condition, results, operations or share price of Sandstorm may be materially and adversely affected by other
factors which are currently not known to Sandstorm.

2. Risks relating to the Combination
Mariana Shareholders should also note that the Combination is subject to, among other things, the approval
by the independent Mariana Shareholders of the Retention Arrangements. RFC Ambrian consider the
Retention Arrangements to be fair and reasonable as far as the independent Mariana Shareholders are
concerned. Sandstorm considers the Retention Arrangements to be critical to the success of the
Combination and, therefore, if the independent Mariana Shareholders do not pass the relevant resolution at
the Extraordinary General Meeting approving those arrangements, Sandstorm may (at its absolute discretion)
seek to invoke Condition 6 of Part A in Part Three (Conditions and Certain Further Terms of the Scheme
and to the Combination) of this document, which, with the consent of the Panel, would result in the
Combination being withdrawn.
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Section D – Pro-Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

SANDSTORM GOLD LTD.

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
(UNAUDITED)
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at DECEMBER 31, 2016

Expressed in U.S. dollars ($000s) unaudited

Mariana Sandstorm
Resources Gold Ltd.

Sandstorm Ltd. Pro Forma Pro Forma
Gold Ltd. (see note 7(a)) Note 4 Adjustments Consolidated

Cash and cash equivalents 21,434 6,325 (d) (27,759) –
Trade receivables and other 6,663 422 – 7,085

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

28,097 6,747 (27,759) 7,085

Mineral interests and royalties 402,785 – – 402,785
Investments 61,293 – (a) (10,668) 50,625
Deferred financing costs 1,935 – – 1,935
Loan receivables 23,357 – – 23,357
Deferred income tax assets 16,934 – – 16,934
Deferred exploration costs – 6,809 – 6,809
Investment in an associate – 2,133 (b) 155,132 157,265
Receivables and other 481 1,039 – 1,520

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

534,882 16,728 116,705 668,315
–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Trade and other payables 4,289 1,074 – 5,363

Bank debt – – (d)(e) 18,047 18,047
Deferred income tax liabilities 3,288 – – 3,288

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

3,288 – 18,047 26,698

Share Capital 573,085 153 (c) (153) 687,933
(d) 114,848

Share Premium account – 57,744 (c) (57,744) –
Reserves 23,915 13,227 (c) (13,227) 23,915
Deficit (35,672) (55,569) (a)(c)(e) 52,735 (38,506)
Other comprehensive income (34,023) 99 (a) 2,199 (31,725)

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

527,305 15,654 98,658 641,617
–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 534,882 16,728 116,705 668,315

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at MARCH 31, 2017

Expressed in U.S. dollars ($000s) unaudited

Mariana Sandstorm
Resources Gold Ltd.

Sandstorm Ltd. Pro Forma Pro Forma
Gold Ltd. (see note 7(a)) Note 4 Adjustments Consolidated

Cash and cash equivalents 32,038 6,325 (d) (38,363) –
Short-term investments 3,355 – – 3,355
Trade receivables and other 7,639 422 – 8,061

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

43,032 6,747 (38,363) 11,416

Mineral interests and royalties 393,503 – – 393,503
Investments 96,561 – (a) (10,535) 86,026
Deferred financing costs 1,791 – – 1,791
Loan receivables – – – –
Deferred income tax assets 15,298 – – 15,298
Deferred exploration costs – 6,809 – 6,809
Investment in an associate – 2,133 (b) 155,132 157,265
Receivables and other 157 1,039 – 1,196

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

550,342 16,728 106,234 673,304
–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Trade and other payables 4,216 1,074 – 5,290

Bank debt – – (d)(e) 7,443 7,443
Deferred income tax liabilities 3,197 – – 3,197

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

3,197 – 7,443 15,930

Share Capital 573,302 153 (c) (153) 688,150
(d) 114,848

Share Premium account – 57,744 (c) (57,744) –
Reserves 24,717 13,227 (c) (13,227) 24,717
Deficit (28,708) (55,569) (a)(c)(e) 52,796 (31,481)
Other comprehensive income (26,382) 99 (a)(c) 2,271 (24,012)

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

542,929 15,654 98,791 657,374
–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 550,342 16,728 106,234 673,304

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––
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PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
for the year ended DECEMBER 31, 2016

Expressed in U.S. dollars ($000s) unaudited

Mariana Sandstorm
Resources Gold Ltd.

Sandstorm Ltd. Pro Forma Pro Forma
Gold Ltd. (see note 7(a)) Note 4 Adjustments Consolidated

Sales 41,634 – – 41,634
Royalty revenue 20,737 – – 20,737

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

62,371 – – 62,371

Cost of sales, excluding depletion 12,834 – – 12,834
Depletion 27,654 – – 27,654

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Total cost of sales 40,488 – – 40,488

Gross profit 21,883 – – 21,883

Expenses and other (income)
Administration expense 5,031 3,311 – 8,342
Project evaluation 5,064 – (e) – 5,064
Foreign exchange gain 87 (582) – (495)
Gain on revaluation of 
investments (22,093) 156 (a) (1,166) (23,103)
Finance income (2,598) (16) – (2,614)
Finance expense 4,100 – – 4,100
(Loss) on associate – 523 – 523
Mineral, royalty interest and 
other impairment 2,507 3,111 – 5,618

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Income (loss) from operations 29,785 (6,503) 2,609 24,448
Income tax expense 4,531 – – 4,531

–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Net income (loss) for the period 25,254 (6,503) 2,609 19,917
–––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––– –––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.18 (0.06) 0.11
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.17 (0.06) 0.11

Weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding
Basic 144,159,678 108,765,335 (73,098,239) 179,826,774
Diluted 149,961,923 108,765,335 (73,098,239) 185,629,019
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NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Expressed in U.S. dollars ($000s)/unaudited

1. Basis of Presentation
These unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in connection
with the proposed acquisition by Sandstorm Gold Ltd. (“Sandstorm Gold” or the “Company”) of 100 per
cent. of the outstanding common shares of Mariana Resources Ltd. (“Mariana”). All amounts are expressed
in United States dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except otherwise indicated. The
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of financial position of Sandstorm Gold as at
December 31, 2016 and the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of income for the
year ended December 31, 2016 have been prepared, for illustrative purposes only, to give effect to the
acquisition of 100 per cent. of the outstanding common shares of Mariana by Sandstorm Gold pursuant to
the assumptions described in notes 3 and 4 of these unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial
statements. These unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared
based on financial statements which were in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”) and have been compiled from the
following historical information:

(a) A pro forma condensed consolidated statement of financial position combining:

(i) The audited consolidated statement of financial position of Sandstorm Gold as at December 31,
2016; and

(ii) The audited consolidated statement of financial position of Mariana as at December 31, 2016.

(b) A pro forma condensed consolidated statement of financial position combining:

(i) The unaudited consolidated statement of financial position of Sandstorm Gold as at March 31,
2017; and

(ii) The audited consolidated statement of financial position of Mariana as at December 31, 2016
with the assumption no material changes have occurred in Mariana’s consolidated statement of
financial position between December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017.

(c) A pro forma condensed consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2016
combining:

(i) The audited consolidated statement of income of Sandstorm Gold for the year ended
December 31, 2016; and

(ii) The audited consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss of Mariana for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

The pro forma consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016 has been prepared as
if the transactions described in notes 3 and 4 had occurred on December 31, 2016. The pro forma
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2017 has been prepared as if the transactions
described in notes 3 and 4 had occurred on March 31, 2017. The pro forma condensed consolidated
statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2016 has been prepared as if the transactions
described in notes 3 and 4 had occurred on January 1, 2016.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are not intended to reflect the
financial performance or the financial position of Sandstorm Gold, which would have actually resulted had
the transactions been effected on the dates indicated. Actual amounts recorded upon consummation of
the agreement will likely differ from those recorded in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated
financial statements. Similarly, the calculation of the purchase price and determination of the fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been prepared on a preliminary basis and are subject to
change as a result of several factors, which could include among others, changes in the underlying estimates
used in this assessment. The pro forma financial information is not necessarily indicative of the future financial
performance following the proposed transaction.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements of Sandstorm Gold for the year ended December 31, 2016
and the notes thereto, the unaudited consolidated financial statements of Sandstorm Gold for the three
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months ended March 31, 2017 and the notes thereto, and the audited consolidated financial statements of
Mariana for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the notes thereto.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated
financial statements are those set out in Sandstorm Gold’s audited consolidated financial statements as at
December 31, 2016. In preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements, a
review was undertaken to identify accounting policy differences between Sandstorm Gold and Mariana
where the impact was potentially material. The significant accounting policies of Mariana conform in all
material respects to those of Sandstorm Gold.

3. Pro Forma Business Combination Accounting
On April 25, 2017, Sandstorm Gold announced that it had entered into an arrangement agreement (the
“Arrangement Agreement”) pursuant to which Sandstorm Gold would acquire 100 per cent. of the
outstanding common shares in the capital of Mariana (the “Mariana Shares”) by way of a court-sanctioned
Scheme of arrangement under Part VIII (the “Scheme”).

Upon completion of the Arrangement, the shareholders of Mariana, other than Sandstorm Gold, received
common shares of Sandstorm Gold (the “Sandstorm Shares”) on the basis of 0.2573 of a Sandstorm Share,
and 28.75 pence in cash for each one Mariana Share held. Based on Sandstorm Gold’s closing share price
on May 4, 2017, the total value of the share consideration to acquire the common shares of Mariana not
already owned by Sandstorm was approximately $114.9 million, with an additional cash payment for $51.5
million less $9.7 million representing cash received from exercises of Mariana warrants and options. The
total purchase price, excluding the value of Mariana common shares previously owned by Sandstorm, was
$156.7 million. This assumes that all share options priced below 109.71 pence/share, and all warrants and
share bonus awards are exercised at the time of purchase, with the same consideration as received for
outstanding shares.

In accordance with IFRS 3 – Business Combinations, the total consideration of $170.8 million was comprised
of the Sandstorm Gold shares issued of $114.9 million, a cash payment of $51.5 million less $9.7 million
cash received from exercises of warrants and options and $14.1 million of Mariana shares and warrants
already owned by Sandstorm Gold. In addition, the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were as follows:

Consideration:

Sandstorm Shares issued (35,667,096 common shares) $114,848
Cash Paid 51,497
Cash received on exercise of warrants/options (9,691)
Mariana Shares owned by Sandstorm Gold 14,133

––––––––––––

$170,787
––––––––––––––––––––––––

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash and cash equivalents $6,325
Trade receivables and other 422
Deferred exploration costs 6,809
Investment in an associate 157,265
Receivable and other 839
Property, plant and equipment 200
Trade and other payables (953)
Provisions (120)

––––––––––––

$170,787
––––––––––––––––––––––––

The transaction is anticipated to be accounted for as a business combination, but will be finalized once a
complete evaluation has been performed. For the purposes of preparing these consolidated pro forma

139

245087 Mariana pp099-pp143  16/05/2017  15:21  Page 139



consolidated financial statements, the value of the Sandstorm Gold common shares issued was calculated
at a price of USD $3.22, representing Sandstorm Gold’s closing price on May 4, 2017.

Sandstorm Gold has estimated the fair value of the assets acquired to be equal to their carrying value except
for the interest in an associate which were estimated to have a fair value of $157.3 million.

The Company will complete a valuation of the fair value of the net assets of Mariana acquired. Therefore, it
is likely that the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will vary from those shown above
and the differences may be material. The determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed is based upon management’s preliminary estimates and certain assumptions. The actual fair values
of the assets and liabilities may differ materially from the amounts disclosed above as further analysis is
completed. Consequently, the actual fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed may be
different than those in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements.

4. Pro Forma Business Combination Adjustments
The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of financial position reflects the following
adjustments as if the business combination of Mariana had occurred on December 31, 2016.

(a) To remove investment value of Mariana shares and warrants previously owned, and record difference
of investment value as a gain on investments, pro-rated between Statement of Profit and Loss, and
Other Comprehensive Income, for total consideration of $14.1 million.

(b) To increase the carrying value of Mariana’s Investment in Associate by $157.3 million to its fair value.

(c) To eliminate Mariana’s share capital, deficit, and reserves.

(d) To record the issuance of 35,667,096 Sandstorm Shares in exchange for the Mariana common shares
not already owned by Sandstorm Gold for consideration of $156.7 million.

(e) Transaction costs incurred in connection with the business combination are estimated to be $4 million
and have been reflected in the pro forma adjustments.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31,
2016 reflects the following adjustments as if the business combination of Mariana had occurred on
January 1, 2016.

(f) The gain/loss recognized on Mariana shares and warrants previously owned by Sandstorm was
nominal in the year and has not been adjusted in the pro forma adjustments.

5. Pro Forma Weighted Shares Outstanding
The weighted average shares outstanding for Sandstorm Gold have been adjusted to reflect the additional
shares resulting from the transaction described in notes 3 and 4 effective January 1, 2016.

Year ended
December 31,

2016

Basic weighted average number of common shares 144,159,678
Shares issued for acquisition of Mariana 35,667,096

––––––––––––––

Pro forma basic weighted average number of common shares 179,826,774
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Diluted weighted average number of common shares 149,961,923
Shares issued for acquisition of Mariana 35,667,096

––––––––––––––

Pro forma diluted weighted average number of common shares 185,629,019
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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6. Capital Stock
Sandstorm Gold’s issued number of common shares as at December 31, 2016 has been adjusted to reflect
the additional shares of the Company issued resulting from the transaction described in note 3 and 4 as
follows:

Sandstorm Gold issued common shares as part of the transaction described in notes 3 and 4 at
December 31, 2016 as follows:

December 31,
2016

Issued and outstanding 151,931,282
Shares issued for acquisition of Mariana 35,667,096

––––––––––––––

Pro forma balance, December 31, 2016 187,598,378
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

7. Conversion of Mariana Historical Financial Statements to United States Dollars
These unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollars unless otherwise stated. Accordingly, the financial information of Mariana used to construct the
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements, including the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statement of loss for the year ended
December 31, 2016 were converted from Pounds Sterling (“GBP”) to United States dollars using the
following exchange rates, which are reflective of the exchange rates for the periods presented:

As at December 31, 2016 – $1.2339

For the year ended December 31, 2016 – $1.3557

Mariana has not issued interim statements for March 31, 2017, therefore December 31, 2016 figures have
been used for both pro-forma statements on December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017. The change in
foreign exchange rate for that time period would not have a material impact.
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(a) Mariana consolidated statement of financial position at December 31, 2016, translated at the rate of
$1.2339.

December 31, December 31,
2016 2016
(GBP) (USD)

Cash and cash equivalents 5,126 6,325
Other receivables and prepayments 342 422

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

5,468 6,747

Deferred exploration costs 5,518 6,809
Property, plant and equipment 162 200(1)

Investment in subsidiaries – –
Goodwill 44 54
Investment in an associate 1,729 2,133
Other receivables 636 7851

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

13,557 16,728
–––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Trade and other payables 772 953(2)

Provisions 97 120(2)

Finance lease liability 1 1(2)

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

870 1,074

Equity
Issued share capital 124 153
Share premium account 46,798 57,744
Other components of equity 10,720 13,227
Accumulated losses (45,035) (55,569)

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 12,607 15,555
–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Non-controlling interests 80 99
Total equity 12,687 15,654

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Total liabilities and equity 13,557 16,728
–––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

(1) Sum of amount has been included as “Receivable and other” on Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position

(2) Sum of amount has been included as “Trade and other payables” on Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position
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(b) Mariana consolidated statement of comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2016,
translated at the rate of $1.3557.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,

2016 2016
(GBP) (USD)

Employee and directors benefits expense (1,472) (1,996)
Professional services expense (497) (674)(3)

Marketing expense (141) (191)(3)

Administrative and other expense (108) (146)(3)

Travel expense (161) (218)(3)

Occupancy expense (38) (52)(3)

Impairment/write off of deferred exploration costs (2,251) (3,052)
Depreciation expense (25) (34)(3)

Exchange losses 649 880
(Loss)/gain on associate (147) (199)
Share of associate’s (loss)/profit (239) (324)(6)

Impairment of goodwill (44) (60)(4)

Provision against financial instrument (115) (156)
Gain on loss of control of subsidiary – –
Finance costs – –
Warrant cost – –
Other income 12 16
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (220) (298)(5)

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Loss for the year (4,797) (6,504)
–––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

Basic loss per share (0.04) (0.06)
Diluted loss per share (0.04) (0.06)

Basic 108,765,335 108,765,335
Diluted 108,765,335 108,765,335

(3) Sum of amount has been included as “Administration Expense” on Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
(4) Sum of amount has been included as “Mineral and royalty interest and other impairment” on Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated

Statement of Income
(5) Sum of amount has been included as “Foreign Exchange Gain” on Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
(6) Sum of amount has been included as “(Loss)/gain on associate” on Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
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PART TEN:

INFORMATION FOR MARIANA SHAREHOLDERS IN CANADA

For the purposes of Canadian securities laws, completion of the Scheme is also conditional upon approval
of each of the Scheme and the Shareholder Resolutions by a simple majority of the votes cast thereon by
the Scheme Shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at each of the Guernsey Court
Meeting and Extraordinary General Meeting, respectively, after excluding Mariana Shares beneficially owned
or over which control or direction is exercised by such persons whose votes may not be included in
determining minority approval pursuant to MI 61-101.

If each of the Scheme and the Shareholder Resolutions, are approved by the requisite majorities under
Guernsey law, the minority approval required under MI 61-101 will have been obtained (and no separate
approval will be required at either the Guernsey Court Meeting or the Extraordinary General Meeting for
Canadian securities purposes).

In Canada, MI 61-101 is intended to regulate certain transactions to ensure equality of treatment among
securityholders, generally requiring enhanced disclosure, approval by a majority of securityholders (excluding
interested parties or related parties, each as defined in MI 61-101), independent valuations and, in certain
circumstances, approval and oversight of the transaction by a special committee of independent directors.

The protections of MI 61-101 generally apply to “business combinations” (as defined in MI 61-101) that
terminate the interests of securityholders without their consent. MI 61-101 provides that, in certain
circumstances, where a “related party” of an issuer (as defined in MI 61-101 and including directors,
executive officers and shareholders holding over 10 per cent. of issued and outstanding shares of the issuer)
is entitled to receive a “collateral benefit” (as defined in MI 61-101) in connection with an arrangement (such
as the Combination), such transaction may be considered a “business combination” for the purposes of
MI 61-101 and subject to minority approval requirements.

If “minority approval” is required, MI 61-101 requires that, in addition to any other approvals of the Scheme
Shareholders, the Scheme and the Shareholder Resolutions must also be approved by a simple majority of
the votes cast by the Scheme Shareholders, excluding those votes attaching to Mariana Shares beneficially
owned, or over which control or direction is exercised, by related parties of Mariana, which includes directors
and officers of the Mariana who are considered to have received a “collateral benefit”, as such term is defined
in MI 61-101, as a consequence of the Combination.

A “collateral benefit” (as defined in MI 61-101) includes any benefit that a “related party” of Mariana is entitled
to receive as a consequence of the Combination, including without limitation, an increase in salary, a lump
sum payment, a payment for surrendering securities or other enhancement in benefits related to services
as an employee, director or consultant of Mariana. MI 61-101 excludes from the meaning of collateral benefit
a payment per security that is identical in amount and form to the entitlement of the general body of holders
in Canada of securities of the same class, as well as certain benefits to a related party received solely in
connection with the related party’s services as an employee or director of an issuer, of an affiliated entity of
such issuer or of a successor to the business of such issuer where (a) the benefit is not conferred for the
purpose, in whole or in part, of increasing the value of the consideration paid to the related party for securities
relinquished under the transaction; (b) the conferring of the benefit is not, by its terms, conditional on the
related party supporting the transaction in any manner; (c) full particulars of the benefit are disclosed in the
disclosure document for the transaction; and (d) either (i) at the time of the transaction the related party and
his or her associated entities beneficially own, or exercise control or direction over, less than 1 per cent. of
the outstanding securities of each class of equity securities of the issuer, or (ii) the related party discloses to
an independent committee of the issuer the amount of consideration that he or she expects to be beneficially
entitled to receive, under the terms of the transaction, in exchange for the equity securities he or she
beneficially owns and the independent committee acting in good faith determines that the value of the
benefit, net of any offsetting costs to the related party, is less than 5 per cent. of the value of the consideration
the related party will receive pursuant to the terms of the transaction for the equity securities it beneficially
owns, and the independent committee’s determination is disclosed in the disclosure document for the
transaction.
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Payments to be paid to or other benefits to be received by any of the directors or executive officers of
Mariana as a consequence of the completion of the Combination may constitute a “collateral benefit” for
purposes of MI 61-101 such that the Combination would therefore constitute a “business combination”
under MI 61-101.

None of the directors or officers and their respective associated entities beneficially own, or exercise control
or direction over, more than 1 percent of the outstanding Mariana Shares and accordingly there are no votes
to exclude.

The Retention Arrangements payable to each of Glen Parsons and Eric Roth, respectively, will constitute a
“collateral benefit” under MI 61-101 and, as a result, the Scheme is considered a “business combination”
under MI 61-101 which requires the approval of a simple majority of Scheme Shareholders voting at each
of the Guernsey Court Meeting and the Extraordinary General Meeting, excluding the Mariana Shares held
by Glen Parsons and Eric Roth, each being a “related party” under MI 61 101.

Consequently, Glen Parson’s 437,250 Mariana Shares and Eric Roth’s 649,371 Mariana Shares, which
together represent approximately 0.83 per cent. of the issued and outstanding Mariana Shares, as at 12 May
2017, will not be permitted to be voted on the Scheme at the Guernsey Court Meeting or the Shareholder
Resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting for purposes of determining whether the required minority
approval has been obtained as provided by MI 61-101.

Mariana Shares to be issued on vesting of the Share Bonus Awards will only be issued after sanction of the
Guernsey Court which follows after the Guernsey Court Meeting and the Extraordinary General Meeting, so
will not be able to be noted at such meetings.

No formal valuation is required for the Combination under MI 61-101, as no interested party, whether alone
or with joint actors, would, as a consequence of the Combination, directly or indirectly, acquire Mariana and
no interested party is a party to any “connected transaction” to the Combination which is a related party
transaction for which Mariana is required to obtain a formal valuation.
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PART ELEVEN:

DEFINITIONS

“£”, “Pounds”, “Sterling”, “GBP” the lawful currency of the UK;
“pence” or “p”

“A$” the lawful currency of Australia;

“Aegean” Aegean Metals Group Inc.;

“Aforo Acquisition” the agreement that Mariana would acquire all of the issued shares
of Aforo Pty. from Aforo Resources on 25 February 2017, following
which Mariana would hold ninety per cent. of the Aforo Licences,
via a ninety per cent. owned subsidiary, Agnet;

“Aforo Closing Date” the closing date of the Aforo Acquisition;

“Aforo Licences” one mineral exploration licence and applications for two further
mineral exploration licences;

“Aforo Resources” Aforo Resources Ltd.;

“Aforo Pty.” Aforo (Ivory Coast) Holdings Pty Ltd.;

“Agnet” Africa New Geological Technologies Côte d’Ivoire Sarl;

“AIM” the market of that name operated by the London Stock Exchange;

“AIM Cancellation” the cancellation of the admission of the Mariana Shares to trading
on AIM following completion of the Combination;

“AIM Rules” the AIM Rules for companies published by the London Stock
Exchange from time to time (including, without limitation, any
guidance notes or statements of practice) which govern the rules
and responsibilities of companies whose shares are admitted to
trading on AIM;

“allowable capital loss” subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act, one
half of any capital loss incurred by a Resident Holder an allowable
capital loss must generally be deducted from taxable capital gains
realized by the Resident Holder in the taxation year in which the
disposition occurs. Allowable capital losses in excess of taxable
capital gains for the taxation year of disposition generally may be
carried back and deducted in the three preceding taxation years or
carried forward and deducted in any subsequent year against
taxable capital gains realized in such years, in the circumstances
and to the extent provided in the Tax Act;

“ALS Laboratory” the ALS Laboratory in Izmir, western Turkey;

“AMG” Artmin Madencilik, formerly AMG Mineral Madencilik AS;

“Announcement” the announcement of a firm intention to make an offer for the entire
issued and to be issued share capital of Mariana not already held
by Sandstorm pursuant to Rule 2.7 of the Code made by
Sandstorm on the Announcement Date;

“Announcement Date” 26 April 2017;
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“Annual General Meeting” or the annual general meeting of Mariana convened by the notice set 
“AGM” out in Part Fourteen (Notice of Annual General Meeting) of this

document, including any adjournment thereof;

“AuEq” attributable gold equivalent;

“Awalé” Awalé Resources Limited;

“Awalé SARL” Awalé Resources SARL;

“Awalé Shares” the shares in Awalé;

“Awalé SPA” a share purchase agreement between Mariana, Derk Hartman and
Karl Arkueson, Awalé and Awalé SARL dated 13 January 2016,
under which Mariana agreed to purchase eighty per cent. of the
Awalé Shares;

“Beneficial Shareholders” Shareholders who do not hold their shares in their own name;

“BEPS” base erosion and profit sharing;

“Brandon Hill” Brandon Hill Capital Limited;

“Broadridge”. Broadridge Financial Solutions Inc.;

“Business Day” a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday, public or bank holiday) on
which banks are generally open for business in London and
Guernsey;

“C$” or “Canadian Dollars” or “CAD” the lawful currency of Canada;

“Canadian Register” the sub-register of members of Mariana held by Computershare
Canada in Canada as branch registrar and transfer agent;

“Cash Consideration Amount” 28.75 pence in cash per Mariana Share;

“CDS” Canadian Depository for Securities;

“certificated form” or a share or other security which is not in uncertificated form (that is, 
“in certificated form” not in CREST or CDS);

“CIM” the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy;

“CIM Definition Standards” Definition standards of the CIM;

“Code” the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers;

“COG” cut-off-grade;

“Combination” the recommended acquisition by Sandstorm of the entire issued,
and to be issued, ordinary share capital of Mariana (other than the
Excluded Shares) to be effected by means of the Scheme or, should
Sandstorm so elect, by means of a Takeover Offer on the terms and
subject to the conditions set out in this document or, if applicable,
the Takeover Offer Document and, where the context admits, any
subsequent revisions, variations, extension or renewal thereof;

“Combined Company” the company organised as a subsidiary of Sandstorm which will
manage and operate the business and operations of Mariana after
completion of the Combination, the principal executive office of
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which will be located at Sandstorm’s current head office, being Suite
1400, 400 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3A6;

“Combined Group” means the Sandstorm Group as enlarged by the Combination;

“Companies Act” the Companies Act 2006, as amended and for the time being in
force;

“Companies (Guernsey) Law” the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended from time to
time;

“Computershare Canada” Computershare Investor Services Inc.;

“Computershare Guernsey” Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited;

“Concert Parties” those persons who would be considered to be “acting in concert”
with Sandstorm for the purposes of the Code;

“Conditions” the conditions to the implementation of the Combination, as set out
in Part Three (Conditions and Certain Further Terms of the Scheme
and to the Combination) of this document or, if applicable, the
Takeover Offer Document and “Condition” means any of them;

“Confidentiality Agreement“ the agreement between Sandstorm and Mariana in respect of
confidential information relating to the Combination dated 28 March
2017;

“Consideration” means, for each Scheme Share: (i) 0.2573 New Sandstorm Shares;
and (ii) 28.75 pence in cash;

“Consulting Agreement” a consulting agreement entered into between Mariana and John
Horsburgh dated 5 February 2013 under which John Horsburgh
agreed to provide certain services to Mariana;

“Co-operation Agreement” the agreement between Sandstorm and Mariana in respect of the
conduct of the Combination dated 4 May 2017;

“Corporate Secretary” means Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited;

“CRA” Canada Revenue Agency;

“CREST” the system for the paperless settlement of trades in securities and
the holding of uncertificated securities operated by Euroclear in
accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (SI
2001/3755) (as amended), which system is recognised pursuant to
the Regulations;

“CREST Manual” means the CREST manual as published on the Euroclear website;

“CREST Proxy Instruction” means the appropriate CREST message;

“CTCNA” Computershare Trust Company, N.A.;

“CWMO” Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance;

“Daily Official List” the daily official list of the London Stock Exchange;

“dealing day” a day on which dealing in domestic securities may take place on,
and with the authority of, the London Stock Exchange;

“Dealing Disclosure” has the same meaning as in Rule 8 of the Code;
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“Disclosed” the information disclosed by, or on behalf of, Mariana in

(a) Mariana’s annual report and accounts for the year ended
31 December 2016;

(b) the Announcement; or

(c) as otherwise publicly announced by Mariana no later than one
(1) Business Day prior to the Announcement Date (by the
delivery of an announcement to Regulatory Information
Service);

“Disclosure Table” details of offeree companies and offerors currently in an offer period
published by the Panel under Rule 8 of the Code;

“DTC” Depository Trust Company;

“DRS” Direct Registration System, an electronic name-on-register option;

“EDGAR” the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering and Retrieved System;

“Effective” the time that the order of the Guernsey Court is filed with the
Guernsey Registry; or

“Effective Date” the date on which the Scheme becomes Effective;

“Euroclear” Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited;

“Exchange Act” The US Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

“Excluded Shares” (i) any Mariana Shares beneficially owned by Sandstorm or any other
member of the Sandstorm Group; (ii) any Mariana Shares held as
treasury shares by Mariana; and (iii) any other Mariana Shares which
Sandstorm and Mariana agree will not be subject to the Scheme;

“Exploration Properties” the remaining exploration properties of Mariana with a focus on gold
and silver and associated metals in Ivory Coast, Turkey, and
Argentina;

“Extraordinary General Meeting” the extraordinary general meeting of Mariana convened by the
notice set out in Part Thirteen (Notice of General Meeting) of this
document, including any adjournment thereof;

“FCA” the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority;

“Finance (No.2) Bill” The Finance (No.2) Bill which received Royal Assent on 27 April
2017;

“Forms of Proxy” the forms of proxy for use at the Shareholder Meetings which
accompany this document;

“forward-looking statements” statements which are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking
statements” or “forward-looking information” under applicable
securities laws;

“FSMA” Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended from time
to time;

“g/t” grammes per tonne;

“Gold Streams” gold and other metals purchase agreements;
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“Guernsey” the Island of Guernsey;

“Guernsey Court” the Royal Court of Guernsey;

“Guernsey Court Hearing” the hearing by the Guernsey Court to sanction the Scheme under
Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law whereby the Guernsey
Court will consider the procedural and substantive fairness of the
terms and conditions of the Scheme at which Mariana Shareholders
have the right to appear;

“Guernsey Court Meeting” the meeting of the Scheme Shareholders convened by order of the
Guernsey Court pursuant to section 107 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the
Scheme with or without modification (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof);

Guernsey Financial Services Commission, the regulatory body for
the finance sector in the Bailwick of Guernsey;

“Guernsey Register” the sub-register of members of Mariana held by Computershare
Guernsey in Jersey;

“Guernsey Registry” the body authorised by the States of Guernsey to maintain various
registers as required under Guernsey legislation and operating
under the name Guernsey Registry;

“HMRC” HM Revenue and Customs;

“HMT” Hacettepe Mineral Technologies;

“holder” a registered holder and includes any person entitled by
transmission;

“Holder” a Mariana Shareholder who, at all relevant times, for the purposes
of the Tax Act, deals at arm’s length with Mariana and Sandstorm,
is not affiliated with Mariana or Sandstorm, and holds Scheme
Shares and New Sandstorm Shares as capital property;

the Hot Maden gold-copper project;

“Hot Maden Fault Zone” or “HMFZ” the gold-copper mineralisation broadly associated within a sub-
vertical, north-northeast trending fault zone at Hot Maden;

“Hot Maden JV” or “JV” means the joint venture company that was formed in January 2016,
upon the signing of the joint venture and shareholder agreement
between Mariana and Lidya;

“Hot Maden PEA” the amended NI 43-101 technical report preliminary economic
assessment, Artin Province, Turkey, prepared for Mariana with an
effective date of 1 March 2017 by RPM, available on Mariana’s
website
http://media.wix.com/ugd/24ee23_0cf311ae3c2d437e80310ec21
4d238b5.pdf;

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards;

“IRR” internal rate of return;

“Guernsey Financial Services
Commission”

“Hot Maden” or “Hot Maden
Project”
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“ISIN” International Securities Identification Number;

“JORC” Joint Ore Reserves Committee;

“JORC Code” JORC 2012 Code of Practice;

“JV Interest” means Mariana’s 30 per cent. interest in the Hot Maden JV;

“km2” square kilometres;

“koz” thousand ounces;

“KPMG” KPMG LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in England and
Wales with registered number OC301540 and which has its
registered office at 15 Canada Square, E14 5GL, United Kingdom;

“kt” thousand tonnes;

“Lidya” Lidya Madencilik;

“London Stock Exchange” the London Stock Exchange PLC or its successor;

“LHOM” Long Hole Open Stoping;

“Long Stop Date” 5.00 p.m. (London time) on 31 August 2017 (or such later time
and/or date as may be agreed, with the consent of the Panel, by
Sandstorm and Mariana and the Guernsey Court may allow);

“LOM” Life of Mine;

“m” metres;

“MI 61-101” Multilateral Instrument 61-101 – Protection of Minority Security
Holders in Special Transactions;

“Mariana” Mariana a non-cellular company limited by shares incorporated in
Guernsey with registered number 44276 with its registered office at
Granite House, La Grande Rue, St Martin Guernsey GY1 3RS;

“Mariana Articles” the memorandum and Articles of incorporation of Mariana;

the board of directors of Mariana, as at the Announcement Date;

“Mariana Employee Equity Plans” the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan and the Mariana Share
Bonus Awards;

“Mariana Group” Mariana and its subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings;

the incentive stock option plan approved by Mariana Shareholders
on 22 June 2011, as amended effective as of 26 July 2016;

“Mariana Independent Directors” the directors of Mariana that are independent of Sandstorm, being
John Horsburgh and John Goodwin;

“Mariana Options” the options to subscription for Mariana Shares granted under the
Mariana Employee Equity Plans;

“Mariana Option Holders” the holders of the Mariana Options;

“Mariana Board” or “Mariana
Directors”

“Mariana Incentive Stock Option
Plan”
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“Mariana Share Bonus Awards” the share bonus awards made by Mariana to each of (i) Glen
Parsons pursuant to a letter agreement entered into between
Mariana and Glen Parsons on 10 March 2017; and (ii) Eric Roth
pursuant to a letter agreement entered into between Mariana and
Eric Roth on 10 March 2017, in each case as announced by
Mariana on 1 February 2017;

“Mariana Shareholders” the registered holders of Mariana Shares;

“Mariana Share(s)” ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the capital of Mariana;

“Mariana Warrant Holders” the holders of the Mariana Warrants;

“Mariana Warrant Instrument” the Mariana Share warrant instrument dated 4 May 2016;

“Mariana Warrants” the warrants issued under the Mariana Warrant Instrument;

“MI 61-101” Multilateral Instrument 61-101 – Protection of Minority Security
Holders in Special Transactions;

“Moz” million ounces;

“Mt” million tonnes;

“Mtpa” million tonnes per annum;

“MTA” the Turkish Government, Mineral Research & Exploration General
Directorate;

“Net Smelter Return”/“NSR” net smelter return;

“New Member” an issuee (other than Sandstorm or its nominee(s)) of any
Post-Scheme Shares;

“New Sandstorm Shares” the Sandstorm Shares which are to be issued pursuant to the
Scheme;

“NI 43-101” National Instrument 43-101 – Standards of Disclosure of Mineral
Projects;

“NI 54-101” National Instrument 54-101– Communication with Beneficial
Owners of Securities of a Reporting Issuer;

Beneficial Shareholders who do not object to their identity being
made known to the issuers of the securities they own;

“Non-Resident Holder” a Holder who, for the purposes of the Tax Act and at all relevant
times, is neither resident nor deemed to be resident in Canada and
does not use or hold, and will not be deemed to use or hold,
Scheme Shares or New Sandstorm Shares in a business carried on
in Canada;

“NPV” net present value;

“NYSE MKT” the NYSE MKT LLC, an American stock exchange situated in New
York City;

Beneficial Shareholders who object to their identity being known to
the issuers of securities which they own;

“Non-Objecting Beneficial
Owners”, or “NOBOs”

“Objecting Beneficial Owners”,
or “OBOs”
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“Offer Period” as defined in the Code, the period commencing on (and including)
26 April 2017;

“Official List” the Official List maintained by the UKLA;

“Opening Position Disclosure” has the same meaning as in Rule 8 of the Code;

“Option Agreement” an option agreement entered into between Lidya and AMG on
24 June 2014, and as amended on 11 September 2015 and
29 October 2015;

“Ordinary Resolution” the ordinary resolution to be proposed and approved at the
Extraordinary General Meeting to implement the Retention
Arrangements in accordance with Rule 16 of the Code;

“Ordinary Shares” ordinary shares of Mariana;

“Overseas Shareholders” Mariana Shareholders who are resident in, or citizens of, jurisdictions
outside the UK or Guernsey;

“Panel” the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers;

“PIMA” Portable Infrared Mineral Analysis

“Placing Agreement” a placing agreement entered into between Mariana and Brandon
Hill dated 21 October 2015 under which Brandon Hill agreed to
procure placees for the Placing Shares and attaching Placing
Warrants;

“Placing Shares” up to 39,415,000 new ordinary shares to be allotted and issued by
Mariana under the Placing Agreement;

“Placing Warrants” the one attaching placing warrant for every two Placing Shares
subscribed for under the Placing Agreement;

“Polimetal” POLIMETAL MADENCiLiK San. Ve Tic. A.S

“Post-Scheme Share” any Ordinary Shares issued to any person (other than Sandstorm
or its nominee(s)) on or after the Scheme Record Time;

“PRA” the Prudential Regulation Authority;

“Proquote” IRESS Proquote;

“QAQC”/“QA/QC” quality assurance and quality control;

“Raymond James” Raymond James Ltd;

“Registered Plan” Is each of a TFSA, RRSP or RRIF;

“Regulations” the Uncertificated Securities (Guernsey) Regulations, 2009 (GSI
2009/48);

“Regulatory Information Service” one of the regulatory information services authorised by the UKLA
to receive, process, and disseminate regulatory information from
listed companies;

“relevant securities” Mariana Shares, other Mariana share capital and any securities
convertible into or exchangeable for, and rights to subscribe for, any
of the foregoing;
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“Resident Holder” a Holder who, for the purposes of the Tax Act, is resident or deemed
to be resident in Canada at all relevant times;

“RESP” Registered education savings plan;

“Restricted Jurisdiction” any jurisdiction where the local laws or regulations may result in
significant risk of civil, regulatory or criminal exposure if information
concerning the Combination is sent or made available to Mariana
Shareholders (or other persons with information rights) in that
jurisdiction (in accordance with Rule 30.3 of the Code);

“Retention Arrangements” the proposed retention arrangements with Glen Parsons and Eric
Roth as described in paragraph 7 of Part One (Letter from the
Non-Executive Chairman of Mariana);

“RFC Ambrian” RFC Ambrian Limited;

“RDSP” a registered disability savings plan

“Risk Factors” the factors set out under the heading ‘RISK FACTORS’ on pages
20 to 31 of the Sandstorm Annual Information Form (available at
http://www.sandstormgold.com/-resources/transaction/Annual-
Information-Form-Sandstorm.pdf) (which are incorporated by
reference into this document) representing the current material risks
inherent in holding the New Sandstorm Shares;

“RPM” RungePincockMinarco Limited;

“RRIF” a registered retirement income fund;

“RRSP” a registered retirement savings plan;

“Sandstorm” Sandstorm Gold Ltd, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Province of British Columbia, Canada with registered address
1400–400 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada
V6C 3A6;

the annual information of Sandstorm dated 29 March 2017 for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016;

“Sandstorm CDIs” Sandstorm Gold Ltd CREST Depository Interests, as described in
paragraph 3 of Part Two (Explanatory Statement) of this document;

“Sandstorm Forecast” the information on Sandstorm’s operating cash flow after tax (and
before corporate overhead) which is included in the Sandstorm
Investor Presentation;

“Sandstorm Group” Sandstorm and its subsidiary undertakings;

“Sandstorm Investor Presentation” Sandstorm’s latest investor presentation, which is available on
Sandstorm’s website;

“Sandstorm Shares” Sandstorm common shares;

“Scheme” this scheme of arrangement under Part VIII of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law to be proposed by Mariana to Mariana
Shareholders in connection with the Combination, with or subject
to any modification, addition or condition approved or imposed by
the Guernsey Court and agreed by Sandstorm and Mariana;

“Sandstorm Annual Information
Form”
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“Scheme Document” this document;

“Scheme Record Time” 5.00 p.m. on the second Business Day following the Guernsey
Hearing;

“Scheme Shareholders” the holders of the Scheme Shares;

“Scheme Shares” all Mariana Shares which are:

(i) in issue at the date of this document;

(ii) issued after the date of this document but before the Scheme
Voting Record Time; and

(iii) issued at or after the Scheme Voting Record Time but before
the Scheme Record Time in respect of which the original or any
subsequent holders thereof are, or shall have agreed in writing
to be, bound by the Scheme,

in each case, other than the Excluded Shares;

“Scheme Voting Record Time” 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days before the date of the
Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General Meeting or the
Annual General Meeting (as applicable) or, if the Guernsey Court
Meeting, the Extraordinary General Meeting or the Annual General
Meeting is adjourned, 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days
before the day of such adjourned meeting;

“Section 85 Election” a joint election made by a Resident Holder in prescribed form and
within the prescribed time with Sandstorm pursuant to Section 85
of the Tax Act and corresponding provisions of applicable provincial
legislation;

“SDRT” stamp duty reserve tax;

“SEC” US Securities and Exchange Commission;

“Securities Act” the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

“SEDAR” The System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval, the
electronic system for the official filing of documents by public
companies and investment funds in Canada;

“SFO” the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

“SGS Laboratory” the SGS Laboratory in Ankara, Turkey;

“Shareholder Meetings” the Guernsey Court Meeting, the Extraordinary General Meeting,
and the Annual General Meeting and “Shareholder Meeting”
means any of them;

“Shareholder Resolutions” the Ordinary Resolution and the Special Resolution;

“Special Resolution” the special resolution to be proposed by Mariana at the
Extraordinary General Meeting in connection with, among other
things, the alteration of the Mariana Articles and such other matters
as may be necessary to implement the Scheme;

“SpinCo” a separate company into which Sandstorm intends to explore the
possibility of spinning-out the Exploration Properties following
completion of the Combination;
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“Stream and Royalty Portfolio” Sandstorm’s diversified portfolio of 155 streams and royalties
including 20 producing, 23 development-stage, 26 advanced
exploration-stage and 86 exploration-stage assets;

“Srika Gold” a limited liability company with its headquarters in Abidjan, Côte
d’Ivoire;

“Substantial Interest” a direct or indirect interest in 20 per cent. or more of the voting
equity capital of an undertaking;

“Takeover Offer” or “Offer” if the Combination is implemented as such, which shall be an offer
for the purposes of section 337 of the Companies (Guernsey) Law,
the offer to be made by Sandstorm to acquire the entire issued, and
to be issued, share capital of Mariana (other than the Excluded
Shares), being an offer on terms which are the same in relation to
all the issued, and to be issued, share capital of Mariana to which
the offer relates including, where the context so requires, any
subsequent revision, variation, extension or renewal of such offer
and including any election available in connection with it;

“Takeover Offer Document” should Sandstorm decide to implement the Combination by way of
a Takeover Offer, the document which would be dispatched to
Mariana Shareholders containing the terms and conditions of the
Takeover Offer;

“taxable capital gain” generally, one half of any capital gain and realized by a Resident
Holder must be included in the Resident Holder’s income for the
taxation year in which the disposition occurs.

“Tax Act” the Income Tax Act (Canada);

“Tax Act Regulations” the regulations pursuant to the Tax Act;

“Tax Proposals” specific proposals to ament the Tax Act and Tax Act Regulations
which have been announced by or on behalf of the Minister of
Finance (Canada) prior to the date of this document;

“Teck” Teck Resources Ltd.

“Teck Royalty Package” the royalty portfolio consisting of 52 royalties acquired by
Sandstorm from Teck Resources Limited and its affiliates in the year
ended 31 December 2016

“TFSA” tax free savings account;

“TSX” the Toronto Stock Exchange;

“TSXV” the TSX Venture Exchange;

“UHG” ultra-high grade;

“UK Listing Authority” or “UKLA” the FCA as the authority for listing in the United Kingdom;

“uncertificated form” or a share or other security recorded on the relevant register as being 
“in uncertificated form” held in uncertificated form in either (i) CREST, and title to which, by

virtue of the Regulations, may be transferred by means of CREST
or (ii) CDS;

“United Kingdom” or “UK” the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland;
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the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any
state of the United States of America, the District of Columbia and
all other areas subject to its jurisdiction and any political sub-division
thereof;

“US$” the lawful currency of the United States;

“US GAAP” United States generally accepted accounting principles;

“US Holders” holders of Mariana Shares in the US, resident in the US or with a
registered address in the US, and any custodian, nominee or trustee
holding Mariana Shares for persons in the US or with a registered
address in the US, or acquired the Mariana Shares in the US;

“US Optionholders” holders of Mariana Options in the US, resident in the US or with a
registered address in the US, and any custodian, nominee or trustee
holding Mariana Options for persons in the US or with a registered
address in the US, or acquired the Mariana Options in the US;

“US Warrantholders” holders of Mariana Warrants in the US, resident in the US or with a
registered office in the US, and any custodian, nominee or trustee
holding Mariana Warrants for persons in the US or with a registered
address in the US, or acquired the Mariana Warrants in the US;

“VIF” a Voting Instruction Form, received by a NOBO in a scannable
format from the transfer agent;

“VMS” volcanogenic massive sulphide type;

“VWAP” volume weighted average price;

“Warrants” the warrants issued under the Mariana Warrant Instrument;

“Warrant Shares” the full warrant received by subscribers on Ordinary Shares
subscribed for, to subscribe for an Ordinary Share at a certain price;

“Wider Mariana Group” Mariana and the subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings of
Mariana and associated undertakings (including any joint venture,
partnership, firm or company in which any member of the Mariana
Group is interested or any undertaking in which Mariana and such
undertakings (aggregating their interests) have a Substantial
Interest);

“Wider Sandstorm Group” Sandstorm and the subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings of
Sandstorm and associated undertakings (including any joint
venture, partnership, firm or company in which any member of the
Sandstorm Group is interested or any undertaking in which
Sandstorm and such undertakings (aggregating their interests) have
a Substantial Interest); and

“Yamana” Yamana Gold Inc.

For the purposes of this document, “subsidiary”, “subsidiary undertaking” and “undertaking” and
“associated undertaking” have the respective meanings given thereto by the Companies Act.

References to an enactment include references to that enactment as amended, replaced, consolidated or
re-enacted by or under any other enactment before or after the date of this document. All the times referred
to in this document are London times unless otherwise stated.

References to the singular include the plural and vice versa.

“United States of America”,
“United States” or “US”
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PART TWELVE:

NOTICE OF COURT MEETING

IN THE ROYAL COURT OF GUERNSEY
ORDINARY DIVISION

IN THE MATTER OF MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED

and

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES (GUERNSEY) LAW, 2008 (as amended)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, by an Order dated 15 May 2017 made under section 107 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended) in the above matters, the Royal Court of Guernsey has ordered a
meeting (the “Guernsey Court Meeting”) to be convened of the holders of the Scheme Shares (as defined
in the Scheme hereinafter mentioned) for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving (with or
without modification) a scheme of arrangement proposed to be made between Mariana (the “Company”)
and the holders of the Scheme Shares (the “Scheme”) and that such meeting shall be held at the offices of
Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HB on 16 June 2017 at 10.00 a.m. at
which place and time such holders of the Scheme Shares are requested to attend.

A copy of the said Scheme and a copy of the explanatory statement required to be furnished pursuant to
Part VIII of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended) are incorporated in the document of which
this notice forms part.

At the Guernsey Court Meeting, the following resolution will be proposed:

“That the Scheme between the Company and the Scheme Shareholders, a print of which has been
produced to this meeting and for the purposes of identification signed by the chairman hereof in its
original form or with or subject to any modification, addition or condition approved or imposed by the
Guernsey Court, be approved.”

Holders of Scheme Shares entitled to attend and vote at the Guernsey Court Meeting may vote
in person at the said meeting or they may appoint another person, whether a member of the
Company or not, as their proxy to attend and vote in their stead. A holder of Scheme Shares may
appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that holder. A purple Form of
Proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed with this notice. Scheme Shareholders with Scheme
Shares held through CREST may also appoint a proxy or proxies using CREST by following the
instructions set out on pages 13 and 14 of this document. Completion and return of a Form of
Proxy, or the appointment of proxies through CREST, will not preclude a holder of Scheme Shares
from attending and voting in person at the meeting, or any adjournment thereof.

It is requested that forms appointing proxies (together with any power of attorney or other authority under
which they are signed, or a notarially certified copy of such authority) be lodged with Computershare Investor
Services (Guernsey) Limited not later than 48 hours before the start of the meeting (excluding any part of
such 48-hour period which falls on a weekend or on a day which is a public or bank holiday in Guernsey)
but, if forms are not so lodged, they may be handed, prior to the start of the Guernsey Court Meeting, to the
Company’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited or to the chairman at the meeting.

Entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting and the number of votes which may be cast thereat will be
determined by reference to the register of members of the Company at the Scheme Voting Record Time.

By said Order, the Guernsey Court has appointed John Goodwin or, failing him, John Horsburgh to act as
chairman of the meeting and has directed the chairman to report the result of the meeting to the Guernsey
Court.
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The Scheme of Arrangement will be subject to the subsequent sanction of the Guernsey Court.

Dated 15 May 2017

By Order of the Board
Federal Trust Company Limited
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

Granite House
Le Grand Rue
St Martin
Guernsey
GY1 3RS

Registered in Guernsey No. 45491

Notes:

1. A Mariana Shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of them. A Mariana Shareholder may appoint more
than one proxy in relation to the extraordinary general meeting provided that each proxy is entitled to exercise the rights attaching
to a different share or shares held by that member. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. A purple Form of Proxy is enclosed for use at this meeting. To be valid, completed Forms of Proxy (together with any power of
attorney or other authority under which they are signed, or a notarially certified copy of such authority) must be returned so as to
arrive at the offices of the Company’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited not later than 10.10 a.m. on
14 June 2017, or if the meeting is adjourned, at least 48 hours before the start of the adjourned meeting (excluding any part of
such 48-hour period falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey).

3. Mariana Shareholders who hold shares through CREST and who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies for the Extraordinary General
Meeting or any adjournment(s) by using the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures
described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members
who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service providers, who will be able
to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

4. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a “CREST
Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s specifications and must contain the information
required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the
appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instructions given to a previously appointed proxy, must, in order to be valid, be
transmitted so as to be received by the Registrar (ID R002) not later than 10.00 a.m. on 14 June 2017, or if the meeting is
adjourned, at least 48 hours before the start of the adjourned meeting (excluding any part of such 48-hour period falling on a
weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey). For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the
timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Registrar is able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of instructions to proxies appointed through
CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

5. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors, or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular message. Normal system timings and
limitations will, therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST Personal Member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting
service provider, to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to
ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members
and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting system providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST
Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timing.

6. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in regulation 34 of the Uncertificated
Securities (Guernsey) Regulations, 2009.

7. Completion and return of a Form of Proxy, or the appointment of proxies through CREST, will not preclude a shareholder from
attending and voting in person.

8. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities (Guernsey) Regulations, 2009, entitlement to attend and vote at the
meeting and the number of votes that may be cast thereat will be determined by reference to the register of members of the
Company at 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days prior to the date of the meeting (excluding any part of such 48-hour period
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falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey). Changes to entries on the register of members after that time shall be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend and vote at the meeting.

9. Where these are joint registered holders of any share, such persons shall not have the right of voting individually in respect of
such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote whether in person or by proxy in their name. In
default of such election the person whose name stands first on the Register shall alone be entitled to vote.

10. As at 5.00 p.m. on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date for preparation of this notice) the Company’s issued share
capital consisted of 130,718,029 Mariana Shares, carrying one vote each. Therefore, the total voting rights in the Company as at
12 May 2017 were 130,718,029.
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PART THIRTEEN:

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that an extraordinary general meeting of MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED (the
“Company”) will be held at the offices of Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London,
EC2A 2HB on 16 June 2017 at 10.15 a.m. (or as soon thereafter as the Guernsey Court Meeting (as defined
in the document of which this Notice forms part) shall have concluded) for the purpose of considering and,
if thought fit, passing the following resolutions.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the scheme of arrangement dated 15 May 2017 between the
Company and the holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the said scheme of arrangement), a print of
which has been produced to this meeting and for the purposes of identification signed by the chairman
thereof, in its original form or subject to such modification, addition or condition approved or imposed by
the Guernsey Court and agreed by the Company and Sandstorm (as defined in the said scheme of
arrangement) (the “Scheme”):

(A) the directors of the Company be authorised to take all such action as they may consider necessary or
appropriate for carrying the Scheme into full effect;

(B) with effect from the passing of this resolution, the Articles of Incorporation of the Company be and are
hereby amended by the adoption and inclusion of the following new Article 58:

“SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
(1) In this Article 58, the “Scheme” means the scheme of arrangement dated 15 May 2017 between

the Company and the holders of the Scheme Shares (as defined in the Scheme) under Part VIII
of the Law in its original form or with or subject to any modification, addition or condition approved
or imposed by the Guernsey Court and agreed by the Company and Sandstorm and (save as
defined in this Article) expressions defined in the Scheme shall have the same meanings in this
Article.

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles or the terms of any resolution passed by
the Company in extraordinary general meeting, if the Company issues any Ordinary Shares (other
than to Sandstorm or its nominee(s)) on or after the adoption of this Article and prior to the
Scheme Record Time (as defined in the Scheme), such shares shall be issued subject to the
terms of the Scheme (and shall be Scheme Shares for the purposes thereof) and the original or
any subsequent holder or holders of such Ordinary Shares shall be bound by the Scheme
accordingly.

(3) Subject to the Scheme becoming effective, and notwithstanding any other provision of these
Articles, if any Ordinary Shares are issued to any person (other than Sandstorm or its nominee(s))
(the ‘‘New Member’’) on or after the Scheme Record Time (the ‘‘Post-Scheme Shares’’), they
will (after the Scheme becomes effective) be immediately transferred to Sandstorm (or as it may
direct) in consideration of and conditional on the issue of 0.3487 New Sandstorm Shares to the
New Member for every one (1) Post-Scheme Share.

(4) On any reorganisation of, or material alteration to, the share capital of the Company (including,
without limitation, any subdivision and/or consolidation), the value of the consideration per
Post-Scheme Share to be provided under paragraph (3) above shall be adjusted by the Directors
in such manner as the auditors of the Company or an independent investment bank selected by
the Company may determine to be fair and reasonable to the New Member to reflect such
reorganisation or alteration. References in this Article to Ordinary Shares shall, following such
adjustment, be construed accordingly.
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(5) To give effect to any transfer required by this Article, the Company may appoint any person as
attorney for the New Member to execute and deliver as transferor a form of transfer or instructions
of transfer on behalf of the New Member (or any subsequent holder or any nominee of such New
Member or any such subsequent holder) in favour of Sandstorm and do all such other things and
execute and deliver all such documents as may in the opinion of the attorney be necessary or
desirable to vest the Post-Scheme Shares in Sandstorm and pending such vesting to exercise
all such rights to the Post-Scheme Shares as Sandstorm may direct. If an attorney is so
appointed, the New Member shall not thereafter (except to the extent that the attorney fails to
act in accordance with the directions of Sandstorm) be entitled to exercise any rights attaching
to the Post-Scheme Shares unless so agreed by Sandstorm. The Company may give good
receipt for the purchase price of the Post-Scheme Shares and may register Sandstorm as holder
thereof and issue to it certificates for the same. The Company shall not be obliged to issue a
certificate to the New Member for any Post-Scheme Shares but shall issue the relevant number
of New Sandstorm Shares in certificated or uncertificated form as the New Member shall require.

(6) If the Scheme shall not have become effective by the date referred to in clause 7 of the Scheme
(or such later date, if any, as Sandstorm and the Company may agree and the Guernsey Court
and the Panel may allow, if such consent is required), this Article shall, from the relevant date,
cease to apply and shall cease to be of any effect going forward.

(7) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Directors may refuse to register the
transfer of any Scheme Shares effected between the Scheme Record Time and the Effective
Date.

(8) Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Directors may refuse to register the
transfer of any Ordinary Shares other than as provided by this Article.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
THAT the Retention Arrangements (as defined in the circular to shareholders of the Company dated
15 May 2017 (the “Circular”) accompanying the Notice of this meeting and a print of which has been
produced to the meeting and (for the purposes of identification only) signed by the chairman thereof)
summarised in paragraph 7 of Part One of the Circular be and are hereby approved in, or substantially in,
such form and the Mariana Independent Directors be and are hereby authorised to do and procure to do all
such acts and things on behalf of the Company as they consider necessary or expedient for the purpose of
giving effect to such arrangements.

15 May 2017

By Order of the Board
Federal Trust Company Limited
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

Granite House
La Grande Rue
St Martin
Guernsey
GY1 3RS

Registered in Guernsey No. 44276
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Notes:

1. A Mariana Shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of them. A Mariana Shareholder may appoint more
than one proxy in relation to the extraordinary general meeting provided that each proxy is entitled to exercise the rights attaching
to a different share or shares held by that member. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. A blue Form of Proxy is enclosed for use at this meeting. To be valid, completed Forms of Proxy (together with any power of
attorney or other authority under which they are signed, or a notarially certified copy of such authority) must be returned so as to
arrive at the offices of the Company’s registrar, Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited not later than 10.15 a.m. on
14 June 2017, or if the meeting is adjourned, at least 48 hours before the start of the adjourned meeting (excluding any part of
such 48-hour period falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey).

3. Mariana Shareholders who hold shares through CREST and who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies for the Extraordinary General
Meeting or any adjournment(s) by using the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures
described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members
who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service providers, who will be able
to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

4. In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a “CREST
Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s specifications and must contain the information
required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the
appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instructions given to a previously appointed proxy, must, in order to be valid, be
transmitted so as to be received by the Registrar (ID R002) not later than 10.15 a.m. on 14 June 2017, or if the meeting is
adjourned, at least 48 hours before the start of the adjourned meeting (excluding any part of such 48-hour period falling on a
weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey). For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the
timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Registrar is able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of instructions to proxies appointed through
CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.

5. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors, or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular message. Normal system timings and
limitations will, therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST Personal Member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting
service provider, to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to
ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members
and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting system providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST
Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timing.

6. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in regulation 34 of the Uncertificated
Securities (Guernsey) Regulations, 2009.

7. Completion and return of a Form of Proxy, or the appointment of proxies through CREST, will not preclude a shareholder from
attending and voting in person.

8. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities (Guernsey) Regulations, 2009, entitlement to attend and vote at the
meeting and the number of votes that may be cast thereat will be determined by reference to the register of members of the
Company at 5.00 p.m. on the day which is two days prior to the date of the meeting (excluding any part of such 48-hour period
falling on a weekend or a public holiday in Guernsey). Changes to entries on the register of members after that time shall be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend and vote at the meeting.

9. Where these are joint registered holders of any share, such persons shall not have the right of voting individually in respect of
such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote whether in person or by proxy in their name. In
default of such election the person whose name stands first on the Register shall alone be entitled to vote.

10. As at 5.00 p.m. on 12 May 2017 (being the latest practicable date for preparation of this notice) the Company’s issued share
capital consisted of 130,718,029 Mariana Shares, carrying one vote each. Therefore, the total voting rights in the Company as at
12 May 2017 were 130,718,029.
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PART FOURTEEN:

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MARIANA RESOURCES LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the eleventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices
of Watson Farley & Williams LLP, 15 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HB on 16 June 2017 at 10.30 a.m. (or
as soon thereafter as the Extraordinary General Meeting (as defined in the document of which this Notice
forms part) shall have concluded) for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following
Ordinary Resolutions.

Words and expressions used or defined in the scheme of arrangement (a copy of which is produced to the
meeting and signed by the chairman for the purposes of identification) (the “Scheme”) shall have the same
meanings where used in these resolutions, except where the context otherwise requires.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To consider and if thought fit pass the following resolutions, which will be proposed as ordinary resolutions:

1. THAT the Report of Directors and the audited financial statements of the company for the financial
period ended 31 December 2016 be adopted.

2. THAT Mr. John Horsburgh (who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election) be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

3. THAT Mr. Glen Parsons (who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election) be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

4. THAT Mr. Eric Roth (who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election) be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

5. THAT Mr. John Goodwin (who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election) be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

6. THAT Mr. Mustafa Aksoy (who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election) be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

7. THAT Mr. Ron Ho (who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election) be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

8. THAT the aggregate fees for non-executive directors be not more than £150,000 annually, to be
distributed among them as the Board sees fit.

9. THAT Grant Thornton Limited be re-appointed as auditor of the Company and that the directors be
authorised to determine the remuneration of the auditors.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution, which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution:

10. THAT the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, in the form last approved by the shareholders on 22
June 2011, with or without amendments that may be required to conform to the policies of the TSXV
or comply with the rules and regulations of any other regulatory body having authority over the
Company or the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

By order of the Board

Registered Office:

Granite House
La Grande Rue
St Martin’s
Guernsey, Channel Islands

John Horsburgh
Chairman

Date: 15 May 2017

Notes:

(a) A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to exercise all or any of his rights to attend and
to speak and vote at the meeting. A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meeting, provided that each
proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by him. To appoint more than one proxy,
please contact the Company on telephone number +61 2 9437 4588.

(b) To be valid, an instrument appointing a proxy and any power of attorney or other authority under which the proxy instrument is
signed (or a notarially certified copy thereof) must be deposited with the Company at the Company’s registered office or by
facsimile to the Company on +61 2 9437 4599 not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

(c) In the case of a corporation, the proxy form must be expressed to be executed by the corporation and must be signed by a
director and the secretary or by two directors or under the hand of a duly authorised officer or attorney.

(d) Where these are joint registered holders of any share, such persons shall not have the right of voting individually in respect of
such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote whether in person or by proxy in their name. In
default of such election the person whose name stands first on the Register shall alone be entitled to vote.

(e) The completion and return of a proxy card will not affect the right of a member to attend, speak and vote in person at the meeting
convened by this notice.

(f) The quorum for the meeting is two or more members present in person or by proxy or a duly authorised representative of a
corporation which is a member.

(g) The ordinary resolutions must be passed by a simple majority of the total number of votes cast for and against such resolution.

(h) At the meeting the vote may be taken by show of hands or by poll. On a poll, every member, who is present in person or by proxy,
shall be entitled to one vote for every share held by him.

(i) If, within half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting (or such longer interval not exceeding one hour as the chairman of
the meeting may think fit to allow) a quorum is not present, the meeting shall stand adjourned for 14 days day at the same time
and place, or to such time and place as may be fixed by the chairman of the meeting and if at such adjourned meeting a quorum
is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the members present in person and by proxy shall be
a quorum.

(j) Pursuant to regulation 41 of The Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, members will be entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting if they are registered on the Company’s register of members 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.
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ANNEX 1: CANADIAN SECURITIES LAW DISCLOSURE

1. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Other than as set forth below, no person who has been a director or executive officer of Mariana at any time
since the beginning of the last financial year, nor any proposed nominee for election as a director of Mariana,
nor any associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing, has any material interest, direct or indirect, by way of
beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon other than the election of
directors or the appointment of auditors.

Directors and executive officers may be interested in the approval of the Amended Plan as detailed herein
and approval of aggregate fees for non-executive directors. See “Approval of Amended Mariana Incentive
Stock Option Plan” and “Statement of Executive Compensation – Stock Option Plans and Other Incentive
Plans”.

2. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES
Authorized Capital: No authorised share capital

Issued and Outstanding: 130,718,029 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each (as at 12 May 2017)
(“Ordinary Shares”) (excluding 190,250 treasury shares)

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on 14 May 2017 (the “Record Date”) who either
personally attend the Annual General Meeting (herein defined as, the “meeting’) or who have completed
and delivered a form of proxy in the manner and subject to the provisions described in this Scheme
Document shall be entitled to vote or to have their shares voted at the Meeting.

On a show of hands, every individual who is present and is entitled to vote as a shareholder or as a
representative of one or more corporate shareholders will have one vote, and on a poll every shareholder
present in person or represented by a proxy and every person who is a representative of one or more
corporate shareholders, will have one vote for each ordinary share registered in that shareholder’s name on
the list of shareholders as at the Record Date, which is available for inspection during normal business hours
at Computershare Investor Services Inc. and will be available at the Meeting. Shareholders represented
by proxy holders are not entitled to vote on a show of hands.

To the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of Mariana, the only persons or companies which
beneficially own, directly or indirectly or exercises control or direction over Ordinary Shares carrying 10 per
cent. or more of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Ordinary Shares of Mariana are:

Name No. of Shares Percentage

N/A N/A N/A

3. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Mariana Board presently consists of six directors and it is intended to determine the number of directors
at six and to elect six directors for the ensuing year. The term of office of each of the present directors expires
at the Meeting. The persons named below will be presented for election at the Meeting as management’s
nominees and the persons proposed by management as proxyholders in the accompanying form of proxy
intend to vote for the election of these nominees. Management does not contemplate that any of these
nominees will be unable to serve as a director. Each director elected will hold office until the next annual
general meeting of Mariana or until his successor is elected or appointed, unless his office is earlier vacated
in accordance with the Articles of Mariana or the provisions of the Companies (Guernsey) Law.

The following table and notes thereto sets out the name of each person proposed to be nominated by
management for election as a director (a “proposed director”), the province or state and country in which
he is ordinarily resident, all offices of Mariana now held by him, his principal occupation, the period of time
for which he has been a director of Mariana, and the number of Ordinary Shares beneficially owned by him,
directly or indirectly, or over which he exercises control or direction, as at the date hereof.
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Number of
Ordinary Shares

beneficially
Name, Position, owned or
Province or Principal Director/ controlled or
State and Country Occupation or Employment Officer directed, directly
of Residence(1)(2) during the Past Five years Since or indirectly (6)(7)

31 January 2006 893,050

5 March 2010 437,250

John Horsburgh, a graduate of the
Royal School of Mines, is a geologist
with more than 30 years’ experience in
exploration, project development and
company management. John
Horsburgh was a co-founder of
Solomon Pacific Resources NL which
achieved success with the discovery
and development of the Brocks Creek
gold mine in the Northern Territory in
Australia. As Executive Chairman, John
Horsburgh was involved in the
acquisition, exploration and financing of
the project. Prior to this John
Horsburgh was Exploration Manager
for SE Australia with Getty Oil
Development (minerals division). Prior
to Getty, John Horsburgh gained
extensive exploration experience with
Billiton and the RTZ Group in Australia,
South America and Europe. John
Horsburgh is a director and cofounder
of Cullen Resources Ltd. John
Horsburgh was the Chairman of
Mariana before he stepped down to
Non-Executive Chairman effective
31 January 2013.

JOHN 
HORSBURGH (3)(5),
Non-Executive
Chairman and Director
New South Wales,
Australia

Glen Parsons is a qualified Chartered
Accountant with an Honours degree in
Accounting Science and a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in Economics. Glen
Parsons has over 20 years’
international experience in corporate
finance, treasury, operational and
general management. Glen Parsons’
most recent role was as Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate Development of
Neptune Minerals Plc., a deep sea
mineral exploration company, from
October 2007 to February 2010.
Before this, Glen Parsons was an
executive director of RFC Corporate
Finance Ltd., a specialist minerals
resources investment bank and fund
manager. Glen Parsons was previously
the Chief Financial Officer of Mariana
prior to 31 January 2013.

GLEN PARSONS (3)(5),
Chief Executive Officer
and Director 
New South Wales,
Australia
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Number of
Ordinary Shares

beneficially
Name, Position, owned or
Province or Principal Director/ controlled or
State and Country Occupation or Employment Officer directed, directly
of Residence(1)(2) during the Past Five years Since or indirectly (6)(7)

1 March 2015 93,000

8 October 2012 649,371

5 July 2016 327,000

John Goodwin has over 40 years
international experience in Corporate
Finance, Investment Banking,
operational and general management.
John’s most recent role was as
Managing Director of the Group
Holding Company United International
Enterprises Ltd (UIE), which owns 46
per cent. of Danish and Malaysian
listed United Plantations Berhad. He
remains on the board of UIE as a non-
executive director and consultant. He
has held directorships at a number of
companies including Danish listed,
United Plantations Africa Ltd,

JOHN ALLEN
GOODWIN (3)(4)(5),

Director
United Kingdom

Eric Roth serves as Chief Executive
Officer, President and director of
Aegean and was a non-executive
director of OroSur Mining Inc. (TSX:
OMI AIM:OMI) from 31 December 2013
to 31 January 2014. Eric Roth was
most-recently President & Chief
Executive Officer, and then a director of
Extorre Gold Mines Ltd (“Extorre”) until
Extorre was acquired by Yamana Gold
Inc. in June 2012. Prior to Extorre, Eric
Roth was engaged as a consultant on
South American gold projects for
Exeter Resource Corp. and Kinross
Gold Corp. From January 2002 to
March 2008, Eric Roth was employed
by AngloGold Ashanti Ltd, initially as
the Lima-based Peru project and South
American Opportunities Manager and
subsequently as the Johannesburg-
based Global Head of Greenfields
Exploration.

ERIC ROTH (3)(4)(5),

Director and COO
Santiago, Chile

Ron Ho has been with Sandstorm Gold
for the past seven years, focused on
structuring mine financing transactions
and corporate development. Prior to
Sandstorm, he served as the Chief
Financial Officer for SNS Silver
Corporation

Ron Ho(3)(5),

Director
Canada
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Number of
Ordinary Shares

beneficially
Name, Position, owned or
Province or Principal Director/ controlled or
State and Country Occupation or Employment Officer directed, directly
of Residence(1)(2) during the Past Five years Since or indirectly (6)(7)

5 July 2016 Nil

Notes:

(1) The information as to place of residence and principal occupation, not being within the knowledge of Mariana, has been furnished
by the respective directors individually.

(2) Each director’s term of office expires at the next annual general meeting of shareholders of Mariana where they can be nominated
for re election.

(3) Member of Audit Committee (John Goodwin is chairman).

(4) Member of Remuneration Committee (John Goodwin is chairman).

(5) Member of Nomination Committee.

(6) Includes beneficial, direct and indirect shareholdings.

(7) Does not include stock options and other rights to purchase or acquire Mariana Shares.

None of the proposed directors (or any of their personal holding companies) of Mariana:

(a) is, as at the date of this Scheme Document, or has been, within 10 years before the date of this Scheme
Document, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company, including Mariana,
that:

(i) as subject of a cease trade order or similar order or an order that denied the relevant company
access to any exemption under securities legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive
days while that person was acting in the capacity as director, executive officer or chief financial
officer; or

(ii) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the issuer access to any
exemption under securities legislation in each case for a period of 30 consecutive days, that was
issued after the person ceased to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer in
the company and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the
capacity as director, executive officer or chief financial officer; or

(b) is as at the date of this Scheme Document or has been within the 10 years before the date of this
Scheme Document, a director or executive officer of any company, including Mariana, that while that
person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity,
became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was
subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver,
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or

(c) has, within the 10 years before the date of this Scheme Document, become bankrupt, made a proposal
under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangements or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager as
trustee appointed to hold the assets of that individual.

None of the proposed directors (or any of their personal holding companies) has been subject to:

Mustafa Aksoy has close to 20 years
working experience in Banking,
Corporate Finance, M&A, Business
Development and Management.
Having worked in two Turkish banks as
an auditor, Mustafa joined Çalık Holding
in 2004 and worked in various business
lines of the Group. Since 2010 he has
been a Board Member and the
Managing Director of Lidya Mining

Mustafa Aksoy(5),

Director
Turkey
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(a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities
regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority;
or

(b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered
important to a reasonable security holder in deciding whether to vote for a proposed director.

Approval of Amended Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan
The Mariana Board has previously adopted Mariana’s stock option plan (the “Mariana Incentive Stock
Option Plan”), which is a “rolling” stock option plan, pursuant to which a maximum of 10 per cent. of the
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Mariana at the time an option is granted may be reserved for
issuance pursuant to the exercise of incentive stock options, effective 22 June 2011, which was
subsequently approved by the TSX. The Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan was ratified and approved,
pursuant to TSX policy, by shareholders at Mariana’s annual general meeting held on 22 June 2011.

On 26 July 2016, Mariana listed its ordinary shares on the TSXV, and in connection with such listing, the
TSXV has required Mariana to make changes to its stock option plan to comply with requirements set forth
in the TSXV policies. Effective as of 26 July 2016 the Mariana Board approved the amendments to the stock
option plan (the “Amended Plan”) that incorporates TSXV requirements. The principal amendments to the
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan are summarized below.

(a) All reference to the “TSX “and “Toronto Stock Exchange” in the Amended Plan was replaced with
“TSXV and the “TSX Venture Exchange”.

(b) The following new definitions were added to the Amended Plan, “Discounted Market Price” and has
the meaning specified in the policies of the TSXV Corporate Finance Manual, “Investor Relations
Activities”.

(c) The addition that Mariana and the optionee are responsible for ensuring and confirming that the
optionee is a bona fide Employee, Consultant or Management Company Employee, as the case may
be.

(d) Revisions to the exercise price that it shall not be less than the Discounted Market Price.

(e) Additional provisions that:

(i) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares that may be reserved under the Amended
Plan for issuance to any one person (and any companies wholly-owned by that person) in any
12 month period shall not exceed five per cent. of the issued shares of Mariana calculated at the
date an option is granted to such person, unless Mariana has obtained “disinterested shareholder
approval” in accordance with the policies of the TSXV;

(ii) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares that may be reserved under the Amended
Plan for issuance to any one consultant during any 12 month period shall not exceed two per
cent. of the issued shares of Mariana calculated at the date an option is granted to such
consultant;

(iii) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares that may be reserved under the Amended
Plan for issuance to all persons retained to provide investor relations activities shall not exceed
two percent of the issued shares of Mariana in any 12 month period, calculated at the date an
option is granted to any such person (for the purposes of this Amended Plan, persons retained
to provide investor relations activities shall include any consultant that performs investor relations
activities and any employee or director whose role and duties primarily consist of investor relations
activities);

(iv) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares that may be reserved for issuance to Insiders
pursuant to the Amended Plan, may not exceed 10 per cent. of the issued shares of Mariana at
any time, unless Mariana has obtained “disinterested shareholder approval” in accordance with
the policies of the TSXV;

(v) the maximum aggregate number of options issued to insiders pursuant to the Amended Plan
within any 12 month period may not exceed 10 per cent. of the issued shares of Mariana
calculated at the date an option is granted to any insider, unless Mariana has obtained
“disinterested shareholder approval” in accordance with the policies of the TSXV; and
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(vi) subject to TSXV approval, the exercise price per option may be reduced at the discretion of the
committee of the Mariana Board or the Mariana Board if:

(A) prior TSXV approval is obtained and at least six months has elapsed since the later of the
date such option was granted and the date the exercise price for such option was last
amended; and

(B) “disinterested shareholder approval” is obtained in accordance with the policies of the TSXV
for any reduction in the exercise price under an option held by an insider of Mariana;

(f) Amendment of certain provision regarding election of a cashless exercise.

A copy of the Amended Plan may be inspected at the office of Mariana’s Canadian solicitors, Gowling
WLG (Canada) LLP, at Suite 2300, 550 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2B5 Canada
during normal business hours and at the Meeting. In addition, a copy of the Amended Plan will be
mailed, free of charge, to any holder of ordinary shares who requests a copy, in writing, from the chief
financial officer of Mariana. Any such requests should be mailed to Mariana, at its head office, to the
attention of the chief financial officer.

At the Meeting, shareholders will be asked to consider and, if deemed advisable, vote in favour of an
ordinary resolution to ratify, confirm and approve the Amended Plan, with or without variation, as
follows:

“THAT the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, in the form last approved by the shareholders on
22 June 2011, with or without amendments that may be required to conform to the policies of the
TSXV or comply with the rules and regulations of any other regulatory body having authority over the
Company or the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.”

In the absence of any contrary directions, it is the intention of management to vote proxies in the
accompanying form in favour of the foregoing ordinary resolution.

4. STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Under this heading, Mariana is including the disclosure required by Form 51-102F6V Statement of Executive
Compensation – Venture Issuer.

For the purposes of this Scheme Document, a “Named Executive Officer”, or “NEO”, means each of the
following individuals:

(a) each individual who, during any part of Mariana’s financial year ended 31 December 2016, served as
chief executive officer (“CEO”) of Mariana, including an individual performing functions similar to a CEO;

(b) each individual who, during any part of Mariana’s financial year ended 31 December 2016, served as
chief financial officer (“CFO”) of Mariana, including an individual performing functions similar to a CFO;

(c) the most highly compensated executive officers of Mariana and its subsidiaries, other than the
individuals identified in paragraphs (a) and (b), as at 31 December 2016 whose total compensation
was more than US$150,000, as determined in accordance with subsection 1.3(5) of Form 51 102F6,
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016; and

(d) each individual who would be a NEO under paragraph (c) above but for the fact that the individual was
not an executive officer of Mariana, and was not acting in a similar capacity, as at 31 December 2016.

Mariana has three Named Executive Officers: Glen Parsons, Mariana’s CEO, Eric Roth the COO and Sharon
Cooper, Mariana’s CFO. The Summary Compensation table below provides information for the two most
recently completed financial years ended 31 December 2016 regarding compensation paid to or earned by
each of the Named Executive Officers.

Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation, Excluding Compensation Securities
The following table details all compensation paid to Mariana’s Named Executive Officers and directors for
the fiscal years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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Table of Compensation Excluding Compensation Securities
Value

of all other
Salary, Value of compensation

consulting perquisites (GBP)
fee, retainer or Committee or (GBP) This is share Total

commission Bonus meeting fees This is based compensation
Name and position Year(1) (GBP) (GBP) (GBP) fringe benefits payments (GBP)

Glen Parsons(4) 2016 193,136 – – – 144,618 337,754
CEO and Director 2015 170,984 – – – 58,931 229,915

Sharon Cooper(4) 2016 107,862 – – 1,919 58,202 167,983
CFO 2015 94,296 – – 1,893 18,415 114,604

John Horsburgh(5) 2016 14,269 – 41,911 – 50,622 106,802
Non-Executive 
Chairman and Director 2015 22,916 – 35,981 – 41,613 100,510

Eric Roth(5) 2016 141,355 – – – 144,618 285,973
Executive Director and 2015 151,338 32,710 878 – 36,316 221,242 
Chief Operating Officer

John Goodwin(6) 2016 – – 30,225 – 50,622 80,847
Non-Executive Director 2015 – – 20,934 – 10,711 31,645

Mustafa Aksoy(6) 2016 – – 14,211 – 7,275 21,486
Non-Executive Director 2015 – – – – – –

Ron Ho(6) 2016 – – 14,211 – 7,275 21,486
Non-Executive Director 2015 – – – – – –

Notes:

(1) Financial years ended 31 December.

(2) The currency of Mariana’s financial statements is Great Britain pounds sterling. As of 30 December 2016, the noon rate of exchange
at the Bank of Canada was 1GBP = C$1.6564.

(3) These amounts reflect Mariana’s accounting values for options issued and do not correspond to the actual value that has been
or will be realized by the named executives. Please refer to Mariana’s financial statements made up to 31 December 2016 for
further details.

(4) Glen Parsons and Sharon Cooper were appointed CEO and CFO of Mariana, respectively, on 31 March 2013.

(5) John Horsburgh, and Eric Roth were appointed directors of Mariana on 31 January 2016 and 16 January 2015, respectively.

(6) John Goodwin, Mustafa Aksoy and Ron Ho were appointed non-executive directors of Mariana on 1 March 2015, and 5 July
2016, respectively.
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Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities
The following table sets out all compensation securities granted or issued to all NEOs and directors by
Mariana during the fiscal year ended 31 December 2016 for services provided or to be provided, directly or
indirectly, to Mariana.

Compensation Securities
Number of

compensation
securities,
number of
underlying Closing
securities, Issue, Closing price Price of

Type of and Date conversion of security Security on
Name and compensation percentage of issue or exercise on date of date at year
position security of class or grant price (GBP) grant (GBP) end (GBP) Expiry Date

Glen Parsons Grant of options 250,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
CEO and over Mariana 
Director Shares

Grant of options 150,000 10 June 2016 45 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
over Mariana 
Shares

Grant of options 100,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence
over Mariana 
Shares 0.40 per cent.

Sharon Grant of options 200,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Cooper over Mariana
CFO Shares

John Grant of options 90,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Horsburgh over Mariana Shares
Non-Executive 
Chairman and Grant of options 50,000 10 June 2016 45 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Director over Mariana 

Shares

Grant of options 35,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
over Mariana 
Shares 0.14 per cent.

Eric Roth Grant of options 250,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Executive over Mariana 
Director and Shares
Chief Operating
Officer Grant of options 150,000 10 June 2016 45 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019

over Mariana Shares

Grant of options 100,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
over Mariana Shares

0.4 per cent.

John Goodwin Grant of options over 90,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Non-Executive Mariana Shares
Director

Grant of options over 50,000 10 June 2016 45 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Mariana Shares
Grant of options over 35,000 10 June 2016 47.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Mariana Shares

0.14 per cent.

Mustafa Aksoy Grant of options over 25,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Non-Executive Mariana Shares
Director 0.2 per cent.

Ron Ho Grant of options over 25,000 10 June 2016 42.5 pence 38.2 pence 70 pence 10 June 2019
Non-Executive Mariana Shares
Director 0.2 per cent.

Notes:

(1) The Mariana Options were granted in the United Kingdom pound sterling (GBP).

(2) These amounts are calculated based on the difference between the market value of the Mariana Shares as at 30 December 2016
and the exercise price of the Mariana Option. Bank of Canada noon rate of exchange on 30 December 2016 was 1.00 GBP =
C$1.6564.

(3) On 30 June 2016, Mariana announced that the Ordinary Shares would be consolidated (the “Share Consolidation”) on the basis
of one new ordinary share for 10 old ordinary shares (1:10). All information in this Scheme Document regarding the issued and
outstanding ordinary shares, options and weighted average number and per share information has been adjusted to reflect the
Share Consolidation.
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Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2016, Mariana granted share bonus awards and grant
of options to each of Glen Parsons pursuant to a letter agreement entered into between Mariana and Glen
Parsons dated 10 March 2017 and Eric Roth pursuant to a letter agreement entered into between Mariana
and Eric Roth on 10 March 2017, as announced on 1 February 2017. See “Statement of Executive
Compensation – Employment, consulting and management agreement” herein.

No compensation securities were exercised by Mariana’s Named Executive Officers and directors during
the fiscal year ended 31 December 2016.

Stock Option Plans and Other Incentive Plans
The Mariana Board has previously adopted Mariana’s Incentive Stock Option Plan, which is a “rolling” stock
option plan, pursuant to which a maximum of 10 per cent. of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of
Mariana at the time an option is granted may be reserved for issuance pursuant to the exercise of incentive
stock options, effective 22 June 2011, which was subsequently approved by the Toronto Stock Exchange.
The Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan was ratified and approved, pursuant to TSX policy, by shareholders
at Mariana’s annual general meeting held on 22 June 2011.

On 26 July 2016, Mariana listed its ordinary shares on the TSXV, and in connection with such listing, the
TSXV has required Mariana to make changes to its Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan to comply with
requirements set forth in the TSXV policies. Effective as of 26 July 2016, the Mariana Board approved the
Amended Plan to incorporate the TSXV requirements. Under TSXV policy, all such rolling stock option plans
must be approved and ratified by shareholders on an annual basis.

A summary of the material terms of the Amended Plan is set out below and under “Approval of Amended
Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan”.

The purpose of the Amended Plan is to allow Mariana to grant options to directors, officers, employees and
consultants, as an incentive to dedicate their efforts to advance the success of Mariana. The granting of
options is intended to align the interests of such persons with that of the members.

Eligible Optionees

Under the policies of the TSXV, to be eligible for the issuance of a stock option under the Amended Plan an
optionee must either be a director, officer, consultant or an employee of Mariana or a company providing
management or other services to Mariana or a subsidiary of Mariana at the time the option is granted.

Material Terms of the Amended Plan

The following is a summary of the material terms of the Amended Plan:

Any director, officer, employee, consultant or management company employee of Mariana or any of its
subsidiaries (collectively, an “Eligible Optionee”) is eligible to receive stock options under the Plan.

(a) The number of shares available for purchase pursuant to stock options granted under the Amended
Plan will not exceed 10 per cent. of the number of shares which are issued and outstanding on the
particular date of grant.

(b) In accordance with the Amended Plan, the Mariana Board may, at any time, without further approval
by the shareholders of Mariana, amend the Amended Plan or any stock option granted thereunder in
such respects as it may consider advisable and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it may
do so to:

(i) ensure that the Options granted will comply with any provisions respecting stock options in tax
and other laws in force in any country or jurisdiction of which a Optionee to whom an Option has
been granted may from time to time be resident or a citizen;

(ii) make amendments of a housekeeping or administrative nature including, but not limited to, of a
clerical, grammatical or typographical nature;

(iii) change vesting provisions of an Option or the Amended Plan;
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(iv) change termination provisions of an Option provided that the expiry date does not extend beyond
the original expiry date;

(v) to correct any defect, supply any information or reconcile any inconsistency in the Amended Plan
in such manner and to such extent as shall be deemed necessary or advisable to carry out the
purposes of the Amended Plan;

(vi) reduce the exercise price of an Option for an optionee who is not an insider of Mariana;

(vii) make any amendments required to comply with applicable laws or TSXV requirements; and

(viii) make any other amendments which are accepted for filing by the TSXV, AIM or other regulatory
authority.

(c) The exercise price of each Option shall be determined by a committee of the Mariana Board or the
Mariana Board at the time of Option grant, provided, in any event, that this shall be not less than the
Discounted Market Price (as such term is defined in the TSXV Corporate Finance Policies).

(d) The Options are non assignable and may be exercised for a period not to exceed 10 years, such period
and any vesting schedule to be determined by the Mariana Board at the time of the Option grant.

(e) Options held by an optionholder that ceases to be an Eligible Optionee under the Amended Plan for
any reason other than cause and death, will cease to be exercisable on or before the earlier of the
expiry date of the Option and 90 days after the termination date for an Eligible Optionee who is a
director, officer employee, or consultant.

(f) If an optionee dies while an Eligible Optionee, the legal representative of the optionee may exercise
the optionee’s stock options on or before the earlier of the expiry date of the Option and 12 months
after the date of the optionee’s death, but only to the extent the stock options were by their terms
exercisable on the date of death.

(g) If an optionee ceases to be an eligible Optionee for cause, each option held by that optionee expires
immediately on termination of the services being provided by the optionee.

(h) The number of shares subject to an Option granted to any one Optionee shall be determined by the
Mariana Board subject to: (a) the number of shares issuable to insiders at any time, under all share
compensation arrangements, cannot exceed 10 per cent. of the issued shares of Mariana, unless
Mariana has obtained “disinterested shareholder approval” in accordance with the policies of the TSXV;
and (b) the number of shares issued to insiders as a group pursuant to the Amended Plan and all other
share compensation arrangements, in any 12 month period, cannot exceed 10 per cent. of the issued
shares of Mariana, unless Mariana has obtained “disinterested shareholder approval” in accordance
with the policies of the TSXV.

(i) The expiry date of outstanding options held by Eligible Optionee which expire during a restricted trading
period imposed by Mariana in accordance with applicable securities laws (a “Blackout Period”), will
be extended for a period of 10 business days commencing on the first business day after the date the
Blackout Period has ceased, in order to provide such participants with an extension of the right to
exercise such options.

(j) The Amended Plan contains adjustment provisions in the event of the subdivision or consolidation of
the shares of Mariana, or in the event that Mariana is re organized, amalgamated or merged with or
consolidated into another company or in the event there is a change in control of Mariana.

(k) In the event of a takeover bid for Mariana, including a corporate combination, the Amended Plan
provides, inter alia, that notwithstanding any vesting restriction that would otherwise apply, all
outstanding stock options may be conditionally exercised in whole or in part by the Optionee so as to
permit the Optionee to tender the shares received upon such exercise pursuant to the takeover bid,
subject to TSXV approval.

There is no financial assistance available to optionees under the Amended Plan.
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Employment, consulting and management agreement
On 5 February 2013, Mariana entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”) with John Horsburgh
(the “Consultant”), under which the Consultant agreed to provide services to Mariana as determined by
the CEO or directors of Mariana. In consideration for these services, the Consultant is to be paid US$1,250
per eight hour work day. The Consultant is engaged as an independent contractor, and not as an agent,
employee, director, joint venture or partner of Mariana, and the Consultant is prohibited from representing
himself as such. The Agreement may be terminated by either Mariana or the Consultant without notice by
reason of a material breach, or otherwise on 180 days’ notice or compensation in lieu.

Effective 31 March 2013 Mariana entered into executive service agreements (collectively, the “Executive
Services Agreements”) with Glen Parsons and Sharon Cooper employing each as the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief financial Officer, respectively. Pursuant to the executive service agreements between
Mariana and each of Glen Parsons and Sharon Cooper, Glen Parsons receives an annual salary of
US$250,000 (£193,136 equivalent) (this includes fees paid to Glen Parsons as director fees), and Sharon
Cooper receives an annual salary of A$192,000, £107,862 equivalent).

The Executive Services Agreements entitle Glen Parsons and Sharon Cooper to compensation from Mariana
in the event of termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or constructive), resignation, retirement, a change
in control of Mariana or a change in an NEO’s responsibilities. In the event that Glen Parsons and Sharon
Cooper are terminated by Mariana for any reason, Mariana is required to pay such NEO a severance payment
equal to 12 months’ base salary.

Each Executive Services Agreement also provides for the occurrence of certain events upon a “material
change” of Mariana. If a material change occurs, Glen Parsons and Sharon Cooper may give notice to
Mariana of such fact and if not notified by Mariana within five working days after receipt of such notice, the
NEO has the right for a further 30 day period to terminate his or her employment with Mariana and receive:

(a) the NEO’s remuneration and statutory entitlements to the date of termination; and

(b) 12 months’ base salary.

For the purposes of the Executive Services Agreements:

(a) a “material change” means any one or more of the following events without the express consent of
the NEO:

(i) a material adverse change in the NEO’s reporting relationships;

(ii) a material diminution in the nature or scope of the NEO’s authority, powers, functions, duties or
responsibilities;

(iii) a significant reduction in the scope of operations directly under the NEO’s control; or

(iv) a Change in Control of Mariana.

(b) “Change in Control” means a change in the ownership or control of Mariana which results in a party
and its associates (as defined under section 12 of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)) obtaining Control
of Mariana.

(c) “Control” has the meaning given under section 50AA of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and
“Controlling” has the corresponding meaning.
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The estimated incremental payments that are trigged by, or result from, change of control, severance,
termination or constructive dismissal is set out in the table below:

Triggering Event*
Termination

without
Cause and

Resignation for Change
Resignation Retirement Good Cause of Control

NEO (GBP) (GBP) (GBP) (GBP)

Eric Roth – – 162,120 162,120
Glen Parsons(1) 40,636 40,636 274,463 274,463
Sharon Cooper(2) 14,569 14,569 145,392 145,392

* Bank of Canada noon rate of exchange on 30 December 2016, = 1.00 GBP = C$1.6564.

(1) Includes accrued long service leave of £20,641

(2) Includes accrued long service leave of £8,295

Oversight and Description of Named Executive Officer and Director Compensation
The Remuneration Committee of the Mariana Board is responsible for ensuring that Mariana has in place
an appropriate plan for executive compensation and for making recommendations to the Mariana Board
with respect to the compensation of Mariana’s executive officers. The Mariana Board ensures that total
compensation paid to its NEOs is fair and reasonable and is consistent with Mariana’s compensation
philosophy. The Remuneration Committee has expertise, in among other things, evaluating overall
compensation policies, plans and practices, as well as setting compensation for executive officers;
overseeing and administering equity compensation plans and establishing employment, retention and
severance arrangements for executive officers.

The executive compensation program is designed to encourage, compensate and reward employees on
the basis of individual and corporate performance, both in the short and the long term. Base salaries are
competitive with corporations of a comparable size and stage of development within the mining industry,
thereby enabling Mariana to compete for and retain executives critical to Mariana’s long term success.
Incentive compensation is directly tied to corporate performance. Share ownership opportunities are
provided to align the interests of executive officers with the longer term interests of shareholders.
Compensation for each of the NEOs consists of a base salary, along with annual incentive compensation in
the form of a performance based bonus, and a longer term incentive in the form of stock options.

Base Salary
The Remuneration Committee approves ranges for base salaries for senior management of Mariana based
on reviews of market data from peer companies in the global mineral exploration industry. The level of base
salary for each employee within a specified range is determined by the level of past performance, as well as
by the level of responsibility and the importance of the position to Mariana.

The Remuneration Committee approves the base salary to be paid to senior management. The
Remuneration Committee’s recommendations for such base salaries are then submitted for approval by the
Mariana Board.

Annual Bonus
Employees, including executives, are eligible for an annual discretionary incentive award but this is dependent
on the financial position of Mariana. Corporate performance, as assessed by the Mariana Board, determines
the aggregate amount of bonus to be paid by Mariana to all eligible senior officers in respect of a fiscal year.
The aggregate amount of bonus to be paid will vary with the degree to which targeted corporate performance
was achieved for the period. The short term incentive component is structured to reward not only increased
value for shareholders but also performance with respect to key operational factors and non financial goals
important to long term success.
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Stock Options
The Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan is designed to give each option holder an interest in preserving
and maximizing shareholder value in the longer term, to enable Mariana to attract and retain individuals with
experience and ability and to reward individuals for current performance and expected future performance.
The Mariana Board considers stock option grants when reviewing executive officer compensation packages
as a whole.

The Mariana Board has sole discretion to determine the key employees to whom it recommends that grants
be made and to determine the terms and conditions of the options forming part of such grants. In monitoring
or adjusting the option allotments, the Mariana Board takes into account the level of options granted for
similar levels of responsibility and considers each participant based on reports received from management,
its own observations on individual performance (where possible) and its assessment of individual contribution
to shareholder value, previous option grants and the objectives set for the participants. The scale of Mariana
options is generally commensurate to the appropriate level of base compensation for each level of
responsibility.

The number of stock options which may be issued under the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan in the
aggregate and in respect of any fiscal year is limited under the terms of the Mariana Incentive Stock Option
Plan and cannot be increased without shareholder approval.

Mariana has not placed a restriction on the purchase by its NEOs or other employees of financial instruments
(including prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars or units of exchange funds) that are
designed to hedge or offset a decrease in the market value of equity securities granted as compensation or
held, directly or indirectly, by the NEO or employee. To Mariana’s knowledge, none of the NEOs have
purchased any such financial instruments.

The Mariana Board reviews and approves grants of Mariana Options throughout the year as deemed
appropriate.

Compensation Risk Management
Mariana believes that its executive compensation program does not create risk outside Mariana’s risk
appetite. Some of the risk management initiatives currently employed by Mariana are as follows:

(a) appointing a Remuneration Committee to oversee the executive compensation program;

(b) the use of deferred equity compensation to encourage a focus on long term corporate performance
vs. short term results;

(c) disclosure of executive compensation to stakeholders;

(d) use of discretion in adjusting bonus payments up or down as the Remuneration Committee deems
appropriate and recommends to the Mariana Board; and

(e) ultimately complete board accountability.

Directors
Except as noted herein, Mariana has no arrangements, standard or otherwise, pursuant to which non
executive directors are compensated by Mariana for their services in their capacity as directors, or for
committee participation, involvement in special assignments or for services as a consultant or expert during
the fiscal year ended 31 December 2016.

There is no additional compensation paid with respect to committee membership or meeting attendance.
In addition, Mariana reimburses all directors for their out of pocket costs incurred in attending Mariana Board
meetings. In addition, each director is eligible to receive stock options pursuant to the Mariana Incentive
Stock Option Plan.

Pension Disclosure
Mariana does not provide retirement benefits for directors or executive officers. Contributions paid are defined
contributions to the relevant NEO’s personal retirement scheme.
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5. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
At no time during Mariana’s last completed financial year or as of 12 May 2017, was any director, executive
officer, employee, proposed management nominee for election as a director of Mariana nor any associate
of any such director, executive officer, or proposed management nominee of Mariana or any former director,
executive officer or employee of Mariana or any of its subsidiaries is or has been indebted to Mariana or any
of its subsidiaries or is or has been indebted to another entity where such indebtedness is or has been the
subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding
provided by Mariana or any of its subsidiaries, other than routine indebtedness.

6. SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table provides information regarding compensation plans under which equity securities of
Mariana are authorized for issuance in effect as of the end of Mariana’s most recently completed financial
year:

Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance

Number of Securities Under Equity
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Compensation Plans

Exercise of Outstanding Exercise Price of (Excluding Securities
Options, Warrants and Outstanding Options, Reflected in 

Rights Warrants and Rights Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)

Equity Compensation
Plans Approved By
Shareholders 5,847,160 46.25 6,557,910
Equity Compensation
Plans Not Approved By
Shareholders N/A N/A N/A

–––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––

Total: (3)(4)(5) N/A (3)(4)

–––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––

Notes:

(1) In June 2011, Mariana adopted the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan, being a “rolling” incentive stock option plan which
provides that the Mariana Board may grant up to 10 per cent. of the total number of ordinary shares issued and outstanding at
the date of the stock option grant. For terms of the equity compensation plan see “Stock Option Plans and Other Incentive Plans
and “Approval of Amended Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan”.

(2) In July 2016, the Mariana Board approved certain amendments to the Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan to include additional
provisions to address TSXV requirements. See “Approval of Amended Mariana Incentive Stock Option Plan”.

(3) On 30 June 2016, Mariana announced the Share Consolidation. All information in this Scheme Document regarding the issued
and outstanding ordinary shares, options and weighted average number and per share information has been adjusted to reflect
the Share Consolidation.

(4) This table does not include warrants issued to Sandstorm as part of a private placement announced the 4 May 2016. Under that
transaction Mariana issued warrants to Sandstorm to purchase 4,490,122 ordinary shares at a price of GBP0.25 per ordinary
share on 6 May 2016, expiring 6 May 2018.

7. INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
Other than as set forth below and in this Scheme Document, and other than transactions carried out in the
ordinary course of business of Mariana or any of its subsidiaries, none of the directors or executive officers
of Mariana, a director or executive officer of a person or company that is itself an informed person or
subsidiary of Mariana, nor any shareholder beneficially owning, directly or indirectly, Ordinary Shares of
Mariana, or exercising control or direction over Ordinary Shares of Mariana, or a combination of both, carrying
more than 10 per cent. of the voting rights attached to the outstanding Ordinary Shares of Mariana nor an
associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing persons has since 1 January 2016 (being the commencement
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of Mariana’s last completed financial year) any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transactions which
materially affected or would materially affect Mariana or any of its subsidiaries.

8. MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
The management functions of Mariana are substantially performed by the directors and officers of Mariana,
and not to any substantial degree by any other person with whom Mariana has contracted. Mariana does
not presently have any management agreements in place with any of its directors or officers.

9. AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition of the Audit Committee
As of the date of this Scheme Document, the following are the members of Mariana’s Audit Committee:

Financially
Member Independent(1) literate(2)

Glen Parsons No Yes
John Goodwin Yes Yes
Ron Ho(3) Yes Yes

Notes:

(1) A member of an audit committee is independent if the member has no direct or indirect material relationship with Mariana which
could, in the view of the Mariana Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise of a member’s independent judgment. Glen Parsons
is not independent, as he is the, Chief Executive Officer of Mariana.

(2) An individual is financially literate if the member has the ability to read and understand a set of financial statements that present a
breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues
that can reasonably be expected to be raised by Mariana’s financial statements.

(3) John Horsburgh acted as alternate for Ron Ho for purposes of audit committee approval of the audited financial statements of
Mariana for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Relevant Education and Experience
The following is a summary of the Audit Committee members’ education and experience which is relevant
to the performance of their responsibilities as an Audit Committee member:

Glen Parsons. Glen Parsons is a chartered accountant and has acted a CFO and executive director for
numerous companies

John Goodwin. John Goodwin is a chartered accountant, banker as well as general manager and director
of various companies.

Ron Ho. Ron Ho is a chartered accountant and CFA serving as CFO for a number of companies

The Audit Committee Charter
The text of the Audit Committee’s Charter is attached hereto as Schedule “A”.

Audit Committee Oversight
At no time since the commencement of Mariana’s most recently completed financial year was a
recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by
the Mariana Board.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions
At no time since the commencement of Mariana’s most recently completed financial year has Mariana relied
on the exemption in Section 2.4 (De Minimis Non audit Services) of National Instrument – Audit Committees
52 110 (“NI 52-110”), or an exemption from NI 52 110, in whole or in part, granted under Part 8 of NI 52
110. Part 8 permits a company to apply to a securities regulatory authority for an exemption from the
requirements of NI 52-110, in whole or in part.

180

245087 Mariana pp164-imp  16/05/2017  15:32  Page 180



Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
The Audit Committee has not adopted specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit
services.

External Auditor Service Fees (By Category)
The aggregate fees billed by Mariana’s external auditors in each of the last two financial years for audit fees
are as follows:

Audit
Audit Fees(1) Related Tax All Other

Financial Year Ending GBP Fees(2) Fees(3) Fees(4)

2016 59,000 N/A N/A N/A
2015 44,000 N/A N/A N/A

Notes:

(1) The aggregate audit fees billed.

(2) The aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review
of Mariana’s financial statements and which are not included under the heading “Audit Fees”.

(3) Fees billed for preparation of Company’s corporate tax return.

(4) The aggregate fees billed for products and services other than as set out under the headings “Audit Fees”, “Audit Related Fees”
and “Tax Fees”.

Exemption
Mariana is relying upon the exemption in section 6.1 of the NI 52-110, which exempts venture issuers (as
defined therein) from the requirements of Part 3 (Composition of the Audit Committee) and Part 5 (Reporting
Obligations) of that instrument.

10. DISCLOSURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE
National Policy 58 201 Corporate Governance Guidelines establishes corporate governance guidelines which
apply to all public companies. Mariana has reviewed its own corporate governance practices in light of these
guidelines. In certain cases, Mariana’s practices comply with the guidelines, however, the Mariana Board
considers that some of the guidelines are not suitable for Mariana at its current stage of development and
therefore these guidelines have not been adopted. National Instrument 58 101 Disclosure of Corporate
Governance Practices mandates disclosure of corporate governance practices for Venture Issuers in Form
58 101F2, which disclosure is set out below.

Board of Directors
Mariana currently has six directors, John Horsburgh, Glen Parson, Eric Roth, John Goodwin, Mustafa Aksoy,
and Ron Ho. All members of the current Board are the proposed nominees for election as director at the
Meeting. Of the current directors, Mariana, John Goodwin, Mustafa Aksoy, and Ron Ho, are considered by
the Mariana Board to be “independent”, within the meaning of NI 52-110, as John Horsburgh, Eric Roth
and Glen Parsons, are or have been within the last three years, executive officers of Mariana. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, since John Horsburgh stepped down from Executive Chairman to Non-Executive Chairman
effective 31 January 2013, the Mariana Board is currently composed of 50 per cent. of non-executive officers
which facilitates the board’s independent supervision over management.

The Mariana Board has appointed Glen Parsons as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) to run Mariana and
implement the Mariana Board’s strategy. The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day running of Mariana,
making management decisions and implementing Mariana’s long and short term plans. The CEO acts as a
direct liaison between the Mariana Board and management of Mariana and communicates to the Mariana
Board on behalf of management. The CEO also communicates on behalf of Mariana to shareholders,
employees, government authorities, other stakeholders and the public.
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The following directors of Mariana hold directorships in other stock exchange listed companies as set out
below: Mariana Board:

Name of Director Name of Other Company

Glen Parson N/A
Eric Roth N/A
John Horsburgh Cullen Resources Ltd. (ASX:CUL)
John Goodwin United International Enterprises Limited (UIE)
Mustafa Aksoy N/A
Ron Ho N/A

Orientation and Continuing Education
Mariana does not have a formal process of orientation and education for members of the Mariana Board.
The current directors provide different skill sets and professional backgrounds and are experienced in
boardroom procedure and corporate governance and generally have a good understanding of the business.
When necessary, new members of the Mariana Board are provided with information about Mariana such as
the role of the Mariana Board, committees, the board’s directors and Mariana’s industry. In addition, Mariana
provides continuing education for its directors as such need arises.

Ethical Business Conduct
Mariana has not adopted a formal Code of Conduct but endeavours to select only people of the highest
personal stature and expects them to follow a high ethical standard when exercising their authority or
discretion in all of Mariana’s business dealings.

To ensure directors of Mariana exercise independent judgment in considering transactions, agreements or
decisions in respect of which a director or executive officer has declared a material personal interest (in
accordance with relevant corporate law requirements), the Mariana Board follows a practice whereby any
such board member must be absent during any board discussion pertaining thereto and not cast a vote on
any such matter. Significant contracts that may be deemed to be a conflict are also reviewed and approved
by all board members.

In addition, the Mariana Board must comply with conflict of interest provisions in applicable law in order to
ensure that directors exercise independent judgment in considering transactions and agreements in respect
of which a director or executive officer has a material interest.

Nomination of Directors
All directors are members of the Nominating Committee to determine new nominees, although no formal
process has been adopted. Nominees are generally the result of recruitment efforts by the Mariana Board,
including both formal and informal discussions among board members.

Compensation
The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of John Goodwin, as chairman, who is independent
and financially literate and John Horsburgh, who is non-independent and financially literate.

The Remuneration Committee is appointed by the Mariana Board to, among other things, discharge the
board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of Mariana’s directors and officers. The Remuneration
Committee periodically reviews the adequacy and form of compensation to ensure it realistically reflects the
responsibility and risks involved in being an effective director or officer and that the compensation allows
Mariana to attract qualified candidates. In order to ensure an objective process for determining compensation
the Remuneration Committee is comprised of a non-executive directors whose reviews include peer group,
publicly available data.

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the Mariana Board in fulfilling its corporate
governance responsibilities in regard to remuneration matters, including:

(a) the remuneration framework for non-executive directors;
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(b) recommendations on the remuneration and incentive framework, including any proposed equity
incentive awards for the executive directors and senior executives; and

(c) strategic human resources policies.

Assessments
The Mariana Board is responsible for keeping management informed of its evaluation of the performance of
Mariana and its senior officers in achieving and carrying out the board’s established goals and policies, and
is also responsible for advising management of any remedial action or changes which it may consider
necessary. Additionally, directors are expected to devote the time and attention to Mariana’s business and
affairs as necessary to effectively discharge their duties as directors.

The Mariana Board does not have a formal process to monitor the effectiveness of the Mariana Board, its
committees and individual members, but rather relies on an informal review process. In order to gauge
effectiveness the Mariana Board considers such things as: input from directors, where appropriate,
attendance of directors at board and committee meetings, and the competencies and skills each individual
director is expected to bring to the Mariana Board and each committee.

11. APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
Unless such authority is withheld, the persons named in the accompanying proxy intend to vote for the
appointment of Grant Thornton Limited Chartered Professional Accountants LLP, as auditors of Mariana.
Grant Thornton Limited, Chartered Professional Accountants LLP were first appointed auditors of Mariana
on for the year ended 30 December 2007.

12. ANY OTHER MATTERS
Management of Mariana knows of no matters to come before the Meeting other than those referred to in
the Notice of Meeting accompanying this Scheme Document. However, if any other matters properly come
before the Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the form of proxy accompanying this Scheme
Document to vote the same in accordance with their best judgment on such matters.

13. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional information regarding Mariana and its business activities is available on the SEDAR website located
at www.sedar.com “Company Profiles – Mariana Resources Limited.” Mariana’s financial information is
provided in Mariana’s audited comparative financial statements and related management discussion and
analysis for its most recently completed financial year and may be viewed on the SEDAR website at the
location noted above. Shareholders of Mariana may request copies of Mariana’s financial statements and
related management discussion and analysis by contacting the CEO of Mariana at Suite 102, 3 Eden Street,
North Sydney, NSW 2060 (Phone: (+612) 9437 4588) and Fax (+612) 9437 4599).
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SCHEDULE 1

MARIANA AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. Overall Purpose/Objectives
1.1 The Audit Committee will assist the board of directors (the “board”) in fulfilling its responsibilities. The

Audit Committee will review the financial reporting process, the system of internal control and
management of financial risks, the audit process, and Mariana’s process for monitoring compliance
with laws and regulations and its own code of business conduct. In performing its duties, the Audit
Committee will maintain effective working relationships with the board, management, and the external
auditors and monitor the independence of those auditors. To perform his or her role effectively, each
Audit Committee member will obtain an understanding of the responsibilities of Audit Committee
membership as well as Mariana’s business, operations and risks.

2. Authority
2.1 The board authorizes the Audit Committee, within the scope of its responsibilities, to seek any

information it requires from any employee and from external parties, to obtain outside legal or
professional advice and to ensure the attendance of Company officers at meetings as appropriate.

3. Organization
Membership
3.1 The Audit Committee will be comprised of at least three members, a majority of which are not officers

or employees of Mariana, at least one of whom will have accounting or related financial management
expertise.

3.2 The chairman of the Audit Committee will be nominated by the committee from time to time.

3.3 A quorum for any meeting will be two members.

3.4 The secretary of the Audit Committee will be the Secretary of Mariana, or other such person as may
be nominated by the Chairman of, and approved by, the Audit Committee.

Attendance at Meetings
3.5 The Audit Committee may invite such other persons (for example the President or Chief Financial

Officer) to its meetings, as it deems appropriate.

3.6 Meetings shall be held not less than four times a year. Special meetings shall be convened as required.
External auditors may convene a meeting of the Audit Committee if they consider that it is necessary.

3.7 The proceedings of all meetings will be minuted.

4. Roles and Responsibilities
4.1 The Audit Committee will:

(a) Gain an understanding of whether internal control recommendations made by external auditors
have been implemented by management.

(b) Gain an understanding of the current areas of greatest financial risk and whether management is
managing these effectively.

(c) Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.

(d) Review any legal matters, which could significantly impact the financial statements as reported
on by Mariana’s counsel and meet with outside independent counsel whenever deemed
appropriate.
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(e) Review the annual and quarterly financial statements, including Management’s Discussion and
Analysis with respect thereto, and all annual and interim earnings press releases, prior to public
dissemination, including any certification, report, opinion or review rendered by the external
auditors and determine whether they are complete and consistent with the information known to
Audit Committee members; determine that the auditors are satisfied that the financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(f) Pay particular attention to complex and/or unusual transactions such as those involving derivative
instruments and consider the adequacy of disclosure thereof.

(g) Focus on judgmental areas, for example those involving valuation of assets and liabilities and
other commitments and contingencies.

(h) Review audit issues related to Mariana’s material associated and affiliated companies that may
have a significant impact on Mariana’s equity investment.

(i) Meet with management and the external auditors to review the annual financial statements and
the results of the audit.

(j) Evaluate the fairness of the interim financial statements and related disclosures including the
associated Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and obtain explanations from management
on whether:

(i) actual financial results for the interim period varied significantly from budgeted or projected
results;

(ii) generally accepted accounting principles have been consistently applied;

(iii) there are any actual or proposed changes in accounting or financial reporting practices; or

(iv) there are any significant or unusual events or transactions, which require disclosure and,
if so, consider the adequacy of that disclosure.

(k) Review the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach and ensure no unjustifiable
restriction or limitations have been placed on the scope.

(l) Review the performance of the external auditors and approve in advance provision of services
other than auditing. Consider the independence of the external auditors, including reviewing the
range of services provided in the context of all consulting services bought by Mariana. The board
authorizes the Chairman of the Audit Committee to approve any non audit or additional audit
work which the Chairman deems as necessary and to notify the other members of the Audit
Committee of such non audit or additional work.

(m) Make recommendations to the board regarding the reappointment of the external auditors and
the compensation to be paid to the external auditor.

(n) Review any significant disagreement among management and the external auditors in connection
with the preparation of the financial statements.

(o) Review and approve Mariana’s hiring policies regarding partners, employers and former partners
and employees of the present and former external auditors of Mariana.

(p) Establish a procedure for:

(i) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of Mariana of concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters; and

(ii) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by Mariana regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls, or auditing matters.

(q) Meet separately with the external auditors to discuss any matters that the committee or auditors
believe should be discussed privately in the absence of management.

(r) Endeavour to cause the receipt and discussion on a timely basis of any significant findings and
recommendations made by the external auditors.

(s) Ensure that the board is aware of matters, which may significantly impact the financial condition
or affairs of the business.

(t) Perform other functions as requested by the full board.
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(u) If necessary, institute special investigations and, if appropriate, hire special counsel or experts to
assist, and set the compensation to be paid to such special counsel or other experts.

(v) Review and recommend updates to the charter; receive approval of changes from the board.

(w) With regard to Mariana’s internal control procedures, the Audit Committee is responsible to:

(i) review the appropriateness and effectiveness of Mariana’s policies and business practices
which impact on the financial integrity of Mariana, including those related to internal auditing,
insurance, accounting, information services and systems and financial controls,
management reporting and risk management; and

(ii) review compliance under Mariana’s business conduct and ethics policies and to periodically
review these policies and recommend to the board changes which the Audit Committee
may deem appropriate; and

(iii) review any unresolved issues between management and the external auditors that could
affect the financial reporting or internal controls of Mariana; and

(iv) periodically review Mariana’s financial and auditing procedures and the extent to which
recommendations made by the internal audit staff or by the external auditors have been
implemented.
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